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l EXHIBIT IDENTIFIED l EXHIBIT IDENTIFIED 

2 Kxhibit ll Email cow'11unication dat ed 6· 22-15 re: 180 2 Exhibit 26 Email communication dated 6· 15· 15 re, 235 

3 'liarasSl!lent frore student in hall.• no 3 ' Requested cop)',• no Bates number s 

4 Bates nuw.bers 4 Exhibit 27 Email communication dated 6 ·19-15 re; 2l7 

5 Exhibit 12 E111ail cowJ11unication ending 6-23-15 re, 180 5 'Requested copy, • no Bates m.'ffl.ber s 

6 'liarassment f ro!\'. student in liall , • no 6 Exhibit 28 Bmail communication ending 10·28-15 237 

7 Bates nufl'ber s 7 re : Account of interaction with 

8 Exhibit 13 E111ail cofl'J11unicati on ending 12-2-15 re: 185 8 Ns. Claggett, • no Bates numbers 

9 ' Disr espect and insult from students 9 Exhibit 29 Letter of counsel to J . Eller, 2,3 

10 in hall..,ay,' no Bates nu•.bers 10 11-3-15, Bates PC-CPS-86 

11 Exhibit U Email coffmunication dated 12·8·15 re: 185 ll Exhibit 30 Email coe.munication dated 8- 20- 15 re : 248 

12 'Disrespect and insult from students 12 •staff reduction, • no Bates n1JP.1ber s 

13 in ball.,ay, ' no Bates numbers 13 Exhibit 31 Email co~Jnunication dated 9- 23 - 15 re: 260 

14 Exhibit 15 Email co•.municaticn dated 4-7-16 re: 193 H •fnglish reduction, • no Bates m:l'bers 

15 •students in hallway.• no Bates 15 

16 numbers 16 

17 Exhibit 16 Email cofl'111unication ending 5-2-16 re: 19~ 17 

18 •continued mis-gender ing,• no Bates 18 

19 ncmbers 19 

20 Bxhibit 17 Email cowmunication dat ed 5· 9· 16 re: 197 20 

21 •sub report for Monc!ay 9 May, • no 21 

22 Bates nu"bers 22 

7 9 
1 WASHINGTON I D. C' 

1 EXHIBIT IDENTIFIED 
2 Wednesday, November U, 2019; 9:27 a.m. 

2 Exhibit 18 Email co!l'munication dated 3•20- 15 r e : 203 
j . . . 

3 Parent contract for FliS staff. • no 
4 RA'lNAH ADAMS, having first been 

4 Bates nu".bers 5 duly sworn according to law, was examined and 
5 Exhibit 19 Email co"111unication dated ll • 12- 14 re: 210 

6 cestified as follows: 
6 "Transferring of supervisors , • no 

7 - -
7 Bates nu•bers 

8 EXAMINATION 
8 Exhibit 20 Email communicati on dated 12-5-14 re: 212 

9 BY NR . NOGUL: 
9 •Notification: Raynah Ada.-.s has 

Mr. Adams, thank you very much for 10 Q. 
10 reassigned an evaluation to you, • no 

11 coming in today. 
11 Bates nUJ1.bers 

Exhibit 21 Email cowmunication ending 1 - 7-16 re: 218 
12 A. Thank you. 

12 

l3 'Transferring of supervisors,' no 13 Q. As you know -- I think ym: know ~.y 

14 Bates nUJ1bere 14 name is Elliott Mogul, and I represent Jennifer 
15 Bxhi.bit 22 Email cc•111unication ending 1-7-16 re: 220 15 Eller in this case. It's a lawsuit against the 
16 •transferring of supervisors ,• no 16 defendants here, which are Prince C-eorge's County 
17 Bates nufl'bers 17 Public Schools system, Prince George's County 
18 E:.cb.ibit 23 Incident report dated 2-20-15 222 18 Board of Education, and Superintendent C-oldson. 
19 Exhibit 2~ Letter fTo~. A. Sirrmons, Esq . to 226 19 In this case Ms. Eller claims that the defendants 
20 J . Eller. 6· 25-15 20 have discri11'inated against her because of her sex 
21 Exhibit 25 l!EOC Charge of Discrimination dated 231 21 and transgender status. 
22 6-3-15 22 Could you please state yocr name 
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1 and your addresses for the record. 1 question and you have then ansmed it, \'e can 
2 A. Sure. ~' nm is Raynah Adams. I 2 then take a break. 
J live at 12608 Willow Marsh Lane, Bowie, Maryland. J Do you have any questions about how 
4 Q, Have you ever been deposed before? 4 the deposition works? 
5 A. I have never been a witness to a 5 A. No, no. 
6 deposition. I've been in a situation where I've 6 Q. Okay. Is there any reason you 
7 been questioned by attorneys but not as a 7 think that you would not be able to anS\\'er the 
8 witness. 8 questions today fully and truthfully? 
9 Q. Were you under oath when you were 9 A. No, there Is no reason why I 

10 questioned? 10 wouldn1t be able to answer it truthfully. The 
11 A. Yes. 11 only exception may be if I don 't recall. 
12 Q, So was that at trial? 12 Q. Of course. 
B A. No. It was a hearing, school 13 A. But, no, I ~ouldn't falsely ans~er. 
14 system hearing. 14 Q. Of course. Thank rou. 
15 Q. Okay. An ad~.inistmiYe hearing in 15 So you' re not taking any 
16 the school systel!I.? 16 medications or on alcohol or anything that would 
17 A. Yes, yeah, hearing. 17 cause you to be unable to answer todaj1? 
18 Q. Okar. Actually, let Is start with 18 A. No. 
19 some ground rules for the deposition. It will 19 Q. And you don I t have any physical 
20 make it easier for everyone before we get too far 20 ailments that would prevent you froo responding? 
21 into it. 21 A. No. 
22 So as you know, you're sworn. 22 Q, Thank you, 

11 13 

1 You're under oath. It 's just as if you were in 1 So you mentioned that you had 
2 court testifying. 2 testified before in an administrative hearing. 
3 Please answer each question fully J Can you just briefly explain just kind of the 
4 and to the best of 1our recollection. Please 4 general nature of that case. 
5 ans1iier all questions verbally. It's very easy to r A. sure. There was an amsation that ) 

6 just respond with a nod or a shrug, but please do 6 I did not follow po lier, It went to a hearing. 
7 respond verbally so it gets into the record. 7 The hearing ruled in my favor, said whatever the 
8 This is the hardest part: Please 8 accusation was, was not consistent with the 
9 wait until I finish a question before you start 9 Mary land Code. I don I t know all the details of 

10 responding. That will rnake sure that every ~·ord 10 the code. And I was ordered to be reinstated. 
11 gets into the record. And I 111 try to do the 11 Q. Okay. Thank you. 
12 same to ym: and not talk over you. 12 So your testimony in that case was 
13 If you need to have a question 13 oral, not 'llritten? 
14 repeated, please just let ~.e know. ~11d if you 14 A. Correct. 
15 ~ould like the court reporter to read it back to 15 Q. Okay. Have you also sub~itted 
16 you, I think that is sornething that we can 16 testimony by a declaration or an aff idavic that 
17 accomoodate. 17 was written and signed by you? 
18 Please let me kno\l if you don It 18 A. No, 
19 understand a question or if you need me to 19 Q. Okay. Thank you. 
20 rephrase it. And, of course, let me know if you 20 Do you understand that you I re not a 
21 need to take a break. we cannot take a break if 21 defendant in this case? 
22 there's a question pending, but if I have asked a 22 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. Have you retained counsel in 1 reached out and said, Okay, yoc 111 be called in 
2 connection with this case? 2 co be asked questions. 
3 A. No, no. ] Q. Okay. And at those meetings, just 
4 Q. And have you mec Mr. Sharma before? 4 what did you talk about? 
5 A. Yes. 5 A. Shared the · · whatever the 
6 Q. What was the context in which 6 docurr.ents were that Ms. Heller had presented that 
7 \1ou1ve met Mr. Sham.a? 7 you had shared \lith his officei told to tell the 
8 A. I was · · I got an ewail from 8 cruth; cold t0 •• I asked was I being seed. And 
9 someone in the Cocnty that deals with legal 9 he informed me that the school system was being 

10 roatters in reference to this situation. I can't 10 sued. Questions like: How long am I going co be 
11 remerober if Mr. Shama or his off ice reached out 11 there? And we talked about possibly all day. 
12 to me or if I reached out to cheir off ice to meet 12 !lentioned that the · · the 
B and get insight on what was going on. B referrals ·· that I had some electronic 
14 And I met with Nr. Sharma · · he 14 referrals , that I had tried in that school at 
15 told me that I wocld be subpoenaed, and there 15 that particular time to have a better 
16 were documents that I was asked to look over that 16 docuw.encation that I could know what my assistant 
17 me pertaining to what Ms , Eller had presented, 17 principals were doing at the time as far as the 
18 I believe. 18 response tim and actions and shared that with 
19 And I reached out to Mr. Sharma 19 him. 
20 after the · · whoever subpoenas w.e or · · they went 20 And that Is it. 
21 looking for me one day, and they called me. And 21 Q. You mentioned that Mr. Shama 
22 I said, well ·· I told the~. where I was. And I 22 showed you a fe~ docrnnents. Do you re~.ember what 

15 17 

1 let them know that I had been subpoenaed ·· he 1 those \'ere? 
2 told me before that they ~ould subpoena me. And 2 A. !Is . Eller 's perspective on 
] so I let him know. 3 situations. Her notes . 
4 And I think I ~et ti:ith him either 4 Q. So they \J.'eren It formal , filed court 
5 two · · I think the second tirr.e or · · af cer I got 5 docurr.ents. They were the documents that we 've 
6 the subpoena. And I think it was two. 6 shared from Ms. Eller? 
7 I don I t think I met with you a 7 A. Yes. r1m sure I saw ·· well, you 
8 third time · · I don I t recall. 8 mean formal ·· I sail Eller versus Prince George Is 
9 Q. Okay. So there me tlio in-person 9 County Public Schools, the official, 1You1ve been 

10 meetings with Mr. Sharma? 10 subpoenaed. 1 

11 A. Yes. 11 As a roatter of fact, the second 
12 Q. Do rou know approxi~ately when 12 meeting, t!r. Sharma asked me ·· Attorney Shama 
13 those roeetings happened? 13 asked rne, 1D0 you need to be formally 
14 A. I ~ean, I ·· they I re on rr.y 14 subpoenaed? 1 

15 calendar. I ·· I · · as soon as I was 15 I said, 'No because the guy 
16 subpoenaed · · I believe that's the comet 16 couldn 't find me the first time.' Yot: know, 
17 term · · I reached out to him and we arranged the 17 so · · he called me and I said, 'lleet me here. 1 I 
18 meeting shortly after that, 18 don It have a problem with that. 
19 So I think the · · I guess the 19 Q. Did you bring any docurr.ents to your 
20 date · · i,ell, we just pushed this one back; 20 meetings with Mr. Sharma? 
21 right? But I think that it was like Occober. 21 A. No. 
22 Late October is when I got the subpoena, and I 22 Q. And I think you briefly touched on 
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1 this, but 'tihat all did Mr. Sham ask for you to 1 like, publicly available online? 
2 do to prepare for the deposition? 2 A. I 1ve never looked at it fm. a 
3 A. I believe I was given documents to 3 public perspective, so I don 1t know ·· I guess 
4 look over to familiarize myself, this · - to look 4 chey I re school-system aligned, because I had 
5 over, familiarize myself. r 

J access co them as a principal. And I never ·· I 
6 I guess chat was to -· that Is it -- 6 never sought those documents as a -- as a 
7 I don It recall any specific instructions. Don It 7 citizen. 
8 be late. 8 Q. Okay. And you still retain access 
9 Q. And you were not late. You were on 9 co those statistics now? 

10 time. In fact, you 'fere quite early. So thank 10 A. I have the numbers in my head from 
11 you for doing that. 11 2012 co 2016 . 
12 Did you -· regardless of whether 12 Q. I'm sorry. That wasn't my 

13 Mr. Sharma asked you to, did you go back and look 13 question, but thank you. 
14 at any documents co prepare for the deposition? 14 I just mean you have the ability to 
15 A. I looked at the documents that were 15 log in or to find those statistics on your 
16 given to me, yes. 16 COfl'4)Uter? 
17 Q. Did you look at any other documents 17 A. I have the ability to reach out 
18 that )'OU may have had separately? 18 co -- I have -- I have the data from the AP stats 
19 A. Any documents? 19 from the years that I was principal. 
20 Q. So when I say 'docw..encs, • that 20 Q, You just have them saved on your 
21 could inckde electronic documents. So it could 21 compucer1 
22 include e111D,ils, docufflents. 22 A. I had them sent to 111e -- so~.e of 

19 21 

1 A. When I looked ac Ns. Eller Is 1 them IA'ere already on my computer or they iiere 
2 account of why she was ffloved from AP, I looked at 2 shared with me through County representations 
3 the AP dom.enc, the AP nur.bers, smisdcs to 3 throughout each and ever/ year that the · - I 'I/as 
4 conf im the reasoning that one teacher was moved 4 at Friendly because the AP statistics are 
5 and another teacher ~as moved out and prior 5 something that you look at to make decisions 
6 moving Ms. Eller in and after -· once rr.oving 6 regarding how you I re going to fflOve forward. 
7 Ms. Eller out. 7 Q. So I understand that you shared 
8 Q. And ho~ did you access those 8 with Nr. Sharma a 30-page document. 
9 statistics? 9 MR. MOGUL: Luke, if you could find 

10 A. That's ·· what is AP called? AP 10 a copy of that . 
11 is -- I forget 'tihat the full cerm for AP -- AP 11 ~.nd we 111 mk chis as Exhibit 1. 
12 testing scholastic -- I don't -- I can't say it. 12 This will be a test co see how fast 
13 AP documents, I wanted to F.D.ke sure I 13 ~1e can put stickers on these. 
14 familiarized myself 'tith the AP because I felt 14 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 1 was marked for 
15 like any decision that -- I felt like Ms. Eller Is 15 identification. ) 
16 version of 'WhY' was inconsistent with the 16 BY MR. NOGUL: 

17 data ·· data-wise process that we use. It was 17 Q. Handing the witness what we I re 
18 data-based, not emotional-based, and I wanted to 18 marking as Exhibit 1. 
19 familiarize myself with chat infomacion. 19 IIR. SIIARMA: Do you have an extra 
20 Q, So the statistics that you I re 20 copy for ll'.e? 
21 talking about are statistics chat you had based 21 MR. ~~UL: Yes, of course. 
22 on your position as a principal? They' re not, 22 MR. SHARMA: Thank you . 
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1 BY MR. MOOUL: 1 investigation may consist of a follow-up 
2 Q. Mr. Adm, is this the docu~.ent you 2 conversation with the teacher. It ll\ay consist of 
J provided Mr. Shama1 ] a conversation in a com.1mnication with the 
4 A. Yes, sir. 4 student . It ma\' consist of witnesses, things of 
5 Q, Did yoc provide him any other 5 that nature. It may even consist of security 
6 documents1 6 investigation. Just depends on the nature of 
7 A. No. 7 the -· the incident. 
8 Q. And did Mr. Sharma ask you for this 8 The termination based on the 
9 document specif ically1 9 student rights and responsibilities, the student 

10 A. No . I went through · - there were 10 rights and responsibilities is an 
11 referrals, paper referrals. And I don 't remember 11 all-encompassing document, and one of the things 
12 the ·· the details of the conversation, but there 12 covered is infractions and responses · · 
1J were paper referrals. In regards to whether 13 appropriate responses for infractions . 
14 there was accessibility and paper referrals, I 14 Based on what that student rights 
15 kno.: I don It have access to any docuw.entation 15 and responsibilities says, the adPi.inistmor is 
16 that's within Friendly the high school because 16 supposed to get back to · · take the necessary 
17 I'm no longer in that position there. 17 action response to the teacher and let them 
18 Bet at a certain point I said, 18 kno'fi -- i.e. , conference held, conference held 
19 »ell, there was something on my system that we 19 with student , conference m held with parents, 
20 tried to document referrals, the referral 20 whatever their response is so the teacher liould 
21 process. It m not soBething we continued 21 be mre of that. 
22 because it was labor-intensive for me. But it 22 That doC'l.iment is · · a part of that 

23 25 

1 was just a way of saying -- to respondent, 1 documt is supposed to be given to the teacher. 
2 saying, Let 's make sere the assistant principals 2 A part of that document is supposed to be kept in 
J are responding to people in regards to their 3 the assistant principal ' s off ice so they could 
4 referrals. 4 run a · · so they can keep a record · · a log of 
5 Q. Could you just explain to us ~hat 5 how w.any · · they can look back and see if 
6 you mean by 'referrals. 1 6 Student A has had infractions such as these in 
7 A. I 'in. sorry. A teacher, when they 7 the past. 
8 have a fomal concern that needs to be addressed 8 So · · because the rights and 
9 administratively, they will fill out a document 9 responsibilities documents also list ·• it 

10 which is called a PS-74 ·· it's part of the 10 references first response or H this is a 
11 referral process. 11 continual problem, things of that natcre. 
12 They list the name of the student, 12 So ·· and my ·· what it does not ·· 
1J the incident. If there are details they mt to 13 \I/hat that paper document does not do, it did not 
14 put in there to · · if there are details, they 14 let w.e know that there was a timely response. 
15 list that. They submit that to the grade· level 15 So the process for ~e knowing 
16 administrator. In our case there were probably 16 whether someone had responded \'Ot:ld be the 
17 four administrators during most years. There may 17 teacher saying, Hey, Mr. Adams, I never got a 
18 have been three. I 111, not sure. One for each 18 response. 
19 grade. 19 So I tried to forroalize it · · not 
20 That grade-level a&rinistrator who 20 formalize it. That 's the wrong 11:ord. I tried to 
21 is familiar with the ·· should be fariliar with 21 be able to look at realtime to see if I cocld 
22 the students, they do an investigation. That 22 stand to see if tie were getting responses. It 
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1 w-a.s a way of evakating adP:.inistratiYe ·· the 1 something that ·· it seemed ·· the purpose of it 
2 timeliness of adP:inistmive responses. 2 was to let administrators know that I have access 
3 Q, So chis 't.'as · · this docurr.ent 3 co your response. 
4 reflects · · please let 11ie know if this is 4 So I 11ant to see ti111el y · · it is 
5 correct. 5 very labor-intensive because it requires chat c~o 
6 T'nis document reflecrs your efforts 6 sets of docurr.ents ·· electronic and a paper copy, 
7 to lxlth document and keep track of referrals from 1 which the paper copy is the County1 s official 
8 teachers abo~t the student misconduct 1 8 docureent. So that's the legal document. 
9 A. It ·· say the question again. 9 This was just a ~al' of saying, I 

10 Q, I will ask the question again. I'm 10 itant ta make sure that ~e 're responding to our 
11 not sure if it iiill be exactly the same. 11 customers in a tirrely fashion. 
12 This docuBent reflem your efforts 12 Q, Did you maintain this document on 
13 to document and keep track of both the referrals 13 your liort-issued conqrnter? 
14 from teachers and the adminismtive response to 14 A. It was a · · I think it was a Google 
15 student misbehavior? 15 doc. I'm not sure. 
16 A. The · · the purpose of the docuirent 16 Q. A Google doc? 
17 was to track the tiw:eliness of the administrative 17 A. I think. I don't reme~her what the 
18 responses, I can · · the paper copies will al10111 18 platfom was. 
19 me to say · · yeah, I think the tiw.eliness, we' re 19 Q. Did you use Google docs of ten in 
20 dealing with realtiw.e. So you can make a 20 your time as principal at Friendly High School? 
21 response. 21 A. 2013, 2014, I wol!ldn't reme~her 
22 so at the end of the specific time 22 what the platform was. Let me say this. 

27 29 

1 period, I could say, Well, AP No. 1 seerr..ed to 1 OChen I say I think it was a Google 
2 respond to ·· well, I could use a less formal if 2 doc, chat 's just a doCl!ment. I don't know. I 
l I hear a teacher say, I never got a response from 3 probably said ·· technology person or somebody, I 
4 AP 1. 4 said, Give rr.e a platform 11here I can look at it 
5 This lets the administrator know 5 and I.lie can all share. 
6 that I am looking at the response dw.e. And 6 I don It know what it itas called. I 
7 their response time · · I forgot lihat County 7 just ~anted the APs to know -· the assistant 
8 policy was. I don1t know if it lias 48 hours, 8 principal to know that I' 111 looking at your 
9 l days, 5 days. I really don't know. 9 response tirr.es. 

10 Bi:t 1;hatever it lias by policy, you 10 Q. so you had this copy in a hard 
11 wanted to have a quicker response just so you 11 copy, printed out at home? 
12 could have a more satisfied custorr.er I and 12 A. It was electronic. I attempted co 
13 customer being the reacher in this situation. B send -- to save and send to Mr. Sharma. It · · 
14 Q. Thank you. 14 couldn 't print it out ·· printed it out for the 
15 So I believe this docurr.ent reflects 15 purpose of this and scanned those in and sent 
16 some time stamps that · · I see sorr.e thac are as 16 chose over to Mr. Sharnia. 

17 far back as !larch 2013 , and the ir.ost recent I see 17 I don't know that I have · · I 
18 on here is June 2014. 18 didn't keep originals in my possession, There's 
19 Does that reflect your 19 no reason for me to have originals in rny 
20 understanding of how long you had implemented the 20 possession. 
21 system? 21 Q. Thank you. I'd like to return to 
22 A. I don't see why not. It wasn't 22 kind of just generally what you did to prepare 
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1 for today's deposition. 1 A. Yes. 
2 Did you speak to anyone else other 2 Q. And your current electronic 
3 than ~r. Shama about this deposition? 3 calendar includes dates going back to'l.'ards 
4 A. Told w.y 'l.'if e I had a deposition. I 4 your ·· it covers your time as principal at 
5 didn't speak to her aoout details. 5 Friendly High School? 
6 Q. Did you speak to anyone else about 6 A. !ly ·• the majority of rny calendar 
7 the deposition? 7 was kept by my secretary. It was not something 
8 A. No. As a matter of fact, I told · · 8 that · · I had multiple secretaries. So the · · 
9 and I told Mr. Shma ·· I didn't tell my boss, 9 depending on which secretary it was · · but I did 

10 my immediate supervisor, about this. On my 10 look back to see what could have transpired on 
11 calendar right now it 's written as a meet ·· a 11 this September the 2nd that Ms. Eller is 
12 •meet Shama, school attorney.' 12 ref erring to or Septerober the 1st that 
13 Q. And did you speak to anyone else or 13 Ms. Eller is referring to. So I haven't 
14 have you spoken to anyone else about the case 14 purposely deleted anything from my calendar. 
15 generally, not the deposition? 15 Q, sure. I'm just trying to 
16 A. Ro. 16 understand ho'II you st m have access to your 
17 Q, Did you bring any · · I don 't 17 calendar from your time as principal, when you' re 
18 believe yoi: did, buL did you bring any documents 18 no longer the principal of ·· 
19 here with yoi: teday? 19 A. I have Prince George's Cocnty 
20 A. No. 20 Public School email. I guess it 's a C-0C9le 
21 Q, And an}thing that we haven't 21 calendar I Google email. It 's ·· attached to that 
22 covered yet that you inight have done to prepare 22 is a calendar, electronic calendar. That 
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1 for this deposition? 1 calendar, I'm sure I could·· let me back up. 
2 A. Looked over the documents that ~ere 2 OChatever hasn't been removed frow. 
3 shared with Attorne, Sharma. Tried to access 3 chat calendar is on that calendar. Whatever 
4 timelines, like I said, with the AP. I said, 4 hasn' r been removed from my email is on the 
5 Well, that's a data-driven decision, so I can 5 email. 
6 pull up the data that 11;ould show rry perspective. 6 There have been things that I have 
7 And then there was something about 7 removed froll'. the email , not · · not that relates 
8 an emergency meeting thaL was held in · · in the 8 co this situation. Just so I ·· over the years, 
9 notes. And I said, Well, let me go into my 9 I've pruned email so you don 1t have 6 inillion, 

10 calendar. And I just looked and said, okay, 10 but not to remove anything · · I kno1t it's an 
11 September ·· 1'ell, no. The document said 11 electronic document; and if need be, somebody can 
12 September, I think, 2nd, two thousand · · I 12 find it. 
13 don't know what year it was. 13 Q, So I'd like to switch gears for a 
14 And I 11:ent in icy calendar to see 14 l!Klment and talk about your background, if you 
15 what had transpired the day before. And the day 15 don't mind. 
16 before I have a l!'.eeting · · had lima a meeting 16 A. Of course. 
17 with a union rep. 17 Q. Could you just walk us briefly 
18 And I could go into dmils on that 18 through your educational backgrol!nd. 
19 when we get to that pcint and 1Ghy. 19 A. From what point? 
20 Q. Si:re I that ~ould be great. 20 Q, Let's start with high school and 
21 Ji:sc so I understand, your calendar 21 then any secondary education. If you could just 
22 that you 111aintain1 is that electronic. 22 tell us the names of the school you went co, the 
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1 degrees and the years chat you graduated. 1 So Friendly High School bas an 
2 A. High school, Frederick Douglas High 2 orthopedic wing. And ~hat I mean by •orthopedic 
3 School. I scarted off us Air Force Academy, 3 wing, 1 it has a number of students i.ho hai'e ·· 
4 transferred to the University of Naryland, BA in 4 it Is a wing, so not ever/ school has a wing. So 
5 ' . 5 there are children who come with physical unance. 
6 Graduate degree -- 6 disabilities that cannot be ·· could noc be 
7 Q. Excuse r.e. Could you also provide 7 hidden. 
8 the years of your graduation? 8 There are -- so our -- I guess I Im 
9 A. Oka}'. High school 1821 1982. 9 deviating from the initial question. I'm sorry. 

10 The Air Force acadel!:y, I was only 10 Lee n:e go back. 
11 there for a semcer. 11 I would have co look at the record 
12 University of Maryland, College 12 co say, Course on diversion ·· or course on ·· I 
B Park, I believe that was 187. 13 forget ·· ~hac did you say? 
14 Howard University, NBA, I believe 14 Q. Diversity. 
15 it m 191/192. 15 A. Diversity. I'lll sorry. I'd have to 
16 I 1ve taken courses ac Bowie State, 16 look to see if there ~as a course on diversity. 
17 Bowie State University for administration. I've 17 I could not answer that. 
18 taken courses at Trinicy ·· I think Trinity is a 18 But there was al~ays soo.e training 
19 university ·· don't know ·· for certification 19 on making sure that ever1one felt included in che 
20 purposes. 20 process and not excluded. 
21 I think that Is it. 21 Q, So let 's turn to your work 
22 Q. Do you recall if any of your 22 experience. First, if you could just walk 
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1 coursework at any of these schools relaced to 1 through after you graduated from universicy of ·· 
2 diversity and inclusion as it relates co being an 2 A. Can I back up for a second] 
3 administrator at a high school or at any 3 Q. Go ahead. 
4 educational facilitl 4 A. No~, the people personnel ttorker 
5 A. You I re -- let rr.e take off the plate 5 in ·· people personne. ~orker -arks with a n\!P.l.ber 
6 the BA in finance and che MBA because that Is 6 of schools in regards to ·· is assigned a few 
7 business and that Is ft\Oney. So . doubt it very 7 schools. They're in that counseling departmt. 
8 seriously if there had been any concern about 8 They ·· they in-service mff 
9 anyone's feelings. 9 members. They in-service students. One of chose 

10 Q. Point taken. 10 things chat is included on that is diversity, 
11 A. The adrftinistrative courses that I 11 including the code of conduct -· I mean scudenc 
12 needed for certification, . i'Ould bare co check 12 rights and responsibilities, diversity, making 
B the record. I ~ould have to check the record to 13 sure other people understand chat aspecc . 
14 say Course ~o. 401 or whatever. 14 Q. Okay. So as I understand, ch ere Is 
15 But there was a ·· I ~ish I ~·ou.d 15 a position called a people personnel ~'Orker -· 
16 have knot'Il this qi:estion. I could have given 16 A. Right . 
17 you ·· in the educational courses, there was 17 Q. · · at Prince C-eorge Is County Public 
18 always ·· there was a concerted effort for 18 Schools ·· 
19 inclusion, collaborative processes, the 19 A. Correct. 
20 position ·· and what I nean by •position, ' the 20 Q. · · who focuses, at least in part, 
21 perceived position or che actual position of 21 on diversity issues? 
22 others so that ever1one felt welcow.ed and a part. 22 A. Yes. 
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1 Q, Thank you. Okay. Anhe 1 11 1 say, I believe it 11as chis long. 
2 probably coo.e back to chat later. 2 Q. Okay. ~e may not need that, but 
3 A. Oh, sure. 3 I' 11 let you know if you do. 
4 Q. So if ~e can now just talk about 4 A. Okay. 
5 rour ..-ork backgroi:nd. 5 Q, Khat was the job that you took 
6 A. Okay. 6 after leaving Household Finance? 
7 Q, After you graduated f mn the 7 A. Xerox. 
8 University of Maryland, what was your first job 8 Q. Xerox. And how long did you have 
9 after that? 9 that position? 
10 A. Household Finance. 10 A. I had it until I ttoved to Rastm 
11 Q. Household Finance. 11 Kodak. It was probably -- oh, shoot. 
12 A. A finance co~pany \1here you charge 12 I'm guessing about t\l'o years . I 
13 people exorbitant aw.aunts of interest on 13 \l'as -- I considered myself seffii-alflbitious. So I 
14 short-term loans. 14 didn It want to sit in -· I wanted to make more 
15 Q. And ho~ long did you do that? 15 fflOney. 
16 A. I don't even have it on 1tY rest.lffle 16 Q. So at Xerox you me in some sort 
17 anyoore. I thought it was a · · I thought it 17 of business role? Sales role? Can you explain 
18 ~-as -· it m not in f.}' co!tlort zone to charge 18 IA'hat it is? 
19 people loans 30 percent, 28 percent . 19 A. Supplied marketing. I ansmed 
20 Q, Do }'OU think you bad that position 20 calls for orders . 
21 for t..-o years? 100re than that? less than that? 21 I worked with a supply rep in che 
22 A. I wouldn It have resigned in less 22 field and ocorked on large orders, customer 
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1 than a year. That 1s not how I'~. -- it 1s not in 1 orders. 
2 my DIIA. 2 Q, And you said that you next ll'orked 
3 I -- I don It mewber even knol' if 3 at Kastman Kodak. 
4 it Is on my resume because it Is irrelevant to what 4 A. Yes. 
5 I do in this field. 5 Q. OChat ~as your position there? 
6 Q, I undemand. I 'w. just trying to 6 A. Copy rep. 
1 get a sense of the tir.eline. 7 Q. Copy rep? 
8 A. Right. The best I could do is tell 8 A. Copier saleSl\'.an. I 1111 sorry. 
9 you that I could go home and see if there Is an, 9 Q. And how long did you have that 

10 docu~.entation, reach out to rt. Sham.a to reach 10 position? 
11 out to you. But I know it ll'asn I t a three-month 11 A. I don't knot I don't knoll'. I 
12 stint becacse I had to pay to get the job there, 12 don 1t kno~. 
13 so I had co recoup that J?.Oney. 13 Q, ocould you say i c Is rore than a 
14 And I also had to make · - account 14 year? 
15 for mrself as being a successful college graduate 15 A. I ~ould say it would have been ".ore 
16 that had a job. so it wasn 't -- it ll'ight have 16 than a year, yeah. 
17 been -· I can 1t even ·· I can 1t -· I give you 17 Q. Less than five years? 
18 misinfomtion. 18 A. Oh, definitely. Definitely. 
19 It wasn It three ir.onths. It wasn't 19 Q, Khere did ,ou work after Eastr..an 
20 five rears. I could look and see if that I s -- if 20 Xodak~ 
21 you need to knoil specifically. I 1m sure I 21 A. Prince George Is Cocnty Mlic 
22 could -- no, I1m not sure. I could research and 22 Schools. 
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1 Q. Can you now please walk us through 1 school. 
2 each indMdual position that you had at Prince 2 But the problem is they're not 
3 George's County Pcblic Schools, starting with the 3 being educated for the remainder · · for high 
4 earliest. 4 school students, for the remainder of that 
) A. I was a math teach at axon Hill 5 semester and the total next semester. 
6 High School. 6 So depending on the infraction, 
1 Q. Do you re!'iember what year that lj!as 1 they can apply to the alternative high school. 
8 that you started working there? 8 That 's where I taught . 
9 A. I 93, 9 Q. Did you teach math there? 

10 Q. And ho1t long me you a rr.atb 10 A. Yes. 
11 teacher? 11 Q. And how long me you a teacher at 
12 A. Approxi~.ately four years. 12 the alternative schoo ? 
B Q. I'~. sorry. I should have asked, B A. Probably a year. 
14 how long were you a math teacher at OXon Him 14 Q, And where did you go after chat? 
15 A. Approxir.:ately four years. 15 A. Friendly High School. 
16 Q. Did yoc have any advancerr.ent while 16 Q. So that would have been 1998? 
17 you were at Oxon !iill in terns of · · I don't 17 A. 198/'99, yes. 
18 know ·· becoming a department head or anything of 18 Q, And did you start off at Friendly 
19 that nature? Or 1t1ere you just kind of a line 19 liigh School as a math teacher? 
20 math teacher for those four years? 20 A. No. I left the alternative high 
21 A. I taught the Mary land functional 21 school for a promotion. I started off in •· hold 
22 math class, 1t1hich is a State-assessed class for 22 on. Let rr.e back up. 
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1 graduation. 1 Yes, I started off at Friendly High 
2 Functional math skills are skills 2 School as an assistant principal. 
3 that high school ·· the State deew.ed that high 3 Q. OChat were 'JOUI duties as an 
4 school children need to graduate, basics skills. 4 assiscant principal in that initial period? 
5 At the high school level, if they were in my 5 A. Probably came in as a 9th-grade 
6 class, that meant they were deficient. 6 administrator. I oversaw the math departr..ent. I 

7 What I did at Oxen Hill is I 7 probably had some involvement with sports. 
8 excelled at getting students co master the skills 8 Initially ·· ulti@.ately, I was 
9 necessary to pass those -· that test. I excelled 9 administrator over the senior class a number of 

10 at that. 10 times in regards to -· because the seniors 
11 Q. So starting in 1997, you then took 11 have · · they have concerns chat you don It 11ant to 
12 on a new position? 12 drop the ball on; other~ise, they don't have time 
B A. I went to the alternative school B co make it up. So if sow.ething drops, the ball 
14 for students who had been expelled. 14 drops, and then they don't graduate; whereas, if 
15 Q, That's a stand-alone school within 15 something happens in 9th, 10th or 11th grade, it 
16 Prince George's county PUIJlic schools? 16 can be fixed . 
17 A. If a student has been · · yeah. If 17 There are a number of things thac 
18 a student has been expelled f row. a Prince 18 cake place with the seniors, and so my principal 
19 C,eorge1s County School, the dilerna is the 19 at the tiw.e put me in charge of the senior class 
20 expulsion prohibits the student from being in a 20 a nmrber of times , because once you learn it and 
21 population ·· I don 1t want to say a regular 21 he felt like he could trust you with it, why 
22 school ·· a traditional ·· a co11'prehensive 22 leave it to chance to teach someone else or leave 

Worldwide Reporting, LLP 

Case 8:18-cv-03649-TDC   Document 106-7   Filed 06/09/21   Page 13 of 81



J.R. 144

Sheet 13 

46 48 
1 it to chance for sorr'.eone else to get it? 1 A. Yes. 
2 One of the things that I did cover 2 Q, So then after you were principal at 
3 on behalf of my principals ... as AP, moving AP 3 Thurgood iiarshall, where did you · · the next · · 
4 numbers. 4 A. I was demoted to an assistant 
5 I was asked to move AP numbers 5 principal at Friendly High School. 
6 because I got the job as an assistam principal 6 Q, Could you explain the circu~.stances 
1 because of the math numbers I moved as a teacher. 1 of your demotion~ 
8 As an assistant principal , I moved mndardized 8 A. They ·· my ·· well, they do not 011:e 

9 testing scores on a larger level. 9 you an explanation at that point. My · · ~y 
10 Q. And it sounds like · · but please 10 understanding was that the school was not moving 
11 correct me if I 11\1. ~rong ·· from your prior 11 fomrd. 
12 testimony that included in your job as an 12 Q, Excuse me. B·, 'the school, 1 you 
13 assistant principal ..,as dealing with student 13 meant Thurgood Marsham 
14 referrals. 14 A. Thurgood Marshall. 
15 A. Discipline, yes. 15 That's not consistent with what the 
16 Q, Discipline? 16 numbers say. 
17 A. Yes. 17 Q. Okay. So you were then an 
18 Q. That would have been true for any 18 assistant principal again at Friendly for how 
19 assistant principal? 19 many years? 
20 A. Exactly. 20 A. Yes. Three. 
21 Q. So how long were you an assistant 21 Q, Three years. 
22 principal? 22 So that takes us to approxi11:ately 
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1 A. I believe four years. That's on my 1 2010. Does that sound about right? 
2 reS\!me, though, so I can access that for you. 2 A. It does. 
3 Q. B\!t sitting here today, you believe 3 Q. Okay. At that point, is that when 
4 it \:as abo~t four years? 4 you became principal of Friendly? 
5 A. About four years. 5 A. Yes. 2010/2011 school year. Yes. 
6 Q. And after that, what "as your 6 Q. ~.nd could 1ou just generally 
7 position? 7 describe the duties of a principal as you saw it 
8 A. Principal, Thurgood Marshall Middle 8 at Friendly liigh School. 
9 School, 9 A. Supervise instruction, supervise 

10 Q. So that ~ould have been 10 che learning environment, supervise the clir..ate 
11 approxilflatel\1 2003? 11 of the building, safe and orderly so that, you 
12 A. It was probably U1ee or four 12 know, instruction can take place. 
13 years. I can · · I can give you dam if you need u Monitor data, make data-based 
14 dates, specific dates. I rel\'eir.her ·· the things 14 decisions, deai with whatever emergencies may 
15 I m.erober · · ~ight be a piece · · I member the 15 come up. Be · · look at · · look at ~hat Is good 
16 nul!lbers moving. I re~ell.l)er the middle school 16 for the overall, but also taking the needs of 

17 assesSIDent nmrs w,oving mre so that I 17 individuals. 
18 remerober -· so it 111as probably three or four 18 Q. So then \'OU were principal at 
19 years. 19 Friendly High School until what school year? 
20 Q. Three or four years starting 20 A. 2016, somewhere ·· May of 2016. 
21 approximately 2003 but give or take a couple of 21 Q. And 111hat did you do after that? 
22 years? 22 A. I ~as removed. 

Worldwide Reporting, LLP 

Case 8:18-cv-03649-TDC   Document 106-7   Filed 06/09/21   Page 14 of 81



J.R. 145

Sheet 14 
50 52 

1 Q. Rerr.oved in May of 20m 1 particular school or a floating position? 
2 A. (Nods head. ] 2 A. It's a floating position. I worked 
3 Q. Can you explain the circumstances J with six schools: the science and tech schools 
4 of that? 4 and high schools in Prince C,eorge Is County and 
5 A. Sure. I broke up a fight . The 5 the aerospace technolo9'f school. 
6 accusation was that I didn1t do it appropriately. 6 So DuVal High School, Oxen Hill 
7 The hearing officer said that I did 7 liigh School, Flowers -- Charles Flowers High 
8 do it appropriately. I acted consistently with 8 School, and Eleanor Roosevelt High School; in 
9 Maryland State, yada, yada, yada. I 'rn sorry. 9 addition, t\llo middle schools: Thomas Johnson 

10 I acted consistent! y with ~hat the 10 Middle School and Oxon Hill Middle School. 
11 regulations say I should have done. 11 Q. Is this position in any way 
12 That case was decided in my favor 12 adminismtive? Or is it purely teaching or 
13 based on the Mary land Code. And -· and I was in 13 something else? 
14 a position · · I was given the position co take a 14 A. It Is administrative. I suppon the 
15 high school, which was ~y previous position. 15 science and tech and the STEM progm.s. I 
16 Q. To cake -- I Im sorry? 16 support those schools and those prograJ1.1s. I ~ork 
17 A. To take over a high school as the 17 with those principals and those coordinators in 
18 principal, my previous position. 18 regards to ~1hat they see as -- I support chem. 
19 Q. So after the case was decided in 19 Q, Do you supervise faculty mer.hers or 
20 your favor, you were offered co take over a 20 employees in an\' way? 
21 different high school, not Friendly? 21 A. I don't. I don1t. 
22 A. Friendly was not available. I 22 Q. And you1re still in that position 
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1 don It know the details of whether they would have 1 now? 
2 said -- I don It know the higher-ups, and I don It 2 A. Yes. 
J know what decision -- I don It think the dynamics 3 Q. Have you had any other eJllployr.ent 
4 of coming back to Friendly in that situation 4 chat we haven It yet talked about since -- let Is 
5 would have been in w.y best interests or the 5 say since 2010? 
6 school's best interests, to be honest with you. 6 A. I lllorked as a real estate agent for 
7 But I m -- it was ·· legally, I 7 Keller Williams. 
8 was offered the ability to go back to a high 8 Q, And when lias that? 
9 school. 9 A. It was while we me deciding the 

10 Q. And did you take that off er? 10 case on ·· the case. 
11 A. No. 11 Q. So that would have been in 201o? 
12 Q. Why not? 12 A. 117 probably. 
13 A. It Is a lot. It Is a lot. 13 Q. iJld when did you stop acting as a 
14 Q. Understandabl}'. What did you do 14 real estate agent? 
15 instead for work? 15 A. As soon as the case was decided. 
16 A. The instructional specialist, STEM 16 Q. Do you believe -- and that was in 

17 instructional specialist. 17 2017 sometirr.e? 
18 Q. And is that ·· you were still being 18 A. I -- I Id give you exact dates, but 
19 employed bi' Prince George Is County Public 19 I couldn 1t do it right now off the top of my 
20 Schools? 20 head. 
21 A. Yes. 21 Q. So going forward, as you could 
22 Q. A.11d 11as that a position tied to a 22 probably expect, \lie 1re mostly going to be talking 
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1 about the time frame between 2011, fall 2011 1 just checking my mail on the break. 
2 through •er 2016, ~hich I will represent to 2 Any platform through cOffl!l:unication 
3 \'OU was Ms. Eller Is tenure as a teacher at 3 liould be through Goog e, if it was shared 
4 Friendly High School. 4 through -- I don I c know all the specific icons 
5 can yoc just confim that you tiere 5 chat -- I don I t ~ant to say • icons' -- all the 
6 principal of Friendly liigh School that entire 6 specific -- Google Is Google doc or something. 
7 period? 7 Everything would have been done through Google 
8 A. I think Ms. mer left . . I think I 8 111.ail or Google calendar in regards to 
9 left in May -- I chink Ms. Eller way have left 9 comunication. 

10 after that. But I was not there at the end of 10 Q. ~hen you created electronic 
11 her tenure, I do not belie11e. 11 docurr:ents ·· so whether ther1 re 'tt'ord processing 

12 Q. And just -- I 111 let you know. 12 docurr:encs or spreadsheets -- would those also 

B Yeah, I think it was F..ore like August ~hen 13 ha\'e been saved through a Google platform? 

14 lls. Eller was formally transferred to another 14 A. No~, when 7ou say I created 

15 school. 15 documts , such as? I'm sorry. 

16 A. Okay. i dido I t have anything to do 16 Q. Sure . Really, I Im just talking 

17 \iith that process. I wasn't involved in that 17 about broadly. Any spreadsheet like the one that 

18 progress. H you gave to Nr. Sharma or a Word docllfflent like a 

19 Q. Understandable. So your time as 19 draft letter you might have been writing. 

20 principal ended May 2016? 20 A. A letter would not have necessarily 

21 A. Yes. 21 been on a ·· so ! f I created a letter, a 

22 MR. MOC-UL: Okay. Does anyone mt 22 referral -- a letter of referral -- letcer to a 
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1 a fi ve-minde break? 1 teacher, I 1iould have typed it up on a laptop. I 

2 MR. Slim~: sure. 2 wouldn 1t necessarily have saved it ·· I ll'ocld not 

3 MR. MOGUL: I could use a 3 have necessarily saved it on aij electronic 

4 five-minute break. 4 platform. 

5 (Off the record, 10:21 a.m. ) 5 So if I gm someoody a letter of 

6 (Back on the record, 10: 33 u. l 6 referral in regards to an action, it ~odd be ·· 

7 MR. MOOJL: So now that i!e 1re back 7 I liould print it out, s:gn it, have the111 get a 

8 on the record, I 1d jusc like to reflect that ~e 8 copy, put a copy in their file in the off ice in 

9 just discussed provisionally designating this 9 that building. 
10 deposition and its exhibits as confidential, 10 Q. So the electronic version of that 

11 subject to fmher discussion between the 11 docurr.em before you signed it, obviously, liould 

12 attorneys. 12 have just been saved on the comp~ter that you 

13 BY MR. Mm: 13 typed ic up on? 
14 Q, So, Mr. Adams, I'd like to talk for 14 A. Not necessarily because it would 

15 a minute abo~t recordkeeping. 15 not have been official · · if it 'liere a ref err al 
16 So as principal at Friend! y High 16 or sorr.ething to that nature, it 11ould not have 

17 School between fall 2011 and surrir.er 2016 •· all 17 been official unless it was signed so I ll'ould not 
18 of 111y next following questions will involve that 18 have necessarily saved that document. 
19 time frame -- what electronic devices did you use 19 The doclllllentation of that being 
20 in the course in your job duties? 20 saved ~'Ould be I have a copy in my file. I would 
21 A. Google eail, C-oogle calendar. And 21 put that in so:neone Is hand. If I could not put 
22 you asked about the calendar earlier, and I was 22 chat in their hand, then I IMY look at sending 
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1 chat scanned copy to them cont irming that they 1 Q, For exairple, just r.ow during the 
2 received a copy of a doCUfflent. 2 break, you were looking at ·· 1ias it ·our Prince 
3 Q, So if 'le could just step back for a 3 C-€orge Is County email that you were looking at? 
4 minute and talk about che actual devices . This 4 A. Yes. 
5 is a very basic qi.iestion, but did you have a fork 5 Q, ~.nd so do you reme~ber if you could 
6 computer? A laptop? Did they give you an 6 access your email from your phone while you me 
7 iPhone? Any of those chings? 7 principal? 
8 A. Lapcop. 8 A. i do not remember doing thac, and : 
9 Q, They gave you a laptop to use? 9 remewber contemplating getting a ·· a Verizon 

10 A. Yes. 10 device that -· srlller, something that nerer took 
11 Q, And did you conduct all of your · · 11 hold that I could, say, do my liork. But i ·· you 

12 all of your work accivities that you needed a 12 couldn 1t get ·· I guess you WOl!ld need Wi-Fi. 
13 computer for on that laptop? 13 And so the answer is, no, I don1t 

14 A. I had !!Ultiple laptops dur:ng my 14 recall using a phone to co!'IJllunicate other than 
15 cenure. Bl!t, yes, I never had a comfort level 15 via text. I know teachers have my number to text 
16 wi ch a desktop COfflPUter. 16 me. In the event that they were going to be 
17 Q, Did you have a hoff.e coqmcer at 17 late, they cou d text me, call rr.e, but I didn It 

18 this time? 18 receive e[.ails on that. I don 't recall that . 

19 A. ~o. 19 Q, But you do recall receiving texts 

20 Q, Did the school system issue you a 20 from teachers during your time as principal on 

21 11\0bile phone or ocher lf:Obile device: 21 your personal ce.l phone? 
22 A. There m a short period that they 22 A. Yes. 
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1 issued a ~.obile phone. It ~as a very short 1 Q, So when you did save elemonic 

2 period. It was so they could reach out to you, 2 files onto the Google platform, for exall\ple, ~as 

3 and they could connect · · contact you. 3 it your understanding that those were accessible 

4 Q, Did you access your work email or 4 co others at the school system: 
) other work files using that 11'.obile phone 1 5 A. Exhibit 1, they 1.ere accessible ·· 

6 A. No. I think at this point, I don It 6 I believe they \!ere accessible to che 
7 think that was in the capacity of ·· I don I t 7 administrators, I wanted the administrators to 

8 chink thac was the reason for those phones. I 8 knO\' chat they could see · · transparency. i did 

9 think it was so I could · · so Person A could 9 not want the teachers co necessarily be able to 

10 reach Person B if they needed to. 10 see what 'alas going on from ·· I don' t wane you, 

11 Q, At so~e point did the school srstem 11 as Teacher A, to be able to see Teacher BI s 
12 allow you to access your liork files or 1tork email 12 referrals and things of that natm. 
B on a personal cell phone? 13 But I 11anted the ad!!inistracors to 

14 A. You I re asking if I accessed on a 14 be able to see because they had access to 
15 personal cell phone? 15 an;Tbody ' s · · they had access to an}fody Is 
16 Q, Yes. 16 referrals any11ay. And I wanted the111 to be able 

17 A. No, I don 1c refe111ber doing that, I 17 co see that I had access to their response tiP.1e. 
18 don 't ·· I look ac emails now, but I don 1t -- I 18 Q, Did you save documents to the hard 
19 don It know when that transitional ·· that time 19 drive of your coreputer, of rour laptop, that itas 
20 period took place fror.. when the cell phone was in 20 not shared so it ocould have just stayed on that 
21 its infancy stages as far as let w.e access 21 laptop? 
22 everything. 22 A. rim not sure what you I re asking. 
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1 Give me an emple. 1 wanted t0 •• 

2 Q, Sm. So you1re creating a 2 I felt like they had access anyway. 
J doC\!ment in Microsoft Word, for example , and you 3 Q, I'm sorry. 
4 just save it to like the C drive. You 1re not 4 A. I felt like some of them, if need 
5 saving it to a platfora like the Google platfom 5 be, they could ·· it Is an electronic documt on 
6 that you discussed before. 6 a platfom that does not belong to 111e. So if I 
7 A. No, that does not sound -- no. If 7 delete it , I mai' not have access to it; but 
8 I ·· if I sent you docm~entation, I ~ould eir.ail 8 that Is not a security solution, if that Is ~hat 
9 that docii.ent -- if I eT1ailed you that, that was 9 you 1 re asking. 

10 my electronic receipt. 10 Q, I was just asking --
11 The dOC\l!ent -- if it m a 11 A. No, no, no. So my logic is, well, 
12 docurr.ent, in order for it to be official, formal, 12 here it is. If you don 1 t have my password, then 
13 it had to be signed anyway. So if it was a 13 ·ou can I t get in on a normal -- under noml 
14 referral or things of that nature, it had to be 14 circumstances. But there 1 s no reason for 111e · · 
15 signed anyway. 15 and the laptop that I turned in ,.hen I finally 
16 There ~as a bunch of doM.ents that 16 Lipgraded to an Apple ~as some black ~.achine chat 
17 went out to staff ·· i.e., staff ireeting, i.e. , 17 everyone was laughing at me for having that. And 
18 this is the agenda. I didn 1 t make any concern -- 18 chat ·· it was just ·· it was obviously obsolete. 
19 I didn 1 t pct any ef forc into making sure that it 19 But I mean ·· so I ·· no. ~.nd I 
20 was saved for any purpose in the future . 20 chink I kept it a little while, just as a ·· 
21 Q, Do you know ~hat happened to your 21 alfflOsc as a file just to say, Well, I think I 

22 laptops -- sorry. I should pause. 22 rmrrber putting stuff on this laptap. And, 
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1 The laptop that you were 11.ost 1 here, let me get my 1979 state-of-the-art 
2 recently issced while you ~ere a principal, do 2 co11pucer up and see if I can find it on here. 

3 you still have that laptop today? 3 My resmr.e was on there. And : 
4 A. No. 4 think s011.e other things t.ay have been on there, 

5 Q. Khat did you do ~ith those laptops 5 but ir wasn 1 t -- you know. 
6 when you were no longer using the!!.? 6 Q, Turning to your e~.ails, I think you 

7 A. There is a place called TDC. And 7 w.entioned that rou would fro:\ time to t1111e rnnage 
8 for the life of r..e, I couldn 1t tell you what TDC 8 your inbox and sometim you ~ould delete things. 
9 stands for. 9 Did you have a regular practice of deleting 

10 You turn in your corrputers. You 10 emails? 
11 Ltpgrade. 11 A. No, no. 
12 Q, So you currently have an upgraded 12 Q, ocould you archive those emails? 
13 laptop? 13 Soir.etir.es there Is the option to archive instead 
14 A, Yes. 14 of delm. 
15 Q, Was it your practice to delete 15 A. No. I got over 100 emails a day. 
16 files off of these coP.:puters with any regulari~y? 16 Q, I feel you. 

17 A. Ro, no. 17 A. I got over 100 emails a day, and I 
18 Q. Would you delete files off these 18 ~asn 1t supposed to be at my desk all day. So 
19 computers before you turned the!\': in to TDC? 19 after a ,hile, I just realized that the magic 
20 A. I do not recall if they told me to. 20 nU11ber might be 6 million. 
21 I can't recall. The only thirg I can recall is 21 Okay. No~, ~hat I ray do is if I 
22 my daughter1s phone being turned in, and she 22 got emails from Mr. A and I knew that they 11ere 
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1 someone that I wanted co keep track of important 1 Attarney Sharma contacced rr.e abod any email 
2 stuff because I'~ al,ays getting stuff from them, 2 correspondence betmn Ms. Eller and IByself ·· 
3 I might delm soIBe other stuff that I no~ 3 i.e. , 11:e to Ns. Eller or Ms. Eller to r..e -- and 
4 considered antiquated so I could · · so if Anthony 4 me to Ms. Eller would also include me to staff. 
C 
) ~1hittington is a County employee that sends me 5 It ,uuld also include me to -- from myself to the 
6 data on the school systems -- so I ~ould keep all 6 deparment ~hich she was in. When I spoke to 
7 his. 7 someone in the County, that could be thousands of 
8 Bl!t SO!eone else dght -· our 8 e~.ails that you want rr.e to go through. And they 
9 depart~ent chair. After a while I Id say, I don I t 9 ref erred ~.e to •• the attorney has the ability to 

10 need to confcse -· if I'm searching for 10 request that information froA, let's just say 
11 sorrething, I don't need co confuse the department 11 ll'hatever that deparcment is that handles IT, 
12 chair -- their ·· their collaborative planning 12 software. I don't know. 
13 from three years ago. . 'm not going to look at 1J Q. So it sounds like you SJXlke to 

14 it. I Im not going co utilize it. 14 someone in the County system about accessing your 

15 Bl!t I m not consistent enough to 15 emails between rou and Ms. Eller after talking 

16 ~here ·· 16 ti1i th Mr. Sharma? 
17 Q. Did you ever have a cir.e when you 17 A. !Nods head. ) 
18 had deleted e111ails bl!t you realized later that 18 Q. Okay. I Id asked you before if you 

19 you needed access to them? 19 had talked to anyone else about this deposition 

20 A. 80, I didn't delete 20 or this case, and you had said no. But it sounds 

21 indiscriminately. Delete ·· I get sparr .. 21 like you i'ant to amend that. 

22 Q. Do you recall ~hen you started 22 A. Okay. Yes, and that wasn 't ·· that 
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1 using email that was issued frow. Prince George Is 1 was prior to meeting ~iith Mr. Sharma. 

2 Count)' Public Schools? 2 Q. Okay. 
3 A. I didn't use e~ail as a teacher. I 3 A. That was just about email 

4 didn I t hal'e a laptop as a teacher at Oxon Hill. 4 transmission ·· that was just about emails, any 

5 I didn't have it as a teacher at the alternative 5 mils. 
6 school. 6 I don I t have access · · how am I 

7 I'~ sure . had ew.ail as an 7 going to pull up emails that I · · how am I going 

8 assistant principal at Friendly. So that liOU d 8 co pull up thousands of emails o.1;d go throL,gh 

9 have been the first tiffle that I can faithfully 9 thousands of emails? 
10 say . 1m sure I used el!'.ail. 10 Q. Right. 
11 Q. And that ~ould have been che first 11 A. And I was informed that they had 

12 stint when you were at Friendly? 12 the ability co contact the people who can go 

1J A. Yes. 13 through the emails. 
14 Q. So it Is safe to say chat you were 14 Q. Okay. Do 7ou recall ~ho it was 

15 using email before 1ou even becair.e principal at 15 that you spoke with about the e~.ails? 
16 Friendly? 16 A. I can 90 into r,y email and find 

17 A. Yes. 17 out. I don I t know. It was probably when I got 
18 Q. And do you know of any reason l1hy 18 nodf ication of I ~ill be in chis situation, 
19 emails before fall 2012 wouldn't he available to 19 ll'hoever is on there, I ·· whoever was in chac 
20 you now? 20 office, legal office -- I don It know if it was ·· 
21 A. The s7steR reay have m.oved them. 21 it 'l:ouldn It hm been an7one outside of that 
22 When · · when, I believe, 22 loop. 
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1 And · · and it 'A'Ould biire been to 1 che case and that Attorne)' Sham.a \\'ould be 
2 say the person ~ho ·· lee 's just say IT. I don't 2 dealing \lith it. 
3 kno. if it's the IT depart~.enc. The person who 3 Q. But do you remeniber who that was? 
4 can access that inforv..ation, I did not speak to 4 A. Name? No. But I could search his 
5 them. 5 name on my Google email and see who was a part of 
6 I emiled and said . 111as instructed 6 chat mil transmission to me. 
7 by .hoever told 11:e about this, who notified me 7 Q. Do you remeniber the role that chat 
8 that this m · · and I need to reach ouc to him, 8 person has1 !lot the name but just .hat posicion 
9 that he ·· 9 chat person has? 

10 Q. Sorry. Just ·· 10 A. :t' s in legal. I mean, no. . 
11 MR. SHARMA: Objection. Objection. 11 mean, if you told me the name, I would say, Oh, 
12 He has a right to finish his question · · ansm 12 yeah, that person. 
13 to the question. 13 Q. So you testified before thac you 
14 Please. You can finish your 14 used ~'Ork errail before and including your time as 
15 ansm. 15 principal at Friendly high school. 
16 TRE Wimss: Okay. I did not 16 A. Yes. 
17 reach out to anyone. I efflailed him through the 17 Q, ~ere you also creating electronic 

18 legal person that notified me that they ~ould be 18 documts during the entire time that you 'liere a 

19 dealing ,ith ~hatever was dealing with; that 19 principal? 
20 he ·· I m instmted that he could gee that 20 A. ~hat do you mean by 1elemonic 

21 information; he had the ability to get that 21 docurr.ents•? 
22 information and that I did noc need to be in that 22 Q, Any other electronic doc\llt\ent 
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1 loop. 1 chat 's not an email. So a Word doCUl!.enc, a 

2 BY MR. MOGUL: 2 spreadsheet, anr of those things? 
3 Q. I Id just like the record to 3 A. I didn't create spreadsheets. I .. 

4 reflect, chocgh, when Mr. Ada111s ;;as saying 'he,• 4 if it 'fas data, I had a data person to create 

5 he 't'as gesturing to Mr. Sham. 5 data spreadsheets. 
6 A. l '1!1. sorry. I 11': sorry, Yeah, 6 Q, I'm sorry. You said you did 
7 Attorney Sharma. 7 personally create data spreadsheets? 
8 Q. And I'm sorry for atmpting to 8 A. No. I had a data person to create 
9 interrupt. I should not interrupt, obviousl\'. 9 daca spreadsheets. 

10 But going fomrd, if you say 'this' ·· if you 10 Q. Did you type up docUP.:€nts that 
11 could just say 1this case,' if that 1s ~hat you 11 ll'aybe you Kould later print out? But were you 
12 mean to sar, 12 doing that on co~uters the entire time? 
13 A. l 11\\ sorry. l 'JT: sorry. 13 A. lle:r.os? 
14 Q. And if you 11.ean him, to say 14 Q. Any document. 
15 'Mr. Sharna.' 15 A. Me:lDs, yes. 
16 A. Oka)'. I•~ sorry. I apologize. 16 Q, And you mentioned before that, of 

17 Q. And so you said that you were not 17 course, you kept paper documents during your t ill'.e 

18 talking to someone in IT. So was it someone in 18 period as principal. 
19 the legal departP.fnc of Prince George 's County 19 A. · f there m a referral or 
20 Public Schools you me emailing 1/lith or talking 20 something to that nature that 1was printed ouc · · 
21 to? 21 so if it was in regards to · · so I didn It keep 
22 A. ~hoever nodfied l\'.e that this .. -as 22 paper documents on collaborative planning. So if 
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1 it was just a deparcment collabomiYe plan, I 1 do another form of investigation, which may be 
2 didn It keep chat paper doMent. 2 \(hat Is going on here -- no. Sorry. 
3 I inay keep that t iree period to say 3 In an investigation, if you have 
4 we I re collaboratively planning. But if there was 4 something that I s evidence, then that evidence --
5 a docu[ent that F.iY have legal miiicacions 5 whether that eridence is an efflilil or that 
6 later dealing ~ith a scaf f member ·· every staff 6 evidence is a copy of a weapon, photocopy of a 
7 meroer had a file. 7 \(eapon, if it Is evidence in the -- in the ouccllft':e 
8 So if it liere SOftlething of that 8 of the decision, then that iould need to be 

9 nature, they liodd have been placed in their 9 attached to whatever documentation that you have. 
10 file, paper copy. 10 Q. Okay. P.nd that documentation li{)Uld 
11 Q. And you liould nintain -- you or 11 be stored in a particular file for either a 
12 someone on your staff \iould l!'aintain a paper copy 12 student or a teacher? 
13 of student discipline reports as wem 1] A. It ~·ould be in their ·· yeah, that 
14 A. The assistant principals kept a 14 \iould be in a file. 
15 copy of the referrals, I believe. I believe the 15 Q. And the physical file folders, 
16 referrals were supposed co go in for permanent 16 lihere were those stored? 
17 file at the school. . can It say -- I don It kno.1• 17 A. The files on the teachers me 
18 I don't ·· didn It check. I don I c check records 18 stored in my office. Whatever was cc · · if it 
19 like that. I don It know. 19 was cc1d to liR, then :t was sent to HR. If it 
20 Q. Would you ever print out emails to 20 ll'as cc Id to 1!rf immediate supervisor, then it 
21 be part of a swdenc or staff ir.ember file1 21 ~'as -- ~herever it was cc'd to, then they goc a 
22 A. If it 11:as evidence. 22 copy. 
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1 Q. And tthere were those records 1 Student files , disciplinary files 

2 stored? 2 IA'ere kept in the adniniscrator1 s office so they 
3 A. So you I re saying if it 'l!as a 3 could ref er ro them in regards to possible 

4 file ·· if it printed sow.ething to be part of a 4 further disciplinary action so they could have 

5 file, if it dealt ~ith that ·· if it 'l!as evidence 5 evidence. 
6 for a situation, chen chat i,;ould be put in 6 Q. ~as there any regular practice for 
7 that ·· that \·odd be attached and that would be 7 roving chose files · · for exa~le, the files are 

8 referenced. So if I 1in. referencing o.11 efll.ail, if 8 quite old ·· to another location? Or would ·· 

9 El!tployee A said something in che email that was 9 during your entire time as principal , did those 
10 inappropriate and I \Tote thac person up for 10 teacher files stay in rour office, the student 
11 inappropriate co~111unications, let 1s just say, and 11 files scay in the assistant principal 1s off ices? 
12 that m Exhibit A, then, yes, I would print that 12 A. Teacher files stayed in 1\1)' office. 
13 and I would copy chat. 13 Teachers -- if the teacher too\·ed to another 
14 Now, if it 1s just an investigation, 14 school and those files were requested, then ·· 
15 I wouldn I t copy that to che referral. 15 then -,;e 1tould send them, but student files -- and 
16 Q. So if it was ·· if the situation 16 I 1m assuming you' re just talking about 

17 ~ie're talking aboct is just an investigation, you 17 discipline. 
18 rould not necessarily print out the emcils about 18 Q. Yes. 
19 it; is that what you 're testifying? 19 A. Student files, I know their 
20 A. Okay. Let me back up, okay? 20 pem.anent record ·· I ·· I don't ·· I really 
21 Seccrity does investigations. Some 21 don't know. I can't say that .as one of che ·· I 
22 investigations adminiscrators do. They ·· they 22 can1t say. I don1t know. I don't know. I did 
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1 not follow up and say, Where did these go? 1 fire? Could there have been an event where 
2 Q. Was there any policy or routine 2 sorr.eone stole files, anything of that nature 
] practice of just chrowing my any of those 3 where those fiies were no longer ·· not a policy, 
4 files? 4 nee a directive, but some event that ca~sed chose 
5 MR. SHARMA: Which files1 5 files to no longer be available? 
6 MR. m: The teacher files. 6 A. Not to l'l}' knowledge, no. 
1 THE WITNESS: No. 1 Q, So rid like to turn ta how che 
8 BY MR. MOOUL: 8 school adn:inistrat~on was organized ~ring your 
9 Q, And the student files: 9 dme as principal. Could you just briefly 

10 A, No. There ll'asn1t a policy to thm 10 explain · · so you me the principal directly 
11 things a'iay. 11 reporting to you was what · · what kind of 
12 Q, Was there ever an occasion where 12 adfflinismtor] 
1] there was the destruction of che files? 1] A. There were three or four 
14 A. Let me back up. 14 grade· level administrarnrs. A kilo* at one point 

15 MR. SHARMA: Let hilt finish, first. 15 ~'€ w.ay have gone down to three, and at one point 

16 TEE Wimss: Let rr.e back up. 16 I felt like we should have four. 
17 There's a certain aw.cunt of tiw.e that you're 17 They · · they · · those 
18 responsible for keeping files. I don It know what 18 administrators me in charge of grades, airongst 

19 that tire is now. 19 other things. There are counselors thac are in 

20 So even ·· even transcripcs are 20 charge of grades, ar,ongsc ocher things. 

21 kept in schools for a certain arr.cunt of time. 21 But another level, there are 

22 And then after that, I think che)"re archived ·· 22 ceachers that are in departments that report · · 
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1 archived electronically or sent up to llhatever 1 and those administrators oversee certain 

2 office ·· they're no longer kept in che school. 2 depmrnents based on what I believe are their 

3 So I don I t ·· l 'm not che person 3 skill sets · · best suiced for the overall good of 

4 who would be an expert on how long that period is 4 che school. 
5 in · · in the same thing being the case with the 5 Q, ~ere those grade· level 

6 files on discipline. 6 administrators also called assistant ·· 

1 Q, Dl!ring your tirr.e as principal, tas 1 A. Pr:ncipal. 
8 there ever an event that caused the desmction 8 Q, · · assistant principals: 

9 of any of the teacher files that were in your 9 A. Yes. 
10 office? 10 Q. Okay. And during your time as 

11 A. No, not to my knowledge. No. 11 principal , can ··ou recall who 1aere the assiscant 

12 Q, And same question for the student 12 principals that i!Orked under you? 
13 files. 13 A. Now, if I lisc them and leare a 

14 A. Ro, not to my know ledge. We did 14 nair.e out, is that a problem1 I'm not purposely, 

15 change regismrs. We changed people in the 15 but I 111i not ·· 
16 guidance office. so ·· but, no. 16 Q, i understand. To ··our 

17 81:t, no, there was no ·· if you're 11 recollection, 11ho are the assistant principals? 
18 asking if I 1m saying, 'Hey, destroy files, 1 the 18 A. Mr. Bickerstaff, Mr. Thompson, 
19 ans~er is no. 19 Ms. Robinson, !Is. Pope-Brow, Mr. ·· I forgot his 
20 Q, No, ttat wasn't ,hat I was asking. 20 nall'.e. lie Is deceased no,. 
21 A. Okay. 21 Ms . Catrell? Feazell? I don It · · 
22 Q, I was really asking, itas there a 22 Mr. Hogans is tte one that Is 
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1 deceased. 1 The student rights and 
2 Ms. Jeffery. Ms. Cowan. 2 responsibilities gives a guideline fro~. 
J Q. Cowan1 3 one ·· you know, for different infractions. You 
4 A. Cowan. 4 can do, say, A to ·· A, B, C. It's a guideline, 
5 Q, So I think you mentioned before 5 which means that the assistant principals cannot 
6 that these assistant principals would have 6 exceed that guideline. But the · · there's sci 11 
1 responsibility for watters of student discipline 1 flexibility. 
8 within their grades that they supervise1 8 So if I say there are A, B, C 
9 A. Right. 9 options and the assistant principal feels like A 

10 Q. What could they do to address 10 should be the correct option and the teacher 
11 student discipline without elevating it to you1 11 might feel , for whatever reason, substantiated or 
12 Like what \ias the scope of their authority1 12 unsubstantiated, that C should happen, then I 
B A. student rights and B would ·· I would find my way involved in thac 
14 responsibilities, they had to · · they could 14 based on either through the teacher or through 
15 conduct · · they can do fro!'. counseling · · 15 the adninistrator. 
16 conferencing ·· I 1m sorry ·· conferencing; 16 Sometimes the administrator might 
17 student conference, student-teacher conference, 17 say, 0l!hat do you think1 n Okay1 
18 parent conference, detention, shon·term 18 Given ·· given their undemanding 
19 suspension · · all the way up to shore-term 19 of the student, their understanding of che 
20 suspension. Long-terr.: suspension had to involve 20 situation, or their understanding of the dynamics 
21 me or my designee. And my designee 'l'ould be the 21 bet't:een the student and the teacher. 
22 administrator in charge, if I 11:ere not in the 22 But it had to fall within the 
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1 building. 1 para11'.eters set by the student rights and 
2 Q. Now, as it happened in practice, 2 responsibilities. Could not go outside of thac . 
J me you of ten involved in discussions of student J Q. Did the assistant principals have 
4 discipline even if it didn It rise to the level of 4 responsibility over matters ·· over complaints 
5 a long-term suspension? 5 against faculty members? 
6 A. It wasn 't the norn .. 6 A. From students? 
1 Q. It was not the norm? 1 Q, From anyone . 
8 A. No. 8 A. So you' re asking · · so if a · · 
9 Q, Bd it did happen from t irr,e to 9 someone coo.plains about a faculty me~ber ·· i.e., 

10 time1 10 a student, another faculty merober or a parent? 
11 A. Yes. 11 Q, Correct. Did the assistant 
12 Q, Do you have any guidance ta your 12 principals have authority over that? 
B assistant principals for ~hen they should elevate 13 A. They could address that. Depending 
14 things to yoi:? ~]d by •things/ I 11.ean student 14 on the nature, it was prudent to let me know. It 
15 discipline issues. 15 could be sin'ple · · it depends on the complexity 
16 A. So!!!etimes adl\'.inistmors ·· the 16 of it. 
17 assistant principals wuld ~•ant a second opinion. 17 OCe I re talking · · we I re talking 
18 Some are · · they would want · · they ~,ould want a 18 about the class next door is too loud to you 
19 second opinion. 19 stole my banana. Okay1 We I re jest saying 
20 Sol!'.etimes a teacher may want to 20 \!ihatever the complexity, it was not ·· that was 
21 supersede their at:thority based on their feeling 21 not cut and dry. 
22 about the situation. 22 That was · · they look at it, their 
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1 comfort zone. I chink the experience of the I request for a cransf er · · for a teacher to be 
2 assistant principal played inco · · if I had an 2 cransf erred co another school or another 
J administrator in charge, I think . had ir.ore 3 position? 
4 confidence in their ability to rrake a decision. 4 A. No. 
r But what they also found out is, in order to not 5 Q, Could you do that? ) 

6 keep ·· in order to keep me in the loop so I 6 A. I cannot have a teacher transferred 
7 ~:ould not be blind-sided, they would still liant 7 ouc of my building. That would be a decision 
8 co run it by ffle . They ~'Ould still \!ant to get my 8 above the building level. That ~ould be a 
9 thought, because ultfoately they would say, if it 9 collaborative decision. 

10 comes do'l'Il to it, I don' c want you to be 10 So if the · · i.e. , if the teacher 
11 blind-sided; I want you to be involved. 11 felt like it lias not a placement for them ·· you 
12 So, yes, they had flexibiliti•. 12 kno~', better yet, Ms. Eller was at a middle 
13 Yes, they could c00ie to me. It was not 13 school when she had the sex change . And she 
14 definitive that they had to col!.e to ite. It 14 called and HR called rr.e and said, I have a 

15 depends on the complexity. 15 teacher; last year she idenc:tied as a male. 

16 Q. Could assistant principals r.ake 16 This year she Is identifying as a female. It is 

17 decisions about teacher salary ilithout consulting 17 an issue with the middle school students. ~ you 

18 you? 18 have an issue ilith her coming to your bdlding? 

19 A. I can I t ,.ake decisions on teacher 19 So that wasn It a decision that ~as 

20 salary. 20 made at a building level. Now, receiving that 

21 Q, Who ~ould you need to calk to to 21 person \fas a decision that you have · · that 

22 rake a decision on teacher salary? 22 the · · the building supervisor so11'.etimes would 
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1 A. H.t 1 have input. In this situation, I had input. 

2 Q. ~hat about benefits? 2 M • input .as, Let ffle see the 

3 A. No one in the building can address 3 resul1'.e. 
4 a teacher Is benefit. 4 I saw enough in the resm to think 

5 Q, What about approving leave? Could 5 that chis ·· a middle school child and a high 

6 assistant principals approve leave? 6 school child and maybe ~e could · · yo~ kno~, this 

7 A. No. I 'e. the leave-grant authority 1 is ·· this is ·· this is, yeah, let1s eove 

8 in the building. 8 fomrd. Bring that teacher · · that Is ·· bring 

9 Q, What about 11hat classes a teacher 9 that teacher to my school. 
10 is assigned to? 10 I think there was something in 

11 A. That 1s F..y decision. 11 college classes that caught ~ ere. And so 1Wf 

12 Q. And in terms of teminating a 12 thought ~as, AP. 
13 teacher Is position, is that s011,ething that Is your 13 Q, ocould assistant principals have any 

14 decision? Or is that a higher-up decision? 14 role in con:pleting annual evaluations for 

15 A. I can only supply the data, the ·· 15 teachers? 
16 not data . What's the word r 'm looking for? 16 A. Not at all. 

17 I can supply the support 17 Q, ~ould they have any role in 
18 information. I cannot tem.inate a position. 18 completing interim evaluations for teachers? 
19 Q, So certainly an assistant principal 19 A. Not at all. 
20 couldn 1t do that either? 20 Q. ~ho would have a role in chat 
21 A. By no chance. 21 process? 
22 Q, Could an assistant principal 22 A. Assistant principals don I t evaluate 
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1 anyone. Principals evaluate. That Is ic. 1 responsibility, forma responsibility, over a 
2 Q, So you would conduct the 2 co11plaint that Is been lodged against a facul cy 
3 end-of ·year evaluation ·· 3 mewber? 
4 A. Exactly. 4 A. No. The}'1 re in the sare t:nion. 
s Q, · · for every teacher? 5 Q, Okay. Could the departreent head 
6 A. Yes. 6 take any decisions about salary? 
1 Q, Was there interim evaluations as 1 A. I couldn It make a decision on 
8 ~ell? 8 salary. 
9 A. If che teacher was unsatisfactory, 9 Q. How about approving leave? 

10 che assistant principal itouldn' t be a part of 10 A. Only I could. !.€ave-grant 
11 that. I don It reme~ber an inmfa mluation on 11 authority. 
12 lls. Eller. 12 Q, ~hat about the classes that a 
B Q, Can you explain the dudes of a 13 teacher ¥las assigned to? 
14 departrrenc head? And lee F.:e be more specific, 14 A. The·, · · the department head bas 
15 since obviously we 1re talking about Ms. Eller. 15 no · · the ansver is no. 
16 The English departrr.ent head as 16 Q, ~ould the department head cooplece 
17 opposed to ocher depament heads, ¥!hat rould 17 evaluations of teachers? 
18 that person Is responsibility be? 18 A. They1 re in the sa~.e union. They 

19 A. Organize collaborative planning ·· 19 can 1t. 
20 l 'm sorry. 20 Q, Okay. ~hen you me a principal at 

21 Organize is not ·· organize. Not 21 Friendly High School, who did yo~ report co? 

22 supervise ·· facilitate collaborative planning. 22 A. Instructional director, 
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1 In charge of the collaborative 1 Q. Do you know who held that role 

2 planning notes so that they can be ·· later be 2 1A'hile you were principal? 
3 revimd by either che administrator in charge of 3 A. I had Bill Barnes. I can I t 
4 chat departrr.ent or ~.yself. Nake sure ~e' re · · so 4 rember if John Brooks, Ed Ryanes, Mark Fossett. 

5 make sure we I re seeing what we expect to see due 5 I can It remewber the last guy's name. 
6 to p.anning. 6 Q, Okay. 
1 Corrmunicate infomtion via the · · 1 A. And if I think of it I I 111 jusc · · 

8 so in Ms. Eller Is case, the departr.ent chair 8 I 111 .. 

9 rould comm~nicate infomation via che English 9 Q. So did you report directly co 
10 depart[enc, the County1 s English depart~.ent . ~e 10 an,one else other than the instrecdonal 
11 are doing A. We 1re doing B. We're trying c. 11 direccor? 
12 Strategies, things of chat nacure. Tools. 12 A. I reported direct! r to the 
13 Q. Did the departrr.ent head have any 13 instructional direcm. They me !Y chain in 

14 role in mdent discipline? 14 regards to the assistant superintendent. I 
15 A. No, no. No'.', there are teachers 15 believe that Is the title of the person above 
16 who talk to people, other teachers, to get advice 16 instructional director over the years. Those ·· 

17 or 'that ever that conversation is, but that Is not 17 chose designations have changed. 
18 formal. They F!ay seek counsel · · not counsel. 18 Q, Do you remember lj:ho was assistant 
19 You I re counsel. 19 superintendent over ·· that supervised your 
20 fney 11ake seek guidance, but it's 20 instruccional director~ 
21 not a part of the process. 21 A. Janice Briscoe at one point. 
22 Q, ~ould a departrr.ent head have any 22 i can see tile guy's face. ·t Is 
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1 just like the other instructional direcror. He's 1 Ms. Eller is the only one that I 
2 now in DC public schools. 2 have recollection that I m · · a call was given 
J Maybe -- Monica Goldson. j in regards co the situation. 
4 Carletta Marrow, I believe. 4 Q. In the norw.al course ·· not talking 
5 I believe. Marrow \1ould not have, 5 about Ns. Eller -- if so~.eone 1tas co apply to 
6 no. She would not have been over there. No, I 6 cransf er from one school to your school, would 
7 don It think so. 7 chat be your decision to hire that person, 
8 And John Brooks may not have been 8 essendall y, to be a teacher at your school? 
9 over me as inmuctional director. He may have 9 MR. SHARMA: Objection to the form, 

10 been over Rd Ryanes as instructional director. 10 •hiring. 1 

11 I think chat Is it. 11 You can ansm. 
12 Q. ~hat role would the instructional 12 THE WITNESS: Would chat be · · 
B director have in teacher assigrur.ents in terns of B you 're asking if they want co come to r.iy school 
14 teacher assignr::encs to one school or another? 14 and they put in the appropriate papen.ark, you're 
15 A. Teacher assignrr.ents are 1ty 15 asking is it my decision? 
16 responsibility as principal. 16 BY Mil. NOGUL: 

17 Q. I 'r.i. sorry. In terms of rr.oving a 17 Q, Correct. 
18 teacher to another school. 18 A. It is my dec:sion whether I 11!1 going 
19 A. The reason I 1111 pausing is because 19 co accept them to my school, unless it Is an 

20 rive never been instructional director, and I 20 involuntary cransf er. 
21 cannot say for certain they1 re · - they' re -· I 21 There are placements ,.ade -- there 

22 don't know. 22 are placerr..encs made that the teacher -- that the 
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1 I know once it goes higher up, then 1 principal Is input may not necessarily be a 

2 \"hatever that process is, that Is that process. I 2 factor, and I' l'e had placerr.ents of, say, 

3 have nothing to do with chat process. J secretaries. 
4 Q. If you · - during your tirr.e as a ~ But I do not have any other ·· I 1ve 

5 principal, when you me contacted about a 5 had placerr.ents of teachers, overstaffing. we 

6 teacher transferring to your school, was that 6 have a teacher; we don It have a place for them; 

7 contact made by the instructional directer? 7 11'€1 re put ting them at rour school. And I don 't 

8 A. ~o. HR. Ms. Eller's, that was 8 kno\' if they asked ne if it Is okay or if they 

9 made by HR. 9 cold me it m okay. 
10 Q. And lias chat the practice whenever 10 Q. And the person who was the • they-

11 a teacher was being assigned to your school? ~as 11 telling you that chis was happening, ~·as chat the 
12 that an HR contact? 12 instructional director? 
13 A. As far as mnsf erring, that's the 13 A. io; probably h'R. 

14 only situation that I have in regards to 14 Q. ~hat role, if any, did the 
15 kno.i ledge of. 15 instructional director have in detmining 
16 Now, there are transfers that take 16 ~hether to terminate a teacher? 

17 place --1·oluntary transfers. Voluntary 17 A. If a teacher 1was going to -- if the 
18 transfers, they interview. They say they want to 18 teacher did so:nething that -- say an acr · · an 
19 leave their school. They subrni t a -· ~e 11, they 19 act or a mies of ·· so it was a series of 
20 submit a form that gives there eligibility to 20 actions; then it flas ·· it i,;as the principal 's 
21 leave their school. They intervieii. If they 21 responsibility to document and build a case based 
22 want to come to you, they cor.e to you. 22 on the docurr.entation. If ic was just an act --
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1 say if you came in the building and shoe 1 out-of-school suspension. They get a copy of 
2 llr. Sharma, then I don I t know the process. 2 chat co make sure if there is a red flag, i.e. , 
3 I don It knoit l'hat the · · I don I t 3 if every other school in the district has a ·· is 
4 know ~hat the inscructional director did based on 4 suspending approximately 10 students a l!Onth and 
5 their ultimate decision or if it was based on the 5 Hr. Adams is suspending 150 students a l!Onth, 
6 assistant superintendent Is ultirate decision or 6 chat 1s a red flag. So then that lllight lead them 
7 if they had to get approval froir. the deputy 7 into: What Is going on here? 
8 superintendent. So I don It have an answer to 8 Or if a parent got involved and 
9 that. 9 111ent over your head, which is quite possible, 

10 Q. As principal, was there ever a 10 then their involvement may be ·· they l!!ay be 
11 policy that you bring maybe a very serious 11 involved in the process. 
12 student discipline w.atm to the attention of the 12 Q. So the requim1ent is really just 

13 instructional director? 13 aggregate data to be given to the supervisor. 
14 A. Student rights and responsibilities 14 A. Ask the question again. I I r.. sorry. 
15 tells r.:e where ·· what the windo111 is. It tells 15 I got so far off . I apolC13ize. 
16 me my · · as a principal, my · - I have lee~ay over 16 Q. No. That 1s fine. 
17 that. 17 A. i apologize. What was the question 

18 Now, I could take action within 18 again? 
19 that leelia}' and, through an appeal that goes 19 Q. I gi:ess re all r what ii;e liant to know 

20 above roe through che parent, lright not be 20 is \!hen were you required to report student 

21 satisfied, thinks that I leaned too far to one 21 misbeha\·ior, student harassment, student bullying 

22 direction; then the1 could ·· I believe they have 22 co a supervisor, if at all? 
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1 the right to say, You overstepped your bounds, 1 A. No. That was in mi' ·· that was in 

2 maybe through ~-Y interpretation. Maybe my 2 my ·· that ~as in my authority. 

3 interpretation could be wrong. And they say, 3 Q. So even if a student was, you kno'I) , 

4 Well , you can It do that. Or based on the facts, 4 a serial harasser or a serial bully, that 

5 were you aware of sooething else1 another 5 ii:ouldn 1c necessarily be ·· it ~ouldn1t be 

6 variable? 6 required of you to elevate chat to any 

7 so whether they · · I cannot say 7 supervisor? 
8 definitively i'hether that ~as ·· could be an 8 A. The student rights and 

9 order or a suggestion. I could not say 9 responsibilities docim1enc is clear in regards to 

10 definitively. I think at a certain point ·· I 10 111hat constitutes harassment, what constitutes 

11 chink at a certain point, it could be an order. 11 disrespect, what constitutes sexcal harassment . 

12 But -- because the authority supersedes mine, but 12 rt1s ·· it 1s ·· it1s laid out. 

13 I can't recall a situation. 13 It Is •· it Is not -· there Is not a lot of rool! for 

14 Q. Pl!tting aside your · · as principal 14 interpretation, if any room for interpretation. 

15 decision·l".aking process on how to deal \fith 15 So there tould be no reason other 
16 student discipline, was there any requirement 16 than to read it specifically and say, This is 

17 that you jt:st report a certain · · certain student 17 '!;bat it says, and this is what we fall in. And 
18 discipline acts to a Sl'Pervisor? 18 whether 111e 

I re going to go with Level 2 or 3 or 
19 A. I don I t recall that. They get a 19 4 -· I 1m assuming that under an infraction, if 
20 copy of the nu,iber of suspensions chat we do on a 20 it Is -• 'l'ell , you have a choice bmeen · · the 
21 given period of time; in-school suspension, 21 Grades 3 to 12, you have a choice bet'lieen 
22 detentions ·· in-school suspensions, and 22 Level 2, Level J, Level 4. .c -· Level 1 is not 
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1 an option. l.€vel 5 is not an option. 1 Q, Elizabeth Davis. 
2 l.€vels -- between Levels 2, 3 and 2 A. Outside of the bl!ilding. I saw the 
3 4, that 's a building SL~ervisor's decision. And 3 naree in the docurr.ents. outside of the building. 
4 that ~ould have no reason to -- for ~e to elevate 4 I -- I couldn' t tell you what her role is at this 
5 chat up. 5 particular point without accessing infom.ation. 
6 Like I said, now, if sooeone called 6 Q, So she was not sorr.eone \'ho was 
7 and said -- and they had a cowplaint about a 7 under your supervision? 
8 principal and the}' thought that iaybe I was too 8 A. No. 
9 Draconian or too benevolent, then chat Is another 9 Q, Gerald Milliner? 

10 issue. 10 A. Security guard. 
11 Bet I i'OUldn' t -- I wouldn 't -- I 11 Q. J.nd is that the same person as 
12 ~·ouldn 't see a reason to involve an insmctional 12 Mr. G? 
13 director. What that ~ould tell -- ~hat that 13 A. Yes. 
14 would tell the instructional director is that 14 Q, Okay. Robert Kendrick? 
15 this is under ey job description, that I can It do 15 A. Security. Investigative counsel. 
16 my job. 16 I believe the tifo of them are off iciall • 
17 Q. So a sit?ilar question, but 17 investigative counsels. 
18 switching topics a little bit. As principa_, 18 Q, So they 1.1ould have a similar role, 
19 me you ever reqi:ired to bring to the attention 19 a sirrilar position at Friendly High School? 

20 of a supervisor if a co~plainc had been lodged 20 A. Mr. Kendrick was the supervisor of 

21 against a teacher by another teacher or a 21 ~lr. ~illiner. 
22 student? 22 Q, And just as a general ~.atter, what 
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1 A. No, that wasn It required. 1 was their responsibility? 
2 Q. So, again -- 2 A. Monitor the building, 
3 A. Now, noil, DOil, that was a 3 investigate -- invest:gate -- investigation. So 
4 requirement, no;;. If there i'as a cotl'.plaint -- 4 if there 1tas a -- certain acts -- certain aces, 

' ) i.e. -- I forgot the teacher's natl'e. She 5 take statements. And that's part of 

6 complained about Ms. mer going in her room. I 6 investigating, getting -- bringing facts. 
7 might FYI my ID so chey wouldn't get blind-sided. 7 And they ~ould be in charge of 

8 (Clarification by reporter. l 8 whether they \\'ere going co -- ,ell, they had the 

9 A. I 'in. sorry. I '1!' sorry. I' 11 say it 9 ability to charge students. 
10 again so it l!lakes sense. 10 Q, You mentioned Ms. Paula Robinson 
11 I would -- if I thought there was 11 before. Was she -- and I think rou said that she 
12 some co~lexity to the Ratter that it rr.ay go up, 12 was an assistant principal? 
13 that it's a possibility co go up, I i'ould 13 A. Exactlj'. 
14 foretell roy -- my supervisor so if it did come to 14 Q, Did she have any other roles ac 
15 their level, it would not be the first ti1te they 15 Friendly during your term as principal? 
16 heard about che situation. 16 A. So she had responsibilities as an 
17 And I apologize. 17 assistant principal. She was not another 
18 Q, So I have a couple of other names. 18 official role -- she 'Mas not another role as --
19 You [.entioned my of these na~.es already, but 19 as an ewployee of Friendly High School. 
20 I'd just like to just ask if you recall what 20 Q, Julia Gaffney? 
21 .heir roles ll'ere. 21 A. Teacher, union rep. Or what do 
22 A. Sm. 22 chey call it? I forgot . They' re not a union. 
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1 Theytre a ·· building association representative. 1 joined Friendly High School, did anyone in the 
2 Q. Bl!t a role connected to the unionr 2 school system provide ·ou with advice on ho\11 to 
3 A. Yes. 3 relate to transgender people? 
4 Q. Angela Joyner? 4 A. Formally, I can1t recall 
5 A. My guess is in-school suspension 5 official · · official •· I can It recall. 
6 coordinator. My guess. 6 Q. Did you reach out to anyone for 
7 Q, Kirrber 1 y Cosby? 7 advice on how to deal with transgender people 
8 A. I don't kno~. 8 around the time that Ms. Eller joined Friendly 
9 Q, Jocel)'ll Isomr 9 liigh School? 

10 A. People personnel ~orker, PPK. 10 A. I would think that I 11odd have 
11 Q. And I don I t have a first name for 11 been smt enough to speak co the PPK and the 
12 this person but Sergeant Waithe. 12 counselors. 
13 A. Insuuctional counselor ·· IC, like 13 Q. : 

1m sorry. ~bar. ' s the PPW? 
14 Mr. Milliner and Nr. Kendrick. 14 A. People personnel worker, through 
15 Q, All right. When did you first come 15 the guidance track through · · just to · · I don It 
16 co kno~ abouc Ms. Eller? 16 have any documentation that said I need to speak 
17 A. Call from liR. 17 co you in regards to this. But I don It see \llhy I 
18 Q. Do rou kno·, about lihen that was? 18 ~ouldn It have spoken to sorr,eone. 
19 A. It had to be in that timeline 19 Q. You don1t recall a specific 
20 inmediately preceding her co~ing to Friendly High 20 situacion ¼here you did ask someone I do you? You 
21 School, becacse that would have been when I m 21 just expect that you had ·· 
22 contacted by HR about: Do you have a problem 22 A. Right. I don It recall ·· I don 1 t 
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1 with this person cowing into rhe situation? I recall eight years ago. 
2 So iu.edimly following that; · 2 Q, Prior to Ms. Eller, had you ever 

3 can It tell you whether it ll'as days or weeks. I 3 11.'0rked with anyone t'ho m transgender, that you 

4 don It know if it was the beginning of the year, 4 knei' co be transgender? 
5 midd e of the year. 5 MR. S~:A: Is this limiced to the 

6 Q. And what were you told about 6 school system? 
7 lls. mer at that ti!er 7 !IR. »:JC-UL: No; generally. 
8 A. She mt through a sex-change 8 TliE WITNESS: Jet me think for a 
9 procedure, I believe, and that the middle school 9 few winutes. 

10 children knew her as hi~ and then her, and then 10 BY ffJ!. NOGUL: 
11 it ~as really ·· it 'fas sol!ething that was · · 11 Q. oce 111 come back to that. 
12 aias, I guess ·· I don1t kno~. I don1t know if he 12 A. Okay. 
13 said it m difficult for · · I 1rr. assuming it was 13 Q, Since Ms. Eller, have you had an 
14 difficult for the kids and ~ls. Eller. 14 occasion to work with an7one who you knew to be 
ll Q, Did you ulk to anyone else other 15 mnsgender? 
16 than this liR person about Ns. Kller before she 16 A. ~here is a lady in the building 
17 started at Friendly? 17 that I work in right no\11 who is transgender. She 
18 A. No. 18 feeds the ·· feeds the anii,als. I liork in the 
19 Q, So you didn I t call up her principal 19 science center. 
20 at the cime? 20 My ·· my interaction is not 
21 A. No. 21 excensive; just hello, hi. You guys ~·aiting to 
22 Q, Arocnd the t i11ie ll'hen Ms. Eller 22 get in; let JT.e let you in because ther nerer 
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1 am:er che door. 1 getting into answers to questions chat I probably 
2 Q, What was that? 2 will be about to ask. 
J A. Let ,.e let you in because you don I t 3 A. Okay. 
4 have a key and they' re not going to ever ansm 4 Q, But I think it 1i:ould be helpful if 
5 the door -- not that they won It mr ansm the 5 ~e could just take it step by step so we I re very 
6 door, but it 1s going to be slow. It 1s going to 6 clear about \then things happened. 
7 be ·· 1I1ll let you in. 1 7 A. Fair enough. Fair enough. 
8 Q. Right. So that Is the level of 8 Q, I just ir.eant to ask chat in i·our 
9 conversation that you 1ve had with her1 9 current posi don, had \'OU received training -- or 

10 A. Yeah; nae -- not -- 10 in-service training --
11 Q. But before ~orking ~ith this 11 A. Diversitr. 
12 individual, did you do anything to educate 12 Q, -- diversity training about 
B yourse f abod diversity or inclusion issues 1J cransgender diversity and inclusion issues? 
14 relating to uansgender people? 14 A. So, when you calk about diversity 
15 A. Whenever the people personnel 15 and you speak to one specific part of diversity, 
16 mker from guidance speaks on in-servicing, ~hen 16 you I re ·· I understand -- this is fJ 
17 they in-service staff, I'm part of that staff 17 interpretation. I understand you 're zeroing in 
18 that is in-serviced. 18 on one particu ar part of diversit 11 and I 11\': 

19 Q. Can you what explain what 19 sa1ing that the training iiodd have covered all 
20 'in-service• means. 20 diversity. 
21 A. In-service is so if -- an 21 No~, that is an issue that . knoil' 
22 in-service is a training to familiarize you with 22 Ms. Eller sought someone outside the building co 
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1 something that the -- the provider has r.ore 1 come and give an hour training to so~.eone, 

2 expertise on. It 1s -- it 1s -- it 1s a short 2 unbeknowst to me, that I said we ha-:e to stop 
3 class. 3 this mining because we do have a once-a onth 

4 Q. So in your current position, you 4 staff r.eeting. I have them once a month. And 
5 attended one of these in-service trainings 5 there are a m~her of topics that ha1:e co be 

6 that -- in which diversity related to transgender 6 covered in that staff meeting once a 1110nth. 
7 people was disCl!ssed1 7 Plld I saw from Ms. &Iler she was 

8 A. Every year the PPW in-services the 8 under -- she and whoever me under the 
9 school -- the staff melfillers. Every semter the 9 impression that my staff meeting was going to 

10 students are ·· grade-level assembly is held at 10 be -- ny hour staff meeting that I have 
11 least once a semester. That is one of the topics 11 contracted for them, was going to be totally a 
12 that is covered. 12 mining based on what Ms. Eller and someone else 
13 Now, having said that, Ms. Eller 13 had spoken to them -- and : believe that P!.ight 
14 being there at Friendly liigh School, that would H have been the person that you mentioned that I 
15 definitively be SO!!lething that 1tould not be 15 didn I c kno~ the name I as opposed to when a 
16 ignored. Just like ~hen '4'e had -- r mentioned 16 traditional staff meeting takes place, it 's a 

17 earlier i.e have an ortho population. If -- if 17 nuwher of issues that are covered because, as you 
18 something fits yo~r environr.ent, you lould cover 18 understand, I 11'.eet 111ith them once a ~:Onth. So 
19 it , just to -- yo~ would cover it so not to -- it 19 everything that has to be covered in that once a 
20 ~·ould be -- you would cover it. 20 month, has to be covered. 
21 Q. Oh, okay. I think -- 1rf question 21 Q. Okay. I'l!I sorry to hm to say 
22 was much ~.ore specific than that. And you I re 22 this again, but ·· 
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1 A. Sere. 1 Q. Did it include transgender issues 
2 Q. · · I wane to be very specific. 2 \ihen ·au · · 
3 And, again, I think )'Our ansm got ] A. I can1t ansm that. I don1t know. 
4 a little off topic for the question. So we will 4 Q. Let me finish the question. 
5 get to that; I pro!lise you. 5 A. I 1m sorry. · 1n sorry. I 1111 sorry · 
6 A. Okay. 6 did that. I 1m sorry. 
7 Q. ~e will get to those staff 7 Q. ~hen you started as principal at 
8 meetings. I just ~anted to ask in your current 8 Friendly, did it then include transgender issues, 
9 position ·· 9 the in-service training1 

10 A. As a specialist, as a sm1 10 A. i can1t say. 
11 specialist? 11 Q. But the annual in-service training 
12 Q. ·· have you received in-service 12 over your ti1T:e at Prince George Is County Public 
B training that 1s about diversity and inclusion as 1] Schools system has not alHj'S included 
14 it relates to mnsgender people? 14 mnsgender dhersity issues, has it? 
15 A. Oh, I just re1T:ewbered, ~e go 15 MR. Sl!mlA: Objection. 
16 through training every year. And we have to 16 You can ansm. 
17 approve ·· we have ta sign off on that. Ke have 17 THE WITNESS: I started in 199] as 
18 to pass a test. Diversity is included in that 18 a w.ath teacher. As a math teacher, I only 
19 training. 19 concerned myself with the kids that caF.e into w.y 

20 Q. And does it include mnsgender 20 class. Okay? So I did not look at the 
21 individuals? 21 overall ·· I did not look at the big picture. I 
22 A. I would be itilling to say yes, very 22 cannot say when that started. 
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1 much so. 1 BY MR. NOGUL : 

2 Yes. 2 Q. If you don I t mind, I am going co 
3 Q. Okay. ] step through this a little bit. 
4 A. Yes. And that Is · · that Is ~ So Prince George Is County Public 
5 system-wide. That1s every efployee, from 5 Schools system offered you mining while you 

6 Monica ·· from the CEO do~'Il has to · · I can It say 6 11ere a teacher; correct 1 
7 the CEO. 7 A. Yes. 
8 That Is every e!Tployee has to go 8 Q. Generally? 
9 through that training in diversity. And included 9 A. Yes. 

10 in diversity is transgender. Included in 10 Q. Do you recall if any of that 
11 diversity is how students ·· ho\! students , staff 11 mining included how to interact with a diverse 
12 and whoever may be ·· chat you ~.ay interact with 12 student body1 
13 and that you may not have any insight into their 1] A. · don I t recall . 
H perspective, and thus, the training \!ill allo~ H Q. And do you recall if any of that 
15 you to, in short, see things through their eres 15 mining 1t1hile you me a teacher included holi to 
16 so you won't be so quick to be judgmental. 16 deal \'ith transgender students? 

17 Q. And so you mentioned this training 17 A. I don It recall . 
18 happens erery year. 18 Q. Do you recall if any of that 
19 A. Yes. 19 mining concerned hoi; to interact with a diverse 
20 Q. When was it that the training 20 population of co~orkers? 
21 started to include transgender issues? 21 A. · don I t recall. 
22 A. I can It ansll'er chat. 22 Q. Do you recall if any of that 
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1 training while yoc were a teacher included ho~ to 1 administrator? 
2 interact with transgender coi'Orkm? 2 MR. SUA: Objection. 
J A. I don't recall. 3 You can ansm. 
4 Q. over your tfo.e as an administrator 4 THE WITNESS: As an adl!linismtor? 
5 now, rou're already testified you received 5 BY MR. NOGUL: 

6 training as a general lftatter. 6 Q. Yes. 
7 A. Yes. 7 A. You mean so for Ms. Eller ~anting 
8 Q. Did any of that training concern 8 t0 be an ad!!inistrator? You're saying that? 
9 how to interact with a diverse student body? 9 Q. No, no, no. I'm saying when you 

10 A. You asked rr.e ~hen training started, 10 'A'ere an administrator --
11 and I don't recall when that cook place. But I 11 A. Okay. 
12 do kno~ that ~e had a diverse population in 12 Q. -- me rou provided training 
13 regards to race, religion, sexual orientation, B for · · about ho~ to pro:note an inclusive 
14 any of the protected classes as far as 14 environment for facultr and staff that are 
15 discril!lination is concerned. 15 mnsgender? 
16 So to quote that training, I cannot 16 A. i wuld -- I ~ould be scrprised if 
17 quote when and where. But I can say that · · I 17 the people personnel worker didn't include that 
18 can say that I'm sure I was trained on 18 in their · · in the guidance departft'!ent. 
19 protected ·· on · · l 'F.: sure the County would 19 Q. But you don't rernellber -- do you 
20 train on protecting those protected classes that 20 rereerrber specific times thac it happened? 
21 are subject to discri~ination for ·· and I 21 A. I can't sa1 over 26 years that 
22 can't -- I can't quote the legal -- right. 22 chese were the specific times that that happened, 
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1 Q. Of course. 1 no. 
2 Bet you don It recall ~hen 2 Q. Could you say hoi. many till\es you've 
3 transgender-specif ic diversity training was 3 had training that included ·· roughly ho~ IP.any 
4 provided to you as an adfflinismtor? 4 dmes you had training that included diversicy 

5 A. I can't recall when -- specifically 5 issues related to transgender people? 
6 when the start of black/white, diff erenc 6 MR. SHARMA: Objection. 
7 religions m either. So no. 7 THE WI'Il/ESS: No, I can't say -- I 
8 Q. And the sare question no11 regarding 8 couldn't even give you all my supervisors. No, I 
9 ho11 to suoervi se · · 9 can't. 

10 A. Bet I do recall at soo.e point in my 10 I can't cell ·ou the 
11 life in my professional mining that those 11 adminismtors ·· all the adfflinistrators that 
12 protected classes, which is included ·· ilhich 12 l(Orked for n:e by name. I can't · - no -· che 
13 sexual orientation is included in. So I can't 13 anS'ier is no. 
14 say that that would have been left off che table 14 BY MR. NOGUL: 

15 and they i.'Ould have stopped ac · · chey would have 15 Q. As principal of Friendly liigh 
16 stopped short of the law in regards to what 16 School, did you ever request that the school 

17 groups cannot be discrillinated based on protected 17 system provide training that was not already 
18 citizen -· protected classes. 18 being provided to you and your faculty and staff? 
19 Q. Moving beyond the issue of just 19 A. You' re talking specifically in 
20 don't discriminate against people, did you 20 regards to the transgender diversity? 
21 receive training on ho~ to prDft:ote an inclusive 21 Q. Right no~ I'm just asking the 
22 environment for transgender people as an 22 general question. 
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1 A. Ask the question again. 1 assigned · · if you' re assigned as che PPW, you I re 
2 Q. Sm. 2 the expert. 
3 As principal of Friendly Eigh ] BY~. NOOUL: 
4 School, did you ever request that the school 4 Q. Do you remember 'iho were the PPWs 
5 system provide any mining to you and your 5 while you 11:ere principal of Friendly Eigh School? 
6 faculty and staff that was noc already being 6 A. I remember the one. I don I t 
7 provided? 7 reme~ber the names of the others. There were 
8 A. Ms. &ller wanted -- that was one of 8 fflllltiple ones. I remember ~hen IsOftl goc there. 
9 her concerns. So I Im sure I would have 9 I member when Isom left. But I do not m.ernber 

10 co~11nmicmd to the PPW. I ~'Ouldn It have asked - 10 the ones before her. I do not rml!lher tr.e na11.e 
11 someone from the State to corr.e in or someone that 11 of the one after her. 
12 did -- that wasn't assigned to work with Friendly 12 Q. Backing L'P a bit, my question bad 
1] High School, m nor assigned to work ljlith 1] been sow.ewhac more general chan how you answered 
14 Friend!)' High School, because the people ~ho me 14 it, although I appreciate the answer. 
15 assigned are the people who understand che 15 But just beyond the sitmion of 
16 population, understand the building, understand 16 ~ls. Kller's request for additional training, did 
17 the dynamics of the building, and are not in a 17 rou request additional training frOftl the school 

18 position to walk my once -- it can be ongoing. 18 system or from the PP~s, any other training? 
19 So I -- like I said, once again, I can'c tell 7ou 19 A. So you' re asking rr.e chat when 

20 dates and things of that nature. But brought to 20 sow,ething was brought co my attention and then I 

21 my attention, I ~'Ould have -- PPW, somebody who 21 direcred the person who has the training co -- to 

22 was -- who was qualified to train the staff, ~ho 22 crain -- if you I re asking me if I said, Let's --

12] 125 

1 had got cen training on -- from others in the 1 each and every rear there's a training that bas 

2 County, from their departments to say, Okay, 2 to take place. 
3 l'ell, I need yoc to in-service the staff. 3 I can't answer how wany times 

4 So there 's no -- there's no 4 be7ond -- beyond that that I said -- I can I t. I 

5 misunderstanding. Everyone is -- everyone has · · 5 can't. 
6 no one can use lack of knowled9e as an excuse 6 Q. But i c is sor.ething chat you ~ould 

7 to -- everyone kno~s. 7 have done, You would hm -- yoc do kno~ that 

8 And it 's better for che building if 8 rou have on occasion requested additional 

9 everyone knows so you don 't -- like I said, in 9 mining from either the school system or the PPW 

10 regards to, like, all the procected classes of 10 for your --
11 citizens, it wodd be difficult for w.e not to go 11 A. I do know that that has been 

12 into another coor..cnity and not have any insight, 12 soir.ething that Is been brought to my attention. 
1] so -- to be offensive. So I wouldn't have ·· I 1] And I would not have left that as a reason to be 

14 mldn' t have 1'elcow.e that ignorance to be a part 14 negligent in regards to ·· reason to be negligent 

15 of the process that could desuoy a building. 15 in regards to so:r.ething chat impacts Friendly 
16 Q. Do you reMentber which PPW you asked 16 liigh School. 

17 co start inpctting mnsgender training into? 17 I have no reason to say, Lee's not 
18 A. Whoever was assigned -- 18 address this; let Is ignore chis. 
19 MR. SHARMA: Objection as to the 19 I don It have any reason to say I 
20 form of the question. 20 ttant co -- I mt to have a hostile envirolll!.enc, 
21 You can ans11er. 21 inappropriate envirorur,ent for someone thac I 
22 'l'liK WI'IRESS: Whoever m 22 said, Yes, bring them; they can coll.€; let's bring 
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1 them to Friendly; I think they could be a benefit 1 A. Not specifically, no. 
2 co this institution, 2 Q, Do you know, me you the one co 
3 Q, A bit IP.Ore specific now. 3 request Major Burks to come in and make that 
4 L\J you recall a March 17th 1 4 presentation? 
r 
J 2015 ·· yoc don It have to recall the dace, 5 A. I don' t think I -as. 
6 Bl!t do you recall that there was a 6 Q, Do you know who did? 
7 presentation on traosgender diversity issues by 7 A. I can It recall that . 
8 ~lajor Irene Burks of the PG County Police 8 Q, Did you have a conversation with 
9 Departroent? 9 ~lajor Burks before she gave the presentation? 

10 A. I recall that through the read. 10 A. You mean ·· that : can't ·· I can't 
11 Q, So you only recall it from the 11 recall . 
12 reading? Yoe don It recall it yourself in your 12 Q, Do you know who ilas invited to that 
B meioory? 13 staff r:eeting? 
14 A. I recall it · · that that prompted 14 A. Besides staff? I1m assc~ing it was 
15 me to ·· that · · chat situation, that setup of a 15 a staff ·· a staff -· I don I t recall. 
16 staff reecing which ~as going to be solely 16 Q, ocould you expect that it ~ould have 
17 dedicated to · · that was not brought to her 17 been like an a"!· staff meeting for the high 

18 speaking. When we have speakers come in for 18 school I or would it have been something more 
19 15, 20 ~inutes is one thing. When it ~as ·· when 19 specific? 
20 it m ·· occurred to me that this is going ·· 20 A. ~hat do you mean, •rrore specific•? 

21 ~s. Eller and Major ·· I don 't kno\f the name. 21 Q, ~ell, I don I t knoll ho~ ·oc ran 

22 Q, Bl!rks. 22 staff Meetings. But it could have been that you 
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1 A. · · Burks \/ere under the ifllpression 1 \iould have some staff meetings that were for all 

2 chat this hour staff F..eeting in March was going 2 of faculty and staff at the high school and soff.e 

3 to be solely dedicated to this training in the 3 chat i'OUld be department-specific or 

4 111:dst of · · what else happens in Narch? · · state 4 grade-specific or something like that. 

5 assesSl\'ent exafll.s; seniors are getting ready to 5 A. No. It would be all staff with the 

6 graduate in L'PCOflllng -· just a mnrber of things 6 exception of the custodians and the · - the 
7 that are going to be · · that was not · · 111e 7 cafeteria 11:orkers. 
8 have -· 1'e have had speakers coll'.e in all the 8 Q, Okay. And how ~ere the scaf f 

9 time, outside people. It was not ·· and that \ias 9 informed about IA'hen these staff meetings would 

10 not courunicated co l!le that the entire hour 1A1as 10 take place? 
11 going to be based on this, the single ·· single 11 A, There is something that · · an 
12 focus. 12 all-email blast that goes to all staff. 

13 Q, Okay. 13 Q, Do you reme~r if Major Burks had 

14 A. Or if ·· that was March 25th, rou 14 an'/, like, physical materials that she passed out 

15 say? 15 at the presentation? 
16 Q, March 17th, 2015, 16 A. I don't remember. 

17 A. March 17th. 17 Q, Do you reme~r if she gave a 
18 Q, Let ffle just go back to my original 18 PowerPoint presentation? 
19 question, because I don It think you quite 19 A. I don It rew.ef!lber. 
20 ans,.:ered it, which is: Other than looking at the 20 Q, If I could show yoi: ·· it I s what \'e 
21 docurr.ents, do you remeruier that event, that · - 21 have as Tab 37 but will be Exhibit 2. 
22 chat presentation? 22 !Whereupon, Exhibit No. 2 was lllarked for 
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1 identificacion.) 1 A. I don It recall. 
2 BY MR. Mm: 2 Q. Do you recall doing any follow-up 
3 Q. Kr. AdaF..s, if you \iouldn 'c mind 3 aher that presentation, including conversations 
4 just paging through to see if you rer.errber this 4 with other staff or faculty members about it? 
5 docu~.enc. 5 A. I don't reca.l. 
6 A. Do you wane ~.e co an~er it now? 6 Q, Do you recall ever contacting 
7 Q, I'd prefer if you looked at it just 7 ~Is. Burks again after ·· Sergeant Burks again --
8 to be sure. 8 I'm sorry ·· ~ajor Burks again after that 
9 A. Okay. 9 presentation? 

10 I briefed it ~hen you me -- 10 A. No. 
11 Q. Oh. 11 Q. Did you ever have a si!l1ilar 
12 A. And I don I C menmer it . 12 mining to what llajor Burks had presented after 
13 Q. Oka". 13 chat ·· after her presentation? 
14 A. I don't ·· that's -- I don't 14 A. I do not recall a -· ~e, in regards 
15 reme~er it. 15 to ·· in regards to diversity and the rights and 
16 Q. Thank you. 16 the responsibi ity of everyone involred in 
17 Do you re1m1ber just generally how 17 dealing with ·· in dealing with everyone as a 
18 that presentation ,ent? Ho~' \fas it received? 18 diverse -- a diverse population, there is a group 
19 A. I don I t. I saw Ms. Eller Is notes 19 that deals with that training ·· that is, the 
20 that someone said sow.ething. I didn It recall. I 20 people personnel \\'Orkers. 
21 don't. 21 So there lOUld be no reason for w.e 

22 Q. And do you remerrher if the training 22 co say, I need to bring sorr.eone from the outside 
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1 ~as ended abrupt! y? 1 co train -- min staff on something that i'e have 

l A. If it went on past a certain 2 che capacity of in the county. 
3 period, I 11:ould have said, We need to stop and 3 Q. During your tfae as principal, did 
4 move on, because there are ·· this is a staff 4 you ever schedule an assembly or other meeting 

5 meeting, and there are a mmber of things on the 5 for students that ,ou.d include a dbersity and 

6 agenda. 6 inclusion topic? 
7 Noil, Major -- 1 A. The people personnel "orker always 
8 Q. Burks? 8 speaks co that aspect. Tneir grade· level 
9 A. · · Burks ~y not have been aware of 9 asserrbly's held once a semester, at ~inimum. 

10 the staff agenda. Ms. mer w.ay not have been 10 That Is c1tice a rear. That is one of the copies 
11 aware of what the entire staff agenda entailed. 11 that Is covered. 
12 Bd that was no reason to -· like I 12 Q. ~.nd so am I correct that chat would 
13 said, I -- looking at a recollection that sounds 13 be all students would be inv:ted to that --
14 like that they were under the irr.pression that 14 A. Exactly. 
15 chis ~·as -- the staff mting 1tas going to be 15 Q. ·· per grade? 
16 entirely dedicated to one thing, ~hich chat 's 16 A. Grade- level asse11blies, you 

17 unprecedented. I can't nal!:e a norn.al staff 17 'A'ouldn I c have them all at the same time . You 
18 meeting at any til!le that 1s dedicated just to one 18 would replicate -- you ,ould replicate the 
19 thing. 19 presentation for maybe two grades or one grade, 
20 Q. Do you recall doing any folloli·Up 20 depending on the size of the popdation. You 
21 af cer that presentation in tems of contacting 21 couldn't fit the whole school in. 
22 Ms . Burks? 22 Q. Do you recall if these -· if any of 
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1 these asse@blies included a discussion of 1 Ms. Eller having a potential asse~bly that i'OUld, 
2 diversity and inclusion for LGBT individuals? 2 aiong other things, include diversity issues 
J A. So diversity, ~'Ould include ·· I 3 related to transgender individuals? 
4 don't want to ~issay it again. 4 A. No. 
5 Q. lfBT. 5 MR. MOGUL: If we could pull up the 
6 A. lfBT. Thank }'OU • 6 next exhibit, Tab 15J. 
7 Diversity would include that. 7 (llbmupon, Exhibit No. 3 was 1,rked for 
8 There i.'Ould be no reason to prohibit that. I 8 identification. ) 
9 mean, there would be no reason to ·· not to 9 BY MR. MOGUL: 

10 say · · to ·· to restrict an· ·· restricr any 10 Q. Mr. Adarr.s, this appears to be an 
11 class that has been ·· that it's illegal to 11 email frow. ris. Eller to you in Acgust 2012. Is 
12 discriminate against based on protected class. 12 chat correct? 
B Q. Do you recall any of these B A. Right. Do you have my response? 

14 asserrb.ies having a specific focus on diversit7 H Q. Not in this document. 
15 inclusion for lfB1 individuals, not discussing 15 Do you recall this e,ail? 
16 just diversity inclusion generally? 16 A. No, but I would · · I 1-ould be 

17 A. Each asseMly ~ould com a number 17 shocked that I ,ouldn't respond. And I 1ranted to 

18 of factors. Not just · · lie ~'Ouldn It pull 18 be · · I see this perspective, and I would want to 

19 students oct for one specific · · at a time in 19 see what I said. 
20 assembly, you' re going to talk about grades, 20 And it 'llould 1:€ · · I 1-ould be 

21 focus , atcendance. 21 shocked if I didn It respond. And · · and this 

22 Theyt re ·· I don It have a copy of 22 response lf.ay include an action plan. it l\'.ay 
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1 an assembly, but we ,ouldn't ·· -.:e ~ouldn1t 1 include an · · I don' t know . 
2 interrupt instrmion and bring students dow for 2 But I ·· I i'ould respond. I ~·ould 
j one specific aspect, when · · at the expense of J like co see my response before · · I 'llould like to 

4 all the ocher asoeccs chat need to be covered. 4 see l\'.}' tirr.e response. And if I responded, I 
) Otherwise, they ~'Ould be in assembly ·· they 5 would think Ns . Eller ~ould have that response 

6 'iould · · we ~'Ouldn It do that. 6 also. 
7 Q. In the context of a multi· issue 7 Q. Okay. This is produced to us by 

8 asse~bly, did it ever happen chat there Kas an 8 che school system, and each email is produced 

9 asserobl y that one of the several issues m 9 individually. So I understand that you 1ay have 

10 specifically diversity inclusion for WBT 10 responded to this erail, but I'm just going co 

11 individuals? 11 ask you a coup e of questions about this. 
12 A. I ~'Ould think so, but I cannot · · I 12 So does this refresh yocr 

B cannot recall specifically. And I know you ~iant 13 recollection that, as you' 1 see in the firsc 

14 me to give you dates, and you "ant me to say · · 14 line, Ms. Eller says that the two of you 

1, you want ~;e co recall · · I cannot recall · · I 1, discussed at the end of the 2011/2012 school year 
16 cannot recall the specifics of '<'hat the people 16 ho111 to address harassment that she had been 

17 personnel t/Orker would speak to any r.ore than I 17 facing? 
18 can recall the specifics of what was the guidance 18 MR. SD.A: Objection. 
19 counselor spoke to any ~ore than I can recall the 19 That's not ~hat it says, but you 
20 specifics of 1-hat security spoke about or the 20 can ans-wer. 
21 grade· level ad~.inistmors spoke about. 21 THE WITNESS: Ask the qi:estion 
22 Q. Do you recall discussing with 22 again. 
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1 BY MR. Mm: 1 you I re asking me. 
2 Q. Mr. Adaf.s, why don' t you tell me 2 Q. i 'm just asking, sitting here 
J what it is that this email is referencing. J today, do you remember having this conversationi 
4 A. You ~ant Re to read it to you1 4 A. I remember Ms. Eller 'ilant ing --
5 Q, No. I'd like you to just ·· 5 wanting training. I remember Ms. Eller speaking 
6 A. 51:marize it? 6 co me about her concerns, you know, seml 
7 Q. What is your understanding of what 1 orientation being one of them. 
8 Ms. Eller is asking here in this email? 8 She may have spoken to me about her 
9 MR. SHARMA: Objection. The 9 concerns about AP, or -- or attendance or being 

10 document speaks for itself, but you can answer. 10 ill or being ·· not being able to be to ~ark on 
11 TliE WITIIESS: Like I said, do you 11 time. 
12 want me to read it rn you? I 1111 interpreting what 12 I mean, I remember there were other 
B it says, and that's 'vlhy I'rr: saying, I would -- B conversations that Ms. Eller · - I rember. But, 
14 I Im sure I did not leave a -- I Im sure I did not 14 I mean, I can 't specif icall l' say on a given · · 
15 leave an email from any staff member or any 15 August 13th, which \iaS • - August 13th would 
16 parent wi tho1:t a response. 16 have been before the students came back. 
17 A.qd this ~'Ouldn I t be an exception 17 It would have been teacher -· I 
18 to that. And ~y response at that dw.e in real 18 don 't know what it was called. It's when the 
19 time would tell you exactly ·· the question that 19 teachers report and the students haven It reported 
20 rou asked on my interpretation of whatever you 20 yet. 
21 asked, I'm s1:re f._' response would be a ~.ore 21 I cannot recall , this . 
22 accurate as opposed to waiting eight years later 22 MR. MOGUL: I Id like to no11 turn to 
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1 to · - to 91!esstim.ate what I !1'ay have thought in 1 what we have as Tab 1, so it will be Exhibit ~. 
2 2012. 2 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 4 was 11arked for 
3 BY MR. Mm: J identification.) 
4 Q, So Ms. Eller says here, 'At the end 4 BY t1iR • MOGUL : 

5 of the 2011-2012 school year, ~e discussed things 5 Q. So, Mr. Adams, does this 
6 that ,,;ould reduce stress and friction for me in 6 August 21st email refresh your recollection? 
7 the coming school year. 1 7 A. No. It sounds like ·· it sol!Dds 
8 Sitting here today, do you remember 8 like the first few days of school, maybe the 
9 having a conversation with Ms. Eller on that 9 first day of school. so the first day of school 

10 topic at that tirr.e? 10 \l'ould have been before grade-level asse™Jlies. 
11 A. That dm.e? Which time? I can It ·· 11 So, I mean, if you · · do you have a 
12 no. I would love to see my response. 12 calendar of 2012 that we could look at? 
13 What I am saying is, I 'rn ·· it -· 13 Q. I Im sure we could pull one up. 
14 it 1£ould be an issue if I didn It respond to 14 A. Because ·· 
15 someone 's em.ail. It would be an issue, if I 15 Q, ~ould that help? 
16 didn't respond to soIBeone 's email at the 16 A. The 13th · · if the 13th is the 

17 beginning of -- the students aren It even in 17 first day -- Monday, the Dth, is the day that 
18 school yet. It Is staff developrr.enc cirr.e. It 18 probably staff reported. And then Tuesday, 
19 would be an issue if I didn I t respond to a 19 the -- Tuesday, the middle of the day on Tuesday 
20 student, or student, staff or parent at any time. 20 is probably the first week that students 
21 And I \l'ould be \llilling to bet that 21 reported. There Is a chance that the grade-level 
22 I responded, 11hich would answer the question that 22 asserrblies hadn 't taken place by then. Or it's a 
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1 chance that because you have four grade· level 
2 asseroblies, that one rr:ay have taken place as 
3 opposed to all fo~r. 
4 Bt!t, no, to answer your question, I 
5 don't recall. 

1 the case. Whether it Is a parent, whether it's 
2 a · · I'm going to respond. 
3 And it looks like !ls. Eller put 
4 this last response and I just blanked out. And 

5 that's consistent klith that, which is 
6 MR. MCGUL: If we now go to ·rab 3, 6 inconsistent vith who I was or am. 

7 which will be Exhibit 5. 
~ IWhereUJXln, Exhibit No. 5 was marked for 
9 identification. I 

7 Q. I'm just trying to get a sense of 
8 \ihat you rember. I'm not saying that you 
9 didn't respond. 

10 BY MR. NOOUL: 

11 Q. So, Mr. Adams, the lo~est email 
12 physically in this docul'!ent says, 1Mr. Adams, I 
13 sat in on the 11th-grade student assellhl y and 
14 only heard diversity and appropriate behavior and 

10 A. And I'm trying to, too, by saying I 
11 \iOUld have responded because if I didn It, you 
12 ~uuld see ·· somewhere in the line yoc ~'Ould see, 
B 'You did not respond to my e~ail, my previous 
14 email.' 

15 questions in response to diversity ·· spelled 
16 incorrectly ·· mentioned one tiw.e ~ith the 
17 sentence, 'We have a diverse staff, and you 

15 ~.nd I'm quite certain that ii that 
16 me the case, rou would at least see a situation 
17 where you ..:ould see, 'Please respond. Second 

18 should respect all your teachers. ' M1 I correct 
19 in asswring this was not the asserbly we had 

18 request. You did not respond to !11)' email.' 
19 Q. Okay. Following this 

20 discussed and there will be another assembly at a 20 August 28th/August 29th, 2018, chain of e~ails, 
21 later date1 1 21 do you recall if there had been a later student 

22 Did I read that correctlt 22 asmbly scheduled that ~ould include LGBT 

m 
1 A. Yes. 1 diversity topics? 
2 Q. And then it looks like your 2 A. : would like co see my response. : 
3 response later that sm day, August 28th, was, 3 don't recall . I don 't recall. I ·· I would not 
4 '· understand that the nth-grade asserrbly 4 recall this unless it was on, there. I i.ould 

5 didn't follow the planned agenda.' 5 ~'Onder why it ~as shut off, like I said. At a 
6 Did I read that correctly? 6 certain point, I f.'Ould think that soreone ~ould 
7 A. You did. 7 say, !Is. Eller in this situation, 'Why aren't you 
8 Q. Does this e,ail chain refresh your 8 responding to my email? Why are you ignoring ff.y 
9 recollection about having student asserrblies that 9 emails?' 
10 mld have talked about diversity and inclusion 10 MR. mc-tJL: And now I'd like to 
11 in fall 2012? 11 cum to Tab 5, rhich would be Exhibit 6. 
12 A. No. No. 12 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 6 was ,arked for 
13 Q. A.11d you see there's a furrher emai 13 identification.) 
14 at the top fro~. Ms. Eller asking for follow-up. 14 BY MR. NOGUL : 

15 Do rou recall · · 15 Q. Hm you had a chance to look over 
16 A. ls there a response to that? 16 the email? 
17 Q. I don't kno'i. 17 A. Yes. 
18 A. And m1 question is: If there1s a 
19 chain, I'm going to respond to the teacher. . 'm 
20 going to respond to the teacher. 
21 We I re talking about a legal issue 

18 Q. Sitting here today, do you recall 
19 chis e~ail exchange betmn Ms. Broi•'Il and 
20 ~Is. Eller that you il'ere cc1d on? 
21 A. I don't recall it. 

22 that I 1m not going to respond to, and that Is not 22 Q. Do i'OU recall following up with 
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1 either Ms. Pope·Broli!l or Ms. Eller about this 1 I see she Is recommending some resources and sow.e 
2 email chain? 2 speakers. And 111hat I do not have is the ability 
3 MR . SHAPJIA: Well, let me just 3 to ·· ~1ell, there is a curriculum. It is not up 
4 object for a second. lie was cc'd on the bottom 4 to me to change the curriculum. That has to be 
5 email on 8xhibit 6. It doesn It appear that he 5 approved by ·· I can't change the curriculul!'.. 
6 was cc'd on the top el!'.ail. If I'n: incorrect, you 6 Khat Ms. Eller · · I mean, she has 
7 can correct me. 7 some • · I don 't kno'il whether these · · she 
8 MR. MC<:UL: Okay. 8 mentioned social studies classes. I don It know 
9 MR. SHAPJIA: But you can answer. 9 whether these are ljlorld history, OS history. I 

10 MR. MC<:1lL: Mr. Sharma, I believe 10 don't knoljl. 
11 this m produced b'f you all, so · · 11 She just says social studies 
12 HR. SllmlA: But your question had 12 classes · · AP history. I know there Is an 
13 to do with him being cc'd on it. 13 approved curriculum, and it's not for rr,e to 
14 MR. M-XUL: Yes, but is the below 14 change · · or Ms. Eller to change the approved 
15 email ·· you prodmd this, so I don't really 15 curriculuw.. Their success is measured on that. 
16 know how it's ·· 16 Q. Ms. Pope· Brow in her email 
17 HR. SlimlA: So is your question to 17 references the high school perfomance off ice. 
18 him, is it the ·· itas he cc'd on the below email? 18 Can you tell me what that is? 
19 Is that lihat yoc 're asking? 19 A. That Is the supervision of ·· that Is 
20 HR. MOGUL: No, that Is not my 20 the · · the off ice that supervises the high 
21 question. My question to you is · · 21 schools. So the instructional directors, 
22 MR. SHAPJIA: We 1re n:issing each 22 assistant superintendent. 

m 149 

1 other. I Im sorry. 1 Its. Pope-Brown, I don 1t know ·· I 
2 MR. lmJL: riy question is: ~'hen 2 can't say. I can It say what the trends, the 
3 we get so[.ething like this from the school 3 co1111\unication back and forth to and from that 
4 system, does this show that Ms. Pope-Brow'Il \las 4 office. 
) forwarding on this entire email chain? ) I know we can It change the 
6 MR. SHARMA: I 1m not in a position 6 curriculuw. 11ithout approval. So in a given 
1 to answer that question . I don It know. 7 class, there is an expectation. The parents are 
8 MR. MOCUL: Okay. 8 made aware of filhat that course consists of. 
9 MR. SDIA: All I 111' saying is on 9 Q. ~ould the high school performance 

10 the face of the document, it doesn I t appear that 10 office be who you would request a change in 
11 he 11as cc Id on the top email. 11 curriculurr. to? 
12 MR. m: ~.nd I Im not saying that 12 A. I wouldn It change it on ~y own 
13 he was. 13 inside the building. 
14 TliK WITNESS: I'm sorry. I got · · 14 Q, Right. 
15 BY MR. MC(;UL: 15 A. I would ·· I ti:ould · · it would 
16 Q. That's fine. Let 's find ourselves 16 be · - it would be ·· it ll'ould be taken t:p the 

17 where we were in the questions. 17 chain. I wouldn't · · I wouldn It · · I don I t have 
18 Yes. Follo~ing this ew.ail chain on 18 the authority as · · as the building supervisor, I 
19 Noverober 19th, 2013, did you follow up with 19 do not have the authorit1 to change the 
20 Ms. Eller or Ms. Pope-Bro\'D about the suggested 20 curriculu1t 
21 speakers? 21 I see that there is something going 
22 A. I cannot recall, the · · Ns . Eller, 22 on with ·· and this is Novel\Uler that there was, I 

Worldwide Reporting, LLP 

Case 8:18-cv-03649-TDC   Document 106-7   Filed 06/09/21   Page 39 of 81



J.R. 170

Sheet 39 

150 152 
1 guess, a discussion in regards to multiple 1 did spend tiw.e doing stuff other than what you 
2 speakers speaking on soAething that f4Y not be in 2 should have been doing, is not what was deer.ed a 
3 the curricclUl!I, and that is SOll\ething that would ] sound process. 
4 have ·· I would have gotten in trouble for not 4 Nov, it looks like because it Is 
5 approving · · for approving that, I ~ould have 5 a ·· in Ms. Eller 1s eyes, it's a social 
6 gocten in trouble · · because it Is noc in my 6 studies ·· social, that it may fit in social 
7 jurisdiction to approve the curriculum that the 7 studies. I'm not so sure that ·· I wouldn't have 
8 Count}' has said this is the curriculum. 8 had the abili cy to approve that. I don It kno~ 
9 Q. So frf question was: Is the high 9 that they ia:ould have had the ability to tell the 

10 school perfomance office the office that would 10 State that we want to do this. I don't know. I 
11 need to make that approval? 11 don 1t know. 
12 A. That ~ould be going up the chain. 12 l!R. }KlC-UL: ~ould no'.11 be a good 
13 I don't know who would ~ake the · · I don I t know 13 ciree to take a quick lunch break? Half an hour? 
14 if it Is the high school perfom.ance. I don It ·· 14 MR' Sffl: Sure' 
15 we're referencing in an earlier conversation 15 (Luncheon recess caken fror 12: 29 p. F. .. 

16 about the instructional directors and their roles 16 to 12 :58 p.m.) 
17 and responsibilities. I don 1c kno\f vhac the 17 BY MR. MOGUL : 

18 process is. I don It kno'.,\I if they would ask the 18 Q, !Ir. Adams, back on the record. I'd 
19 superincendent, the deputy superintendent. Or I 19 like co no~ turn to dealing with student 

20 don It know that the ·· I don' c know chat legal 20 discipline, which is a topic we have talked about 

21 11:ould say, 1ou can't change curriculum. I don't 21 a little bit be:ore, but I 1d like to discuss that 

22 know. 22 a little bit further . 

151 153 

1 I don't knoll'. 1 ~hat was your personal policy of 

2 Q. So you don It recall ever submitting 2 hmt you dealt with reports that you receired of 

3 to the high school perfom.ance off ice a request 3 student harassment of teachersi Ho~ '1/ocld you 

4 for a change in curricull!ffl? 4 address that? 
5 A. No. 5 A. The student code of conduct is · · 

6 Q, Okay. 6 is ·· is specific in its characterization. So I 

7 A. Ro. The scudem · · the students 7 did look at that prior to corning in, and sore of 

8 at the end of the sePJester or year, they get 8 che things that ·· so:Re of the accusations thac 

9 measured on the curriculum which has been 9 Ms. Eller classified as harassment ~.ay fall under 

10 approved by the Scace of Mary land. 10 disrespect. 
11 So one of the issues ~ith that is 11 There is something called sexual 
12 pacing, ~hich is covering all material. And 12 harassment in the · · in the student rights and 
13 gil:en due ·· due ·· given enough time to cover 13 responsibilities. It didn I t ·· they didn I t seem 

14 what is going to be measured and 'llhat they're 14 to align according co ·· I think under · · under 
15 going to be dee,ed successful or unsuccess:ul. 15 sexual harassment, I think there me three 
16 So co puc sor.etbing else that's not 16 classifications. And it didn It seem to align to 
17 in the curriculum as a part of the class and then 17 iihat ~Is . Eller referenced as sexual harasmnt. 
18 to be tt.eamed on that in the year and then be 18 Now, I don It have the document in 
19 held accountable co, •tell, their ability ·· their 19 front of ~.e. But, like I said, I thought scree of 
20 mastery of the subject as rr.easured by 20 che things were isted as disrespect. So if 
21 standardized tests wasn It what it should have 21 there was son:ething that · · I Im sorry. 
22 been; and then to be confronted with, Well, you 22 Ask the question. I know I 1ve 
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1 faded off the ansm. 1 either myself or someone investigated and took --
2 Q. T'nat Is okay. Yeah. I rould just 2 cook action. 
3 ask, going forward, if you'd just answer my J I would not create a document for 
4 question, because ·· 4 doCUl!.entation's sake based on sOffieone's sending 
5 A. Okay. I 11'1 sorry. 5 me a request for, Can you help !!-e? No fROre so 
6 Q. You' re going too far fast • • too 6 than I would if you stopped ~e in the hall, and 
1 far ahead. 1 said, Hey, speak to Johnny. 
8 So what was your personal policy of 8 Q. If you ref erred an instance of 
9 how you dealt with repom to you that there had 9 harasS11.ent to be dealt with to one of your 

10 been student harassw.ent of a teacher? 10 assistant principals, would that then get 
11 A. Reports went to the adrrinistrators, 11 doCIJl!.ented some way? Would the assistant 
12 or they mt to [e. Rarely did they go directly 12 principal docut:ent · · 
13 co me. There are times that they went direct!, 13 A. Can I ask for clarification? 
14 to me. And if they ~ent directly to me, it w~y 14 Q. Of course. 
15 be because of the absence of an assistant 15 A. You keep referring to harassment. 

16 principal , or there me instances \'here 16 And I 'l'I looking through the emails or looking 
17 Ms. Eller ~ent directly co ree. 17 through the referral · - whatever iie 're looking 
18 Ref er to the rights and 18 through. I don't see ·· I didn't see where a lot 

19 resp:msibilities and my within the code. 19 of that fell under harassment. I see what fell 

20 Q. Was your procedure for addressing 20 under disrespect, but you keep referring to it as 

21 reports of harassment of faculty, would it oe any 21 barassnent. 
22 different if that report included discriminatory 22 And it Is -- it was just when the 

155 157 

1 language or derogatory language? 1 referrals m.e, they ·· according to the rights 

2 A. Everything falls within the student 2 and responsibrities, it looks like it fell under 

J rights and responsibilities. So ~1bmver J disrespect, according to the rights and 

4 category it fell in, it gave you a category of an 4 responsibilities. But ~·e're continually 
) offense, the grade levels that was ·· ~ere ) ref erring to them as harassment. 
6 appropriate for a response, o.nd the response 6 And the box for harasS!!'.ent has 

1 options, whether they were Level, 1, U, 4, 5. 1 another set of parameters, which is different. 

8 Q. And liould you keep a record of 8 i just want to make notation of 

9 discipline responding to such report of 9 that. 
10 harassr:ent? 10 So the · · well, so you mentioned 

11 A. I wouldn It keep my own record, no. 11 whatever the offense was. What did you ask about 

12 Q. You lieren' t required to rraintain 12 the offense? 
B records of student discipline? B Q. Mi' question was: If you received a 

14 A. No. If you · · so if you reached 14 repon of harassment, and then ref erred that on 

15 out to me, it wasn 't a referral, which didn't 15 to an assistant principal to deal with, ~ould the 
16 mean that I wouldn't respond to your concerns, 16 assistant principal dom.ent how they addressed 
17 but it wasn't an official referral. It ~as 17 the situation? 
18 a ·· you know, in order for it to be docUJr.ented, 18 A. I received a report. I would have 
19 that process has to be started; that referral 19 received it orally or sent email. The response 
20 process has to be started. 20 ti:ould not ·· a report on an offense. Their 
21 Bet if you reached out to me and 21 response to the offense would not have gone on 
22 said, whatever the ·· I would fll.ake sure that 22 official documentation. That has to be initiated 
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1 by the teacher. 1 use during your time as principal? 
2 I · · if I resolved it or addressed 2 A. Yes. 
3 it and if it 1tas sent co me via mil, I would 3 Q. ocould you ever fill out this fom. 
4 have sent it back via eJ11ail. If it m given to 4 yoursem 
5 me verbally ·· either mbally or email. 5 A. I do not recall filling it out 
6 Q. I'd like to return to sorr.ething you 6 myself. 
7 me saying about the di st inction between 7 Q, OCould those under your supervision 
8 harasS1t1ent and disrespect just so I understand 8 fill out this form, when appropriate? 
9 how you use the tern. in your duties as principal. 9 A. Yeah, the bullying, harassment, 

10 If sow.eone had made corrrnents about 10 yes. Yes. 
11 someone's religion, ~ould you count ·· negative, 11 Q. ocould those under your supervision 
12 obviously, about sow.eone's religion, would that 12 fill this out, as far as you know, cooplml11 
13 be something that ~ould be harasS!!.enc or 13 These foms. 
14 disrespecU How would you categorize that? 14 A. To the best of their · · to the best 
15 A. If you show F..e · · if you access the 15 of their abilitr. 
16 student rights and responsibilities, it Is clear. 16 Q. And specifically, would those under 
17 I'm not going to interpret it off the top of my 17 your supervision fill out question 5, when 
18 head, just like as a · · as a building supervisor, 18 appropriate? It's on the first page. 
19 when an offense took place, it wasn't up for 19 A. So I have · · okay. 
20 me ·· it wasn ' c up to me to classify what that 20 Are we looking at investigation or 
21 was offense was. It \ias spelled out in the 21 reporcing form? The investigation fom.? 
22 student rights and responsibilities. 22 Q. Sorry. This is just the second 

159 161 
1 That's whac · · the point I'm · · it 1 page of this . 
2 was spelled out. So it was not left up for 2 A. 1Why did the harassment, 
3 interpretation. It ,•as just: This is che 3 intiwidation or bullying occur?n 
4 offense. This is ~hat so-and-so did or is 4 Q. Yes . 
5 accused of doing. This is where ic falls under. 5 A. Okay. 
6 A.rid this is ·· under this category, those are the 6 Q. Kould those under your supervision 
7 options for addressing it. 7 fill out that question when it was appropriate? 
8 That looks like it right there. 8 A. If they're filling it out, yeah. 
9 Q. Yeah, I 1t:as wondering if we had it. 9 Q. And you 1 11 see on · · on the · · on 
10 I f.ight ask you questions about 10 che second full page, so really the third page of 
11 that later. I just ,·anted to make sure ll'e had 11 this docurr.enc, there 's a place to put in che name 
12 

,. 12 of victims, alleged victims. Wodd that be lC. 
13 MR. MO:;UL: Pulling up -.ihat will be 13 filled out by those under your s~pervision? 
14 Exhibit 7. 14 A. Yes. 
15 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 7 was marked for 15 Q. I'm sorry. That question also 
16 identification.) 16 appears on the very first page of the fom .. 
17 BY MR. MOGUL: 17 Would that also be filled out by those t:nder your 
18 Q. Mr. Adm, have you seen this form 18 supervision? 
19 before? 19 A. Can you pull out also the · · the 
20 A. Yes. Bullying, harassmt, form, 20 form on the student rights and responsibilities? 
21 \'eS. 21 Because I'm·· I'm·· I'm not ·· 11

11. not totally 
22 Q. Is this something that you t1ould 22 clear that the harassment for the bullying, 
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1 harassment falls in line 111ith the ·· wich the 1 So is there a form that you would 
2 staff rr.ember for this or if this is for students. 2 use to docurr.ent students-on-staff harassment , 
) So it says 1nm of student J bullying I disrespect? 
4 victims,• •name of witnesses1 ° •name of alleged 4 A. I think you have the documentation 
5 off enders. 1 5 wich che student rights and responsibilities. If 
6 It doesn It say 'name of srndents' 6 you pull it out, I can show you exactly what it 
7 or •staff members' under •vied~ .. 1 It says •name 7 falls under. 
8 of student vicci~.s. 1 8 Q, There 's a different form. 
9 So I w.ay be under the impress ion 9 A. No, I think · · I think if you show 

10 that concerns such as colllll\unication, comnents, 10 me the student rights and responsibilities, and i 
11 inappropriate corrlllents may not fall under this 11 chink ic 1s clear in regards to if a student says, 
12 documentation. 12 i.e. , to a staff member where it falls under · · I 
u I think the staff · · I think the B think it falls under disrespect. 
14 students ·· student rights and responsibilities 14 Q, Thank you. I understand that. 
15 does address that. So if · · if I, Student A, 15 I'm asking about the forn. that 's 
16 addressed Student B •• Student B, Nr. Shanna, 16 used co docuir.ent that . Or is there a fom. that 
17 Student B, I think the student rights and 17 would be used to docmuent that? 
18 responsibilities addressed that I am capable of 18 A. That ,,ould be disrespect, so that 
19 harassing, bullying, intimidating. 19 l(Ouldn I c be a · · that \\'Ould be a PS· 74, ~bich is 
20 Bd if I, Student A, address 20 a referral, which would be under all the other ·· 
21 Teacher Shama, I think it falls under disrespect 21 but it wouldn I t be a separate document that says 
22 and subordination. I could be ~'l'.ong. But I'm 22 student's harassment of an adult. I could be 

163 165 

1 looking at the •name of student victims. 1 It 1 ~irong. But the form is right there, so I can 
2 just doesn't say •name of victi~.s. 1 It doesn't 2 clarify if you let me see it. 
3 say 1name of stat f or student. 1 3 Q, So you believe that there Is a fonn 
4 I think it may be ·· this document 4 within this ·· this, the guidebook, that would 
5 may be directed to~ards students. 5 cover this situation? 
6 Q, Okay. So do you mall this form 6 A, I believe that U.ijder the student 
1 ever being used for an incident where the alleged 7 rights and responsibilities ·· and you1re right 
8 victim was not a student? 8 there. 
9 A. I can1t say that I do. And I can't 9 Under the student rights and 

10 say that there1s anything that 1110uld allude to 10 responsibilities, allegations against a mdent 
11 that. And I think that if you pull out the 11 to a staff 11ember, all under a category, which is 
12 student rights and responsibilities, you'll see 12 disrespect. 
B under harassment or sexual harasSl\'.ent under 13 Q, Thank you. Yes, I understand that. 
14 bullying, rou'll see where it falls under. And 14 I was just trying to figure out if there was also 
15 then ,.here · · in disrespect when it 's addressing 15 a different form that is used · · 
16 an adult, it falls under disrespect. 16 A. No, no. 
17 Now, if it 1s staff to staff, I 17 Q, Let me just finish the question so 
18 don't think it ·· this is · · is the form that is 18 it 1s clear. 
19 appropriate either. I think that 1s jusc a 19 A. I'm sorry. I'lll sorry. I'm sorry. 
20 documentation. I could be ~rang. 20 Q, is there a different form that Is 
21 Q, That anticipated, I think, my next 21 used for harassment, disrespect, of a studenc co 
22 question. 22 a teacher? 
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1 A. Disrespect frorr. a student to a 1 specific individual or group with the intent of 
2 teacher is to be reported on a PS· 7~ referral 2 annoying, ridiculing, demeaning, tomming, 
3 document. 3 inciITidating or otherwise causing fear in another 
4 I believe if you show rr.e chat, I 4 person (sexual orientation, racial, religious) .1 

5 can point that out. I don I t know chat under 5 Did I read that correctly, 
6 their definition of harassing, harassment, 6 ~Ir. Adams? 
7 bullying, inti~.idation, cyberbullying, that it 7 A. Yes. Yes . 
8 falls under anything ocher than disrespect. 8 Q. I don't see -· do you see in that 
9 Q. So an1 negative or derC9atory 9 definition that the definition of harassment and 

10 comment a st~dent made to a teacher would be 10 intirr.idation is limited to student-on-student 
11 categorized as disrespect, not harassment? 11 activity? 
u A. So let P..e back up. 12 A. Give me a minute. 
13 If there 's an infraction and it's 13 Q. Oka)'. 
14 brought to my attention, I 1111 going to pull out 14 A. Because you I re looking at 
15 that document and go according to chat document. 15 definition. Now I'm trying to find it in this. 
16 so I Im asking that if you want ~.e to make that 16 Page 27; right? 
17 interpretation, give re that docuw.m, and I 111 17 Q. Yes. 
18 look at it and I 111 show you ·· I 111 say what ·· 18 A. Yes. 
19 HR. SHARMA: And I have ic online 19 So I1m sorry. Can you state your 
20 if that wodd assist your question. 20 question again. 
21 MR. ~UL: We have it here, so 21 Q. Sure. 
22 that way we can all just have the sm copy. 22 A. I see where we saw the definition 
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1 THE w1mss: But I would not have 1 of 'harassment. 1 Okay. 
2 made that assessr..ent without the document, even 2 Q. Does that definition of 
3 as its principal, never mind four years later or 3 'harassment I limit the harassment to just actions 
4 two years later. 4 directed to students as opposed to other e.eF.bers 
5 MR. ~UL: This will be marked as 5 of the school coromunity: 
6 Exhibit 8. 6 MR. SHARMA: Objection; the 
7 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 8 was marked for 1 docurr.enc speaks for itself. 
8 identification.) 8 You can answer. 
9 MR. MOC-UL: Let record reflect that 9 THE WITNESS: Under the responses 

10 we I ve roarked as Exhibit 8 the Student Rights & 10 of student rights and responsibility, I see 
11 Responsibilities liandbook. This is the 2014/2015 11 harass~.ent listed in two areas. I see it under 
12 version. Note that. 12 bullying. 
13 BY MR. MOGUL: 13 BY MR. NOGUL : 
14 Q. So, Mr. Adams, if you turn to · · 14 Q. Can you direct us to a page, 
15 it's Page 27 of this document. There's also a 15 please. 
16 marking PGCPS· 128, depending on \1hich page number 16 A. Page 15. 

17 you choose to look at. 17 i see it under 'disrespect," 
18 There Is a glossary here that I do 18 Page 16. 
19 see a definition for harassment and intimidation. 19 ~.nd I see it under 'sexual 
20 1111 just read it out loud. 20 misconduct, 1 Page 17. 
21 It says, 'An incidenc or a series 21 In each of the situations it gives 
22 of actions, statements or behaviors directed at a 22 a ·· a response level based on the grade level of 
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1 a:hat an administrator should do. 1 MR. me-UL: I'd like to DO'( pull 
2 'l\'o, three and four ·· response 2 out what we hm as Tab 150. Exhibit 9. 
3 Levels 2, 3 and 4 are · · and I apologize for not 3 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 9 was marked for 
4 kno,ing this · · response Levels 2, 3 ano 4 -- 4 identification.) 
5 '1:ell, they I re listed en Page H. But that these 5 BY MR . NOGUL : 
6 are the response levels that an administrator has 6 Q. Mr. Adams, please just revie'A' this 
7 the ability to take, based on the variables 7 email chain from December 2013. Let me know 
8 involved in the situation. 8 ~hen you 're finished. 
9 Q. Mr. Adall:s, if there was a report of 9 A. Okay. 

10 a staff mefflber harassing or bullykg another 10 Mtness reviews doCU1P.ent. ) 
11 staff rrember, how ~ould that be docureented? 11 Yes, sir. 
12 MR. SHARMA: You said, staff 12 Q. Mr. Adarr.s, does revie'(ing this 

13 member, on another staff ~.ember? 13 email chain refresh your recollection about the 
14 BY MR. MCGlJL: 14 w.eeting referred to by you and Ms. Kller in 
15 Q. Uh-huh. 15 October 2013? 
16 A. I 1!\: sorry. Ask tbe question again, 16 A. No. 
17 please. 17 Q. Does reviewing this email refresh 
a Q. Yes. If there was a report of a 18 your recollection about the conversation had 
19 staff rcember harassing, or bullying another staff 19 bemen you and Ms. E izabeth Davis? 

20 member, how would that be docwr.ented? 20 A. No. 
21 A. Okay. That ~'Ould be an 21 Q. ;:e rentioned Ms. Elizabeth Davis 

22 investigation. An investigation would concern ·· 22 before. I believe you couldn It reme~ber her 

171 113 

1 ,ould involve both ad!dnistration and/or 1 position. 
2 security. 2 Does th:s refresh rour recollection 

3 Securities investigation would · · 3 of -rhat position she had? 
4 ~r. Milliner, Kr. · · the other h:o that me 4 A. I nean, I am reading •co11'pliance 

5 mentioned ·· theirs has police authority. 5 officer.' But -· I ·· I don I t · · if she walked 

6 Their documentation on that side, 6 through this door, I i'Duld not know who that ~as. 

1 they 'tould get statefflents. I don 't know their 7 Q. Ms. Davis says in her email · · it Is 

8 process for getting the ·· gathering all the 8 the December 18th,12:16 p.m. email. 

9 information. 9 A. Okay. 
10 lll!t it 1s ·· it 's ·· whatever tools 10 Q. She says in that email, 'I have 

11 the\i have, whatever tools they have, .,;hether 11 been in contact ~ith Mr. AdaMs and Dr. Powell, 

12 they're "witness smeF.ents, ca,r,eras, 'ihatever, 12 and we agree that the issues to date are best 

13 they i,;ould get all the infomation, and see if 13 handled as they occur with the specific 

14 there was · · and that infom.ation would be shared 14 individuals inl'olved. 1 

15 with the a~lnistmive mm. 15 Do you remember agreeing with that 
16 Staff to staff, that 's sa11.etbing 16 position at the time? 

17 that ~ould go up the chain and corrmunicate with 17 A. No. I itean, I ·· no. I !€an, 
18 the ·· with the instructional director, 18 that's · · no. So I Im reading here that she's 
19 And I don't know · · I 1tendoned 19 sajiing in a · · correct me · · 'issues to date are 
20 earlier I don It know who they liould corr.municate 20 best handled as they occur with the specific 
21 with in regards to the possible next steps. 21 individuals inl'olved. ' 
22 Okay. Yes. 22 ~.nd I'm assul!ling that's why I ·· on 
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1 :he llad, on page ·· en I}' response on Friday, l is t);ar the PS· 7~, or is that SOlething else? 
2 Decer~r 13th, October 14th, the first four 2 A. 'i'bac would be a stater:ent. That 
3 students, whatever took 3 \'Ould be a mte].ent from security. 
4 place ttere. October 23rd, !111 4 If she's ·· if she is saying ·· if 
5 assc,ing she's saying 'occur 1,ith che specific 5 t:s. Bller ·· if 1'1r. G ·· if I a! direct inc 

" 
6 individuals im·olved.' In other 110rds, ,,hen a 6 ~ls. mer to give him a stmirent, that \'Odd be 
7 situation happens, we deal ·· i'e address that 7 a security mterumt. That would be Mr. ·· ~lr. G 
8 sitcatioi 8 .ould be · · be ooes !IOt have the jurisdicdoo to 

Q. Sitticg here today, you ooJ I t ha\'e 9 respcrd to referrals. 
10 a reason co chink that you had a difterent 10 Q, Okay, 
11 • • ,. I d ? 11 A. Do we have a copy of the statement? op1n1on rrorn Ms. Dam, o you. 
12 NR. SW)!A: Objection. u Q. : dol't believe I do, at least not 
B Yo'J can a.nS\ier. 13 here cooay. 
14 THE WITiiESS: I can only say what Is H A. So he 11o!!ldn' t respond to 
15 here. I can I t say -- I honest! y can I t te 11 :'OU 15 referrals. he rould ·· he \'Ouldn' t give her a 
lE men years ago llllless it ~as · · 1f blank Eheet of paper, :·ou kr.0:1, to get · · be 
17 HR. MOOJL: Let 's 11ove on to 17 would i:eed a statement, which is · · ii' s a 
18 Tab 30, 1,hich will be Exhibit 10. 18 specific security document. I don't kno,. the ·· 
19 !Wherei.~n, Exhibit No. 10 'las mked 19 ~hat it Is called. 
20 for identification. ) 20 Okay, ~aybe it's called semity 
21 BY i. MOGUL: 21 statement, I don't knO'i. 
22 Q. Hr. Adaes, just please revie11 this 22 Q. I 'JDderstand that you don It recall 

175 l7i 
1 enail chain from March 2015 and let 1r.e know 1then 1 chis incident spec:fically. But in nom.al course 
2 you' re done, please. 2 of events );hen ~lr. G finished an investigation 
3 A. March 16rb? 3 like this, would he be responsible for 
4 Q. I ~as Just saying the general email 4 disciplining those students or would that be · · 
5 chain f ro1t March 2015, if you could just review s l No, he doesn't have disciplinary ·· 
6 :he whole chain. 6 he has police -- te has charging auttority. In 
7 A. Oh, okay. I11 sorry. I 111 sorry. 7 the mr.t of a crime, he has charging acttority. 
8 I'm ·· okay. 8 That \'CUld probably ·· more ·· [.Ost likely be 
9 (Witness revie~s document. l 9 discussed. I don It recall whether they have to 

10 Okai·. C-0 ahead. 10 disc-Jss it vith atiinistratioo. 
11 Q. Does chis e111ail chain refresh your 11 Q. :n the eVent of sarething er.at Is 
12 recollection about any of the part icular 12 not a cri«.e, like here, what ~ould ·· r,,10uld •1r . G 
13 incidents here? 13 refer the situation to an assistant principal for 
14 A. No. H disciplinel Just :n the nom3l cocrse. 
15 Q. ~ I correct in notir.g tht this 15 A. If you give Mr. G ·· he's 
16 email chain sbo~s tbat l'tr. G identified the 16 identified the students. Can you give hit a 
17 studel:ts in\'olved in the incident and sought a 17 stateitent regard:ng the incide~t? The process 
18 statemt fr!:! Ks. Eller? 18 frat there ~ould be, let's asscr.e ·· \'€ don't 
19 A. You' re correct that Nr. G 19 have verification. ~Jt the process would be to 
20 identified the stcdents, and I asked Ns. El.er 20 give Mr. G a statement. Mr. G wuld identify 
21 for a state!' .. m regarding the incident. 21 those · · says he's identified those children. 
22 Q. Okaj·. ~..nd i.odd that statemt ·· 22 He wold, in :urn, COO!Cnicace tt,at 
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1 information to the grade-level adtdnistrator in 1 FJ!Jibit 11, 1.1hich is Tab 44. 
2 charge of those children, whether it Is one or 2 A. Yes. 
J multiple. Then they i.'OUld take mion based on 3 lWhmupon, Exhibit No. 11 was r.arked 
4 his · · based on the infomation that they have at 4 for identification. I 
5 their disposal. They ll'ould also · · he would 5 BY MR. NOGUL: 

6 probably take stamenrs fro~ thew. Sor.eone 6 Q, Have you had a chance to rerie'4 
7 ~ould take state~.encs from the students: Yes, I 7 this mil? 
8 did this; DO, I didn't do that. 8 A. Yes, I read it, yes. 
9 And then an adldnistmion or 9 I have this letter. 

10 administration ·· set.ebody froo administration 10 Q, •
1m sorry. 

11 would take action based on that. 11 So, Mr. Adams, when you finish 
12 Bt!t a ref eml would not be 12 mie1dng this email chain froo. June 2015, please 
13 completed because that has to initiate with ·· 13 let ~.e know. 
14 and I understand why Ns. Eller tiouldn I t have put 14 A. !Witness reviews doCU111ent. ) 
15 this on ·· she has no idea who this is, it sounds 15 Yes. 
16 like. 16 Q. Do you recall this incident that is 

17 Bet then that i.'Ould be 17 being reported by ~s. Eller in these e~ails? 
18 communicated ·· an action ~ould be taken. 18 A. No. 
19 Q. And ~ol!ld that action that Is then 19 (14bereupon, ~ibit Yo. 12 was r.arked 
20 taken be doccmented somehoi.c? 20 for identification.) 
21 A. DoCl!H\ented, there ~1ould be so::ie · · 21 BY MR. NOGIIL: 

22 there should be something. That soreething may 22 Q. oce I re now ~arking as Exhibit 12 . 

179 181 

1 not go to · · may not go beyond a verbal 1 A. Yes, sir. 
2 corr111unication, and I'll give you an example. 2 Q. Mr. Adams, is this a continuation 

3 'I\o swdents fight in the hall. 3 of the email chain from the exhibit we just 

4 Security does an investigation. Fighting, they 4 looked at previously? 

5 could be scspended. Fighting in your classroom, 5 A. Exhibit 11? 

6 they could be st:spended. 6 Q. Yes. 
7 There -.ould not have necessarily 7 A. Yes. 
8 been a referral necessary if sotteone was ·· 8 Q. If you look midway in this e~.ail 

9 someone is going co intervene. Somebody is going 9 chain, there's one dated 11:28 u i. on 
10 to intervene to stop the fight. There would not 10 June 22nd. 
11 necessarilr be a referral. Then there would not 11 Ms. Eller says, 'Mr. Ada~s, 

12 necessarily be a written dnentadon chat said, 12 Mr. Kendrick has personal issues with re, and I 

13 We suspended those students. 13 do not believe he will take this ratter 

14 Now, those students would get 14 seriously. Ns. Eller.' 
15 suspended. So they gee suspended. There Kould 15 Do you recaL, sitting here today, 
16 be documentation ·· there \'OUld be COI\IJT.unication 16 what Ns. Eller was referring to in that e~.ail? 

17 \'ith their teachers that via, '1:hen they return 17 A. Do you have anything that could 
18 from suspension, that Student A, Student B, 18 pr001pt my merr.ory? 
19 excused absence for a set afflOunt of days based on 19 Q. Unfortunate! y, this is what I hm. 
20 suspension. It wouldn't necessarily say the ·· 20 A. Did Ms. Eller em say what she 
21 it i'ouldn' t say the reason for the suspension. 21 thought the personal issues were with 
22 MR. D: Okay. Let's turn to 22 ~lr. Kendrick, to you ·· I r..ean, I'm looking at 

Worldwide Reporting, LLP 

Case 8:18-cv-03649-TDC   Document 106-7   Filed 06/09/21   Page 47 of 81



J.R. 178

Sheet 47 
182 184 

1 this, and it says he 'has personal issues with 1 chain, Ms. Eller writes to you, 'Yesterday, Mr. G 
2 me. 1 And · · and · · 2 identified the girl and told me he 111ould be 
J Q, l 1111. just asking if you recall. 3 corning back to take my statement. ' 
4 A. No. And l know l have two -· well, 4 And you respond in the e111ail above 
5 yeah, in a given ciw.e period, you hare two 5 that, 'Please see Mr. Thompson regarding the 
6 investigative counsels . 6 investigation. 1 

7 To do an investigation and ·· if 7 Did l read those t1110 quotes 
8 you · · if yoi:, the teacher, believe that the 8 correctly? 
9 investigation is going to be tainted based on 9 A. So what 11

111 going to assume is that 
10 \Mever ·· you could have dated before or 10 that child was identified as a 9th-grade 
11 whatever it was · · l 1!'!. not going to w.ake it more 11 student. Mr. Thompson, he Is the administrator in 
12 complex than it has to be. 12 charge of 9th grade. So, therefore, I'm going 
B So if you' re saying he 1has issues 13 co delegate it to Mr. Thompson, because I 1111 •• 

14 with me, 1 and 11111 not getting into ·· and I'm 14 I'm · · at this point I'm going to assi:r.e 
15 not -· I'm certainl:r not saying that Mr. Kendrick 15 Mr, Thompson is going co take action; you can 
16 and Ms. Eller dated. I'm just saying that the 16 speak to Mr. Thompson in regards to this 
17 dynamics of individuals within the building that 17 situation, and we shouldn It have any issues from 
18 aren't shared with w.e •· because this is just "he 18 here. 
19 has issues with 111.e' ·· if you prefer Mr. G, then 19 OChat Mr. G probably did was looked 
20 I don It have a probleP. with Mr. G. 20 at it, showed Mr, Thompson on the ·· if he had 
21 That way, you won't think the 21 camera access, showed ~lr. Thornas what he sa•~ 1 and 
22 investigation was comprised by Ahe has personal 22 said -- and they said, Oh, this is -· this is 

183 185 

1 issues, and I don't believe he will take this 1 Jane Doe. 
2 matter serioi:sly. 1 So if you think that that's 2 MR. MOGUL: ~e11l now identify two 
j the case, that 's not a big deal to say. 3 exhibits. It will be B and H. 

4 Q. Okay. 4 (Wbereupon, Exhibit No. 13 and 
5 A. Okay. ~ow, if you said, 0 He has 5 Exhibit No. 14 \\ere niarked for 
6 issues with me based on and such-and-such, 1 and 6 identification.) 
7 you concern yourself with the fact that he's 7 BY MR. MOGUL: 
8 affecting my abilit'! to whatever ·· w.y ability to 8 Q, Hr. Adams, if yoi: would please 
9 do my job, rey rights as a huw.an being, whatever 9 review these t1110 email chains fro\11. Dember 2015 

10 it is, then that 's another issue. 10 and let me know lihen you' re done. 
11 Bd if you think ·· and notice, I 11 A. Okay. 
12 didn It say, What are the issues? Yes. Okay. If 12 Q, Thanks. 
13 you think Mr. Kendrick is not going to support B A. (Witness reviews document. ) 
14 you and Mr. G will do a better job, then the best 14 Yes, sir. 
15 way to get to the botto\11 of this is to have Mr. G 15 Q. Am I correct that this er.ail chain 
16 do it ·· no. 16 describes a report from M6. Eller regarding a 

17 The best way to remove any doubt 17 student using offensive language and the ~.ale 
18 that the investigation has not been · · has not 18 pronoun to refer to her? 
19 been -- has been taken seriously is to give the 19 A. Not a report; an el!IJil. 
20 person that you -- you and I both agree that he Is 20 Q. Otherwise, am I correct in 
21 quite capable of doing the job. 21 describing this1 
22 Q. Towards the top in this email 22 A. I 1m sorry. 
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1 MR. SHARMA: Objection. I think 1 MR. SHARM: Objection as to the 
2 the document speaks for itself and describes 2 form of the question. 
3 itself. ] You may ans.er. 
4 But you can answer if you kno~ ~hat 4 THE WITNESS: I thought .. I 
5 he Is asking. 5 thought \'e referenced ·· I forgot her name --
6 THE WITNESS: Can you ask it again, 6 BY NR. NOGUL : 
7 because you said 'report• and I stopped there. 7 Q. Are you talking about Ms. Davis? 
8 BY MR. MOOUL: 8 A. Yes. I thought 1-e referenced chat 
9 Q. Does chis email reflecc Ns. Eller 9 she said everything she dealt iiith on a 

10 telling you about an incident \'here a scudent 10 case-by-case basis. 
11 used offensive language and the ~.ale pronoun to 11 Q. Absolutely. But soire tiire has 
12 ref er to her? 12 passed between that email and then this is --
13 MR. SHMJIA: Saw.e objection. lJ chis latest thing :s December 2015. The latest 
14 TliE WITNESS: Do you 'l.'ant me to 14 exhibit 1te looked at was froi, Deceftlller 2015. So 
15 read .:hat it says? l 'ffl not going to interpret 15 I'm just ~ondering if this continued to be your 
16 it. 16 position. 
17 It says · - I mean, says [reading! : 17 A. So the -- I -- ask the question 
18 1:s. mer said at approxi!ately 12: OS, walking 18 again, I 11t sorry. I'm lost :n that. 
19 down -- they kept ~alking from the stairwar. I 19 Q. Sure. Following this December 2015 
20 told them they ~ere going the \'Iong way; ther 20 incident reported in these ertails, was it your 
21 need to go d0i11 the staimy to the cafeteria. 21 position that disrespect to Ms. Eller should 

22 They ignored me and kept italking. As they iialked 22 continue to be addressed on a case-by-case basis? 

187 189 

1 away, one said to the other, 1He ugly as shit.• 1 llR. SHARMA: Objection. 

2 They round the corner and continued on che ~th 2 You can ansm. 
3 wing. ] THE WITNESS: So in the process of 

4 So your question is? 4 chis going on, 1i:e are speaking to the students in 
r 
) BY MR. MOOUL: 5 regards at grade-level assembly. And we 're ·· .:e 

6 Q. That 's fine. You've read the 6 do -- we' re ·· ,:e speak t0 them twice a year, 
7 eriail. 7 each grade level. Okar? 
8 A. Okay. 8 So on the prev :ous report, you saw 

9 Q. Do you recall this incident? 9 chat, 111hen Ms. Eller informed me that I ·· that 

10 A. Ro. 10 sol'-ething had not taken place at · - well, 
11 Q. The second part of this e111.ail 11 S\lll'lllarized one point, and I don't know ·· I don't 
12 chain, which is on Tab ·· Exhibit H, reflects 12 have che counter to that. I don't have the PPW' s 
13 that "OU asked Mr. G to give you the students 1 13 response, too, so I don I t kno~ if -· if ic Is the 

14 names. 14 iihole story. 
15 Do you know why you did that? 15 And I know everyone bas their 
16 A. I ~'OUld find the naw.es co see who 16 perspective. Okay? So I don't know that it 's 

17 the grade- level adfflinistrator is. 17 the whole story. If it wasn 1c -- if it is the 
18 Q. So after this incident in 18 \(hole story, then on l'.l}' position, I would have 
19 Decerober 2015 and the prior incidents 'tie 1ve seen 19 had to do sorr,ething to -- to make a1ends for 
20 in these emails of disrespect to Ns. Eller, was 20 someone 'ilho didn't do their job. 
21 it your position chat these incidents should be 21 I don't have in there the response 
22 addressed on a case-by-case basis? 22 chat the grade level -- I think she's 11th 
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1 grade ·· the grade-level administrator, ~hoever 1 Better yet, Mr. G ~ould say that to 
2 was supposed to cover chat. That may have been a 2 che grade-level administrator: Here is a result 
3 different account of whac was taking place . 3 of my investigation, so you can take that 
4 ~ow, in regards to some of these 4 information and move forward with it . 
5 issues, 11e1re ·· we're ·· we' re ·· ~e are 5 Q, And would Mr. G or one of the other 
6 investigating, buc I don It see the ·· an 6 investigators make that synopsis report in an 
1 investigator's report chat says this, in fact, 1 email or sorr.e other way~ 
8 did take place. I'~. not saying it didn't take 8 A, No. They wouldn It need to 
9 place. When you say these issues, I'm not saying 9 colffllunicate that to me. They ~ouldn't need co 

10 they didn't. I'~. just hearing the one 10 give chat to me . They would just need to make 
11 ' ' 11 che -- make the -- ther would need to conduce che perspecme. 
12 And I 111 say that, because there is 12 invesdgation so that we could have the best set 
13 a statement that later on, I guess we 111 get to 13 of infomation possible to move fomrd. 
14 where 1~s . Eller says one of the teachers is not 14 Q, But you mentioned that they would 
15 qualit:ed to teach AP, and that 's just -- that 15 provide a synopsis to someone. It mighc be co 
16 was just her perspective, and the data points to 16 you. It rr:ight be the assistant principal. I1

w. 

17 something different. 17 just crying to find out how that synopsis is 
18 Okay? So tl(O levels. 18 given. Is that given in an email? 
19 First of all, there are things 19 A, No, it wouldn't be given in an 
20 taking place in regards co grade- level asseniblies 20 email. 
21 and people · · chings of chat nature. 21 Q, Ho~ would it be given? 
22 Second! y, I can't · · I don 't see 22 A. The security people might say, I 

191 193 

1 the investigation, so I don 't know lihat ·· who ·· 1 looked at the camera. I couldn't come to a 
2 what came of it . I'm only taking Ms. ·· lie're 2 conclusion. 
3 only taking Ms. Eller Is perspective. I can't say 3 Or, yeah, it looks obvious he did. 
4 that that Is ·· I have a reason to doubt these, 4 Or I didn't see, anybody I could identify. I 
5 but I can It say that I don It have a second side 5 mean, whatever those options were, 
6 that says maybe there is a different perspective. 6 And the security person would 
1 BY MR. MOGUL: 1 probably just say that to me or whoever. 
8 Q, I wanced to follow up on something 8 Q, And by •say that, 1 you mean would 
9 you just mdoned, the fact that you don I t have 9 verbally · -

10 the investigative report here, 10 A. ocould verbally say that. Verbally 
11 A. Yes. 11 say thac. So that · · to lihoever so that chey 
12 Q, I suppose chat would have been 12 could have confirmation on lihere do we go from 
13 something either written by Mr. G or the 13 here. 
14 assistant principal? 14 MR. MOGUL: Exhibit 15, 

15 A. Investigative report is a security 15 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 15 was 11:arked 
16 report. I wouldn't keep the security report. 16 for identification.) 

17 I'd get a synopsis of it. 17 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 
18 Q, Who ~ould keep it? 18 BY NR. NOGUL: 
19 A. Security services. I would get a 19 Q, Do you recall this incident? 
20 synopsis. Mr. G ~ould say ·· I'll give you an 20 A. No, 
21 example. Mr. G would say I liere Is what I -- 21 Q, I 1mcurious: in this email chain, 
22 Here's the results of my investigation. 22 you asked Sergeant Kaithe to investigate chis 
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1 particular situation. Is there a reason why it 
2 11iould have been Sergeant Waitte1 I jusc hadn't 
1 seen Sergeant Waithe show up in other e,.ails that 
4 you had ~ritten. 
5 A. Maybe Mr. G ll'aS absent. 
6 Q. Okay. 
1 A. I can't ·· I can't tell you. Maybe 
8 Mr. G was working on smething else. I don It 
9 know. 

10 I can tell you •• I don't know. I 
11 don't knot They' re both qualified. 
12 MR. M(X;UL: Okay. This is Exhibit 
U 16. 
14 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 16 was rr.arked 
15 for identif icaticn.) 
16 Th'E WITNESS: Ob, ~lr. G had a heart 
11 attack at one point . F.e ~ent out for a ochile, I 
18 don It know what the ti~line is, but it very Kell 
19 may have been · · chat may be an option. 
20 BY MR. MCGUI,: 
21 Q. So no·~ l 11\ showing you Exhibit 16, 
22 which is an email chain froo April inta May 2016. 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

If you could just revie\l that and let tr.e know 
\ihen you' re done. 

A. r.an -- let ~ ask you question. 
Can I just respond to my ~ife with a text, or do 
I have to ~ait? 

NR. ~llL: Let Is take a 
five-minute break. 

MR. SHARMA: Thank you. Ne 1 11 go 
off the record. 

(Off the record, 2: 08 pJ:.) 
(Back on the record, 2:12 p.11,) 

BY MR. m: 
Q. Mr . AdaF..s, you have Exhibit 16 in 

front of you. Have you bad a chance to revie~ 
it? 

194 
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1 in white and on her cell phone 
2 I did not quite catch it) referred to 11:e as 1he1 

1 i~ice. I corrected her, to which she replied, 
4 1 Sorry I but you know . . . 1 The students ~alked 
5 down the hallway to my right, and I could hear 
6 the other students arguing with her, saying, 
7 1 I c Is a lady, 1 and her disagreeing 1ti th that. • 
8 Did I read that correctly? 
9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. So follo~ing this email chain in 
11 April and May 2016, did you still believe ·· or 
12 did you believe th.at the disrespect that 
13 Ms. Eller 1m receiving should be addressed on a 
14 case-by-case basis? 
15 IIR. SHARMA: Objection. 
16 You can answer. 
17 '!'HR WITNESS: When you address 
18 something in grade-level asselliblies, it Is no 
19 longer being addressed on a case-by-case basis. 
20 Okay? 
21 In regards to the students, the 
22 punitive pm of whatever has to be addressed by 

1 case by case. Mow I I cannot say grade-level 
2 asserrblies, things of that nature; and I don't 
3 kno't! that that Is -- if you classify that as not 
~ addressing being respectful or disrespectful; I 
s don 1t know these students, the nam. 
6 I'd be interested in seeing if 
7 their ·· their tenure at Friendly. So ·· I would 
8 just be curious on -- so if• is a neli 
9 student -- I Im oot saying she is or isn I t --

10 \IOuld she have been subjected to whatever lie put 
11 in place over the years or is that ne~: I don It 
12 kno'f. 
13 (\!hereupon, Exhibit &o. 17 was ~arked 
H for identification. l 
15 BY MR. MOGUL: 

10 
11 
lt 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

A. Yes. 16 Q. Could we no1i1 90 to ·• this is 
Q. O:> you recall the incident that 11 Exhibit 17. Please review this ere.ail chain frOfll 

•is. Eller is reporting here? 18 Na, 2016 and let me know ~·hen y0l!1ve finished. 
A. I don't. 19 A. H~ttness reviews document. ) 
Q. And if you don 1t nlnd, I 1111 just 20 Go ahead. 

going to read this oot loud into the record. 21 Q. Do you recall receiving this email? 
Ms. Eller 'IIIites to you, 0The girl 22 It looks like it \\'as fomrded to you by 
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1 ~r. Tho[pson. 1 So I'm · · I'm saying ~e address 
2 A. I don't. I don't. 2 it ·· it doesn't mean I'm saying we eradicate it 
3 Q. Kr . AdaP.1.s, o,er the last few 3 because 'fe haven It eradicated anything on here. 
4 minutes, you've referenced a few times chat )'OU 4 And I ~ould say that if you' re --
5 thought that grade-level assewblies were 5 if you I re looking at the n\lll\bers, 'lie did not 
6 addressing the situation. 6 eradicate it . We did not eradicate it. 
7 can you just explain a little bit 7 Q, I understand. That wasn't ~.y 
8 100re how you think chat the grade-lml 8 question, but thank rou for your answer. 
9 asseroblies were addressing that? 9 I guess, specifically, I'd like co 

10 HR. SBARAA: Objection. 10 kno'f \'hat \'as it that took place ac the 
11 You can anS1ter. 11 grade-level asseroblies that you thought -- P.'.aybe 
12 THE wrmss: Ask the question 12 noc addressed but was relevant to the incidents 
13 again. 13 chat me happening to Ms. Eller? 
14 BY MR. MOOUL: 14 A. Ms. Eller and the ·· in the eP.'.ails 

15 Q. Sure. over the lase few minutes, 15 that you sho11ed me · · chis is disrespect based on 

16 you've referred to che grade-level asseroblies a 16 a sexual nature. 
17 few tim, I would just like to kno11 a little 17 That I s like if you' re -- I cannoc 

18 bit r.:.ore abo~t 'tihat m included in the 18 recall specifically word for word -- I cannot 

19 grade· .evel asseJllblies that you thought rould 19 quote -- as Ns. Eller quoted one asserMly, I 

20 address this situation with Ms. Eller. 20 cannot. 
21 A. ~ell, everything is addressed at 21 So I don It know the details and I 

22 grade-level assel'1blies. And fighting, which I 22 don't ·· I don 't give them a script. I know 
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1 probably can reference l'!Ore references rn 1 what's co be covered, and I know that it benefits 

2 fighting than you've shown me right here . No~, 2 the building for all the things -- and I'~. 

l I'm not saring that -- I'm not saying that it 3 contractually -- I 1m contracted to have those 

4 eradicates everything. 4 things co ·ered. 

5 I '1'1. saying just because I address 5 Q. I'm sorry. You' re contractually 

6 everything -- everyching is addressed in here, 6 required to hare which things covered? 

7 doesn It mean that ic 's eradicated, including 7 A. Grade-level asseroblies. 

8 atcendance, including ·· including dress code 8 Q, You' re contractually required co 

9 violations, including electronic devices, 9 have a grade· level assembly? 
10 including -- I don It think that once \'e address 10 A. To make sure students know their 

11 everything -- even though we continually address 11 rights and responsibilities. In addition to the 

12 it, I don't know that ~e get rid of anything. 12 grade· level asseroblies -- I'~ sorry -· we didn't 

13 And so if \'OU' re asking rr.e, by 13 cover that they signed a -- they sign a -- the 

14 addressing it, do r think I 'r going to eradicate 14 beginning of emy year I they sign a docUF..enc 

15 it? I don't. 15 chat they' re aware of their behavior 
16 I tbink ..-e've fl'ade a definitive 16 expectations. I forgot lt'hat chat's called. I 

17 effort to address an~thing that's going to affect 17 forgot what it 's called. 
18 our staff and/or students. If nothing else, a 18 But it takes place. It's a 
19 self-inmesc. :f I 'P.. going co get an email 19 disclail1'.er -- I don I t kno~ if it Is a disclaiftler. 
20 about ic, I can't ignore the fact that I'm 20 It's soreething that they -- so if they cor.mit an 
21 getting an email in the midst of whatever other 21 ace, they can It -· they can It claim ignorance. 
22 tasks, I may have. 22 Q. During your ti1'e as principal at 
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1 Friendly, \'as there a student assembly chat had, 1 May have been from a parent -- it 
2 ar.iong other topics, a specific topic about 2 looks like a parent contact log. 
3 diversity and inclusion for LGBT people? 3 Q, So you've seen parent contact logs 
4 MR. SHARMA: Objection; you can 4 like chis before? 
5 ansm. 5 A, I don't recall. I don't recall. 
6 THE WITNESS: Ko. I 11:ould not have 6 Q, You don't recall ever seeing a 
7 dedicated one asmillly to one -- I 11:ould not have 7 parenc contact log of any sort? 
8 dedicated an asse~bly to one particular issue. 8 A. Of any sort? 
9 BY MR . MOGUL: 9 Q, I don't mean this one. i mean any 

10 Q, That wasn't rey question. 10 parent contact log that looked like this. 
11 A. I'm sorry. 11 A. I don't -- I've seen parent contact 
12 Q. My question was: Was there ever an 12 logs. I can't --
13 asmbl .' that, aF..ong ocher issues -- so let's 13 Q, Is that what this is, a parent 
14 say, this asse~bl" has 10 agenda itm. One of 14 contact log? 
15 the agenda iters was diversity and inclusion for 15 A. It looks like a parent contact log. 
16 UIBT individuals. 16 I can't deny chat it's a parent contact log. I 
17 A. You have to ask PPW. I don't kno'« 17 just don 't recall -- I don 't recall. I don't 
18 the specific -- 18 recall. 
19 Q. While Ks. Eller was emailing you 19 Q, You don 't recall seeing this 

20 about various incidents that ll'e 1ve seen and 20 specific parent contact log? 
21 others, did you ever reach out to anyone else for 21 A. I wouldn't reme~ber what a sped f ic 

22 advice on how to address this situation? 22 parent contact log -- I' II\ trying to ~ake 

203 205 

1 A. You mean outside the building~ I 1 reference to the fact do I reme~ber a parent 

2 don't know. 2 contact l(Xj. 
3 Q, Either way. 3 I -- I don't reme~ber -- I don't 

4 A. I don't kno\'. I don't know. 4 reir.ewber this --you can ask other staff F..eF.bers. 

5 Q, Okay. I 1d like to turn to a new 5 I don't remerrber this parent contact log -- I 

6 exhibit. 6 don 't recollect an electronic parent contact lc,g 
7 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 18 was mked 7 in the -· I remeJber, ne, teachers i,;riting do\11 

8 for identification. ) 8 on a note that they're doing sorething. I can1t 

9 BY MR. MOGUL: 9 say that I remember a -- a Friendly High School 

10 Q, Exhibit 18, Mr. Adarr.s, if you could 10 contact -- electronic contact catalog that was 

11 just revie'tl that and let me know when you I re 11 orchestrated by · - that was · · was ·· was ·· I 
12 finished. 12 don't knoll!. I don't. 
13 A. (Witness reviews document .) 13 Q, Okay. 
14 Yes, sir. 14 A. I don't. 
15 Q, I 1d like to first ask you just kind 15 Q, Do you know, m there so1ReOne on 
16 of generally abouc che fom. before asking you 16 your staff that we would -- that i;e could talk to 

17 about the specific docuPient . 17 who ~1ould be the person that would look at parent 
18 Is this -- do you know ~hat fom 18 contact logs? 
19 this is? It says it 's a Google form. Does this 19 A. It says, 'Google Forms, 
20 seem fallliliar to you? 20 nobody~oogle. com. 1 

21 A. May have been f roll: a parent contact 21 That doesn't seem like a Friendly 
22 log. 22 Eigh School -- a PG County docurr.ent. 
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1 Q. It says at the bottom, 1'1'his form 1 a dOCU11.ent. Other than that, I ~·ould not recall 
2 ~-as created inside of PGCPS. 1 2 this sicuation. 
3 A. I don't recall, and it 11:ay be it's 3 I ~ould not recall · · I would not 
4 through guidance. I don I t knoi!. I don It knoti. 4 recall this situation. 
5 Q. Okay. 5 Q. In your tiree as principal ·· 
6 A. They would probably hm a contact 6 talking genera ly, not about Ms. Rller in 
7 log. 7 specific ·· did it ever come to your attention 
8 Q. I 11!: sorry. Who is 1they1? 8 that a parent had made discrillinatory re111arks to 
9 A. Maybe guidance · · I can It say 9 a staff member or facult7 mefflber? 

10 probab. y. i~aybe guidance ~·ould have a contact 10 A. Inappropriate marks? 
11 log. Maybe the people personnel ~orker liould 11 Q. Sure. Discriminatory, re1Mrks, 
12 ha\'e a parent conract log. 12 but ... 
13 I can't recall staff members having 13 A. Inappropriate, j'es. 
14 a contact 109 that has a ·· especially that ,ould H You want to know what the · · 
15 have a drop-down menu of · · because · · on a 15 Q. OCell, I1

111 • • I'm jm w'Ondering if 
16 referral form, it bas something previous ·· 16 you took action after hearing about that sort of 
17 previous actions taken. 17 incident. 
H Check parent contact, check 18 A. Depending on the mark, I ~ay ban 

19 conference with student. It has · · it has 19 that parent from the building. Depending on · -

20 something that for a teacher, that would take 20 it looks like it could be an emotional · · an 
21 care of .hat this fort!I. sm.s co do. 21 eiotional action that in ·· in · · intrudes on the 

22 Q. Okay. Do you remember ever 22 safety of staff , students. 

207 209 

1 speaking with Ms. Eller or anyone else about a 1 Q. Do you recall ever having to take 

2 parent using the incorrect gender wich Ms. Eller? 2 ace ion with respect to a parent who had lf.ade an 

3 A. I remember seeing a reference to ·· 3 inappropriate remark to Ms. Eller? 

4 this is the one where the pen was throi!I! or the 4 A. Th:s document didn I t see!!: to have 

5 alleqed pen was throi.'Il. And that's where the 5 came to me. 
6 parent references · · Ms. Eller says a pen top and 6 i 1ve had parents not v.·ant their 

7 she threw it at the desk. 7 child in Ms. Eller' s class based on · · based on 
8 Do you ret~e,ber seeing that? 8 cheir rnisperceptions or their perceptions. 

9 MR. ~UL: Move to strike that as 9 lly response has been that she Is 

10 nonresponsive. 10 very qualified to do the job, and chat's · · and a 

11 MR. Sl!ml.A: Objection. 11 person's sexual oriental ion has nothing to do 
12 BY MR. Mm: 12 with cheir ability or inabiUy to perfom a ·· 

13 Q. My question again ~as, do you 13 a ·· a job function. So I have addressed parents 

14 reme~ber talking wi ch ~ls. Eller or anyone else 14 on that. 
15 about a parent using the incorrect gender with 15 Q. Thank you. A little bit toore 
16 ~is. Eller? 16 specifically, though: Did you ever have an 

17 A. Okay. Let ie · · 17 occasion i!here rou had to take action when a 
18 Q. I Im just asking if you recall. 18 parent had said something inappropriate to 
19 A. The reason I possibly recall this 19 Ms. Eller? 
20 situation, it sounds like the situation ll'here a 20 A. If I had taken action on a parent, 
21 pen was thrown. 21 I 1 Ill going to ban that parent. 
22 That 1 s · - and that's because I m 22 I 1m going to get water. 
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1 An action that I l'ould take against 1 A. Yes. 
2 a parent would be to ban therr. if I felt like it 2 Q. At the top of this email, it looks 
3 ~as an ism. 3 like you 1re responding to Ms. Eller, saying, 'I 
4 I could not reprfaand a parent. I 4 ~ill revie',/ your concerns and get back to you and 
5 could not · · if a parent ,.ade an action that was 5 the English team,' 
6 a crime, then chat ~ould be another issue that 6 Do you recall if you folloi.ed L1P 
7 ~ould fall odside 11.y jurisdiction. 7 ~ith lls. Eller? 
8 So if I cook an action on a parent, 8 A. To address their concerns? 
9 it ~·ould be to ban a parent based on ·· and if I 9 Q, Yes. 

10 banned a parent, I isould inform that staff rr.ember 10 A. I probably addressed it as a group. 
11 because it Is a saf ecy concern, then I want them 11 And there may be concerns, but we I re going to 
12 to know that 11·e 

1ve taken appropriate actions. 12 move her into chis · · I do understand, 
13 Q, Do you recall ever banning a parent B suggestions and concerns. Bue I have to address 

14 because of soo.ething that the parent had said or 14 and say, l1ell, ti:e are · · I do address · · I do 
15 done to Ms. Eller? 15 understand your concerns, but 1e1re still in a 
16 A. Ro. 16 position that i!e' re going to ioove her to the 
17 MR. MCGUL: This is Exhibit 19. 17 English depart~.ent, 
18 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 19 was 1mked 18 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 20 was ~arked 

19 for identification.) 19 for identification.) 
20 (Witness reviews doCU11:ent. ) 20 BY MR. NOGUL : 
21 'l'h'E wrmss: 1es, sir. 21 Q, Th:s is Exhibit 20. If you could 

22 BY MR. IIOOUL: 22 just cake a look at it, Mr. Adams, please. 

211 213 

1 Q. Does this eiail refresh your 1 A. !Witness reviews doMent. ) 

2 recollection that Ms. Eller was concerned about 2 Yes, sir. 

3 lls. Robinson being placed in a supmisory role 3 Q, Do you knoi; what this email is? 

4 over the English depament? 4 A. Observation. 
5 A. (Nods head. ) 5 Q. I 1m sorry? 
6 Q, What do you reirefll.ber abouc that 6 A, Classroom observation. 

7 concern? 7 Q, Could you just explain a little bit 

8 A. Ms. Robinson bad w.ade an 8 l!lOre, what is the effect of this e,.ail? 

9 inappropriate ref.ark to so~.eone in the social 9 A. An assistant principal does a 

10 studies departmc ·· I chink it's kind of a 10 formal observation of a teacher based on · · a 
11 friend of Ms. Eller Is or colleague that she was 11 formal observation of a class instruction. 
12 comfortable with. 12 Q, So it sars here ·· the subject 

13 The · · because of that corment, B line, is 1Notification: Raynah Ad~s has 

14 inappropriate cor.ment, action had to be taken. 14 reassigned an evaluation to you.• 
15 In addition co acrion being taken, Ms. Robinson 15 ~.nd the 'you' in this case, the 
16 had to be removed froP.! overseeing social studies. 16 recipient, is Paula ~obinson; is that correct? 

17 She was placed over English 17 A. Correct. 
18 departroent, which I think was 11hat she was 18 Q, Noli, it sa7s here 'evaluation.• Is 

19 degreed and certified in teaching. 19 that the sarre thing as an observation · · an 
20 Q. And lias it your decision under your 20 informal observation) 
21 authority to change that assiglll!.ent for 21 A. They' re observing a class and 
22 11s. Robinson? 22 observing a lesson plan, evaluating that lesson 
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1 plan. 1 given a grade, or is it just a --
2 They're not evaluating, doing an 2 A. They're scored. They're scored. 
J evaluation of a teacher. I evaluate a teacher. 3 Q. So does this email reflect that you 
4 Q. Okay. 4 had assigned Ms. Robinson to perform a formal 
5 A. So you' re evaluating a lesson plan 5 evaluation ·· i 'm sorry ·· a formal obserxation 
6 through an observat ion process. 'Jou 're not 6 of Ms. Eller' s class? 
7 evaluating that teacher. 7 A. Correct . 
8 Q. So what kind of reports ~ould be 8 Q. ~11d this was in Dember 2014? 
9 generated by the assistant principal af m an 9 A. Correct. 

10 informal observation? 10 Q. Is this a task that Ms. Robinson 
11 A. Inforn.al or formal? 11 would have had because she was placed in the 
12 Q. I'~. sorry. Formal. 12 supervisory role over the English department? 
13 A. An IT!' fomal observation rnuld be 13 A. Yes. 
14 based on four do~.ains: Pre-observation 14 Q. Okay. So Ms. Robinson would not 
15 preparation, which soretimes would ·· a teacher 15 have had any · · would !ls. Robinson have any 
16 and an assistant principal would sit dmm and 16 involvement in Ms. Eller's formal evaluation at 
17 have a conference on what's to be expemd. 17 the end of this school year? 
18 Now, the assistant principal does 18 A. No. 
19 not have to have a pre-observation conference for 19 Q. Okay. ~ould you consult 
20 the second time around. But the first time they 20 Ms. Robinson in performing Ms. Eller Is formal 
21 have to have a pre-observation conference: This 21 evaluation at the end of the school year) 
22 is what I'm teaching; these are the expectations; 22 A. ~ould I consult 1 Well, 

215 217 

1 this is ~hat I'm focusing on; and chese are the 1 Ms. Robinson doesn't have the -- the --
2 details of what !1

111 trying to address. 2 evaluation of the teacher's effectiveness. 
3 Once in the observation, chey're 3 Now I if there's documentation that 
4 looking at classroow. environr.ent and they' re 4 says chat the teacher is not performing their 
5 looking at instructional practices. 5 ducies, but that ~ould be documentation that 
6 Classrooffl envirorur.ent being that 6 liould be corrmunicated with me and shared. And 
7 spacing of the desks, how · · how ·· if students 7 the teacher would be aware of that, that these 
8 are working independent! y or in group, 8 are aspects chat they are ·· may need to improve, 
9 collaboratively; if there are ·· as far as 9 may need to improve. 

10 instruction, what kind of questions are being 10 But if you' re saying at the end, do 

11 asked by the teacher, what kind of questions are 11 I ask Ns. Robinson is she a good teacher or not, 
12 being asked by the students, interaction, their 12 I don't do that. 
13 ans1ters. 13 Q, But it might be yocr practice co 
14 Are they in-depth? Are they 14 ask Ms. Robinson for just -- for infomtion 
15 one-answer qcestions ·· onNord anS\lers or 15 regarding ~ls. mer before completing the 
16 et cetera, things of that nature. And what kind 16 evaluation? 
17 of reflection is taking place. 17 A. No, 
18 And then there's a Domain 4, which 18 Q, No? 
19 is having had that observation, what do you 19 A. No. 
20 expect to come out of that and what are your next 20 Q. OCould you consult the formal 
21 steps based on the observation? 21 observation report for Ms. Robinson before 
22 Q. So are each of those four factors 22 completing an evaluation? 
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1 A. That would be a part of · · that 1 Ms. Eller about these concerns that she Is 
2 ~·ould be a pare of whether the teacher was deemed 2 expressing about l.s. Robinson between 
3 effective or ineffective. That i'oulo be a piece 3 Noverrber 12th, 2014, and your email of 
4 of whether the teacher was deew,ed effective or 4 January 7th, 2015? 
5 ineffmire. Their goals as indicated by the r 

) A. The er.a] references that ~e did 
6 teacher liOuld be a pare of whether they I re deemed 6 w,eet. I don It recall. 
7 effective or ineffective. 7 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 22 was !'larked 
8 MR. m: This is Exhibit 21, 8 for identification.) 
9 which is an email chain from, ~ell , November and 9 BY MR. NOGUL : 

10 January ·· Nove~ber 20H and January 2015. 10 Q. Mr. AdattS, ~hen yoc finish 
11 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 21 was ll'.arked 11 reviewing this email chain froo January 7th, 
12 for identification.) 12 2015, please let me know. This is Exhibit 22. 
1J BY MR. M(X;UL: 13 A. (Kicness reviews doC1Jlll.ent. ) 
14 Q. Mr. Adm, just let me know when 14 Okaj'. 
15 rou I re finished reading chis exhibit. 15 Q. Hr. Adans, based on your reriew of 
16 A. (Witness reviews document .) 16 chis chain of emails, do you recall ·· or does it 
17 So this is the sate as Exhibit 19 17 appear chat you had responded to Ms. Eller Is 
18 with the addition of the first b'o lines: 18 concerns about !ls. Robinson Is supervisory role of 

19 Q. Mr. Ada~.s, in the first two lines, 19 the English department before January 7th, 
20 as you \l'ere referencing, it Is your er.ail to 20 2015? 

21 tls. Eller. 21 A. It says here, 'I forwarded a 
22 A. Okay. 22 correspondence 'Alithout giving it due attention. 

219 221 

1 Q. Do you recall having 11.et with 1 Although \le both have a different recollection of 

2 lls. Eller after this response, which is 2 the previous resolution, ~e can meet in order to 

3 January 7th, 2015? 3 address your concerns and move forward. ' 
4 A. Is this the incident 1there 4 So you' re asking ~.e if -· and I 

5 ~s. Robinson referred co Ms. Eller as NI . or he 5 apologize. 
6 or something? Used a pronoun that I/as 6 Q. I 1m asking you if, I guess, 
7 inappropriate? 7 betmn ·· having read these emails, betlieen 
8 Q. I don I t chink we' re there yet. 8 Noverrber 12th, 2014, and January 7th, 2015, 

9 A. Okay. I 1111 sorry. 9 had you discussed with Ms. Eller her concerns 
10 Q. That's okay. 10 ll'ith ~Is. Robinson being a SL~ervisor of the 
11 I'~. just curious. After chis 11 English department 1 
12 erail · · your email to Ms. Eller on 12 A. It says here !reading!: I thought 
13 January 7th, 2015, do rou recall t!.eeting ,ith 1] ~e met regarding the ' incident. ' If ;oc like, ~e 

14 ,is. Eller about the concerns that she expressed 14 can w.et regarding the situation. rnere have ·· 
15 in this ereil? 15 there have no other concerns frOffl . . . 
16 A. I can't say I recall · - if that 16 That's inappropriate. 

17 were the situation, I recall that. 17 !Reading] : ~o other concerns were 
18 Q. Do you recall reeting with 18 brought to rry attention. Please see me ·· any 
19 !ls. mer bemen her eMil on Kovember 12th 19 additional concerns. 
20 and your e11ail on January 7th? 20 !Reading] : You received co11plaints 
21 A. Say that again. 21 about it from students, and you called ~.e into 
22 Q. Sm. Do you recall meeting with 22 your office to ask that I explain to ffiY AP 
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1 classes that Ms. Robinson . . . 1 describing in this report? 
2 It looks like lie ir.et. It looks 2 A. Probably lftOfflents later. 
J like the objective chat Ms. Eller had and the J Q. Do you recall who told ro~? 
4 object that I had ~ere · · were not aligned, 4 A. No. 
5 according · · according to the -- according to 5 Q. Did you receive this COOl)laint 
6 these top two correspondence, the one from 6 around che time that Ms. Eller submitted it? Do 

7 !ls. Eller and eyself. 7 you m1ember? She submitted it February 20th? 
8 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 2J was rr.arked 8 A. I probably ·· . ,as probably 
9 for identification.) 9 infomed of it. And I'm ·· I'm going to assuffle 

10 BY MR. l!OOUL: 10 by Ms. Eller or Ms. Eller and someone else. 
11 Q. Mr. AdaP.s, please lee r.e know when 11 So if someone else inforned te of 
12 rou finish reviewing Exhibit 2J, a 12 it, then I probably went to Ms. Eller. If 

B Februarv 20th, 2015 incident repon. 13 Ms. Eller informed ~e of it, then I probably 
14 A. (Witness reviews document.) 14 wanted the documentation so we could have 
15 Yes. 15 docurr.encation of this incident. 
16 Q. Do you recall seeing chis complaint 16 Q. Did you cake any action after 
17 before? 17 hearing about · · I guess on the Dth 11;hen you 
18 A. I recall that. 18 heard about chis incident? 
19 Q. Do you recall the particular 19 A. I would think so. I i.ould think 
20 meeting that Ms. Eller is discussing in this 20 that there should be a · · there should be a 
21 co!!plaint? 21 letter in regards for lls. Robinson Is actions. 
22 A. I recall the day, the PD that it 22 I don 't know ·· I don 't have access 

223 225 

1 took place. I recall my personal reaction. I 1 co my file. I cannot recall specifically ·· I 

2 recall knowing -- I recall my surprise. That's 2 can It say · · I cannot sa1 · · I remher !Y anger. 
J the word I 111 use right no·,. J And that 's the main thing i remeffiber, was w.y · · 

4 I just recall knowing that an 4 my anger to the situation. 
5 enploree 11as ·· an inappropriate situation 5 I don't · · I don't recall · · : 
6 involving an eroployee 11;ith another ew.ployee had 6 recall Ms. Robinson saying something to another 

7 taken place and that it had to be addressed. 7 ceacber, and then I recall this sicuation of · · 
8 Q. r1rr: sorry. You used the mm 'PD.' 8 che one 11.1here Ms. Robinson said something to the 

9 Can you explain what that is, 9 other teacher. 
10 A. I '11!. sorry. Professional 10 She had no · · no excuse. What can 
11 development. 11 you · · what excuse can you say? 
12 Q. Were 1ou in attendance at that 12 And this one I · · I want to say she 
u professional development 111eeting1 lJ said it i1as an accident. : did tot · · noc that 

14 A. Not ac that F..eecing. They were · · 14 that Is ·· ul cimatel y, not that that Is ·· I don I t 
15 the school was broken into departmts. The 15 kno-w. I don1t know. 
16 depart1tents ·· the aill!'inistracor in charge of the 16 Q. Do you recall doing anything in 

17 departttents was with their corresponding 17 response to receiving this complaint, anything 
18 departr:ent. I could have been in another 18 different? 
19 departw.ent. I 11as not in that room when that 19 A. I can't recall. 
20 happened. I do recall that. 20 Q. Do you recall if Ms. Robinson 
21 Q. Do you recall when you first 21 reirained the supervising ·· assistant principal 
22 learned aoout the incident that Ms. Eller is 22 supervising the English department for the rest 
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1 of that school year? 1 suggests that lls. Robinson routinely comunicms 
2 A. I would think so. 2 with her subordinates in a manner that is rude, 
J I would think that the actions 3 condescending and disrespectful .' 
4 ~·ould be taken and ·· just like with another 4 Have you had interactions \'ith 
5 employee, the ·· the actions would be taken and 5 Ms, Robinson that ~ou d confim this conclusion? 
6 then according to · · according to the school 6 A. You mean beyond the t\io that are 
7 system, the action ~ould be taken and 111e t1ould 7 noteo here? 
8 move fomrd there. But I can 't -· the details, 8 Q, Correct. 
9 specifics, I just remember the incident. I don 't 9 A. I can't remerober specifics of her 

10 reme~ber, okay, Step 1,2,3,4,5. 10 saying soll'.ething that lias · · i.e., 1titb Ms. Rller 
11 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 24 was ir.arked 11 and, i.e. , with Ms. Reynolds !sic]. 
12 for identification. ) 12 I remember her being a · - I 
1J BY MR. Mm: 1J ~ouldn' t define her as · · . ~•Ol!.dn' t describe ~er 
14 Q. This is Exhibit 24. It Is a memo 14 as warn · · a 111arm personality. 
15 dateo June 25th, 2015. Just let re know iihen 15 Q. Further down in that conclusion, it 
16 rou 1ve had a chance to look it over. 16 sa1s ·· in that conclusion paragraph, it says, 
17 HR. SHARMA: C--0od tiree for a breaH 17 'It is accordingly recommended that Hs, Robinson 
18 KR. MCGJL: sure, let 's cake a 18 receive appropriate professional counsel and/or 
19 break a five-minuce break. 19 discipline as deemed appropriate.• 
20 (Off the record, J:03 p. w..) 20 Did I read that correctly? 
21 (Back on the record, 3: 05 p.m. ) 21 A. I Nods head. l 
22 BY MR. MOOUL: 22 Q, All right. Do you recall taking 

227 229 

1 Q, So, Mr. Adams, we' re looking at 1 any action in response to that recOOJ\l.endadon? 

2 Exhibit 24. Do you recall receiving this mero? 2 HR. SU.A: Objection. 

3 A. I don't recall, but I obviously ·· 3 You can anmr. 

4 I'm cc'd on it, so I'!!. sure i received it. 4 THE \H'Il/ESS: I don't recall the 

5 Q. Do you recall -- this is dated 5 details . 
6 June 25th, 2015. 6 BY MR. NOGUL: 
7 Do you recall whether any 7 Q. Kould it have been your 

8 administrative action had been taken against 8 responsibility to fol.o~ up on this 
9 )ls. Robinson before this memo was issued? 9 recorrmendation on this memo? 

10 A. I don 't recall. 10 A. Yes. 
11 Q. Do you recall after you received 11 Q. ocould it have been a responsibility 

12 this memo ·· I knoi' you don I t recall receiving 12 you shared with others, perhaps others outside 

13 the r..err.o. But do you recall taking any actions 13 the building? 
14 in response to this memo? 14 A. OCell, it says it cc'd ~y 
15 A. I ·· I ·· no, I don't recall. I 15 instructional director, and :t was after the 
16 don't recall. 16 school year had ended. I don' t kno'ri if that m 

17 Q. If you could tum to the section 17 che instructional director that started the next 
18 called 'Conclusion• on Page 3, that my last 18 school year. So I -- I think that there r..ay have 
19 paragraph on that page. It says here ·· you can 19 been son:e transitional -- at the upper level 
20 let rr.e kno~ if I have stated chis correctly. 20 above · · the level above me iroJ11ediately at some 
21 10f concern, however, is evidence 21 point, so I ·· I can.11ot say definitively 11hac ·· 
22 ascertained in this investigation and ochers , 22 2016 was rr:y last year at Friendly Eigh School. I 
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1 know there's a different instructional director. 1 Q. Have you seen this document before~ 
2 It mn' t r.ark Fossett. So it would have had 2 A. . don't recall seeing it. 
3 to ·· I don't know when that uansition took 3 MR. S!IAR)lA: I just note for the 
4 place. 4 record this is actuall}' t1io separate documts. 
r This was dated June 25th. I 5 This is coobined into one. ) 

6 don't know if ·· I don't know, so I can't •· 6 MR. MOGUL: Oh, okay. Well, we can 
7 there's nothing that says I remember. 7 just tBrk those as separate exhibits. 
8 Q, Bet 1iould it hm been a 8 l!R. SIIARAA: I/hat ever is easier for 
9 responsibility that you shared \llith ~hoever the 9 you. I just wanted to clarify that . One iias 

10 instructional director was, the responsibility to 10 suhilit ted by Ms. Eller. The other one coii:.es fret!. 
11 follow up on this recoimendation~ 11 the REOC to our client, which is the nodce. 
12 MR. SHAPJ!A: Objection. 12 MR. !M: Yeah. 
13 You can anSl.'er. 13 IIR. SMA: So I don 't know what 
14 TliE WITI/ESS: Yes. H you' re going to ask, but . . . 
15 BY MR. MOOU1: 15 HR. MOGUL: My impression was chat 
16 Q. A little further on in this 16 the notice forwarded this on to your client, so 
17 conclusion paragraph, it says ·· 17 they came as one. 
18 A. Actually, let Fe say cbis: It's a 18 Let 's just proceed. 
19 recoromendation that is J11ade. It is her 19 MR. SIIWA: Sure. 
20 rec0Im11endation. I don I t know that it 's ·· I 20 BY MR. MOGUL : 

21 mean, I don 't kno'.I' -· I can't recall a 21 Q, So you don I t recall seeing either 

22 conversation. I can't recall that it' s a 22 page of this documenU 

231 233 

1 directive. It 's a recoMendation. I don't know. 1 A. No, sir. 
2 And I would have to ask. 2 Q. Did you at some point becoo.e aware 

3 Q. Thank you. 3 that ~Is . mer had filed a charge of 

4 A. Okay. 4 discrimination ~ith the EEOC? 

5 Q. Fl!rcher on it says I in quotes' 5 A. I don't ·· I don't recall ·· i 

6 1 Further, it is recw..ended that during the 6 didn't -· I don't recall ever seeing this. I 
7 2015/2016 academic year, both Friendly liigh 7 think the only hint is when Ms. Eller stated in 

8 School students and staff received diversity and 8 the n:eeting, that 'I will sue yoc; I've done it 

9 sensitivity mining. • 9 before. 1 

10 Did I read that correctly? 10 Q. So no one Ol!t of bdlding 
11 A. Yes. 11 administration forwarded this to you? 
12 Q. Do you recall taking any action 12 A. Not aware of this. 
13 that ,ould address that recomndation? 13 Q. And no one told you that this was 

14 A. So the -· I don't know. I can't 14 going on, this EEOC charge? 
15 reme1ber. 15 A. No. 
16 (Whereupon, &xhibit No. 25 11as rr.arked 16 Q. Around the time ·· this tiie being 

17 for identification.) 17 around surrmer 2015 · · did anyone tell you that 
18 BY MR. HCGUL: 18 Ms. Eller might engage in sol'le ·· in reporting of 
19 Q, Mr. Adarr:s, this is Exhibit 25. If 19 discrifflination outside of the school systel!? 
20 you could just take a look and let me kno11 when 20 A. No. That, like I said, the only ·· 
21 you finished revie~ing it. 21 the only · · in retrospect, in the -· in a staff 
22 A. Go ahead, sir. 22 morning meeting when Ms. Eller said, 'I will sue 
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1 :·ou. 7011 knoi. I will. I '"e done it before, 1 in I E.wbit 26 • · eaail chain from Jl!Jle 2015. 
2 mrospm, okay, yeah. 2 A. Oka-•. 
j Q. And do you recall around 1,hen that 3 !IR. SHARM: Do i'OI! mow what it 
4 staff mting wok pl~ce? 4 sa,s at tr.e top · · 
) A. Sepcerber 2nd. I den IL knOY the 5 IH. ro~: : do. 
6 rear. It I s ·· because of the · • the document 6 IIR . SKARrA: · · ~ith this bole 
1 that said that I didn't notify her of an 7 puncted? 
8 e~ergency r.eeting. That 1s the reason I noticed a JR r@lJi: I can represert to you 
9 the second. 9 chat it ears, 'See r.e.' Sorry about the 

10 Q. Do you m1eftiber reassigning 10 placement of chat nole. 
11 lls . Eller so that ste \'c.S no longer teaching AP 11 BY MP.. MOGUL: 
12 clmes in Jene of 2015? 12 Q. So does looHtg at this eaail chain 
B A. Yes. 13 refresh your recollection at al~ about what ~as 
H Q. Do you recall mting Ns. Eller H in the letter frorn- 1 
15 personally to discuss chat decision? 15 A. No. 
16 A. I 1r sure : did. 16 Q. Do you re:rieti.ber ,t:· :10u asked 
17 Q. But do you actually recall che 17 ~s. F-Ope·Bro-m to see you about that letter? 
18 meeting? 18 A. Ms. Pope-Brow is probably the 
19 A. I 11!: sure • hm to notify you 19 12th-grade atilinistrator, atd this ~as probably 
20 before you lecxe the school year. I bm to 20 a 12th-grade student. 
21 notify a teacher that cheyt re going to. So it 21 Q. Do you re:nerruier meet ing with 
22 mld be pm of i'Our end-of ·year evaluation tt,at 22 l'.s. Pope·Brclfll af:er this email? 

235 237 
1 you sign, and JI d have to notify you that irou' re 1 A. Xo. No. 
2 not goir.g to teach that class before you leave. 2 (Whereupon, Exhibit ~o. 27 itas l':arked 
3 Q. Okay. So I Utdersmd that you 3 for ident:fication. ) 
4 koo, that j'OI! did have the mt illg. 4 BY~. d: 
~ A. Yes. 5 Q. Ke ' re now lookir.g at Exhibit 21, an 
6 Q. Bl!t do you reP.eiber the content 0£ 6 ereail dated ~une Brh, 2015. 
1 :he r.ming, vtat m said at the ir.miq? Mr. Atia::s, chis e~il is dateo fol!! 
8 A. No. 8 days after the one chat ~e just looked ati is 
9 Q. Do you recall telling Ms. Eller 9 that correcu 

10 that there was a stud&er~ 1tho 10 !. Yes. 
11 complaired about l'.s. R11er? Does t at nng any 11 Q. 19! if yuJ e:er star!d a 
12 bells? 12 copy of the letter with •is. Rller? 
B A. I recall seeing that in the 13 A. : o not recall. I do not kno·, ·· 
14 OOCl.'!'..e9ta:ion. I don1t kn01 who that cb:ld is. 14 I don t recall. 
15 I had another parent who r as a 15 lWhereunon, ZXhfoit No. 28 was mked . 
16 staff member, who used to be principal, \'ho 16 for identification. ) 
17 contacted Pe. Ms. Eller 'l:as a~are of that in 17 BY R MOGUL: 
18 regards to tte sbodng oovies durirg AP class. 18 Q. J:e're 00'.1 lookitg at &xbibit 28, an 
19 !Whereupon, Exhibit No. 26 was mked 19 email chain f ram Octob€r 2015. Please let ~.e 
20 for identification. ) 20 kno~ '!:hen you I l'e had a chance to review. 
21 BY MR. MOOL1: 21 A. IKitness revie!is dOCl!ent. I 
22 Q. Co:ild rcu just revie~ chis · · 22 : sa, chis earlier. 
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1 Q. I'! sorz:·. when did yoo see it? I tight have bad sote insight o~ I rem.her 
2 A. I gl.'€5S it m a piece of 2 that •· go alead. Mk ym:r next question. 
l information that had been passed on that I got j I think ~r. f.ijompson might have had 
4 from Attorney Sbama, I guess I sorething to this 4 some insi£ht on who is this mdm. . '.' r Q. Do /OU re1e~r talking with ar.yone ) vmat1on. ) 

6 Q. Okar. Eased on your review of this 6 else other than Mr. Thompson, Ms. mer, 
7 email, do roe re~.e!PJJer this incident? 1 ~Is. Claggett about this incident? 
8 A. I do. 8 A. ~.nd let me sa:· this: I wuld not 
9 Q. Looking all the ny at t.he bot:om, 9 bet r; life I spoke to !Ir. Ihe1.pson. : tnoi' I 

10 the first el\'ail in this chain is an email f rem 10 spoke to s01Teone . Either it was Mr. !hOl!.pson or 
11 rou to Ms. Rller. It says, 1Please send me a~ 11 maybe it was Ms. Pope-Bro~11. Someone had sore 
12 eltl accOl!llt of the interaction het·ieai you am! 12 insight ro rte child tba: : didn't ho~. 
B 1:s. Claggett. Thank you. 1 B . ~anc to say Mr. rn~pson, b~t I 
14 So chis 11ould indicate that you had H can't --
15 probabl~ r.eard of this iccide~t before that 15 Q. Do you re~ember !ihat action you 
16 €l".3il? 16 tcok follorirg speatilllJ with these vario1s pecple 
17 A. Probably the teacher came to me. 11 about this incident? 
18 Q. Which teader? 18 A. Yeah. '!\IQ situations. One 
19 A. The C!her English teac1:er. 19 referencin- at a cmain {X)int m 
20 Q. Ks . Claggett? 20 ref emng to herself a.s a she. 'filei: at a certain 
21 A. Yes. 21 point ref erring to himself as a he. 
22 Q. So ih, did you ask Ns. filler for an 22 The insigh: that Ms. Claggett gave, 

239 m 
1 email acco\!Dt? 1 that it was a recent change. 
2 A. For her account of tte situation, 2 ~ow, I don't know ·· I dcn1t kno.i 
3 that even tho._'9h I wanred to ·· I get ere 3 bcv recent 1recen:1 m. : don't kim if 
4 accollllt i I wanted the semd. I could not ·· I 4 •recent' was yesterday or ·· I kno·, that -
r could not ·· I could not ioove forward on just one 5 was in Caring Colours, and that may have spurred ) 

6 account. 6 >:s . nler to spea.~ up on behalf of .. 
7 Q. Did y<A! ask Ms. Cla£9ett for an 1 I b:01 the sit:.iatio~ had elemed 
8 e111ail accom of the incident? 8 co 'ihere Ms. Claggett felt afraid in ·· in ·· of 
9 A. She probably cawe to nrt office and 9 the situation and ·· 111.aybe because of size. I 

10 cold me. I don't kr.o'I ·· . just hu, ac :hat 10 dcn1t kl!ov. 
11 pofot if tha~ 11ere the case, then I'd hm one 11 : do~'t kn0\7. 
12 side of the story and I needed the second side of 12 So -- I want to say there lfas a 
B ~he story. B sat et_' concern. I knoJJ I -· I docuaent -- I 
H Q. Do i·ou recall reeting vitb anyo:1e 14 mte it up. I th:n.\ probab.y a letter cf 
15 else ·· or talking with anyone else about this 15 counsel . 
16 incident? Other cban Ns. Claggett and ~ls. Eller. 16 I don' t know ·· I'm sure you have 
17 A. '?he dlild ·· I probaily spoke to ·· 17 it. The ·· the ·· I directed Ms. Eller, if vcu 
lS I can't rer.el!ber if _ was a 9th-grader or·· 18 ha,e a situatfon Eke :bis, to tell ie. And. I 
19 I can't rember the grade,- grade. I 19 can · · tell JT.e or ad.,iinistrative tm. ar.d \'e can 
20 could probably figure that out. 20 address that and for the -- for the exact reason 
21 I ~•ant to say Mr. 1hor,pson uy have 21 that it got inappropr:ate. 
22 ilad so!e inrokerrenc ·· r.ot involver.enc. Be 22 Q. Yoa 1e11tior.ed that ttere riere ti'O 
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1 actions that }'OC had taken foll0\lin9 your 1 a repril!alld. It's not a fol:'lal ·· it's just a 
2 invest:gadon of the il:cident. 2 ·,:a1 of doC1.1tencing · - it's a letter -- it 's a 
3 A. Yes. l 111arning saying that's not appropriate; you can't 
4 Q, I don't think I heard the second. 4 do that . 
5 You ;endoned a letter of counsel. But rcat ~as 5 Btt it's JOt SCl'€tilir3 that cao be 
6 the seco~d? 6 held against you in regards to your perfomacce 
7 A. - ants to be referred to as 7 or ·· il just says, 'You can't do that .' 
a 111 I don't kl10I' 1Jhat the nar.e the child used 8 Q, Does a .etter of coULsel go into a 
9 before. ~:anted to be referred to asllll 9 staff 1m,.ber1s penianert file? 

10 Q, So ~hat was your actionr 10 A. :t does. 
11 A. Let Ms. Claggett know that this 11 Q. But it doesn't factor into their 
12 child wants co be refme<l to as . I don' t 12 evaluation? 
13 even knOi' 1that the nm was that tbe child ~ent 13 A. Ko. It 'ust ·· it ·· it 's a·· if 
14 by prior to. Bet if the child \lanes to be 14 it ~ere ·· if something in this nacure were to 
13 referred to as ·· tte child wants to be ~ferred 15 happen again, it ~ould be dOMentation that 
lf :o a- the child ism 16 s~id, We aid comcate in regards to ~bis 1s 
17 Or che pronoun use with■-· I 17 sor.ethicg that you can't do. 
18 don't rernefflber the previous, what she was ·· what H And it's just documentation for 
19 she was referenced as ~hen she identified as a n that purpose. But it's cot a repriNDd. It 's 
20 female. 20 not a -- there 's to ace ion that car be taken vith 
21 Q. Jest for the record, you r..entioned n a letter of counsel. 
22 Caring Colours, and I just ~ant to put o~ the 22 Q. And you mentioned here in this 

m m 
1 record what that is. 1 letter of counsel, you asked that Ms. Eller 
2 A. caring Colours, Ms. ·· Ms. El.er 2 follow proper protocol. Can you just demibe , 
J mted co establish an after-sctool 3 ~hat, in your i'ieai, is the proper protccol for 
4 organization •· after-school ·· I den 't know if ~ the situatioc that car:.e up here. 
5 'organization• is the right ~ord. Wanted a ·· a 5 A. OChat line are you on? 
6 9ro11p ttat -~uld -- ~oc!d · • a suppcn grou~ for r Q, It's torards the bot~oe of the 0 

7 students ~ho identified as part of rte LGBT first paragrapt, :,J Jnes L1). 

8 comnnmity. 8 A, She m speaking on behalf of a 
9 (Whereupon, Exhibit Ko. 29 was mked 9 studer.t to another teacher, which was not her 

10 for identificaticn. ) 10 respcnsibility to spea..\ to another staff tel"ber 
11 BY MR. MOOUl: 11 on behalf of another · · to spea): to another staff 
12 Q. Mr. Adm, this is Exhibit 29. 12 member on beha' f of a student. 
B When :·ou 're had a chance to revie~ it, please let B She should have spoke!! to an 
H e too,. H ad!Pinismtor in regard -- brot~ht trat to their 
15 A. Okay. 15 concern so they could address that staff r.er..b€r. 
16 Q. IS tbis the letter of COWlSel that 16 If that etaif me:nber ·· i.e. Ms. Claggett •· me 
17 you ,ere just referring to? 17 doing mr.ething inappropriate, then that 
18 A. Yes. 18 adftinimator (ll()Uld either take appropriate 
B Q. Can yoo J'Jst describe, what is a 19 miens or rrake r.e a1me so I cocld take 
20 letter of counsel? 20 appropriate action. 
21 A. It's a ·· it's a letter ·· it's not 21 But there was nothing · - there 
22 a repri!md. It's not a·· it's not ·· ::'snot 22 1m ·· i:here vas cot~:ng that ,.s. mer codd •· 
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1 her · · her job description did not allow her to 
2 fornally correct a staff member . 
j Q. Is there a fomal sctool policr 
4 that lls. &Iler had violated or just a, 'This is 
5 better done a different way'? 
6 A. I can't speak to ii there's a 
7 formal polkt that you sho·~ldn 1t speak co another 
8 teacher aoout a studenc. 
9 I can. va • this: Ms. Eller is not a 

10 guardian or parent of so l~s. Eller cannot 
11 speak on behalf of o a staf U.errber. 
12 So I guess there is a policy: You 
13 don It represent that student. 
14 Q. Is there a fomal policy about 
15 using correct pronouns if you're a teacher 
16 referring to a stl!dent? Do you knov of one? 
17 A. I'd have to access if you I re saying 
18 there 1s a formal policy. . can1t say for sure. 
19 I can It say that the child · · I 
20 don't know the child Is last name. The child 
21 wanted •· at a certain point, the child mted to 
22 be referenced to as 1he, 1-

l 
2 
j 

4 
5 
6 
1 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
B 
H 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

Isike l said, I don 1t kno~ whether 
that child •· I don It knov if it was Tuesday, and 
that child rrade that proclamation on ~'.onday. I 
don't know it that ·· when. 

So I thought that was kind of easy 
co deal iiith in regards to it 1//0Uld tave bean 
easy for l!.e to approach · · as a supervisor to 
approach Ms . Claggett and say, Hey, tl~ ett, 
I understand that you1re referring to ... s ·· 
whatever you' re referring ·· as •her/ as •she.• 
Do you kno'i on behalf of policy, you can't. 
Okay? 

And I 11!\ happy to · · and 111hen we 
spoke, you know, I 1n: happy to say, ~~-at ever the 
conversation ·· obviously, that conversation had 
got elevaced. And it cook place in 
•is. Claggett's room. So it wasn 1t ·· didn 1t seem 
like it was mutcal • · I don I t kooo •· I don I t 
recall. 

I don't recall the specifics. But 
this is so l!.ucb easier for me to say, 
!ls. Claggett ·· or whoever •· Yeah, I kno~ it was 

m 

m 

1 Monday. But ·· and one of the things ~ight be, 
2 Well, on ~onday, he wants to be ref erred to as 
3 he; on Tuesday, she wants to be referred to as 
4 she; on Wednesday, he wants, to be ref erred ·· 
5 1//ell I now ~e got another issue. Let 's get to the 
6 bottom of this , because no~ they ray be playing 
7 games vith you. 
8 But that l'asn I t the case with 
9 - But it i.eas easy to say, l.et sorebooy 

10 supervise this and oversee this. 
11 ~.nd at that point, Ms . Eller had 
12 not tad any formal responsibilitl' for correccing 
B staff ~errbm. They are in the same cnion. 
H Q. Did Ms. Claggett receive a letter 
15 of counsel following this interaction? 
16 A. No . 
17 Q. So the only ·· your o~ly acdon 
18 with regard to Ms. Claggett was discussing with 
19 her that she should use- proper pronouns~ 
20 A. I believe so. 
21 l1Ahereupon, Exhibit }!o. 30 1,ras r.arked 
22 for identif:cation. l 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
1 
g 

9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

THE WITNESS: Let me ask you a 
question: Did you get documentation of 
Ms. Claggett' s information? 
BY MR. NOG!JL: 

Q. I 'tn not sure l understand ~hat you 
ir.ean. 

A. Because she expresserl a fear for 
her safety. 

Q. That's news to me. 
A. i rr.ean ·· 1eah, that Is ·· that Is ·· 

she expressed a fear for ·· she did not feel 
comfortable with ter co:ning into her roo111 in ttat 
siwation. 

P.nd that Is ~hr at H,, tha[ email 
iient ou( or whatever, because that was sor:ething 
chat nomall )' would still be oct for diSfflissal . 

Q. ~e ~.ave now Exhibit 30. Hr. Maw.s 
if you could just revieti this email from 
August 2015. 

A. 

Q. 

[Witness reviews document. l 
Okay. Go ahead. 
Mr . Adams, what does it ll'ean to · · 
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1 when rou use the word •reduce, 1 what does that 1 A. He wouldn I t need to -- he -· 
2 mean? 2 Mr. Fossett would know that we have to reduce 
3 A. I don 1t knoll. I don't know. 3 sow.eone frorr one of the departments. English is 
4 That Is what ·· I don 1t know. I don 1t knoi;. ~ the biggest department in the building. 
5 Q, You mte this email? 5 Q. I believe you mentioned in here 
6 A. Yes. 6 chat Ns. Eller ~muld receive a conditional 
7 Q, You really don 1c know what you 7 certificate. 
8 meant by the tem. •reduce•? 8 A. Correct. 
9 A. No, no. I haven1t seen a lot of 9 Q, ochat does that mean? What does it 

10 typos, but I haven1c ·· and I1m guessing that 10 mean when someone has a conditional cmif icaM 
11 Mr. Fossett responded to me and may have said, 11 Actually, strike that. I1ll ask it differendy. 
12 What do you mean by I reduce 1? 12 Can someone continue to each 
13 I don1t kno11; a·· I don 1t kno~ a 13 English, for example, when they have a 
14 formal ·· I don1t know. 14 conditional certificate? 
15 Q, Okay. ~.nd the subject line that 15 A. You can ·· you can be in a class to 
16 you wrote says •staff reduction. 1 That doesn It 16 teach a class if you1re a substitute. 
17 help )'OU figure out 11;hat that tenr. means? 17 Q, I 1m sorry. 
18 A. Oh, rim sorry. I 1m sorry, 18 A. Substitute teacher. 
19 If we have to reduce staff on a 19 Q, Yes, I understand that. If )'OU I re 
20 given year, I have co look at 11!ho we need to 20 not a subs ti rnte teacher and you have a 
21 reduce on a given year. 21 conditional certificate ·· 
22 This was ~y request co reduce 22 A. I 1m sorry. I 1111 trying to give you 

251 253 

1 !ls. Eller. 1 some background. So there are levels of 
2 Q. And by I reduce, • sorry, what do you 2 certification. 
3 mean by that? 3 There's fully certified. There 's 
4 A. 11 

~- sorry. I 111'. sorry. To have her 4 conditional certified. If you don 1t have anyone 
5 moved to another location because our staffing 5 for the class, you can get a substitute in there, 
6 can It support the mmber of teachers that we 6 and they would have to attempt to follow the 
7 have. 7 curriculurr. 
8 Q. This email refers to Ms. Eller Is 8 Okay. so the)' can teach a class. 
9 SPCI. 9 When you're certified, you have to ·· when you1re 

10 What is an SPCI? 10 not cmif ied, conditionally certified, your 
11 A. Her certification status, I cannot 11 tenure ·· you lose tenure. 
12 give you the acron}lll. for SPCI. It looks like it 12 So when we I re asked, Okay, so where 
13 affects her certification status fror. fully 13 are we rerr:oving someone from your building, in 
14 certified to conditionally certified. 14 che event that )'OU 1 re reducing staffing? What 
15 Q, A.lld you 1 re not referencing in this 15 department? vlhat teacher, based on this? 
16 email to a concern about staffing lel'els, are 16 English teacher is Ms. Eller 

17 you: 17 because she Is least tenured because she is 
18 A. Say that again, because I am 18 conditionally certified. 
19 addressing staffing levels. I 1 

~- addressing 19 Q, Got it. So being conditionally 
20 staffing levels as it addresses budget. 20 certified remo1·es your tenure, but it doesn't 
21 Q, Okay. I don't see a reference to 21 mean you have to stop teaching a class? 
22 the budget in this email. 22 A. Right. It removes your tenure. 
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1 Q, Had you consulted with anyone else 1 can 1t say. 
2 before making this request to Mr. Fossett to · · 2 Q. Okay. 
3 specifically to reduce Ms. Eller1s position? 3 A. I can say that it Is based on 
4 A. When you deal with reduced staffing 4 tenure, that staff reduction. 
5 and reduced popclation, chances are there Is a 5 Q. ~as it possible that there were 
6 conversation idth your scheduler in regards to 6 other teachers at the tiree ·· at this time, 
7 which department can we best -- can 11e l!'.ove 7 August 2015, that were conditionally certified? 
8 forward best with a reduction. 8 A. So you I re asking me is it possible, 
9 Q. And 11ho 'lias the scheduler at 9 but you I re not asking me what the facts itere. 

10 Friendly at the time? 10 I mean, having no knowledge of it, 
11 A. Ms. -· Ns. Mariano-Do! esh. 11 I Id have to say it Is possible. I can It say 
12 Q, And do you know how rn spell that 12 that -- I can I t say I recall someone from social 
B last name? B studies, l!'.ath, science, English, PE ·· I can't 
14 A. D·O·L·E·S·E. 14 say that. 
15 And that would just be -· that Is 15 I can't say ·· I'm sure the 
16 not asking thee. for their -- that Is not asking 16 docul!'.ent · · what the size of the departments 
17 them what to do. 17 were. And you can say how big one departrent was 
18 That Is saying, Okay. I have to 18 versus another department. Okay? That Is all. 
19 reduce someone. What are ff}" class sizes? ~'hat 19 But I \iOuld look at how we can best 
20 can I best · · what can I best · · how can I best 20 11\0ve fomrd if we I re going to have to lose a 
21 run this building knowing that I 'IT going to lose 21 teacher. 
22 a staff me@ber? Which department can best fill 22 Q. Did you ·· do you recall getting a 
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1 that -- can best move forward -without -· can best 1 response from Mr. Fossett to this email? 
2 move fomrd? 2 A. I don't. 
3 So English depart~.ent ~.ay have had 3 Q. Do you recall having a follo'li·Up 
4 ten teachers in it. Social studies has five. So 4 conversation with Mr. Fossett after sending this 
5 a department that has 11\0re would best be able to 5 email? 
6 survive a reduction in staff. 6 A. I · - I · · is this the saF.1e year we 
7 Q. In your experience, about what 7 11w.de the transition? 
8 percentage of your faculty mewbers me fully ~ No1 I don 't. I don't. 
9 certified at a time versus conditionally versus 9 Q. Do you recall having a conversation 

10 not certified? 10 with anybody else, regardless of Mr. Fossett or 
11 A. Ask the question again. 11 anyone else I about this request after you sent 
12 Q, In your experience while you were 12 che email? 
B principal at Friendly, about what percentage of B A. I would say that there 'tlas a 
14 your faculty 'tlould be fully certified, 14 conversation because the ·· the administrative ·· 
15 conditionally certified and not certified? 15 I 1m sorry. 
16 A. I can't ansll'er that. I don't know. 16 The ID i,;ould be doing his duty. 

17 Q. Was it rare for someone to be 17 But I don 1t recall staff reductions ·· Friendly 
18 conditionally certified? 18 liigh School lost enrollment for multiple years in 
19 A. The goal was to have everybody 19 a row. So it Illas a process that was not new. It 
20 fully certified. Okay? I can't say·· I can't 20 was not a single one time. It went from a school 
21 say·· I don't have a nuwher, so I can't say 21 that had 1600 to a school that had 900. So there 
22 rare. I can't say it was rare, one or ten. I 22 liere continually cuts in the staffing to 
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1 accomJ110date che schedule. 1 you recall having a conversation with anyone else 
2 I mtioned ear lier in our [.eeting 2 other than Nr. Fossett about your request to 
3 that sore.e years I had chree assistanr ·· at least 3 reduce Ns. Eller Is position? 
4 one year I had three assistanr principals, and 4 A. I don1t recall. I usually speak to 
) roost of the years I had four. So one year one of 5 ~ administrative tearn in regards co whether 
6 my thoughts was, lee rr.e 111axfrize the number of 6 chey' re ·· what are their thoughts . 
7 teachers and try co sr.ave · · cut doi'll on the 7 Q. Kould your administrative teal!: 
8 nlllliber of supervisors. 8 include the assistant principals? 
9 That was · · I cannot say which year 9 A. Yes. 

10 chat m. . did noc find that ~e ~ere able to 10 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 31 was rearked 
11 funct ion in a way in which it lias best suited for 11 for identification.) 
12 success . 12 BY MR. NOGUL : 

B So everything and everybody me on 1J Q. Hr. Adal'.ls, please lee rr.e kno~ when 
14 che table ~hen you ·· every department, ~hether 14 you 1ve finished reviewing Exhibit 31. 
15 it ,as guidance · · guidance mt fm four to 15 A. !Witness reviews document .) 
16 chree personnel. One year I experir,ented with 16 Q, And so, Mr. Adams, this email is 
17 three administrators versus four. 17 coming a little over a month after the last email 
18 When 1ou look ac the creacive arts, 18 lie looked at ; is that correct? 
19 the reason you have to speak co the scheduler, 19 A. After school started, yes. 
20 rou think of the creative arts, because initially 20 Q, Right. And Septe~ber 23rd would 
21 rou roight say, 11111 losing an Fnglish teacher and 21 have been after school scamd. 
22 keeping a ·· a teacher of a nonassessed course, 22 Kas it nomal to request for a 
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1 such as P&. 1 reduccion in staff after the new school year had 

2 And even though your inclinat · on 2 started? 
3 might be co say, Well , English, the teacher is 3 A. The request did not cake place 

4 ioore i~portant than the PE teacher. 4 after the school year. The request took place 

5 Well, no. With the staffing and 5 before the school year. 
6 with the options, you may be looking at a PE 6 Q, The lo\\'er email is dated 
7 class thac has 60 kids in it because every child 7 Septewber 23rd? 
8 has to have a certain ·· so you have to look on 8 A. Right. But the initial request 
9 the · · on the popl!lation, the irrpact of the 9 took place before the school year. 

10 population that's going co be iirpacted based on 10 Q, I understand. But the 
11 the decision. 11 September 23rd email happened after the school 
12 So I 111. trying · · that has to be ·· 12 year had started? 
13 rou wane LO look at · · if I have five socia 13 A. After ,e made plant, yes. 
14 studies teachers, or reaybe four ·· I can It 14 Q. Do you recall conSl!lcing with 
15 reme~ber ·· can I afford to do this1 Can I 15 ~lr. Fossett before your Septe~ber 23rd ew.ail? 
16 afford to cut science? can I afford to cut 16 A. I don't, but it saya here that 11ill 

17 English? Can I afford to cut math? Can I afford 17 not happen -- I Im assuming ~·e did. 
18 to creatire ms? Can I afford to cut a 18 Q, Sorry. I 1m asking before your 
19 counselor? Can I afford to cut an administrator? 19 elllail. Do you remerber talking wich Mr. Fossect 
20 Can I afford to cut a secretary? I'\'e cut a 20 about ·· 
21 secretary before. 21 A. I do not reme~er a conversation. 
22 Q. So remning to my question: Do 22 I ' ffl going to assume for the sake of this ·· I 'II'. 
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1 going to ass~me that we ·· I can't say that. I 1 A. Yes. 
2 can 't assume. 2 Q. Sure. 
3 Q. Do you re1mmer consulting t1ith 3 A. Mr. Fossett may have been familiar 
4 anyone else prior to sending this 4 with the lmuit. 
5 Septe~r 23rd, 2015, eP.ail about reducing 5 Q. Thank you. 
6 Ms. mer's position? 6 !Ir. Adams, do you reme[ber 
7 A. No. 7 specifically asking one of the PP~s to address 
8 Q, rx, you kno\l' what Mr. Fossett means 8 WBT diversity at the grade-level asseF.blies? 
9 by 'They are holding all the teachers'? 9 A. I can't say I do or do not. I 

10 A. No. Well, I kno1t i,;hat that means, 10 can't Eay specific ·· I don't recall specific 
11 that *e are holding all the teachers. It means 11 conversations. 
12 that ~hatever redmion that we 11ere slated to 12 MR. MOGUL: Oka}'. That concludes 
lJ have to do is not going to take place after lie l] our questions. 
14 have made ·· for whatever reason, after we have 14 !IR. SIIARAA: I have a few, if I 
15 made arrangements or whatever ,e 've done, lie 15 w.a1. 
16 planned for it, that then they ·· evidently 16 MR. mGUL: Of course. 
17 they ·· he says, They are holding all teachers. 17 EXAMINATION 
18 In other ~'Ords, lihatever was ·· we 18 BY MR. Sllil.RNA: 
19 were told was going to happen is not going to 19 Q, !Ir. Adams, let 's talk about 

20 happen. 20 Ms. Kller coming to Friendly Kigh School. 
21 And this is · · so this is in · · so 21 Did yoo have any issues with her 

22 this is in after ·· afcer the fact , you I re 22 COll\ing to Friend! y, even though she was a 
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1 saying, Okay. I've iade these arrangerr.ents. 1 uansgender woman? 
2 I've properly notified ·· !'!I': assuming I've 2 A. No. I knew she was transgender. 
3 notified people. And now you're saying, No, 3 asked the liR for the resume; the reSUffle looked 
4 that 's not going to be the case. 4 appropriate; and said, Welcome aboard. 

5 Q. Do you recall having any follow-up 5 Probably had an interview, and 

6 conversations about this issue following the 6 said, Welco11.e aboard. 
7 septeaber 23rd eram 7 Q, So you r.tet ~ith her in person ·· 

8 A. I don't. 8 A. Yes. 
9 Q. A.~d do you kno111 if Ms. Eller's 9 Q, · · prior to her coming onboard? 

10 position was reduced during this school year? 10 A. I i'OUld think that . . I . . I cannot 

11 A. I'!!: going to assurr.e the anstier 11 reir.errber. I ll'Ould think that I would not have 
12 is ·· the ansm couldn't be ·· no, during the 12 not w.et ~ith her to say ·· I have not hired 
13 '15 • • It cocld not be. It could not be. 13 another errployee without meeting with theP.: ·· 
14 HR. MOGUL: Can lie take a 14 I've made one exception. An emplo}'ee was in Asia 
15 five-lftinute break? 15 and so we Skyped. And that was the only one that 
16 MR. SHARM: sure. 16 l(e ·· I can recall that we didn't ·· didn't meet 

17 (Off the record, 4:01 p.rr .. ) 17 in person before \\'e moved. 
18 (Back on the record, US p.m. l 18 Q. So as to Ms. Eller, )'OU n:et '1:ith 
19 TliR WITNESS: Can I address 19 her in person is your recollection? 
20 something? 20 A. I believe so . I believe so. 
21 BY MR. Mo:;{JL : 21 Q, ~lld h0\\1 was Ms. Eller as an English 
22 Q. On the record? 22 teacher? 

Worldwide Reporting, LLP 

Case 8:18-cv-03649-TDC   Document 106-7   Filed 06/09/21   Page 68 of 81



J.R. 199

Sheet 68 

266 268 
1 A. As an AP teacher or as a · · 1 4:15 or uo. 
2 Q. Let1s start with English, and we'll 2 4:15 or 4:30. And it was a·· the 
3 get to AP in a few wlnutes. 3 staff meeting was for 7: 15 to take a vote on 
4 A. As an English teacher, I thought 4 which one of the ·· which one of the plans would 
5 she was fine. We didn It have any ·· there Is 5 lie ·· ~e 're going to rr.ove forward as far as 
6 nothing that says that she was -: in her 6 collaborative planning, 
7 evaluation that says she itas not doing her job to 7 There were two options, the · · in 
8 the satisfaction of expectations. 8 regards to the association and not their union · · 
9 Q. To your recollection, me her 9 in regards to the teacher association, 

10 evaluations satisfactory? 10 PGCCP !sic] ·· I ·· their union ·· their 
11 A, Yes. 11 association. I 1msorry. 
12 Q. Did Ms. Eller Is status as a 12 The teachers can do two · · the}" re 
13 transgender wom play any role in your 13 obligated to do 225 minutes of planning. I 
14 evaluations of her as an English teacher? 14 wanted them to do 90 minutes of planning. With 
15 A. No, no. 15 one department, which was the social studies 
16 Q. Okay. And ~hat ·· and ~as there an 16 department, they didn I t want to do any 
17 occasion where you had to discipline Ms . Eller 17 collaborative planning. 
18 during her tenure at Friend! y High School? 18 oce took it to · · I asked that they 
19 A. Yes. 19 con:e in so we can take it to a vote so we could 
20 Q. can you tell us ithat those 20 move fomrd. That was the meeting that we ·· 
21 incidents were? 21 that Ms. Eller ·· I don't know if she stood up, 
22 A. 1 recall the situation 11:e had a 22 but she shouted out and · · on behalf of 
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1 morning meeting, an e11.ergency meeting in regards 1 ~Is. Gaffney, about the fairness and things of 
2 to collaborative planning. Ms. Eller referenced 2 that nature. 
j that in one of her e~.ail transmissions, that she 3 I don' t think she was a1t1are that · · 
4 had not gotten proper notification that they 4 she 11'.entioned that she ~as late and that she 
5 didn't hal'e to ·· staff meF.bers didn't have to 5 wasn't response -- that she didn't have to be 
6 check their emails aiter their duty day, i!hich 6 there at 7:15, because I allowed the~. to be late . 
7 was on septeniJler the 1st. We had an en:ail · · 7 Hy position was that I allowed theF.. 
8 we had a · · a · · an emgency meeting in regards 8 co be late because I'm aware of the traffic. 
9 to collaborative planning on Septewber the 2nd. 9 Some teachers come across the Wilson Bridge. 

10 I · · that was something that I 10 Other teachers come from the other side of the 
11 referenced earlier and said · · I looked on 11 Beltway. So emybody comes on 210 at a certain 
12 September the 1st, on that ·· 2015, that said 12 point. Some people come from 210 from below 
13 •met union rep! ; so I ·· I assurr.ed that was with B Charles County, 
14 Ms. Gaf fner and whoever else may have been a part 14 So I know there are · · there are 
15 of that association ·· I don 1t know if it was 15 concerns in regards to traffic · · variables. So 
16 just 11s. Gaffney ·· afm school. 16 I don't ·· I don' t have an issi:e with ther.. being 

17 And after that w.eeting, a decision 17 5, 10 minutes late. It Is still their duty day. 
18 was roade to call everybody together · - I don't 18 Like I said, I CO[.lftunicated .. 
19 kno'r if that was a collaborative decision in 19 after the cmmunication, I'm am'111ing it was ~•ith 
20 regards to how we ~ere going to move forward with 20 lls. Gaffney or someone else because it Is on my 

21 collaborative planning. 21 calendar that \Lie brought it to a vote. And the 
22 I niade that email at UO · · it was 22 vote tl'as just \Llhether you were going to do 90 
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1 minutes of collaborative planning or 225 minutes. 1 MR. MOGUL: Objection. 
2 And I don't need 225, ffiinutes because we can It 2 You can ansm. 
] supervise that, and that 's just beyond. ] TH8 WI'INESS: That was probably a 
4 Ms. Eller did reference that -- she 4 letter of reprimand. 
5 did reference re saying, Well, don I t -- you know, 5 BY MR. ~J!llA: 

6 you don It know the details of this situation, 6 Q. Okay. 
1 with lls . Gaffney. 1 A. I ·· it's in there. I'M guessing 
8 And the reason I lias surprised that 8 chat chat .:ould be a letter of reprfrand. I 
9 she was speaking on behalf of that was che 9 mean, frail'. rry perspective, you talk to the 

10 English departr.ent 111as doing the collaborative 10 student or you get infomation in regards to 
11 planning as -- as i r. was assigned. That 11 student -- I don I t know if I spoke to the student 
12 1tasn It -- they i'ere doing -- r.hey ~ere doing 12 or goc a security statement. 
13 exactly 'that ~e had always wanted and 11!hat I B I don It kno't if there me witness 
14 wanted them to continue. The math departrr.ent 14 statements. I Im assuming that there was witness 
15 was. ~e science depart~nt was . 15 state11.ents. There \ias a student staterrent. And 
16 The only departw.ent that had an 16 chen there was a ~s. Eller statement. 
17 issue with that was social studies, which 17 After the investigation, it was 
18 happened to be Ms. Gaffney' s depam,ent . That Is 18 deerr.ed chat sorething was thro11m fro~. Ms. Eller 
19 the department that Ms. Eller spoke on behalf of. 19 to the student. Ms. Eller referenced that ic was 
20 Q. So was Ms. Kller disciplined as a 20 thr01.111 at the desk and it bounced off the desk. 

21 result of her outbreak? 21 But, I 11.ean, that Is not the -- that Is not what 
22 A. Yes. 22 was consistent ~ith -· that wasn I t what -- 1vhat 

271 m 
1 Q. What was the discipline that she 1 was written on there, which led me to believe 

2 1as -- 2 chat che -- if a student accuses a teacher of 
] A. I forgot. I saw it. I saw it in ] something and not only am I going to have to gee 

4 one of the documents that it was · · she had 4 that statement, but Ke I re going to have to get 

5 erased sor..e of the stuff and written in her 5 1//itness statements because ·· on the ·· on the ·· 

6 explanation, but, I 11.ean, it was in chere. I 6 just on the surface, I mean, the teacher has more 

1 don It remember if it was ·· 7 credibility than the student. Bd 1i:e can't just 

8 Q. A letter of counsel or reprimand? 8 discount the student , so i.e have to get 
9 A. I mn, it 1s ·· somebody's got a 9 additional infomtion. 

10 copy. 10 So I'o assuming that additional 

11 Q. Do you recall an incident where 11 information said she did throw it at the student. 
12 ris. Eller struck a student with a pen? 12 Whether it bit the table or the -- that Is -· and 

13 HR. m: Objection. B chat Is what I referenced in with the ·· the 
14 You can ans11:er. 14 e111ai 1. And I don I t know if that -- that email 
15 TliE WITI:ESS: Once I looked at the 15 chat -- that parent contact -- . don It kno~ if 
16 doc1.m:enc, I said, Oh, yeah. 16 chat 1 s dated after the -- the letter 'ilas 't'I'itten 

17 Did I remewber that from -- would I 17 as -- as a -- or if it was a -- I don I t know -- I 
18 re~~ber thac fro!! conversation? No. 18 don't know why · - tP.at Is the -- I ITtlltioned that 
19 BY MR. SHARMA: 19 earlier. 
20 Q. Do you recall what, if any, 20 That's the first tilre -- I don I t 
21 discip ine 11as i~sed on Ns. Eller for miking 21 rmrrber seeing a parent contact 103 that looked 
22 a student with a pen? 22 like chat. And my 11ondering when seeing that 
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1 was · · was this something that was done knowing I everybody ·· what I mean, every stat f ~e!ruler, 
2 that the given sicuation and reaching out to the 2 every parent , every person outside yoi:r building. 
3 teacher · · I don't know · · reaching out to the 3 Two, it felt like docu[.enmion. 
4 parent. I'm sorry. 4 It felt like documentation. So rou didn't want 
5 Q, But you do recall that there was 5 chat co be ·· you didn't 111ant to be unresponsive. 
6 some kind of discipline imposed on Ms. Eller for 6 Q, Okay. ~.nd sitting here today, do 
7 that incident? 7 you believe that you responded to each and every 
8 A. There itas. 8 one of Ns. Eller's complaints that were made 
9 Q, Do you recall an incident when 9 knoi'Il to you? 

10 lls. mer had a nervous breakdo1i1J1 in the 10 A. Yes. 
11 classroom and told the class to shut the fuck up? 11 Q. And the vast majority of those 
12 A. I remeMer · · I vaguely remember a 12 responses ~ould have been via email? 
13 nervous breakdo~'Il or so11.ething that unnerved 13 A. Oh, definitely. if you · · if you 
14 ~s . -· I don It kno~ if it was a formal 14 send me an email, I'm going to respond to you in 
15 explanation as a nervous breakdO\'Il, but it's 15 email. 
16 something that i:nnerved Ms. Eller. I don't 16 If you · · if you col".€ to me and say 
17 remerober the specifics about ·· you know, shut 17 something to me, then I w.ay not. If you say 
18 the fuck up. I don It rernewber that. 18 something to me about a situation, I may look and 
19 Q, Do you know if that incident led to 19 might say something back to you . 
20 any t}~e of discipline for Ms. Eller? 20 But I know that you now have an 
21 A. I would think. Yeah, i would 21 electronic receipt of reaching out to ~.e that can 
22 think. 22 be ·· you have an electronic receipt. So there 's 
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1 Q, 8\!t you don't have any recollection 1 no ifs, ands and buts about it. 
2 sitting here? 2 Actually, I would tell my parents, 
3 A. I don't recall. 3 reach out to your · · if you have a concern with 
4 Q. Do you recall any other incidence 4 the teacher, I pref er that you not call; I pref er 
5 of discipline that hasn't been rrmioned today? 5 that you send an email , because there is an 
6 A. I don I t recall. 6 electronic receipt, 
7 Q, Each and every ciIT.e that you 7 Q. ~ould Ms. Eller typically 
8 imposed discipline on Ms. Eller, did her 8 cotmlunicate with you via ero.ail or in writing as 
9 transgender status play a role in your 9 opposed to in person? 

10 decision-ro.aking process? 10 A. If she had a concern, email . 
11 A. No. 11 Q, There's an allegation in the 
12 Q, You ewphasized earlier that ·· 12 complaint that Ms. Eller 'ias physically 
B that ·· there was some back-and-forth bet~een 'JOU 13 assaulted. Are you aware of any incident of 
14 and Mr. Mcqul, and there \ias ·· you emphasized 14 physical assault against Ms. Eller during your 
15 that there should have been a response co an 15 tenure as principal at Friendly High School? 
16 email from Ms. Eller. 16 A. I'm not ati:are of that. 

17 Were 'JOU consciously always trying 17 Q, Are you aware of any complaints 
18 to respond to Ms. Eller' s emails with regard to 18 chat Ms. Eller made to you about being physically 
19 her coroplaints? 19 assaulted? 
20 A. Definitely. 20 A. Nothing comes to 1'1ind. 
21 Q, Why is that~ 21 Q, And are physical · · were physical 
22 A. One, you respond to everyone. And 22 assaults co«mon at Friendly High School during 
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1 your tenure -- 1 Q. Okay. ~ould diversity be one of 
2 A. No. 2 che icems on an agenda during a monthly staff 
3 Q. -- amongst -· 3 meeting, to your recollection? 
4 A. No. 4 A. I can1t remerober a specific 
5 Q. -- onco stam 5 sicuadon where we said diversity training is on 
6 A. No. 6 chis -- on this training -- I can It retember 
7 Q. We have spent a lot of fae talking 7 specifics. 
8 about training this morning. I just want to make 8 Q. OCho would set the agenda for these 
9 sure that I Im clear. 9 staff ~.eetings? 

10 You indicated that staff is trained 10 A. I would set and approve the agenda. 
11 once a year. Is that correct? 11 But there were people who -- who had insight on 
12 A. There Is a formal process by which 12 what needed to be a part of the training based on 
13 they are trained on a nuwber of factors. 13 stuff that had come down from the County ·· i.e. , 
14 Q. Are you ref erring to the online 14 instruction, just what ·· instruction, student 
15 training ~.oddes chat staff has to complete on 15 interaction, whatever would come do~'D1 whether 
16 their own? 16 it Is from the different departments or · - so ·· 
17 A. That. ~.nd prior to the online, 17 Q. Let me just back up for one second. 
18 those trainings took place in the school. 18 ~as the student population at 
19 Q. Okay. 19 Friendly High School diverse, in your opinion? 
20 A. Those trainings took place in staff 20 A. By 'diverse• ·· 
21 meetings at the beginning of the year. 21 Q. Did you have students that were 
22 Q. Bl!t you 11:ould agree, would you not, 22 gay, lesbian, bisexual ·· 
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1 that staff is mined at the beginning of the 1 A. Yes. 
2 school year each and every year? 2 Q. -- transgender? 
3 A. Yes. 3 A. Yes. 
4 Q. Regarding issues from mdatory 4 Q. And were there any other staff 

5 reporting requirements to diversity mining? 5 me111bers at Friendly High School that me? 
6 A. Correct. 6 A. There were other gay staff ~.erbm. 
1 Q. And you yourself had to undergo 7 Yes, there are other gay staff metnbers . Had a 
8 those trainings, did you not? 8 gay administrator. The adroinistrator who 
9 A. Correct. 9 identified as gay, as an administrator. Teachers 

10 Q. Along ~ich each and every staff 10 that identified as gay, yes. 
11 member in that building? 11 Q. Going back to the training, you 
12 A. Correct. 12 mentioned that for students, there 11as an 
13 Q. You also mentioned training that 13 asseirbly once a semester? 
14 was provided to suff once a month. Is that 14 A. Yes. 
1, accurate? 15 Q. And during that asselllbly, the 
16 A. I reference staff -- staff 16 students 1/.lere made a'tiare of diversity issues, 

11 meetings. 17 mining, inclusion, all the terms that Mr. Mogul 
18 Q. Okay. Were trainings provided at 18 used earlier today, were they not? 
19 these meetings? 19 MR. VtOGUL: Objection. 
20 A. If that me on the agenda, yes. 20 THE WITNESS: Yes. 
21 Not every meeting had minings for · · it depends 21 BY MR. SHARMA : 
22 on what was on the agenda. 22 Q. isn't it also true that the 
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1 students received a student rights handbook -- 1 che end of the yeari 
2 A. Yes. 2 A. Okay. So there are t'lio AP classes 
3 Q. · - at the beginning of each year? 3 chat she took over. 
4 A. And that Is what I was crying to 4 Q. Okay. 
5 reference earlier. Yes. 5 A. The first AP class was llch-grade 
6 Q. And they were also required to fill 6 AP, And I 111 give you the scores of the teacher 
7 out an acknowledgment form which indicaced that 7 before Ns. Eller, Ms. Eller Is scores, and the 
8 they had actually reviewed and receh-ed a copy of 8 teacher after Ms . Eller. 
9 the student rights handbook? 9 Q. Sure. That would be great. 

10 A. Exactly, yes. 10 A. So the teacher before Ms. Eller, 
11 Q. In that handbook, does it not 11 one year she had four students score successful 
12 preclude discrimination and harassreent and 12 scores, which is 3 or above. The next year she 
13 bullying ·· 13 had three students score successful scores, which 
14 A. It does. 14 are 3 or above. 
15 Q. · - based on sexual orientation, 15 Ms. Eller took over, and her first 
16 amongst other categories of people? 16 year she had three students score 3 or above. 
17 A. Yes. 17 lier second year, she had zero stcdents score 3 or 
18 Q. The AP class, Ms. Eller was 18 above. I m,ored her at that point. 
19 teaching AP English? 19 The next year, the teacher who took 
20 A. Yes. There was a period where she 20 over chat class had six students score 3 or 
21 was teaching 11th-grade AP English and 21 above. 
22 12th-grade AP English. 22 Q. Okay. ~hat was the other class 
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1 Q. And there ca~.e a point in time when 1 Ms. Eller taughti 
2 rou decided to remove from her that position; 2 A. The other class had · · had -· was 
3 isn't that correct] 3 12th-grade AP English. And the year before 
4 A. Both positions, yes. 4 Ms. Eller, they had an average score of 2.11. 

5 Q. Why did you do chat, sir: 5 She had 5 students score 3 or above. 
6 A. The data. 6 Ms. Eller took over the class. The 
7 Q. The data? 7 first year she had one student score 3 or above, 
8 A. Yes. 8 and she had a class average of 1.5. 

9 Q. Whac data~ 9 The second year Ms. Eller had che 
10 A. So for one of the AP 10 class, she had one student score 3 or abo\'e, and 
11 classes ·· well, advanced plam.ent has five 11 she had a class average of I. 43. 
12 scores, I, 2, 3, (, 5, in regards t0 their efficiency, 12 The third year she had the class, 
u with the class. 13 she had a class average of 1.31. And she had one 
14 And they take a test ac the end of 14 student score. 
15 the year ·· 15 That was the ·· the teacher ~ho 
16 Q. Right. 16 cook over for Ms. Eller 1r1as Ms. Clagget c, the 

17 A. -· and if they get a 3 or above, 17 teacher that there was the incident with. 
18 that is considered passing; and that is 18 I saw in the notes that you sho11ed 
19 considered -· they benefit from that by being 19 me that you shared l.l'itb me that Ms. Eller deemed 
20 able to possibly get college credit. 20 chat Ms. Claggett ~asn It qualified to teach che 
21 Q. And what were Ms. Eller Is students 1 21 class. But the first year that Ms. Claggett 
22 scores like on that advanced-placement cesting at 22 uugbc the class, she had an average of 1.68. 
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1 So I saw the trend of I been a while since I've been in the classroom. 
2 U, I. n, 1.31. I saw the trend going down, in 2 Q, OChat about her base salary; ~ould 
3 the wrong direction. 3 chat change? 
4 The · · the next year, chat teacher 4 A. Not at all. Not at all. 
5 ~as 1.68, which was ·· which was a higher average 5 Q, So when you removed Ms, Eller from 
6 score, mean score than any of the -- any of 6 11th-grade AP English or 12th-grade AP English, 
7 lls. Eller' s classes in both of those. So I -- I 7 her base pay stayed same? 
8 don't know what happened to that teacher after I 8 A. Yeah. I don't have anything to do 
9 left, but I felt like we reversed ·· reversed the 9 with chat. That doesn't affect base pay. 

10 data, reversed the mnd. 10 Q, Okay. ~hat about her benefits; 
11 Q, Okay. So let ir.e just back up for 11 were rhey affected? 
12 one second. 12 A. No. 
13 When a teacher teaches an AP class, 13 Q. Her leave status, was that 
14 such as Ms. Eller, she was teaching 11th-grade 14 aff ecced? 
15 and 12th-grade AP English; is that comet? 15 A. No. 
16 A. Correct. 16 Q, Besides Ms. Eller, did i1ou rer.ove 
17 Q. Would she have regular English 17 any ocher AP classes during those years · · 
18 classes as well, or was that pretty w.uch her 18 A. Yes. 
19 workload for the day? 19 Q, · · AP teachers from their classes? 
20 A. So there would be at least another 20 A. Yes. 
21 class for a teacher. They had three classes a 21 Q. OCho else did you remove? 
22 day. So Ms, Eller would have had a third class 22 A. I removed !Ir. Young from AP 
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1 in addition to those classes, and the teachers 1 calculus. I reIOOved Ms, Rawls from AP English. 
2 could have three preps, 2 That 1 s the replacement to Ms, Eller. 
3 Q, Three 'fhat? 3 I removed Ms, Strickland at AP · · i 
4 A. Preparations, I I ff. sorry. Three · · 4 don It knoll' what social studies class that was; AP 
5 three different classes, 5 US history, I think. I removed her from that, 
6 Q. I gotcha. 6 The AP nurobers m.e back every 
7 And so when you removed Ms , Eller 1 year, so it made it ·· you could · · you could · · 
8 from 11th-grade AP English, she was teaching 8 cue and dried. You can give them at least two 
9 what at that point 1 then? Did she revert back to 9 years and say, Arn I seeing success or am I seeing 

10 a regular English teacher for three periods? 10 a mnd towards success? 
11 A. There 'fas a point · · I kno~ 11 So I removed !ls. · · I think it ~as 
12 Ms, Eller taught 12th-grade English. And I 12 Ms. ·· Ms. Simmons, Dr. Sirooons frora an AP class, 
13 kno,.i Ms. Eller taught 10th-grade English. 13 She 1s referenced in one of the ·· Lauren SiF.100ns, 
14 The · · I did not put Ms. Eller in a 14 I can It ·· without referencing data, without 
15 9th-grade class because those seel!ed to be the 15 referencing the information, I can't ·· but it 
16 least mature of wy children · · they seemed to be 16 lias · · it 's not ·· it's something that I didn't 
17 the least mature of my children. And I did not 17 have · · the data would say whether 11e' re being 
18 see evidence that that would be a ·· a good fit 18 successful or not or whether we 1 re seeing 
19 for the teacher or the students. 19 positive trends, And if not, then 'lie have to 
20 Q. Would teachers get paid extra for 20 1110ve for111ard. 
21 teaching AP classes? 21 Q. Did Ms. Eller' s status as a 
22 A. Again, I'd have to check. It 's 22 mnsgender woman have any role in yol!r 
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1 decision-making process to remove her from AP 1 until ·· until I got notification from the legal 
2 English: 2 office that I Im being subpoenaed. 
3 A. Ro. That Is -- her resume said she 3 Q. Do you believe you willful! y 
4 taught college English. And I felt like that may 4 ignored Ms. Eller Is complaints that were 111.ade to 
5 be a phenomenal fit in order for AP students to 5 you: 
6 achieve success, sow.ebody who is familiar with 6 A. No. I think we made it a ·· 
7 college curriculum. 7 made ·· made a concerted effort to make sure 
8 Q. Did Ms. Eller Is complaint of 8 we 1re responsible in a timely manner. I chink 
9 discrimination affect your role ·· affect your 9 you can respond up to 48 hours later. But if you 

10 decision-ro.aking process to remove her from AP 10 nodced, the response is ·· my responses were 
11 English? 11 never -- they I re never -- they never near 4 8 
12 A. No. 12 hours. 
B Q. In fact , i believe you bad 13 And they're either, Pm going co 
14 testified earlier you ileren1t even made aware the 14 address it or this person or let 111e put you in 
15 charge of discriin.ination that Ms. Eller filed. 15 contact so they can IOOve forward the 
16 A. This is the first time I 1ve seen 16 investigation. 
17 this document, and thac 1s why I mentioned ·· no. 17 It was never a situation where you 
18 This is the first time I1ve seen that document. 18 wanted to discount her concerns. 
19 Q. To your knoitledge, has Ms . Eller 19 Q. You mentioned -- you all discussed 
20 ever filed a complaint against you for 20 a conditional certificate. 
21 discrimination? 21 A. Yes. 
22 A. Not -- I can only reference in the 22 Q. Do you know why Ms. Eller 
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1 meeting she said, I 1ve done it before. You ·· 1 transitioned from a ·· what is it? Permanent 
2 I 1ve done it -- and I forgot what she stated 2 certificate or ·· 
3 specifically. 'You know I 111 do it again. 1 3 A. Yes. 
4 Q. I 1~. sorry. What do you rr.ean by 4 Q. -- to a conditional one? 
5 that: 5 A. There Is a certain -- there are a 
6 A. In a w.orning meeting, when she 6 certain number of courses that you have to keep 
7 yelled out, she said smething about, 11 will sue 7 up to date on. And if you don1t keep up t0 dace, 
8 you, and I've done it before, ' so1r.ething to that 8 that affects your certification status. 
9 reference. 9 I think it mentioned in ~.y email 

10 Q. She threatened you with a lawsuit? 10 that there were six credits that she did not take 
11 A. Yes. 11 in a given time period, which she was 
12 Q. I see. 12 professionally required to do. 
B Were 1ou aware of any other 13 Q. And who rakes that know co you: 
14 internal grievances filed by Ms. Eller? 14 Is there a department within the Prince George1s 
15 A. The only things I 'I/as aware of ·· 15 County Public Schools that keeps track of 
16 whatever I was aware oi, there's a response to 16 certifications and credits and requirer.encs, to 

17 it. I was not aware of ·· I was not aware that 17 your knowledge: 
18 she had filed that. H A. Yes. I don 1 t know what part of 
19 Q. And you weren It atiJare until such 19 human resources does that. But it has nothing ·· 
20 time at -- until after you left Friendly High 20 their rnaintaining their certification statuses 
21 School? 21 were not a part that -- that corrmunication or 
22 A. I wasn It aware of it until ·· 22 that loop. 
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1 We don I t -- we don I t subrr.i t 1 Q. Are you aware of a point in time 
2 anything on behalf of the teachers. We don It 2 when ~Is. Eller became accredited again to get her 
3 have any ef feet. We just ·· if something is not 3 permanent certification? 
4 done, we get a notification that someone Is status 4 A. No. No. 
5 has changed, 5 Q. The Torch Club, are you familiar 
6 Q, And you or the school sysm plays 6 with that? 
7 no part in a certified teacher Is waintenance of 1 A. This is the first time I 1m hearing 
8 their accreditation, do you? 8 of that tern .. 
9 A. No. That 1s their professional 9 Q. The club that was at Friendly liigh 

10 responsibility to maintain their certification. 10 School was Colours? 
11 Q. So Ms. Eller failed to maintain her 11 A. Caring Colours. 
12 certification? 12 Q. Caring Colours, are you familiar 
13 MR. ~-UL: Objection. 13 with that cll!b? 
14 You may anmr. 14 A. Yes. 
15 BY MR. SHARMA: 15 Q. ~hat is it? 
16 Q. Based on the fact that she 16 A. It was a club that Ms. Eller asked 
17 wasn't ·· 17 co bring to Friendly High School LfBT students so 
18 A. Yes. 18 they would have a · · they would have a · · a · -
19 Q. · - accredited? 19 I1d have to look. 
20 A. Yes, yes. 20 They would have an organized group 
21 Q. So she lost tenure of her own 21 for a platform so if there ~ere concerns, that 
22 volition? 22 they could connect, relate. And just they had 
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1 A, Yes. 1 a -- chey had a -- what's the \'Ord I Im looking 
2 MR.W: Objection. 2 for? 
3 BY MR. SHARMA: 3 They had a con.nection based on 

4 Q. And as a result of losing tenure of 4 the · · they had a connection based on this. So 
5 her 0\111 volition, she beca~.e the least ·· she 5 I' ll give you an example. 
6 became subject to a staff reduction in che event 6 There m a club that was the 
1 that the kdget so required · · 1 Christian connection, so Christians, you know, 
8 MR. MO:;UL: Objection. 8 Christian students who wanted to connect with 
9 BY MR. SHARMA: 9 each other could meet. So it m like interest. 

10 Q. -- within the English department · · 10 Like inmm, based on like interest. And they 
11 MR. MC(;UL: Objection. 11 could connect and meet on a consistent basis. 
12 BY MR. SHARMA: 12 Q. So lls. Eller approached you about 
u Q. -- because she was the least-senior 13 starting this club, or was it already in 
14 emploree? 14 existence prior to you getting there? 
15 MR. MC(;UL: Objection. 15 A. No, it wasn1t already in existence. 
16 TliE WITNESS: She becarr.e che 16 She · · she wanted to initiate that, and that ~as 

17 least-senior employee in the English department. 17 not an issue. 
18 BY MR. SHARMA: 18 Q. OChat was your response, if ant 
19 Q. And if everyone else in the English 19 A. It Is not an issue. We have -· you 
20 department was tenured, would she be the first to 20 kno11;, we have students that fall into this 
21 be reduced dt:e to a budget reduction? 21 category, and great. 
22 A. Yes. 22 Q. Okay. ~hat are the reql!im.encs · · 
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1 you have to seek approval from a superior? Is 1 for cemin. 
2 this within your discretion to start a new club 2 Q. And at the time yo~ left Friendly 
] such as this? ] liigh School, the club was still in existence? 
4 A. I don 1 t have to seek superior 4 A. Yes. 
) approval. It 1 s not a •· it Is not an err.olument. 5 Q. Met once a 11eek? 
6 It 1s a cl\Jb. It1s not an emoluir.ent, so I don1t 6 A. I don1t know. 
7 have to seek approval. 7 Q, After school? 
8 Q. Okay. ~.nd is there a · · do these 8 A. Yes. 
9 clubs require so1!1.e t)~e of budget requirements 9 Q, And what was the enrollment like in 

10 or ·· 10 the club? Do you have any idea how ~any students 
11 A. No. 11 took part? 
12 Q. · · funding frorr: the school? 12 A. No. I was never · · I was never 
1] A. No. No. An etr.olument would. A 1] invited. So ·· so there were certain clubs where 
14 club doesn It have to. An emolurent follows a 14 people say, Nr. Adams, come on through. And if 
1) club that yo~ can connect to an instructional 15 they asked you to come in for whatever reason 1 

16 improvement ·· i. e, 1 if there 1 s a math club or 16 then you corr.e in and say, Hey I hi. Bd I don 1 t 
17 something that yo~ can say ·· you can tie that 17 want someone to think that I 1111. spying · · 
18 to, I 1m going to improve instruction based on the 18 Q. Sure. 
19 interactionj after-school interaction. 19 A. ·· on their club. 
20 Q. Okay. So you approved her request 20 Q. And students I do they need LO fill 
21 to start this club? 21 out permission forms or slips to attend this 
22 A. Yes. 22 club? 
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1 Q. Was there any other staff member 1 A. No. 
2 that lias going to be a part of this besides 2 Q. Okay. And you don It know 'llhat the 
] !ls. Eller? 3 enrollment was likej bow many st~dents 'lie 're 
4 A. Not to !1!.Y knowledge. 4 talking about? 
5 Q. Okay. And how often did the club 5 A. No. 
6 meet? 6 Q. Okay. Did you ever have an 
7 A. I cannot · · I cannot say. 7 occasion to visit or attend a session of the 
8 Q. Do you recall the years 11hen this 8 club? 
9 club was in existence for? 9 A. No. She didn't ·· she didn1t 

10 A. There was a reference · · in one of 10 imrite w,e. 

11 the documentsj there1s a reference to wanting to 11 Q. And why did you approve the chili, 

12 start a ckb. There was an okay. 12 other than there being students of these classes 
13 There ~as ·· it \las ·· I don It know 13 of people? Were you trying to accomr..odate 
14 whether that was ·· I don 1 t know what year that 14 Ms. Eller in any way? 
15 was, but it was ·· I don1t seem to be ·· I don1t 15 A. There Is a common interest. There 1 s 
16 seem · • I don 't think ch ere was a problem. I 16 a corrmon interest that a teacher had an 

17 don I t think it ended. 17 enthusiasw. for. That usually liodd constitute it 
18 Q. Was the club started at or around 18 starting a chib, 
19 the tiroe Ms. Eller car.e onboard at Friendlyj or 19 You would ·· you wanted more clubs 
20 did it take a couple of years to get going? 20 and organizations than you possibly · · than you 
21 A. I thought it was early. I didn't 21 probably had. But you bad to have someone who 
22 think it took a couple of years J but I can It say 22 was vested and ·· vested in the success of that 
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1 organization ·· i.e., chess club. 1 student , even if there Is · · even if there is an 
2 Q. Other than the one ·· I believe it 2 option. 
3 was the one email where ·· the parent log email 3 So when !ls. Eller was teaching 
4 or · · do you know ~hat I 1111 talking about? ~ere 4 AP English, there wasn It another teacher that 
5 you aware of any other incidents where ~Is. Eller 5 could teach that. If she Is teaching 10th-grade 
6 complained about parents and harassment or 6 English, then if you rrove one child out of 
7 bullying or discrimination? 7 10th-grade English because they mt to be ~.oved, 
8 A. No. No. No. No. I 1tean ·· 8 then you have to · · then you have no recourse for 
9 Q, What iias your recourse like for 9 not moving mry child. 

10 parents? What could you do with parents other 10 Q, ocas there ever an occasion where 
11 than ban them from physically entering the 11 you disallowed Ms. Eller fro111 taking leave of any 
12 schooH 12 sort? 
13 A. So recourse as if · · as in if a ·· 13 A. No. 
14 I don It want my child in a class? 14 Q, Did Ms. Eller make know co you 
15 Q, Sure, stm there. 15 that she ~as receiving counseling or medical 
16 A. I could start with that person 16 treatment of anr type during her tenure at 
17 is · · is · · is certified, is qualified and is in 17 Friendly High School? 
18 a position to be successful. 18 A. I want to say Ms. Eller P.'ade it 
19 So wich Ms. Eller, I remembered 19 kno\11 that she had SOJl\e health concerns. I don't 
20 that she taught college, 111hich i.'as a ·· which \I/as 20 kno,• if that 's -- I can It say that they me 
21 a plus in regards to preparing our children for 21 ongoing or it 1iras a specific time period. 
22 college. 22 In regards to when a teacher 
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1 Q, Had a parent ever requested that 1 leaves, if a teacher requests to leave, lie do 
2 their child be removed frow. Ms. Eller' s class? 2 everything in our power to · · to allo..- that 
3 A. Probably. I would think so. 3 mcher to leave, utilize their leave. 
4 Q. Did you, in fact , remoYe a student 4 I saw in one of the references that 
5 from Ms. Eller' s class based on a parent request? 5 !Is. Eller was concerned because she wanted to 
6 A. That would not be my first 6 leave. Then by the time we Id get a sub, that it 
7 recourse. I cannot sit here and definitively say 7 was only a ·· a ·· a part, maybe ·· i don't know 
8 that someone over the course of howem many · · 8 how w.uch tirre had passed, but there is ·· there 
9 over the course of rey cfo,e at Friendly and in her 9 is documentation in there from her saying that, I 

10 course of her tfae at Friend! y that no one was 10 wanted co leave at a specific time; I couldn' t 
11 removed. 11 leave until another time and why am I being 
12 I know there were · · there are 12 charged for · · her concern was a half day. 
13 classes · · there were children who had a 13 Policy is we only have a full day 
14 less-than-ideal relationship with Ms. Eller, 14 and a half day. We don't -- for staff ·· 
15 either through their point of view or through 15 teaching staff members, we can It break it ·· 
16 11s, Eller ' s point of view. 16 chey're not hourly employees . We can't break it 
11 Ol!r position was · · our position 17 up inte a quarter of a day. 
18 was not to open that possibility, because then 18 Q. ~ith respect to complaints F.ade by 
19 \'OU couldn't be consistent. And it's not fair 19 staif 111embers about other staff , they I re supposed 
20 to ·· it Is not fair to the ·· in this case, it 20 to con:plete the mo form, correct, charge of 
21 1/iouldn't be fair co Ms. Eller. And it wouldn't 21 discri111ination? That was one of the exhibits? 
22 be fair to the teacher that Is receiving that 22 A. I Id have to look. I haven't been 
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1 in the school for two years. 1 A. I don1t. 
2 Q. Is it your understanding that those 2 Q. Don I t recall if her first year at 
3 complaints are investigated by the eiployee labor 3 Friendly was one where she had taught the AP 
4 relations office? 4 classes? The 11th-grade AP class. 
5 A. Yes. 5 A. I don't think that, based on the 
6 Q. So the investigation isn It done at 6 fact that the last year ·· 2016, the last year I 
1 the school bdlding level? 1 was there, I know Ms. Linda Wilkinson taught the 
8 A. No. And let me apologize for 8 AP 11th-grade students and rPaybe two years. I 
9 forgetting that forn., because I haven I t been in 9 don It know. So -- I know Ms. Linda Wilkinson 

10 the building for a while. 10 was teaching one class, and Ms. Claggett was 
11 Q. No. I, understand. 11 teaching another class. 
12 Did you ever treat Ns. Eller 12 And I kno\i Ms. Eller1s ·· 
B differently because she's a transgender woman? 13 Ms. Ell er' s time · · well, she tacght two years, 
14 A. No. 14 and then she could not · · i could not have 
15 Q. Did you ever retaliate against her 15 started there. 
16 for being transgender? 16 Ms. Rawls, I don It know the year 
17 A. No. 17 chat Ms . Eller started that AP · · AP ·· 
18 Q. Did you ever recaliace against her 18 12th-grade English. I don It know the year thac 
19 for anything that she may have filed against 19 lls. Eller started. But I think that 11;as three 
20 anyone at the school? 20 years, and two years for the other AP. 
21 A. No. 21 Q. And you mentioned, I think, that in 
22 For the record, \1hen a teacher · - a 22 che year that Ms. Claggett took over 12th-grade 
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1 staff 11',ember, when they do something 1 AP English, you mentioned the average score. But 
2 inappropriate , professionally, I 're responsible 2 I don It think you mentioned hoi. many st1:dents 
3 for s~eeping that under the rug and w.oving 3 chat year received a grade ·· a score of 3 or 
4 fon:ard, whether that be any teacher, and taking 4 above. 
5 the ·· taking the appropriate action, then moving 5 A. One. 
6 forward. I can I t hold it against chem. 6 Q. Okay. So that was the same as the 
7 MR. MOGUL: Okay. 7 years that Ns. Eller had taught AP English in 
8 FURTHER EXANIKATIOK 8 terns of the number that had received 3 or above. 
9 BY MR. MOOUL: 9 A. Yeah, but not the average. 

10 Q. Jl!St a few more questions. 10 Q, And do you know how many students 
11 A few fflinuces ago you were talking 11 were taking nth-grade and 12th-grade AP 
lt with ~lr. Sharma about AP grade statistics. 12 English during these yearsi 
B A. They weren I t grades. They \lfere 13 A. I couldn It recall those numbers. 
14 scores. 14 Q. Do you know if the nur of 
15 Q. AP score statistics. 15 students ebbed and flowed or stayed fairly 
16 ~Jld yoc referenced there were t~•o 16 constant over those years? 

17 years that Ms. Eller taught nth-grade AP. 17 A. I don It recall seeing a number 
18 A. Yes. 18 where you say, Oh, wow, we have this surge or 
19 Q, Do you know which years those were? 19 this -· I don I t recall seeing a change in numbers 
20 Do you have that infonnacion? 20 like that. And that's why I Im looking at the 

21 A. I don't. I don't. 21 average · · the mean Kould tell you, based on ho11: 
22 Q. Okay. 22 many students, 111hat . . . 
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1 Q. Was -· during each of these years, 1 So I'm ·· r1m just going co -- r1m 
2 both the years ir.:mediacely preceding Ms . Eller 1 s 2 going to assume that, but I can 1 t go through all 
3 teaching of AP English and afcmard, 'ilas there 3 the departments. And, like I said, they -- else 
4 only one AP English class in each grade level? 4 I would have said, I have two teachers in one 
5 A. English, yes. Yes. I don't have 5 depament that -- how -- how do we approach 
6 the nu~ber of 2s. I think the nurrber of 2s would 6 that? 
7 shed some light on -- al though we would not say 7 Q. So you I re assuming, based on the 
8 that that was mcess in regards to being 8 email, that there were no other teachers in 
9 successful. 9 English that were conditionally certified? 

10 It would show that there Is -- 10 A. Correct. 
11 there Is -- it would show something. It would be 11 Q. But you don't know that absolutely 
12 some data that we had co take into account. So 12 certain? 
u you could have -- you could have a 3 and have all 13 A. Not without going back and looking 
14 other ls, and then you could have one 3 and have 14 at docureents ·· documentation. 
15 ten 2s, and I cannot r..easure them the same. 15 Q. Okay. And I believe you were 
16 I can say, Well , at least we have 16 discussing with Mr. Shama the online training 
17 10 students that were close as opposed co zero 17 modules that are offered at the beginning of each 
18 students that were close, and that Is why I gave 18 year co staff members? 
19 you the average. 19 A. Yes. 
20 Q. I believe when you were speaking 20 Q. Are those required of every staff 
21 with Mr. Sharma, that you testified that \!'hen 21 me~ber to coreplete: 
22 Ms. Eller beca1ce conditionally certified, that 22 A. Yes, sir, 
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1 meant that she was least senior in the English 1 Q. ~.nd do you recall, every year is 
2 depart~ent . 2 there a diversity component of that training 
3 A. Correct. 3 module? 
4 Q. Before when we were talking about 4 A. I recall seeing a diversity module 
5 that, you said that you couldn It recall how many 5 when 11:e ~ent through the -- when I went through 
6 other teachers might have been on conditional 6 the penal this year. 
7 certification or not certified at all. So how 7 Q. Okay. 
8 could you say that she was definitely the least 8 A. I don't ·· I've been throi:gh the 
9 senior in the English departrr.enU 9 portal previous years . I couldn It say if I -- if 

10 A. No, I thought you were talking 10 I go inco the portal for the training, when I 1 w. 

11 about throughout the school. 11 in, I can say, Oh, yeah, r remember this. 
12 Q. Okay. So is your testireony that 12 But I can't say, so -- I can't say 
13 •1ou know that no other English teacher was 13 chat che nurrber of things that might have ended 
14 conditionally certified during that year \llhen ,ou 14 up being, whether it Is blood-borne pathogens or 
15 discussed the reduction of Ms . Eller 1s position? 15 whatever. 
16 A. Based on the el!'ail, the one 16 Q. So you can't say for sure 'llhether 
17 email -- based on the one email. Otherwise, 17 the online training module before the 2019/2020 
18 if -- if there were multiple people, then that 18 school year included a diversity COfflponent? 
19 ~·ouldn I t -- that would be a process that Is 19 A, Can I? 
20 different. That wouldn't necessarily be, Well, 20 Q. Yeah. 
21 then here's your certification versus someone 21 A. I was out of the system for 16 
22 else Is certification. 22 months; so, no, I can I t say -- speak to that. 
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Sheet 80 

Jl4 316 

1 Q. Before you '.'ere out of the system, 
2 'iould that online training module ·· do you 1 CERTIFICATE OF SHORTHAND REPORTER 

3 recall if it inckded a diversity cow.ponent? 2 

4 A. I would have to look at it and say 3 i, Gail Inghram Verbano, Registered 

5 what it inckded. 4 Diplomm Reporter, Certified Realtfoe Reporter, 

6 Q, So you don It recall? 5 Certified Shorthand Reporter (CA) and Notary 

1 A. I don I t recall. 6 Public, the officer before whom the foregoing 

8 Q. And do you recall if the online 7 proceedings were taken, do herebr certify that 

9 training modules include a diversity component 8 the foregoing transcript is a tree and correct 

10 specifically focused on transgender individuals? 
9 record of the proceedings; that said proceedings 

11 A. I cannot recall a training that I 
10 \(ere taken by me stenographicallr and thereafter 

12 knoi.: m reqi:ired that you go through it, but I 
11 reduced to typewriting under my supervision; and 

13 cannot recollect without looking at sorr.e kind of 
12 that I am neither counsel for , related to, nor 

14 documentation saying, Oh, yeah. 
13 employed by any of the parties to this case and 

15 Q. And other than the presentation by 
14 have no interest, financial or otherwise, in its 
15 outcome . 

16 ~lajor Burks that we discussed, do you remember 16 
17 any staff meetings specifically covering 17 
18 di\'ersity as it relates to transgender 18 
19 individuals? 19 
20 A. I didn't remember that . 20 Gail Inghram Verbano, CSR, RDR, CRR 

21 Q. Okay. So you don 't re1r.errber any 21 CA-CSR No. 8635 

22 others? 22 

315 
1 A. No. I didn't remember that until 
2 it ~as like, Oh, yeah, the docummion that 
3 said, Oh, yeah. And then there \'ere things about 
4 it I didn1t m.e~ber. 
5 Q. So, again, you didn It rerr.emher any 
6 other staff meetings that included a transgender 
1 component? 
8 A. I cannot definidvely say I 
9 remerober any specific one thing about any staff 

10 meeting ol'er the years. 
11 Q. Okay. 
12 MR. MOGUL: All right. Thank }'OU, 

13 Anything else? 
14 MR. SHARMA: No. Ee' s indicated 
15 he Is going to waive reading. 
16 (Signature having been \1aived, tbe 
17 deposition of RAY!IA!! ADAMS was concluded 
18 at 5:00 p.111. ) 
19 
20 
21 
22 
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JENNIFER ELLER, 

Plaintiff, 

V. 

IN THE UNITED STA TES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND 

Case No.: l 8-cv-03649-TDC/TJS 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS, ET AL., 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) Defendants. 

_____________ ) 

EXHIBIT 11 

Case 8:18-cv-03649-TDC   Document 106-8   Filed 06/09/21   Page 1 of 43



J.R. 213

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

u 
12 

13 

1,4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

1 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND 

Southern Division 

JENNIFER ELLER, 

Pl aintiff. 

vs . 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS, et al. , 

Defendants . 

) 
) 
) 
) Case No.: 
) 18-cv-03649-TDC 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

DEPOSITION OF ROBIN POPE-BROWN 

Thursday. December 12 . 2019 . 9 :55 a.m. 

Arnold & Porter Keye Scholer 

601 Massachuse t ts Avenue . NW 

Washi nqton DC 

DEPOSITION OF ROBIN POPE- BROWN, 

2 e witness herein . cal 1 ed by the Plaintiff for 

3 examination , taken pursuant to the Federal Rule of 

4 Civil Procedure 30(b) (1), by and before Harj orie 

6 Peters , a Registered Heri t Reporter , Certified 

6 Rea It 1 me Reporter and Notary Pub 11 c 1 n and for t he 

7 District of Col u11bi a, at Arnold & Porter Kaye 

8 Schol er. 601 llassachusel ts Avenue, NW, Washi ngton , 

9 DC , on Thursday, December 12, 2019. at 9 : 55 a.m. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

1 6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 
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Washington , oc 20006 
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Hi chae 1 Rodriguez Martinez, Esquire 
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Washington, DC 20001 
202. 942. 5000 
Rebecca. neubauer2arnol dporter . com 
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Amil K. Sharma, Esquire 
HcCOLLUH & ASSOCIATES , LLC 
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Suite 117 
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4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

u 
12 

13 

Exhi b1t 34 

Exhi b1t 35 

Exhibit 36 

Exhi b1t 37 

Exhibit 38 

e-mail, 10 . 14 . 2013, Eller, 

ELLER0001 45 

e -mail , 11 . 21.2013 , El l er , 

ELLER000116·115, 

e-mail, 11. 21.2013, Eller, 

ELLER000174-175 

e-mail, 3 . 16 . 2015, Adams, 

[No Bates] 

e-mail. 5.2.2016. Adams, 

[No Bates] 

14 PREVIOUS EXHIBITS 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Plaint1ff' s 

Exhibit 8 

Student Rights & 

Responsibilities Handbook 

t.t:fi5 t2 2 

PRO C EEDIN GS 

ROBIN POPE-BROWN, 

c.t:~5 ., 3 

Ut:55 16 4 

C.9:SS 1e 5 

C.k ·!>S 115 6 

(,0 :i:i 40 7 

a witness, having been first dul y sworn, was 

examined and testified as follows : 

EXAMINATION 

BY MS. CHEEMA : 

Q. Good morni ng . Ms. Pope· Brown. 

5 

~ 

128 

136 

142 

147 

153 

PAGE 

55 

6 

...... 8 My name i s Puneet Cheema , and I',. 

._,., .• , 9 with Lambda Legal . I r epresent Jennifer Eller i n a 

" '"" 10 case against the PG County Publ 1 c Schools, t he PG 

"'"., 11 County Board of Education , and t he CEO, Monica 

,.,,._., 12 Goldson , that's currently pendi ng in the District of 

"'" oo 13 Haryl and . I ' m here with my colleagues Rebecca and 

"'" •• 14 Hichael from Arnol d & Porter , who ar e also on the 

.. ,,. "' 15 team representing Hs . Eller . 

~ ~ Ot 16 

"'°Not 1 7 

A. 

Q. 

Okay. 

Could you state your name f or the 

~ .66 , , 18 record, please . 

<-9,M 11 19 

t.t:61 13 20 

(,fm,I H 2 1 

A. 

Q , 

A. 

Robi n Pope -Brown . 

And your address? 

10605 G1 oucester Lane, Cheltenham, 

u1:S6 , , 22 Haryl and , 20623 . 

ot '4:22 1 Q, How would you 11 ke me to address you 

09 ,.,,, 2 today, as Principal Pope -Br own or Hs . Pope-Brown? 

09 56:29 3 

Ol.16:29 4 

A. 

Q. 

ou•,,. 6 Robin? 

Rabin. 

Have you aver been deposed before , 

Yes. 

When was that? 

7 

® 'ff: :12 6 

09 ·50:32 7 

09 H: 3.4 8 

A. 

Q, 

A, It was a l awsuit against the County with 

oo ,.,., 9 a previous pri ncipal. I' 11 trying to r emember his 

oo '"" 10 name . Salim. Mr . Salim. 

09 5G:S. 11 

09 H:M 12 

Olil M:&7 1 3 

o, Gt:t.S 1-4 

a. 

A. 

Q, 

A. 

ls Salim his last name? 

Yes. 

That's the name of the principal? 

That's the name of t he • • yes , that 's 

oo ·S1:o:i 15 the name of the principal , 

09 57:01 1 6 

09 57:02 1.7 

Q. 

A. 

What wao your rol e in the ease? 

I had to talk a bout · • I was his 

,. " '" 18 assistant principal. and I had to talk about how •· 

.,.,,,. 19 his work and what he did, and what I did . The 

09 .,.,. 20 differences in what he di d and what I did. 

l)t !1:2) 21 Q • Okay. Do you remember approximately 

.,, !1:21> 22 when that was? 

8 

Ot. &7:23 1 

011 67: , , 2 

A. 

Q. 

It had to be over f ive or sh years ago. 

Do you remember the name of t he lawsui t, 

oa .,,., 3 the person who filed suit? 

fll . i7:d 5 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Okay. Have there been any other cases 

0&· 81: 11 6 1 n wh1 ch you've b~en 1 nvol ved? 

O!I 57 :M 7 

Ill 57:!»4 8 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

So that's t he only time that you 've been 

,. .,,,. 9 deposed before? 

09 67:57 10 

.. .,,., 11 

°' 58!a:> 12 

O'# H •IJ(l 13 

oq 111:tt1 14 

09 61:01 1 5 

<PO U:00 16 

08 61:1~ 17 

CK161110 1 8 

as 

A. 

Q, 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

wel 17 

A. 

Q, 

,. ""' 19 that case? 

OD •Sl:1 t 20 

OU '8: 11 21 

A. 

Q , 

Yes. 

Have you ever testified at trial? 

Yes . 

When was that? 

That was the same deposit 1 on. 

So you t estified at trial in that case 

Yes. 

Did you submit any wri tten testimony 1n 

No . 

Okay . So even though you have been 

°' 5,: ,a 22 through this before , I'm go1 ng to give you an 
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Of: ~IS 21 1 

Gt:S9 :,o 2 

(,9:SIS3:0: 3 

c;t :H 34 4 

Gt:51 J'I 5 

tl t:!8 40 6 

Ct•)I 40 7 

Gt:56 AZ 8 

Cl •SI 45 9 

lll !51 45. 10 

C.t:58, U 11 

Gt:SI n 12 

tti:!111 I i 13 

Olil~50 14 

9 

overview of how today 's going t o work. I ' m going to 

be aski ng you a series of questions to which you are 

under oath to provide full and complete answers, If 

you do not understand any question that I ask , 

p 1 ease 1 et me know before you respond and I w1l l 

rephrase it or explain . 

A. 

Q. 

morning? 

A. 

Q. 

Okay. 

You took an oath before we started this 

Yes. 

It requires you to fu lly answer each 

question to tho extent that you can, 

A. 

Q. 

(Nods head up and down.) 

If you · re nol sure o f an answer or don ' t 

'"·" ·" 15 have a comp 1 ete answer, you' r e st 111 required lo 

""'" 16 answer the question with as much as you know. 

flt: H 5& 17 

G9 :5f 57 18 

C.t;,. .51 19 

Ot·:11 :s9 20 

et se !19 2.1 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q, 

Okay. 

Do you understand t hat? 

Yes. 

Thank you. 

As you can s ee , the court reporter 

,.,., oo 22 i s recording everyth1 ng we say. Because she can 

t.9:S0.03 1 

t.t:SO Of 2 

\,9: 59 Ge 3 

(.9:59 IC, 4 

C.9: 59 11 5 

onl y record words. please answer all questions 

verbally, and not with physical movements, l i ke a 

nod or a shrug , 

A. Yes. 

Q. Thank you. 

10 

Ut· :is 14 6 Because she can onl y record one o1 

c.v o1 u1 7 us speaking al a time, please wait until 1 have 

,,.,, 11 8 fini shed asking my question before you respond. 

w::Httl 9 

C.9: sg 21 10 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

If you need to have a question repeated. 

c,9• se :i• 11 please let me know , and the court reporter can read 

to,,. ,. 12 it back to you . 

(,0; ~ ·21 13 

r.t:~ 2t 14 

A. 

a. 
Okay . 

Let me know if you need a br eak at any 

,,.,., » 15 t i me. Please note that we can 't take a break wh1le 

w-,11 1e 16 a question 1s pending ; that 1s , 1 f I have asked a 

¼ » "° 17 questi on, you wi 11 need to answer i t before we can 

v. :i9 . , 18 lake a break. 

¼ . H . 42 19 

"9•H .« 20 

A. 

Q. 

Okay. 

Do you have any questions about how the 

r.rt,59 ., 21 deposit 1 on wi ll work? 

u:s, ., 22 A. No . 

11 

Q. Is there any reason you can thi nk of why 

" n:,, 2 you would not be able to answer questi ons fully and 

.. ,.,,. 3 accuratol y t oday? 

09 H:!D 4 

10 00:00 5 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Are you on any medicati ons that woul d 

,o 00:02 6 prevent this? 

10 OG:04 7 

10 QC:CW 8 

10 OC:O1 9 

,o 00:0& 10 

,o oc:,21.1. 

10 OC:t) 1.2 

10 00:tS 13 

1n 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

thi s 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Have you drank any alcohol this morning? 

No. 

And you know that you' re not a defendant 

case, r1 ght? 

Yes. 

Have you retained counsel in this 

,o 0011• 1-4 matter? 

10 OO: H' 16 

10 00:17 16 

1Q nt):Z1 17 

A. 

a. 

A. 

No . 

Have you met Hr. Shar11a before today? 

We've spoken by phone, but I've never 

,o 00:2118 seen h1in befor e today. 

10 00: 21 19 

10 oo::u 20 Q. 

HR. SHARMA : The privilege is 11ine . 

He represents the De fendants 1n thi s 

,o ,.,,, 21 case, and ho may make obj ect1ons whon I ask a 

10 c<i:n 22 question . You are free to cont i nue to answer the 

10 00:31 1 

10 co:• 1 2 

10 00: • 1 3 

10 00:d " 
,o 0010 5 

,0-00: • 11 6 

10 CO:!i~ 7 

10 00:6S 8 

10 OCl:61 9 

12 

question , even if he objects. 

A. 

Q. 

Okay. 

Did you speak with Mr. Sharma -- well, 

you mentioned you spoke with Mr. Shar11a on the phone 

before today, Have you spoken with anyone el se f rom 

his fi rm? 

A. Not t hat I know of. I know t hat I've 

spoken with people from the County· s 1 egal 

department, but when you • · it just gets kind of 

1o ouo2 10 blurry as far es who is fro11 what office. So not 

,o,ft1:os ll that I know of . 

10 01:0t 12 Q. Have you spoken with anyone from the 

,o 01 , .. 13 County· s 1 egal department about th1 s case? 

,o 01:11 14 A. Or1g1nally , yes, I was called into t l1e 

10 o,, .. 15 Count y· s l egal department , and they asked me. d1 d I 

,o 01:~ 16 remember. you Know, tts . El 1 er , and What I re1'r-es11c=d 

,o o"u 17 about Ms. Eller and her time at Fr iendly. Friendly 

10 '"" 18 High Schoo 1 . 

,, 01,.,. 19 (Clarifi cation requested by the Court Reporter .) 

10 01:J6 20 

10 (11: ~o 21 was? 

10 Ot : )o 22 

Q. 

A. 

Do you remember approxi nately when that 

I want to say it 11ay have been • • I tend 
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10:01 $1 1 

10:01 , .. 2 

10:01 ~ 3 

1G:02 o:, 4 

1C:02: oa 5 

\0 ;02 o, 6 

10·0l 1:1 7 

10:02 . 1, 8 

10:02 21 9 

10:02 24 10 

10•02 :i,, U 

IG:02 lJ 1.2 

10:02 38 13 

10 C2 'O 14 

to think of time in school years . so it 11ay have 

been at the beginning of the school year or last 

schoo 1 yaar . 

many 

Q . 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

tjnes 

A. 

Q. 

How long did that meeting last? 

Maybe ten mi nut es. 

Did they show you any documents? 

No. 

Before meet1 ng Nr . Sharma today. how 

did you speak with him on the phone? 

On the phone, naybe once. Maybe once. 

Okay, 

13 

A. And -- yeah. I think it was 11aybe once. 

Q. And approxiMtely "'1en was that? 

A. Oh , no. It was twice, One was this 

" ·" •• 15 morning. The other one - - the first t1 me. I think 

,.,.,_., 16 it was when - - it could have been last week . Last 

"'°' se 17 week- i sh. 

1G:02 15!t 1B 

lG :Oi O'J 19 

Q. 

A. 

What did you speak about? 

We tal ked about how a deposition is run , 

10 •03 1:1 20 and to toll the t ruth , and don't be nervous . 

10 03 1e 21. Q. Okay, Have you recei ved any e-mai 1 s 

,.,., n 22 from Mr. Sharma? 

10:0, 2e 1 

10:1,13 32 2 

10:03 33 3 

10:03· :M 4 

10:03·lt 5 

\O·OJ ::11; 6 

10 Ol • s 7 

100340 8 

10:03,,0 9 

10:Ci3; 61 10 

10 :0) 54 11 

10 103 &5 12 

10:0l 59 13 

,c:o, ~ 14 

10:0, (,2 15 

10 Cl.I tf 16 

14 

A. Yes, about t he ti me and pl ace of where 

we · re supposed t o go. 

Q. Okay. Did t he a -mails provide any other 

information other than t hose logistics? 

A. No. 

a. Has he prov, ded you any documents? 

A. No . 

Q. Did you do anytn, ng to prepare for l hi s 

deposition? 

A. No. I wish I could have . I wou 1 dn · t be 

nervous . 

Q. You don't need to be nervous. 

So you didn ' t review any documents 

before you came 1 n today? 

A. No. 

MR . SHARMA : 1 · m Just hav1ng a narCI 

100.. 01 1.7 time hearing because there's a humming noise. 

,o.<M oe 1B 

,u.o, 1119 

MS, CHEEMA: I ' 11 t ry to be louder, 

HR. SHARMA : Please. Thank you. 

,o,o• ,, 20 BY MS. CHEEMA : 

10;0-.I 17 21 Q. Did you review any e-mai 1 s befo re you 

10:Q..I 20 22 came in today for this 11atter? 

10 IM: 2:J 1 

!0 .4£:2J 2 

10:04::H 3 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

15 

Yes. 

Which e-mails were t hose? 

They were the e-11ai 1 s that wer e sent to 

,o ,.,,. 4 the County because I was asked to provide e•11ai 1 s to 

••·°''" 5 the County. I don· t remember when, but I guess when 

,o °''" 6 all of this came about , I was asked to provide any 

,oo..,:o 7 e-mails. 

Q. Okay. And so the e-mai 1 s that you 

,o ,.,., 9 provided , did you review those before you sent those 

,o 04:s, 10 to the County? 

A. Not all of t hem. because it was 1 ate 

,o ,.,., 12 1 ast night and I just wanted to make sure that I 

1<1.o, :se 13 di dn't leave any e-mai l s out. 

10 05:()') 14 

10 05 :03 15 

10 05:0l 16 

10 Cl!l:OS 17 

10 C!l;ot 18 

10 c;,:01 19 

last 

Q, 

A. 

Q. 

night? 

A. 

Q. 

Okay. So this was just last night? 

Yes . 

Did you send the e -mai ls to the County 

No . 

Okay . You just reviewed the e -mai 1 s 

10 .. , ., 20 1 ast night that you had previous 1 y sent to the 

,o os:11 21 County? 

10 O&:n 22 

10 05:U 1 

10 C!i:21 2 

\ti 0£:24 3 

10 O!i:21 4 

10 05:$1 5 

10·06:.sS 6 

10 H:11 7 

IO.C!i:•1 B 

10 llli:SO 9 

10 ca:o1 10 

10 05:5,r, 11 

10 0$: st 12 

10 05:SI 13 

10.0!:!ia 14 

10 Otd,I 15 

A. Yes. 

1 6 

Q. Did you speak with anyone else other 

than Mr. Sharma about this depositi on? 

A. I had a coworker • - a previous coworker 

who 1s also - · I guess had been served with a 

subpoena , and he asked me had I been served. I told 

him yes, and that was i t. 

Q . 

A. 

Q. 

What's the name of the coworker? 

Kevin Thompson . 

Other than the fact that he was served. 

di d you discuss anything else with him? 

A. 

Q. 

today? 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Did you bring any documents with you 

No, 

Other than reviewing the e-mails that 

10 01:oi, 16 you rev1~wecJ last nignt , oid you uo anytning e 1 g~ to 

,o 0,,12 17 prepare for this deposition? 

,c ca:i:s 18 

10 Cf:P 19 

10 06:19 20 

A. 

Q. 

No. Tried t o get a good night 's sleep. 

That· s smart. Very w1 se. 

So, Ms. Pope-Brown , I'd like to ask 

,. °''" :21 you a 11tt 1 e bit about your background . Where did 

,o oc:.t7 22 you go to high school? 
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Ul;lll 21 1 

10!08 34 2 

10:06 34 3 

1fl:OI J7 4 

Hi :06 u 5 

A. 

Maryland. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Poto11ac High School in Oxon Hill , 

When did you graduate from there? 

1980 . 

17 

Where did you go to school after that? 

I went to Salisbury University in 

,. ... ,. 7 Salisbury , ttaryland. And I ended up graduating from 

,., .. ,. 8 the University of the Di strict of Columbia with my 

,.,,... 9 bachelor's degree. And I received my 11aster ' s from 

""' ·"° 10 Bowie State University. 

10:07 .0 1 11 Q. When did you recei ve be your bachelor 's 

10:01 03 12 from UOC? 

U):07 · CWI 13 A. 1990 • • hmm . I want to say 1998. That 

,ua1 ,a 14 might not be accurate . 

10 .07 11 15 

1c:nr ,, 16 

Q. Okay . I understand . 

When did you receive your master's 

,0,01 21 17 from Bow1 e State. 

10:01 21 18 A. I star ted working for the County i n '94. 

,.,., ,, 19 Hay be • • my son was born in ' 90 . Maybe about '93, 

,c.-01 o 20 you know, maybe '96 . 

1D 0 1 43 2.1. Q. 01 d you say you received your bachelor's 

10,0, " 22 in 1998? 

H,1107 ~ 1 

10:07 6CI 2 

10,0"T 54 3 

10: 01 54 4 

10101 SJi 6 

,0 •01 117 6 

18 

A. Yes . I ' m sorry . No . Yeah. ' 98 , l 

received my bachel or's and . Ny master's •· I ' m• · 

I •• 

Q. 

A. 

Take your time . 

Yeah , because •· 1 'm trying to go back 

and th1 nk because I was work1 ng on 11y mas tar· s when 

10 01 e, 7 my son was born. He was born in 1990 . And I want 

,oca 10 8 to say anywhere from -- that couldn't be right. 

,., .. " 9 because if l got my • • I ' 11 have to check . I real 1 y 

,o,oe" 10 don't know, because I coul dn · t have gotten my 

,o,oen 11 bachelor's before my master's, but·· 

10:0S 2• 12 

10:01 ,e 13 

10:0128 14 

10:08 .,, 15 

10 ot 3:0 16 

10 01:,. 17 

1tl, OS .3e 18 

1u," •2 19 

H1:08"" 20 

son 

So, 

Q. Did you have your bachelor's when your 

was born? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Tnank. you . 

So -- okay, thank you. Yes , I d i d. 

thi s is embarrassi ng . 

Q, It's okay . 

So we· 11 say that you got your 

u}:oe ... 1 21 bachelor's sometime before 1990 i ia that right? 

10:01 SC 22 A. He was born • - he was born in '90 . And 

19 

10 01:.. 1 I remember the graduation because it ra1 ned , and he 

10 01:)1 2 

10 091M 3 

10 09 :10 4 

,o ot:12 5 

,a ot:1, 6 

,Cl 09:11 7 

10 CKl:M 8 

tO CKl:3'- 9 

10 09::\e 10 

was a little baby. So it had t o be •· l don ' t know. 

It had t o be in the '90s. I started work1 ng for the 

County in •94, 

In order to be a pri ncipal , you have 

to have your master's. I became a pr inci pal in 

2001. So the master's had to be around 2000. I 

don't know. I qui t. 

Q. I completely understand . 

What was your bachel o r 's degree in? 

A. My bachelor's degree is in business 

,o®:Al 12 administration. And my master ' s is 1n master's of 

,o Ot:,n 1.3 special education. 

Q. And after your master ' • in speci a l 

,o .. ,., 15 education , did you get any other education? 

10 t0:IM 16 A. Certifications. We have to kee p up our 

,. ,,.,., 17 certification - • 

10 1Q:01 18 

10 10:1)119 

10 IQ:09 20 

10 10 : 11 21 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Okay. 

• - to keep our teacher's 1 i cense. 

What kind of certi fication is that? 

I t's a teacher's certification. Every 

,o 10:1t 22 year, you have to take certai n classes , do ce rtain 

1{) tO:Uil 1 

,o 10121 2 

1Q 10:2!1 3 

10 10:26 4 

11). 10:31 5 

,o 10:.» 6 

10 10 ;31 7 

10 10:• 1 B 

10 10144 9 

10 10:• t 10 

10 10:•lil 11 

10 10:49 12 

10 10:Sl 13 

10 10: M 14 

10 10: &4 15 

20 

thfogs to keep your teaching certification. 

Q. 

A. 

Okay . That's an annual process? 

Certification is probably every t hree or 

four years , but you have to take • - continue to take 

the e 1 asses , and then report to the state every 

thr"e or four year$. 

Q. 

A. 

are for . 

Q. 

und~rstand. 

Got it. 

I ·m trying to f igure out when the dates 

It 's hard to go back that far. I 

So you mentioned you started to work 

for t he County in 1994? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

What position did you start working for 

10 10: u 10 tntt county:' 

10 10: M 17 A. I started out as a subst1tute teacher . 

,0 11 ,c,, 18 From there, I worked as a media aide. 

10 11 1CM 19 Q. When di d you move from substitute 

10 11 ,oe 20 teachi ng to becoming a media aide? 

A. Oh , real l y? I can t el 1 you when I 

10.11:111 22 started teaching. I s tarted teaching in July of 

5 of 55 sheets Page 17 to 20 of 179 02/12/ 2020 07:37:58 PM 

Case 8:18-cv-03649-TDC   Document 106-8   Filed 06/09/21   Page 6 of 43



J.R. 218

21 

""' 20 1 1995. 

1G :11 :!I 2 Q. Okay. When you started teachi ng . what 

10:1LZS 3 were you teach1 ng? 

1t:11 · 29 4 

IC,;11·31 5 

1t:11 n 6 

10· 11 " 7 

10:\1 36: 8 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Science , • seventh • 7th grade. 

Science seventh grade . 

What school? 

James Madi son Middle School . 

And how 1 ong d id you t each sci ence for 

10,11 ., 9 the seventh grade at James Madi son? 

10:11 ,s 10 

10:11 •• u 

10:11 !t 12 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Five years. 

What happened after that? 

I became an assist ant pri ncipal at 

10"1" 13 Templeton Ele~entary School . 

,onsi 14 

,o.ntiw 15 

10: c, ,~ 16 

10:12 16 17 

Q. 

A. 

Q . 

A, 

When was that? 

2001 to 2005 or · 6 . 

What happened after t hat? 

J was going to say, from there • • fr om 

""' " 1B Templet on Elementary School , I became an assistant 

10,1222 19 principal at Thurgood Marshall Middle School. And I 

10· 12 2:e 20 was t here for two years . 

10 " " 21 And I went to Oxon Hill Hi ddl e 

10 12,. 22 School. and that's where I worked for Mr. Salim. 

22 

u.1:12.40 1 And I was there a couple of years. 

10:12 .SS 3 

10'.13 to 4 

10: 1l 0$ s 

10'1l Ot 6 

10 : 11 14 7 

10 1) 20 8 

10:1>·2, 9 

10t 1l 26 10 

1Q:1l 211 U 

U):1l )1 12 

10:U 33 13 

10;1331 1 4 

10:11 ~ 15 

10 1:) ... 1.6 

10 1;) "' 17 

t(>. 13 51 18 

10. u s: 19 

Then I was at Oxon Hil 1 Hi gh School. 

From Oxon Hill High School , I stayed 

there t wo or three years, and I began as an 

assistant princi pal at Fr iendl y High School i n 2012, 

the fall of 2012 . 

Q. Okay, So you were at Thurgood Marshal 1 

Mi ddle School from • • or I'm sorry, I don ' t know if 

it's a 11iddle school . Thurgood Marshall from 

approximatel y 2005 to 2007 ; 1s that r ight? 

A. 

a. 

Yes, yeah. That ' s about right , yes . 

Do you remember the years that you were 

at Oxon H1 ddl e School? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Oxon Hill Middle School . 

Oxon Hi 11 Middle Schoo 1? 

So , l was about 2007 lo 2009. 

Okay . 

Yeah , about t her e . 

Then Oxon Hil 1 High School from 11 ke 

,.,., " 20 2009/10 to 2012 as far •· the end of the school year 

10: , ,. cl 21 201 2 and started at Friendly the beginning of t he 

10: u u 22 school year of 2012 . 

23 

10 U :06 1 Q. So you wer e an assist ant pr, nci pal from 

" 1• "1 2 2001 through 2012 bef ore you arrived at Fri endly? 

10 14:1!:I 3 A. No 1 I was assistant principal at 2012 

•• ,.,,. 4 at •• when I arrived at Friendly, and I didn't 

10 ,., ,. 5 become princi pal unti l •· this is my t hird year , so 

10 U :2$ 6 it' S ' 19, '16. 

10 u ,:31 8 

Q. 

A. 

Okay. 

Yeah . No , '17, I became princi pal 

,o·u:3' 9 there 1 n 2017 , 

Q. But were you an assist ant pr incipal fror, 

10, l<e37 11 2001 tO 2017? 

10 14:,H 12 

,o u :31 13 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

So you had quite a lot of experience as 

,o ,,:,, 14 an assistant principal? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

So most of my questions a r e going to be 

10 '"" 17 limited to approximately 2012 through 2016. 

10 •~:00 18 

10 15:I» 19 

10 IS:09 20 

1o• u :10 21 

,a 11:11 22 

10 15: 16 1 

,o 11:11 2 

10 IS:16 3 

10 16 : lO 4 

1U l~:13 5 

U:1 tti :.:., 6 

10 tS: ll 7 

IO•IS:H 8 

10 t 6:41J 9 

1a 15:41 10 

10 1t, : M 11 

,o l!i :.» 12 

1~ 16:" 13 

10 1a.H 14 

A. Okay. 

Q. Ou ring your t ime at Friendly High 

School . 

A. Okay . 

Q. And 1f I mean fo r the question to cover 

24 

a different period, 1'11 let you know. 

A. 

Q. 

Okay . 

Can you t ell us about the organizational 

st ruct ure of administration at Friendly High School? 

A, There's the princi pa l , of course , and 

under the principal are the adm1nistratoni, At 

Fri endly , 1t ranged f rom thr ee or four assistant 

pri ncipals depending on budget years, And under the 

assistant pri nc1 pals were the different depar tments. 

Q. 

A. 

How many departments are there"/ 

There's soci al studies, math , creative 

arts. athlet ics. Maybe • • I· m rounding up, maybe 

ten. 

Q. Okay. Who was • • there were ten 

•• ,.,,. 15 departments mentioned. Who was in charge of t he 

,o 11:12 16 aepar tmtm ts·t 

10. 18:U 17 

,o ,a:u 18 

10. ,a:11 19 role? 

10 11:11 20 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Wow. Reall y? Okay . 

In terms of role, like what kind of 

So each assistant principal has cert ain 

,o ,,::u: 21 departments . I don ' t remember exactly wh1 ch 

,o 10: .ia 22 department every a• because it would vary per year. 
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11l:10 :,o 1 It was not always the same year, because we always 

""''" 2 did not have four assistant pr1ncipals. We could 

1,:111-.,e- 3 have had t hree. 

u;:111'.ll' 4 So for instance, I 111ay have the 

1C.:1& 39 5 

10 :1t 0 6 

10•11 0 7 

1(1:ll -'I 8 

10:11 53 9 

10:10 S1 10 

10:17 .00 U. 

1 0117 O! 12 

Eng If sh department. where my colleague 011ght have 

the sci once department. 

And t hen we dealt with grade level. 

So f f the sludent was •· if It was behavior , the 

assist ant principal fo r that grade level handled it. 

If i t was a content situation, the assistant 

principal of that content handled it. 

Does t hat answe r the question? 

Q. Who would you be communicating with 1n 

u,·11 11 14 each of t he departn,ents? 

10.17 13 15 

111:1114 16 

A. 

Q. 

As what r ole? 

For -· if there were •· if i t was a 

10 :11 11 17 content issue? 

10:11 21 19 

,,-1, ii 20 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

If I was the assistant principal? 

Yes. 

So i f i t was a cootont issue, if ! was 

"" i3 21 the assislant principal. I woul d communicate with 

10:11 ~ 22 lhe department chair or the t eachers. 

\O:H it 1 

10:17 i2 2 

10: n" l3 3 

10:17 36 4 

io: 11311 6 

10•1 , « 6 

10 ,r Cl 7 

10 n" ~ 8 

10:H M 9 

26 

Q. So you communicated directl y with 

teachers as wel 1? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes . As an assistant princi pa l , yes. 

What ' s t he ro 1 e o f the department chair? 

The department chai r is the 1 i ai son 

between the assist ant principals and the teachers 1 

and also the County offices and the teachers and 

pri ncipals. 

So basically, a liaison , t hey also 

1011t;t1 10 did -- liaison as far as inf ormat ion. They did 

10: 1102 11 tra1n1ng to the teachers. So they would go out to 

10:11 ~ 12 training, and then come back and tra1 n, turnkey that 

10:u e, 13 informa tion to the teachers under their depa rt11ents. 

10:11 u 14 Q. Who would they be liaising with in the 

10: ,, 11 15 County offices? 

10ll10 16 A . The 1nstruct,onal specialists rrom those 

10·,1 n 17 various departments. And it would el&o depend on 

u1,1a 2s 18 what the professional development was . 

10 ,19 :Jll 19 Q, What pro fessional development would they 

10:,, ci 20 be responsible for? 

10:111 ◄2 21 A, I t could be anything 11 ke writing 

10:1a •r 22 prompts, training teachers how to grade on a rubric 

27 

10 11:,> 1 to make suro that answers were calibrated and, you 

10-1e:" 2 know, one teacher didn't give a certain grade, and 

10 19:<W 3 another teacher, another grade for the same prornpt. 

, • . ,.,., 4 To make sure everybody was on the sa~e page , t hings 

,o 11:11 5 l1ke that. 

,o " '" 6 So it was everything regarding 

,o 1s.;1, 7 content and instructional information. 

Q. Okay. So they would get tha t t raining 

,, " " ' 9 from the County and bring it back for the teachers? 

10 10 : , , 10 

10. 11 .:~1 11 

A, 

Q, 

Yes . 

And they would be responsibl e for 

,.. ,.,,. 12 implementing that training a nd disseminating 1t to 

,o 111 ::K 13 the teachers? 

10 l i:1' 14 

10 19:'7 1.5 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

So they would be training the teachers 

,o ,.,,. 16 themsel ve•. e5sentially? 

10: 19: 11 17 

10: 19:11 18 

A. 

Q, 

Yes. 

When you were vi ca princi pal and were 

,o " ' " 19 speaki ng directly with teachers, what would you ·• 

10 , , • .a!l 20 what are the types of matters that you spoke wi th 

,o " '" 21 teachers directly about? 

,o to·•• 1 

10 18! 41 2 

10 18:62 3 

,o 11:M 4 

10 tt:51 5 

1o· te: M 6 

10 20:0:J 7 

10~: oa 8 

10 211 :10 9 

10 20: 11 10 

10 10:u 11 

10 20:11 12 

10,20::zo 13 

" ,.,,, 14 

A. Anything they needed. For me . it 

28 

wasn · t • • I can· t tal k to you because that · s not my 

1 ane . I f e teacher ceme to me about anything. I 

would attempt to help. 

Q. Are there matters that teachers are 

supposed to t ake to the depar tment chai r r ather than 

you? 

A. I t really should be that way, but in all 

honesty. it really i sn · t that way. That· s the way 

it· s supposed to be. but it i sn · t. 

Q. 

A, 

That· s not how it works in practice? 

Right , And especially in a small school 

l i k~ Fr iendly. Friendly is a very sMal l school 

compared to the other high schools in the County. 

It probably works better at the other high schools 

,. ,.,,. 16 because there are so many 1 ayers . But at Fr i endl y . 

10:20:211 16 oecaus~ we · re so smal l , 1 c · s r ea·11 y en 1'11 cult to 

10 20: J::? 17 say , well . no, you need to go over there. 

10 20:S◄ 18 Q. So teachers would talk wit h you about 

,o 20: :17 19 anythi ng , end would you respond? 

,o 20:31 20 A, Yes. 

Q. Were t here any employees that teachers 

,o .o:M 22 themselves supervised? 
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10:2a s2 1 

10;20 5:! 2 

10:2£1 S4 3 

Ui:20 5' 4 

1(;;20 I)? 5 

111 :20 ~ 6 

1G·21 00 7 

10:21 03 8 

10;,t\ 05 9 

10:21 IQ 10 

10:21. 12 1J. 

10:21 15 12 

U)::n 11 13 

1CI ,1 ,a 14 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

No . 

Did they have assist ants? 

What do you mean? 

29 

Did teachers have a ssistants? 

Oh. teacher assistants? 

t1m•hmm. 

No. not for general educati on classes , 

but for our special education classes, they did. 

They're called -- 1 was going to say 

paraprofessionals, but that's not what it is. 

Co• teachers. 

Q. What's the role of the pupil personnel 

worker? 

A. The pupi 1 personnel worker , s - - that's 

••·" " 15 the person that takes care of attendance, any 

10,,1 " 16 student needs, if they had an issue at ho11e , if 

,0,21,, 17 there were any outside issues that needed to be - -

w21 o 18 where ·· that they needed to find from outside , so 

,.,., " 19 outside resources, they do that. If we need to find 

10·21 ,. 20 therapy for a student, they wou Id t ry to find those 

,. "•• 21 resources. It almost k i nd of overlaps with t he 

,.,,.,o, 22 counsel or, but their biggest role is attendance. 

UJ: Z2 10 1 

Hi:n I & 2 

10:22 , . 3 

10;22 2S 4 

10:2:2 )I) 5 

10·12 3J 6 

10 22 l& 7 

10 22 ~o 8 

10 122: '1 9 

1O:ZZ 44 10 

10:22 s, 11 

10:22 s• 12 

10'.22 57 13 

10:23 li2 14 

HJ;2J Cl 15 

Q. 

A. 

What do they do for attendance? 

They do home vi sits for s t udents who 

30 

have not come to school. They keep the records on 

who is and is not in school. What type of absence 

it 1 s. They do parent conferences, student 

conf erences regarding attendance. 

Q. Do they have any other responsibilities 

to students? 

A. I n a smal l school, it may overl ap . So 

1f -- they develop a relationship with a s t udent or 

students, and a student will come to them with an 

issue, t hey would help the students with the issues. 

Q. Okay. What k ind of issues would they 

hel p students with? 

A. I t could be anything from, you know, my 

,ouo, 16 mom i& yell i ng at me tooay, or you know , I'm reeltno 

,o , :1 n 17 really bummed out because my boyfriend broke up with 

,o.n 1• 18 me . I rRean, it could be a number of things. 

111,23 H 19 Q. Do they have any respons 1 bil it i es to 

u>::.:,:20 20 teachers? 

A. No . No. They really don't . Outside --

10:23•~ 22 not outside of t he attendance piece. So they may 

31 

,o ""' 1 talk to a teacher about , how many ti mes has Johnny 

10- 1:1:43 2 been absent? Have you spoken with the mom? That 

" ""• 3 kind of thing. 

10 2J;A'1 5 

Q. 

A. 

Okay. 

So they would have those conversations. 

,b :>3:o 6 Or if they found out somethi ng about 

,o ,,.., 7 a student and they wanted to 1 et the teacher know 

'"'' " 8 something was going on with tho student , you know, 

10 ,,,., 9 just to bo on the lookout because tho student may be 

,o 23 :H 10 goi ng through something. 

Q. So their main responsible was to care 

,c 2•:01 1.2 for t ho students? 

A. Pretty much , yes. And the parents. 

10 , , .,. 14 They al so - - so if ther~ was a suspension of a 

10 2, :u 15 student, and the parent wanted to appeal the 

10 ,.,,. 16 suspension , that would go through t he PPW. 

Q. What kind of supports could they provido 

10 2.-121 18 for students? 

A. Aside from talking to them, going over 

10 2, . n 20 their grades , talking t o the11 about tho importance 

10 ,.,,. 21. of school , about coming to school . t h ings 11 ke that. 

,o ,.,,, 22 Direct s upport. Making sur e that t hey had any 

,o ,,:,a 1 resources that they needed. 

Q. 

10 2,:ss 3 training? 

,o 24:67 4 

10 25:01 5 

A. 

Did they have the power to authorize 

No . The PPW? 

Hm-hmm. 

32 

10 •fl ;o, 6 

Q. 

A. When you say "authorize training ," what 

10,:1;0~ 7 do you 11ean7 

Q. If they saw a need for training fo r 

10 "'" 9 students for something , could they say that they 

10 ,,.,. 10 want - - they wanted t o br1 ng that? 

10 25:U 11 A. They could bring it up , but they - - eny 

,o ,.,,. 12 type of training actuall y would have to go through 

1,2s:21 13 t he pri ncipal. 

10 H::U 14 

10 2&: '2<1 15 

Q. 

A. 

Okay . 

And you know . - but , no, they coul dn · t 

1t1 10:21 10 l u:st. say , OKOY, 1 :>CO o neco, so 1 · m 901 n9 to do o. 

10 ,..,, 17 training. It sti 11 would have to, you know, go 

,o "'" 18 through the principal. 

10 25::M 19 

,o 21:u 20 

10 1!i:!7 21 

Q. 

A. 

Q . 

So they would make a recommendation? 

They could , yes. 

Okay. What ot her kinds of 

,o :1.• : • :t 22 recommendations do you r-ely on PP'Ws to make? 
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33 

10 :2~ 41 1 A, Anything pertaining to a chi 1 d • • 1 i ke I 

,. ,,." 2 said before, if she knows or he knows that a chi 1 d 

,. ,,. " 3 is going through certai n things , the PPW may 

,.,,. ,. 4 recommend how we can assist the child. 

1c. :,1 08 5 Q, Are their responsibi l ities 11~ited to 

,0,20" 6 helping students on an 1nd1v1dual1zed basis? 

A. No. There are •· they a lso. during our 

,.,,. 11 8 Studen t Code o f Conduct. so they talk to t hosa 

10,20" 9 groups of students about everyth ing i n the Code. So 

,.,,, ,. 10 it can go fro~ suspensions, you know. t he different 

10,20" 1l. types of suspensions. t he attendance, t heft, 

""',, 12 bullyi ng , sexual harassment. Anything in the Code , 

10,u « 13 the PPW goes over. We do it in groups, grade level 

1c,6~ 14 g roups, so it' s ninth grade 1 t enth grade , e l eventh 

,._,. ,. 15 grade and t welfth grade . 

10::tl ~ 16 

\Ci:16 S9 17 

IC: 2T 0 1 18 

1(i:2f 0) 19 

1Cr'21 o, 20 

Q, 

A, 

Q . 

A. 

Q. 

How many t imes does t hat happen? 

That happens once per quarter. 

Once per quarter, okay. 

Ye ah , so it's four times a year. 

And do they ta I k to the entire grade 

,o .,, 01 21 together? 

1012.1 07 22 

10:Z? lit 1 

101.tP ·ff 2 

10:27 13 3 

10:21 20 4 

10:21 20 6 

10' 27 '211 6 

10 U :11 7 

10 '1 30 8 

10:21 43 9 

\0:27 AO 10 

10:?7 51 11 

10:2t 53 12 

11):;n I~ 13 

10:21 C:1 14 

10:21 C.1 15 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

34 

How 1 ong does that 1 ast? 

Probably about hour -and-a-half or two 

hours, becaus e s he has to go through everything i n 

the Code. 

Q. Who deci de s what exactl y t he PPW is 

going to tal k about dur1 ng t hose se&&i on&? 

A. Well, what she talks about Is t he Code. 

She goes over the entire Code. In the Code, t here 

are different infracti ons, and she goes over al 1 of 

those infractions with all of the students. 

Q. If there had been an incident in the 

previous quarter that pertained to a particular 

i nfraction , could they spend more ti•• t a l ki ng about 

that? 

A. Yes. Yes. So for 1 nstance, 1 f we have 

,o,.ot 16 s s i tuation w, tn students r I9nt1n9, or a s11.uat1on 

102an 1.7 with bully i ng/harassment. If we have 8 situation 

,0.21 ,, 18 where students are •• you know, little boys , you 

,.,,. 22 19 know, touchi ng the girls and thinking that i t's, you 

1<1: ,e 1, 20 know , cute. 

10:21 26 21 So she keeps up on what · s 901 ng on . 

11H21t 31 22 Stealing . Sexual harassment . 

35 

10 ?l: Sf 1 Q. So the conversation about the Code 

10:21:• 1 2 wouldn't necessari l y be the exact sar1e eve ry 

10,21:oM 3 quarter? 

10 :21:U 4 A. The sa110 content. yes, but if there was 

,0,21,.. 5 something that stood out. she might, you know, spend 

, • . ,., .. 6 a 1 i ttle b1t more emphasis on that . 

Q, Did t he PPW have the di scretion to 

,o ,., .. 8 decide what to 011phasize. or did s he do that in 

10 21: 13 9 coordinat ion or collaboration wi th anyono else in 

10 >t:a 10 the administration? 

tQ 29:tC 11 A. I'm tryi ng t o think. We all worked as a 

""'" 12 team, so it wouldn't •· l ike, we didn 't meet ahead 

,o 11;21 13 of ti me and say I okay , we · re seeing this , so we ' re 

10 "''' 1,4 going to hit that, we• r e s eeing that, we• re going to 

,a ,.,,d.5 hit t hat . 

Q. So you did not meet with her before this 

,. ,.,,. 17 meeting to discuss what you thought she should t alk 

10 21:• 1 18 about ? 

10.29:0 19 

10:21:-.. 20 

A. 

Q, 

Before this meeting , or before ... 

Before the one·and-a-hal f to t wo hour 

,o 21:•11 21 conversati on about tho Code? 

1':l '1:S2 1 

10 li:S5 2 

IQ 21:&f 3 

A. Like I said before , Fri endly was a very 

36 

small school , so we are always talking on a dail y 

basis about what was going on . 

Q. But there wasn't li ke a plan to s1t down 

tC ,o:69 4 and discuss what t he specific quarter ly Code would 

10 >0 :02 5 be? 

10 .tO:Qj 6 A, Not that t know of. 

10;,0:04 7 Q, So how d1d - - the PPW then decided on 

,o ,o,oa 8 her own what to focus on in that conversa t 1 on? 

HI 30:11 9 A. I can't say that she decided on ner own. 

10 )0:14 10 Agai n, it - - some th1 ngs were just obvious to all of 

,.,.,,. 1l, us. So I can't say that 1t was like her deci sion. 

Q. When you say you might t el k about , you 

,o,.,. 13 know, fighting or bullying or theft, how would the 

10,,.,., 14 PPW have been made aware of t he incidents? 

,a 30:<12 15 A. So the PPW also gets copies of PS-74s. 

,a J11:!>1 1 0 (Clari r1cotlon reque:,tea oy 1.nc Court Roportcr.) 

,o 30·!M 17 A. 74s, yes . 

,o ;,o:M 18 Also , the way the school 1s 

10J0:&11 19 structured, agai n, 1t is so small . you know when 

,o :u:02. .20 things happen. 

rn :11 :oa 21 

,o )t:1, 22 

Q. 

A. 

So the PPW gets copies ot all PS· 74s? 

She should , i n a perfect world , yes. In 
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37 

10:'1 Hi 1 

10:) 1 HI 2 

10: ) 1 2 4 3 

1Gll1 2e 4 

1C:!1 .33 5 

10:31 33 6 

reality, no. 

Q. 

PS-74? 

A. 

t hat. 

Q. 

Why woul d t he PPW not ge t a copy of a 

Human e r r or . paper work , thi ngs 1 i ke 

If you want ed t he PPW t o foc us on a 

10•31 ... 

u,:J1 •e 

10:1 1 ·51 

7 

8 

9 

particular Issue dur i ng one o f l he quarte rly 

conve r sations about the Code of Conduct. could you , 

as vice pr i ncipal . Make a rec ommendation t o the PPW 

111 :J1 sa 10 to d o so? 

1Cl:JI 54 11 Ye s . 

10:,1 sa 12 

A, 

Q, Coul d anyone else make a recommendat ion 

,.,,, " 13 to t he PPW t o do s o? 

A . 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

Who el s e could? 

Probably anyone coul d . Anyone could . 

10 :,:, 00 14 

10.:12 01 15 

10:Ji 02 16 

10:)2'.0G 17 So aga1 n , because we' r e so smal 1 , if 

10:,2oe 18 a tea cher sai d, you know, I 'm having a pr oblem with 

'"" 10 19 so and so and so, o r t h i s and thi s and t ha t , they 

,..,, ,. 20 could talk to the PPW . 

" " " 21 In t hat ca se , I • m sure t M t l he PPW 

"'" " 22 woul d go lo the pri nc1 pal and say , hey. Miss So and 

38 

,.,,, " 1 So o r Mr. So and So brought th1 s to my a ttention. 

u,:,2:21 2 You know, what are you see ing? ls .. • you know, are 

,. ,,,.,. 3 you seeing a 1 ot of complai nts about t his, t hat or 

,.,,,.,, 4 the other? Any di scipl1ne i nfractions, t hings like 

,o: 1, 1s 5 that . 

10• 32 3Cl 6 But 1t was never a t n1ng where a 

,o n ,t 7 t eacher wou ld come to her and then a 11 o f a sudden 

t0l24l 8 we 're sitt i ng in the Code o f Conduc t and we ' r e l ike, 

,.,,,., 9 why is she talking about t hat? It's always ki nd of 

10:,2 " 10 known what t he t opi c s a r e goi ng to be because we 

,o,» " U discuss everythi n9 i n the Code. 

10:)2· $5 12 Q. Okay . So does she need authorizati on 

,o,» o, 13 from t he pr inci pal t o r aise a speci f i c issue dur ing 

10:>J c .. 14 the assemb 1 y? 

A. I wouldn't -- no , I woul dn't s ay tha t 

,o >J 11 2.6 s he actual l y needed au t ho r iza tion f r ora t n& 

1oll 11 1.7 pri nc i pal . 

tC,.33. 15 18 Q. So she would just di scuss with t he 

w;u 22 19 pr1nc1pa1 whe t he r t he need that someone had 

10:xM.s 20 requested was real ? 

tO:lJ 24 2 1 

10133 1S 22 

A. 

Q. 

I f tha t happened , yes. 

I s it within t he PPW's di scr etion , 

39 

,o " "' 1 though , what t o t alk about during the assembl y? 

,o , 1 :39 2 A. Well . because they went • - we • · you 

,c :i,:" 3 know, we go by what's 1 n the Code - -

lO U :U 4 

10·33:U 5 

Q . 

A. 

10·,>=" e quar ter , 

10 33:, 1 7 Q, 

Ri ght? 

- · it· s pretty much the same eve r y 

Ri ght . But whether to emphasi ze one 

,o " '.. 8 subject matter or another withi n t he Code . she had 

,o " '" 9 di screti on to do that? 

,o.n :u 10 A. Yeah. So 1f s he says , I'm gett i ng more 

,o 33:M 11 suspensi ons for fight i ng, she will do a r emi nder 

,o ,..,., 12 about fighti ng. And t hen go over what the 

,o ,. ,oa 13 di&c ipl i na r y action is for whatever it 1 s . 

11) 1 •: , , 14 Then I you know , 1 et t hem know the 

w ,,n ,. 15 impor tance of, you know , bei ng 1 n schoo 1 , becauae 

,. ,.,,. 16 the disci pl i nar y ac tion coul d take you out of 

,o '4:21 17 school , There are some di sciplinary acti ons that 

' " " " 18 you don 't go out of school . You just go to 

101.1:z~ 1 9 1n•schoo1 suspensi on. 

,o ,.,,. 20 And the -· it a ll depends on wha t 

,o ,.,., 21 the Code says. 

Q. Okay . And where d i d the PPW' s 

40 

,o a, ::,, 1 unde rst anding of what needed t o be addressed come 

1<1 ,>, :.se 2 f rom? 

What do you mean? A. 

Q. You mentioned some t hings were obvi ous. 

,u ,.,,, 5 I think I heard you say t ha t , 

10: ,,14: 41 6 I:» t he PPW 1n t h '-' &chool i tlio l f ? 

10 34 :~2 7 

,o ,..:!2 8 

A. 

Q . 

Yes. 

You menti oned she 's supposed to be 

,o ,.,., 9 copi ed on all PS-74s? 

A. She shoul d have been, o r rece1 ved or 

10 RMI 11 come through her desk in some f o r m or fashi on . 

10 3!5:0l 12 Now, t hat is not a written 

10•,s,.,. 13 admi n1 strat ive procedur e, but bec ause Fri endl y is so 

,, ,.,., 14 small , it's just so easy to. you know, l et her know 

,o 36:11 15 what 's go1 ng on. 

10 · 36:11 16 Q . Ok.ay . 5o o t her t nnn PS - 7 45. n ow cl ttc 

,o lri: n 1 7 did t he PPW ga in an understandi ng of what needed t o 

,o ,..,. 18 be addr essed when t a lking about the Code of Conduct? 

10 lfi:28 19 A. 

1t1.i5:.u 2 0 pri nc i pals. 

10 l S:33 21 

10 !IS:!15 22 

Q. 

Tal k i ng to admi ni s trators and 

Okay . Di d s he t al k t o teac her s as wel l ? 

MR . SHARHA: Objection . 
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41 

lC.:l~ 3G 1 

1c:,s ,., 2 A. 

You can answer . 

Oh . I don· t know whether she talked to 

10:Js 40 3 teachers. I can't say whether I can re11ember any 

,.,,. .. 4 1 nci dent where a t eacher said something to her. 

10:3, ,e 5 

10:)~ 51 6 

10:n ,:, 7 

10 : lS 15~ 8 

1U:3S 5e 9 

10:,~ 51 10 

10:3S $1 11 

10:35 Sil 12 

,0 ::,1 oc; 13 

1on o1 14 

Q. 

A. 

But she talked t o you about incidents? 

Did the PPW tal k to me about i nci dents 

about childr en? 

Q. 

scope. 

c an answer. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

HR . SHARMA: Objection as to t he 

If you understand the question , you 

Can you be 11ore specific? 

You've mentioned that the PPW talks 

" ·" .. 15 abouL the Code of Conduct ? 

111: >6 rn 16 

10:38 11 17 

A. 

Q. 

Hm-hmm . 

And she can address issues that have 

,, :,. " 1B come up in the recent past ? 

10:H ta: 19 ( Nods head up and down. ) A. 

Q. How does the PPW understand whal needs 

,. " n 21 to be addressed? 

10:36 22 22 

1U:36 24 1 

10:36·25 2 

10 :36 ~ 3 

10:)& 31 4 

HR . SHARMA: Objection. This has 

been asked and a nswered. 

A. 

Q. 

You can answer it aga1n. t hough. 

So we would have conversations . 

How frequently? 

42 

10:)1.)l 5 MR . SHARMA : Objection. She wasn' t 

,o, JG ,, 6 done answering . 

10 363' 7 A . I 'm not•· I can ' t say how f r equently. 

10 •3s •~ 8 I can't say how frequenlly. I can· t s ay was 

,.,,. ., 9 1nfrequently, but I -· you know. I really don't have 

,.,,. " 10 an answer for that . 

10:31 Cl 11 Q. Did you have any s et peri odic meetings 

10:Jt 0-4 12 with the PPW? 

lf):ll ~ 13 MR . SHARMA: Objection a s t o the 

,o:J? ca 14 scope of the question. 

10:31 GO 15 

,o ,, n 1.6 A. 

You can answer. 1f you understand. 

0 10 1 have any set mee L 1n9s? No set 

,o,., H117 meeti ngs1 but I met with her . So we d i dn't have 

,o.u.11 18 scheduled meetings. 

1(1.31' 10 19 Q. Okay . How many PPWs were assi gned to 

,.,., ,. 20 Fr1 endl y fr0t11 2012 to 2016? 

t0: J1 30 21 A. One PPW, and she had Friendly and three 

10:31 lS 22 other s choo 1 s. 

10 l?:17 1 Q. 

10,,,,.. 2 2016? 

10 3l :-'fl 3 

\0'31 : &2 4 

A. 

Q. 

10·31:~s 5 Fr1 endl y? 

10 37:S7 6 A. 

43 

What was t he PPW · s name from 2011 to 

Jocelyn Isom. 

How much of her t ilae did she spend at 

Out of the schools that she had t o 

,.,,.,oo 7 serve, she spent most of her name at Fr i endly. 

10.38:(),1 8 Q. By "11ost of her ti me ," could you --

,a otm 9 about - - during the week, about how often would she 

,o :,e:1a 10 be t here? 

10 38:1$ 11 A. I would say , because of a high school , 

,a,.,,, 12 probabl y about -· back i n 2016 , I would say 11aybe 

,o ;te:,11 13 about 90 percent of the t 1 me. 

IQ 38:41 14 

1a )11 :U 15 

10 l'l:U 16 

10 H;$3 1 7 

Q, 

A. 

Q . 

A. 

D1d she have an offi ce in t he bu1 l ding? 

Yes . 

Where was her off1ce located? 

She· s changed offi cos , so I can ' t 

10 ,s:$5 18 remember a l 1 of them. 

10 31:M 19 

10;3':00 20 

,a· ,.,o, 21 PPW? 

,o 30:fM 22 

\Q 38:11 2 

lb 3Q:li 3 

1tl:l0;1~ 4 

111 >t:17 5 

10 Jt:n 6 

any 

a. Fair enough. Fair enough . 

Who was responsiblo f or hiring the 

A. The Board of Education . 

44 

Q. Did any admini st rat ors at Friendly have 

i nvo 1 ve111ent in the hiring process? 

A. No. 

Q. Who supervised the PPW? 

A. The Board of Educati on. 

Q. How did t he Board o f Educat 1 on exerc ise 

,o 31:34 7 supervisi on of the PPW? 

10 ,t:U 8 A. There is t he Office of Student Services . 

10 ,.,., 9 So the head of the Office of Student Services. who 

,. ,.,., 10 i s super vised by -- at that time , t hey change titl es 

10 ,.. , , 11 so much -- I ' m going to s ay the associate 

10 9 :ss 12 superintendent, I'm not quite s ure of the exact 

,, ,.,., 13 hierarchy back then. 

Q. Did someone from the Of f i ce of Student 

,, ... ,., 16 Services ask you for i nput on the work of the PPW? 

... 
10 ,o:ts 17 was nothi ng in wr1ti ng, it was verbal conversati ons . 

10 AO:)S 18 

10 40:.M 19 

Q. 

A. 

How often did that happen? 

Just depends on what· s going on in the 

,o ,,,., 20 year . The PPW actual l y is the superintendent · s 

,a .t0:•a 21 desi gnee . 

10 AQ:50 22 Q. So th~re was no formal process for you 
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""• " 1 to provide feedback about the PPW · s work to t he1 r 

10:◄1 °" 2 supervi sor'l 

H~ :41 11 5 

10 :41 15 6 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

No . That was tracked by data. 

What ki nd of data? 

Suspension data, i n-school suspension 

data. attendance. 

45 

10 •'1 2fJ 7 Q. As vi ce princi pal. did you have any ro le 

l{l: <11 ~ 8 i n evaluating t he PPW? 

10:41 )0 9 No . 

10~, , 30 10 

A. 

Q. If you had any co11plai nts about the PPW. 

Hl:41 35 1j_ 

10:,U 3& 12 

ttl :41 30 13 

,o 4 1 .. , 14 

10.◄1 4S 15 

10:<11 s, 16 

10-,1 s, 17 

tC. ;41 59 1B 

1~:42 QI 19 

could you have made those? 

A. Yes . 

Q. To whom would you have made those? 

A. At the time , t he di rector of student 

se rvices . 

Q. Has it c hanged now? 

A. No. 

Q. It's sti 11 t he same person? 

A. Yes. 

1c,-, 2·0 1 20 

11;,2 03 2.1 

10 :42 ;(M 22 

Q . Have you ever made a compl a i nt about the 

PPW? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever make a recommendation t o 

10, .,,. 2 the PPW to provide to students information about 

10,., 22 3 specific types of incident s during a quarterly 

10:, 2 .H 4 assembly? 

10:◄2 1G 5 A. Not that I can thi nk of , but I don't 

46 

,0- , 2 31 6 remember. I mean, 1 may have . I can't s wear t hat I 

, 0 ,2'1 7 did or di dn ' t . 

10 ,2 63 8 a. As vice principal f r om 2012 to 2016 , 

10:•2 ,1 9 what were your pri mary re5ponsi bi 1 i ti es to teachers? 

10:◄l 00 10 A. Ever ything . Supervise 1 nstruct i on i n 

10:• l 01 11 the classroom , mon1tor1ng grades . For the teachers . 

u), 43.11 12 Attending -- doing observati ons , attending 

10 :0 21 13 col l aborative planning meetings. 

10 ,.," 14 (Clarifi cation requested by the Court Repor ter . ) 

l l.d) :U 15 A. Collaborative planning meetings. 

10 · -1> ~ , j.6 (C l ari f ication requested by the Court Repor ter . ) 

,o .. , " 17 Q. Wha t were your pri mary re&pons i bil it i es 

,o ... , .. o 18 to studen t s? 

A. I want to say babys i tt Ing , but that 

10:0 "' 20 woul d be flean. 

10: .. J "8 21 To keep them -- you know , to keep 

10:-u .r.1 22 them safe; to make sure that they are receiving t he 

47 

,o,,, ,., 1 1nstruct1ons •• instr uction that they shoul d bo 

,o " '" 2 receiving : t o 11ake s ure that they follow the Code of 

10 4-4:o, 3 Conduct . 

10 ... . , .. 5 

10 44;1$ e 
10 44120 7 

,c U.:2' 8 

,c '4! 20 9 

10 .U; M 10 

10 4':)!, 11 

10 44; )8 12 

10 46:01 1 3 

Q. As principal now, what are your pr imary 

responsi b111t ies to teachers? 

A. Pretty 11uch the sa,ie thing, except 11y 

APs, I try t o have my APs be more hands-on , but by 

bei ng a small school , I ' m kind of stil l doi ng t he 

same things. 

a. What authori ty do you have now as 

pri nc ipal that you didn ' t have as vice pr inci pal? 

A. That ' s a good question. 

Coul dn' t sign checks . I coul dn ' t 

10 ,s:oa 14 make decisions on when and where diff erent thi ngs 

,o,.,,., 15 would t ake pl ace . I woul d have t o r un ever ythi ng by 

,o " "' 16 t he pri ncipal , I would have to br ing t hings to him , 

10 " '" 17 as opposed t o 11e being pri ncipal now, people bring 

,o ,,,,. 18 things to me, then I have to deci de what I ' m going 

10 , :i:i1 19 to do wi th it . 

,0 ..,,:31 20 So as an assistant princi pal, I 

,0 .,,,. 21 thi nk it was a l ittle easier . So I could push i t 

10 .,,,. 22 off to the princ ipal . 

48 

Q. As pri nci pal now, what are your primary 

,o ◄fie :◄◄ 2 responsibil ities to s tudents? 

10 45! -111 3 A. Again , ~aki ng sure that they rece1 ved 

,o ,,,., 4 thei r instructional services . Keeping them safe . 

,o 45:-66 5 They . . safe environment . And that they' re s ocially 

10: -11:04 6 and emotionally positivel y 111pacted whi le they· re i n 

10, ,u, 7 the school . I deal w1th students a s far es 

,o 41:12 8 homelessness , physi cally abuse from parents , from 

10 • e : 11 9 boyfriends , sexual abuse . I deal with transgende r 

10 .,, ,. 10 student s . I deal with homose,ual students. 

,o •e:n 11 Anyt hi ng that comes up. 

,o , a:H 12 And again , bec ause we· re a smal l 

, -:, , ,:" 13 ::ichool. I •• I'm not isolat ed , and i t's very eas y 

,o ""' 14 f or people to get t o me i f they wanted t o tal k t o 

10;48: 4& 15 me. 

Q . Does t he sc hoo1 have a wr-1 ttc::n pol t c y 

, 0 . .,,., 17 for staff prohibi ti ng discrimination against peopl e 

,o ..a: !i1 1 8 who are trans because of thei r s ex, gender f den ti ty 

,o 47:oo 19 or transgender status? 

10 4 1:d2 20 A. It would be whatever the County pol 1 c y 

HI ,1:ns 21 is . We don · t 11ake • • the school s don 't make 

10 47:oe 22 separate po l 1c1es on different i s sues. It's 

02/12/2020 07:37:58 PM Page 45 to 48 of 179 12 of 55 sheets 

Case 8:18-cv-03649-TDC   Document 106-8   Filed 06/09/21   Page 13 of 43



J.R. 225

1G:4' · 11 1 

10:41 15 2 

10:47 11 3 

101•1 n 4 

10:, 1 2' 5 

•o:'7 2e 6 

10"47 21 7 

lt>:4/ 21 8 

10:47 2tl 9 

10:47 )0 10 

10:47 43 ll 

10·41 Q 12 

10:47" 13 

10 •,(7 ,U 14 

49 

whatever the County. 

Q. So does the County ha ve a pol icy 

prohibiti ng - - for staff prohibiting discr iminati on 

against people who are t r ansgender because of their 

sex, gender i dentity or transgender status? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

And what is it? 

I don't know t he name of the policy , but 

it fal 1 s under the sexual harassment and 

discri minati on . 

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 32, Administrative Procedure , 

Of scri mi nat ion and Harassment, PGCPS 679 - 700 , was 

marked for identi f icat ion.) 

Q. We' re handing you a document t ha t 's 

,o.<1,0 15 Bates Number ed PGCPS 679, t itled Admin istr a t ive 

"""• 16 Procedure, Discrimination and Harassment, and 

1oa.,,. 17 marking it as Exhi bit 32. 

Did you want rae to review this? 10:41 21 1B 

10:0 3Q 19 

A. 

Q. You don ' t need to read i t carefully, but 

10-0 34 20 if you want to take a moment to just ski fl over it . 

10 ,. ,, 2.1 

10:•9 .& I 22 

1(1:oli 42 1 

1<t:olt·43 2 

10:-tt 44 3 

10: -t!J ,U 4 

10: -4 11 48 5 

10••9 bl 6 

10 ,19 ,, 7 

A. 

Q . 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

harassment. 

Q . 

the County 

A. 

Okay . 

Do you recogni ze this document? 

50 

Yes . 

What is it? 

I t is a AP4170 on discrimination and 

Is this the po 1 icy you were referenci ng , 

policy? 

If this was t he l ates t pol icy duri ng 

10 •9 &4 8 that time, because policies are updated. I don· t 

,o,,o •• 9 know how regularly they are , So the first t hing I 

10;50 oe 10 l ooked at was the date. 

10:!,0 07 1.1 I ca n· t say whether or not t his was 

10,00 " 12 the same pol f cy that was out in 2016 or not. 

Q . Do you know 1f the po 11 cy has been 

10,00 ,. 14 updated f n the last ten years? 

10:SO 15 15 

10 !SO 16 16 

10 !10 ,. 17 

10 so 11 18 

10.50 21 19 

H);~,21 20 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q . 

A. 

Q . 

Yes . 

Il has been upda t ed? 

Yes . 

Do you r emember when it was updated? 

No . 

Does this policy or its updated vers i on 

10,,. .. 21 apply to all staf f? 

,o:sa 41 22 A. Yes , staff and student:, . 

51 

,o ,0:4' 1 

10 50:,n 2 

10 51J:•7 3 

10 50'&1 4 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Does it apply to security guards? 

Everybody. 

Cont rectors? 

Caf eteria workers. Anybody that comes 

10 so::il 5 in t he door. 

10 so,s, 7 

Q, 

A. 

How fs ft distributed? 

We get ft through our e-mails , and we 

,o:5iJ:51 8 also receive training. 

When you say "we, · who do you mean? 

Everybody in the County . 

Does t hat mean all empl oyees? 

All employees. 

10 111.0l 9 

10.11:05 10 

10 ·51:00 11 

10 51:09 12 

10"!1 :09 13 

10.51:U 14 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

What kf nd of tra f nf ng do you get on ft? 

Webi nars , videos I in addition to the 

10 swa 15 wri tten po11cy . 

10 51:25 16 Q, When you say you get it t hrough e -mail , 

10 ,,,,. 17 how frequently does that happen? 

A. Whenever it i s updated , and at the 

10 ",., 19 beginni ng of each school year. So ft' s not updated 

,o s1:1a 20 every school year. but we get them every school 

10 s1::1t 21 year. 

tO !l:1& 22 Q, And you mentioned the re are webf nars and 

52 

ta 61 :d 

ICI 51;5) 

1 

2 

vf deos. Ca n you say a 11 ttl e bit more about t hat ; 

how many web1 nars? 

IQ St:M 3 

10 s1:sa 4 

10 52:02 5 

10 s,:oe 6 

A. We have to watch them. I t's almost like 

a t rai ning- type thing. So you watch t hem , you have 

to answer que-s t 1ons at the end . 

Q . When you say "watch t hem," 1 t sound ti 

,os2:12 7 l ike you're talking about more than one. 

10 52:14 8 A. R1ght. So it ' s on . li ke. different 

1os2:1i 9 topics. In addition to discria,1nat1on, sexual 

10:&2: M 10 di scr1mi nation and harussment , there are ot her 

10,u,11 topics. Li ke , I don ' t know, there's quite a few. 

, • .,,., 12 I'm tryi ng t o t hi nk of some of the other t opi cs. 

,..,,,, 13 I 'm drawing a blank. 

1062!1!11 14 Right now. sexual discri~f natfon is 

10 '"'' 15 the only one that· s st i ck1 ng out. 

Q . Would there be more than one v1 <Jeo on 

,o u :o, 17 sexual discrimination? 

,o l!J102 18 

,o 63:01 19 

t<I Sl:12 20 

10 bl:12 21 

10 5 J : H 22 

this 

A. 

Q. 

topic? 

A. 

Q . 

No. 1t would be one. 

Okay . So t here wou1 d be one v1 deo on 

Yes. I beli eve so. 

And i s that every year? 
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10:!ll Ii 

10; 5) l i 

10:53 Z3 

10:!IJ 211 

1(;:53 U 

10:0l '4 

10:~1 •,o 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

8 

7 

A. 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

53 

Yes. Actually, someti11es twice a year. 

When would that happen twice a year? 

In the fall. and then in the spring. 

Is it a l ways t wice a year? 

No. It ' s not always t wi ce a year, no. 

How frequentl y 1 s 1t tw1ce a year? 

I don· l know. You know, real fy never 

" '"" 8 pa·fd atLenl1on, but Lhe re·s a long 11st that we have 

10:s1 •11 9 to go through in certain t1me frames. 

10:53 51 10 Q. Does the 1 nstructions on whether you 

10,n ,. ll need to watch t hat tra1 ni ng twice a year , does that 

"'"" 12 come from t he County? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

Se tween 201 1 or 2012 to 2016, do you 

10.s, os 1S remember approximately how many times ft was twice a 

10:i;,. 06 16 year? 

10:~<I Of 17 

1015◄ OJ 18 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Okay. Are there any guidelines about 

,o,u " 19 how to implement this non•discriminat1on policy for 

,.,.., 20 staff? 

,ci , .. 21 21 

10:S_. 22 22 

tO:S-1 ·25 1 

IU:~-4 17 2 

10:s• :se 3 

10:54 .CO 4 

to:S♦ 46 6 

10 ·55 01 6 

,o :ss '4 7 

10 )S Cf 8 

10::., Gel 9 

to:~ GG 10 

11):~5 Cit 11 

10;55 10 12 

What do you mean? A . 

Q. Li ke any protocols aboul what th1 s means 

54 

and how t o apply it withi n the school environment? 

A. No . We are asked to review it with our 

employees i n the building. And t hen with the 

students, they get the 1 nformati on t hrough the 

Students Rights & Responsi bi 1 it 1 es document. 

Q . Do you t h1nk repeated and 1ntent1onal 

misgendering would qualify as a viol ation of t his 

policy? 

A. 

Q. 

MR. SHARMA : Objection . 

You can answer. 

Repeat the question . 

Do you think repeated and intent i onal 

10:SS IS 13 misgender1 ng woul d qualify as a violation of this 

10,,. " 14 pol icy? 

Ul:55: 14 15 

10,,1, 1..8 

10 5:S Uil 17 

Hl, 55 23 18 

A. 

Q. 

MR . SHARMA: Objection. 

You can answer . 

Intentional, yes . 

You ment ioned that this po l icy also 

, .... ., 19 appl i es to students? 

10:!;5 4J 20 

10:G!o.4~ 21 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

How are they 1 nstructed about the 

10:ss o 22 requ1 rements of th1 s po 1 icy? 

55 

10 H:'8 1 

10 !15:40 2 

10-55:Sl 3 

,o 55:51 4 

10 55:N 5 

,a 51:04 6 

10 lldt<W 7 

10 56:10 6 

10 H:12 9 

10:aa:12 10 

HI N=1S ii 

A. 

Q. 

What do you mean? 

You ment ioned that the re's a Student 

Rights & Responsibilities docuMnt? 

A. 

Q. 

document? 

A. 

Yes. 

Is this policy di scussed i n that 

Yes . So is thi s document in the Ri ghts 

& Reapona1 b111t1 es document: is that what you' re 

ask1 ng? 

Q. Well , how are the students learni ng that 

they need to comply with this policy? 

A. What • • what we do is read what the 

,o ,.,,. 13 definition is of sexual harassment . That come s 

,o '"" 14 straight out of the Code. And then with t he 

,o s,:,0 15 student &1 we talk about what the disci f)1 inary 

,o Sfi:33 1 6 actions are. 

1058:U 17 Q. And ia tho definit i on of sexual 

1,,,.,,. 18 harassment t hat 's in the Code based on th1 s po 11 cy? 

10 56:41 19 A. Yes . 

10 .,,,. 20 (Previous 1 y marke d Plaintiff· s Exh1 bit 8 , Student 

,o '"" 21 Rights & Respons 1b11H1es Handbook. was presented.) 

10 111:0l 22 Q. We are handing you are a 32-page 

56 

, • .,,., 1 document ti tl ed Students Rights & Respons1b111t1es 

,o "'" 2 Handbook . which has been previously ,aarked as 

""'" 3 Exhibit 8 . 

10 51 ;• 1 4 Do you recognize t his document , 

10 61:•• 5 Hs. Pope- Brown? 

10 ,1: .... 6 

10 S7•0 7 

10,57:<IO 8 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

What 1 s it? 

It's the Code of Student Conduct. Or 

,o r,,o 9 Student Rights & Responsi bilities. They changed the 

ic• f7:&? 10 name. 

10·57:6\> 11 Q. ls it t he same Code of Conduct that you 

,o 57,n 12 have been t alking about this morning? 

,, 67:~ 13 

10 &7:M 14 

10 H:02 1.5 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. To my knowledge, yes. 

How is it distri buted to students? 

Each student gets a copy of • • students 

,ow:M 16 g e t -· 1t comes In a book1ot f orm, and :studunt.::11 

,o sa:11 17 rec eive a copy, 

Q. They have e hard copy . I s there a copy 

1t1H:,1 1.9 avai labl e for t hem online anywhere-· 

10 58:ta 20 

10 $¥:ta 21 

A. 

Q. 

,o s,:u 22 copy? 

Yes. 

- - 1 f they 1 ose access to their hard 
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!C: U 22 1 

10:St:28 2 

l(i:M 2f 3 

l~:58 30 4 

1(i:,J.31 5 

10;~1 JII 6 

10:)S :n 7 

1tl:H 31 8 

10:51 ◄Q 9 

10:51 <tl 10 

10:~e .is 11. 

1C:5t &1 12 

10:5,1 6l 13 

57 

A. Yes . I don· t fore see them goi ng to look 

it up, but yes . 

Q. 

A. 

Q, 

So they can access 1t anytime online? 

Yes. 

Can you flip to page 8 of the Student 

Rights & Respons1bi11t1os. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

And read the fi r st section at the top of 

the page under the title Section 2. Rights & 

Responsibilities. 

A. Administrators • · school admini s t rators 

responsibility , which - - you said page 8? 

Q. It's page 8 of 11y copy, but it might be 

,..,. 117 14 page 7 of the actual - -

IO,$V O? 15 

111:~t OJ 16 

10:st o,; 17 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Oh. okay. Secti on 2 . 

Yes. Yes . 

"PGCPS respects the rights of all 

,.,.,., 18 individuals to be treated equally and fairly to 

,.,., ... 19 ensure that no i ndividual is discriminated against 

,~-,, 12. 20 based on race , color 1 se~ , age. na ti onal or igin, 

,..,.,, 21 religion. sexuel orienta ti on , or disabi l ily in the 

10 :59 2., 22 areas of rreedo~ of expression , procedural and 

H.nH 26 1 

,cw~• 21 2 

10;$9 31 3 

1015» 33 4 

10i59 'O 6 

1o·St ,1 6 

10 :,9 43 7 

10·59 47 6 

10::4 t2 9 

10:!I0.5) 10 

10:H SS 11 

10;5i !5l 12 

10; &959 13 

11:00 ,., 14 

due-process, personal rights and access to school 

programs. If you have any quest ions about 

non- discriminati on policies, please use the 

fol l owing contact informat1 on. • 

58 

a. And it says on the block to tho right of 

the two blocKs that , "For non-discrimination 

po·1 i c i as based on gender, race , religion, sexual 

or1 entat ion , and disability" to contact, and i t has 

a name and address. 

So if the students wanted to see the 

actual policies, woul d they need to get in t ouch 

with another person? 

A. No. They would come to the 

administration. 

Q. Okay . Are the actual pol i cies, like t he 

., 00 u 16 previous exhi b it we were l oo)(1n9 at. I Ike Lne 

1100 11 17 discrimination and harassmenl policy, a re the actual 

n .oo ,. 19 pol icies d i stributed to students in any way? 

1' ;00 16 1.9 

H:00 20 20 

11 :00.~1 21 

A. 

Q . 

A. 

For sexual ori entati on harassment? 

For di scri mi nat 1 on . 

No. And what we had done at Fri endly, 

n:oa 2, 22 we have an organi2at1on that actually Hs . Eller 

11 00:29 1 

11 00:3S 2 

t1 M:&3 3 

11 00: , 1 4 

11 00:j \ 5 

11 00:H 6 

59 

headed cal 1 ed Car, ng Col ors, and students were very 

i nstrumental in helping all students understand 

sexual orientation, 

So our students really don't get 

down in the weeds with a document. So from peer to 

peer, that was the attempt to touch every • • every 

, , 01:04 7 student that was not a part of Caring Colors, and 

"01 ,01 8 show t hem an understanding of what it rea lly 

".,,,, 9 meant -- what they d1d , what their organization 

11 o, :, i 10 stood for, and what they 111eant . 

II 01:1' 1.2 

Q. 

A. 

And how did they do t hat? 

Posters, word of mouth, talking to 

"""' 13 different groups of students. Not official •· not , 

" • .,,. 1-4 l ike, a set time, they're going to talk to this 

1 1 01:~1 15 group or that group , but just spreading the wor d. 

" • .,,. 1s Their presence i n the school was very strong. Very 

11 01:•2 17 strong students. Very strong students . 

Q. Approximately how many students were i n 

11 01: so 1.9 that organization. Caring Colors? 

lt 01!$J 20 A. In Cari ng Colors, during that time, 

" .,,., 21 probably •· I can just guess. Maybe 15, 20, but 

11 011ri1 22 that's a guess. 

1 I 01:0l 1 

11 01:07 2 

11 02:U 3 

11 02:11 4 

, 1 02;14 5 

tl 0 , :11 6 

It 02: H 7 

11 02: 19 8 

H t»:21 9 

11 02:l l 10 

11 .02:2& 11 

11 02:11 12 

11 02:11 13 

1 1 02:H 14 

1 1 G2t 15, 15 

1 1 01: •◄ 10 

1 1 07144 1 7 

II 02: ,!i 18 

11 0,;.f7 19 

11 o,:,.a 20 

1 1 02:•• 21 

11 OJ;O'J 22 

And 15 and 20 of some of the most 

popular kids , li ke our SGA president. thi ngs like 

that . 

Q. And you said that organization was 

headed by Hs. El 1 er? 

A . Ms. Ellur, ytt&, 

Q. Did she start the organization? 

60 

A. I don· t remember whether she started the 

organi z.eti on or not. because the or ganization was 

there when I got there. I used to attend their 

meetings . Some of their meetings. not all of the i r 

meet1ngs. 

But I don ' t know if she started i't 

or not . She may have. I don ' t know . 

a. Oo you know why Caring Colors was 

rounded? 

A. No. 

a. Do you know when Caring Colors was 

founded? 

A. No. 

Q. After Hs. Eller left , did someone take 

her role of •· 

15 of 55 sheets Page 57 to 60 of 179 02/12/2020 07:37:58 PM 

Case 8:18-cv-03649-TDC   Document 106-8   Filed 06/09/21   Page 16 of 43



J.R. 228

11:03 01 1 

11:0~ 0 1 2 

11:lt] 02 3 

11;1)3·10 4 

11:03 12' 5 

,, :o:, ,, 6 

,1•03 11 7 

\\:032] 8 

ll:0) 21 9 

1110;, ze 10 

11 :Gl 21 11. 

'1:03 X, 12 

11:0J JO 13 

111,1133 14 

11,0l 33 15 

11:0.; JS 16 

A, 

Q. 

A, 

Yes. 

Who did that? 

That was Ms . Bell and • • who was t he 

61 

other teacher that 1 eft? There was another teacher 

that left. I don't re~omber her name . I don't 

remember the names. 

Q. I l sounds 1 i kc a second teacher was 

involved in it, but t hen also left Friendly High 

School? 

A. 

Q. 

School? 

A. 

School . 

Q. 

A. 

Yes , 

Is Hs. Bell still at Friendly High 

Ms. Bell is still at Friendly High 

Does she still hel p the organiza ti on? 

Yes, she still does. 

"'" ,, 17 Once the •• thu group fro~ • • I 

"'"., 18 would say •· thinking about thooe • • 2017 or '18, 

11:01 55 19 l 'm not sure, the group that was there when 

11·0<00 20 Ms. Eller was t here was the strongest, ~ost popular 

11 •• " 2l. group. When those studen ts graduated, the students 

11,0◄ ,t 22 that were l eft were not as dedicated to t he mission. 

ll ;C,'4t7 1 

11:0• 2G 2 

\1:0.-Z<ill 3 

11:0, n 4 

11: CH :32 5 

11·G• 37 6 

11 o, ~2 7 

11 Gol Ail 8 

11;0'4 4$ 9 

11:ti.a 54 10 

11:0J Ii& 11 

11:0• ff 12 

11:(M s., 13 

11:05 ~2 14 

11:05 G3 15 

11 o, CII 1.6 

Right now, our student govern~ent 

president is, again , p resident of Caring Col ors. 

They changed the name to - - I can't re11e11ber the 

name, but t hey wanted it to be more incl usive of 

everyone, not just people who dealt with sexual 

62 

or1 entat, on and gender 1 ssues and things 11 ke that, 

to be 1 ncl usi ve of everybody. So they decided to 

change the name. 

Q. 

A, 

remember . 

Q. 

Do you know what the name is r i ght now? 

No . I could find out. I don 't 

Okay. ls there an or ganization that's 

dedicated to the needs of students who are LGBT at 

Friendly High School right now? 

A. 

Q . 

Yes. That's the organ1 zat1on . 

But you ment 1 oneo that I l was • • u,ey 

",.,. 17 had changed the1r mission to be broader then j ust 

11 .r,,5 10 18 sexual orientation and gender? 

11. 05 12 1.9 

11:Ci~ 15 20 

11:0:; 10 21 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Broader as far as incl uding more people. 

Oh, I see. 

Yeah , just including people that don't 

11:05 tt 22 necessarily personally have the s a1ne i5sues , but 

63 

11 0!1:2') 1 

11 O!i:ll 2 

ti 05:H 3 

ll 0S:2t 4 

11 Q~:24 5 

inclusive of everyone , and that was a student 

decision. 

Q. Okay. So allies can be members of the 

organization now? 

A, Right . Right. You don't have to be gay 

, . 05:21 

\I C5:3J 

6 

7 

or t ransgender. Anybody can be a member that is an 

ally. So building up their broad base. 

11 05:35 8 

, , 00:31 9 

, , 01:37 10 

11 O!i:!t 11 

11 O!!:li 12 

1 1 01:H 13 

I I 01:d 14 

11 o&:, s 15 

Q. 

sti 11 - -

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

But tho focus of the organization is 

Yes. 

• · LGBT students? 

Yes. And transgendcr students. 

Okay. 

Well, I guess that incl udes ... 

You m,mtioned that Caring Colors did a 

11.os:,a 16 lot to explain to students about sexual orientation? 

11,i,:n 17 

11 05: S4 18 

A. 

Q. 

Mm-hmm. 

Were t hey abl e to make efforts to 

11ot101 1.9 explain gender identity to students as well? 

11 01:(M 20 A. This is an opinion , because I don't have 

11 ,., .. 21 any data on it, but I think that they did. Thore 

11 06:10 22 are always a few out1iers as far as students are 

64 

11 01:1 1 1 concerned, and the student outliers were those that 

11 "'" 2 were already ODO, oppositional defiant. with 

11 "'" 3 anything. So if you say 1 eft , they' re going to go 

11 .,,., 4 right. When you say right, they' re going to go 

H oe:"'4 5 1 eft. I f you say give everyone a chance, they' re 

11 os:..,ti 6 go1 ng to say no. 

II OS;3D 7 As far as the school and t he student 

11 ot:• 1 8 body was concerned, they were very successful. 

11 08:43 9 

11 .00:4$ 10 

Q. 

A, 

In terms of ... 

In terms of accept ance and, you know, 

11 oe:n 11 meeting people where they are and treating everyone 

11 "'" 12 as the person that they decide to be. 

Q, Did the school provi de Caring Colors 

11 01:01 14 w1 th resources? 

\I 07:01 15 A. Anything they needed. Anything they 

11 07~tu 10 nccaea. Li ke I :,,o1d , [ cJ1 d o'ttun<J ooma of tho 

,, c1:oa 17 meetings. So t hey were like any other organization 

,,.,, .. 18 in the building. So whatever it was they needed. 

1 1 01:11 19 And t hey were very recognized . 

t i 07: U 2O 

11 07 :15 21 

Q. 

A. 

What did they ask the school for? 

Was 1 t okay to put up posters. Was it 

11 01: , 1 22 okay to have different 1neetings. And things 1 ike 
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11:0t 24 2 

11:01 21 3 

11:07 ~ 4 

11 :n, :11 5 

II :07 )4 6 

l\• 01 ·315 7 

H;OI 42 8 

11:fi1 •S 9 

11:0I 06 10 

11108 18 11. 

11:ot 'n 12 
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that. 

Q. Would the school provide the funding to 

pr int the posters? 

A. They were student-made posters. They 

di dn · t ask for pri nted posters. 

Whatever it is they or any other 

group asks for is - - was provided. Every group has 

their own budget. They create Lhelr own budget. 

Q. We are handing you a 25- page document 

entitled Providing Safe Spaces for Transgender end 

Gender Non-Conforming Youth : Guidelines for Gender 

Identity Non-Discrimination, which we are marking as 

Plaintiff's Exhibit 33. 

",.,, 14 (Plain tiff's Exhi bit 33, Provi ding Safe Spaces for 

,,.., " 15 Transgender and Gender /Ion -Conforming Youth : 

"""' " 16 Guide l ines for Gender Ident ity Non-Discrfminatfon. 

" '" ., 17 was marked for ident1fication.) 

'1 :06 41 1B 

11 :GI 55 19 

11 oe " 20 

Q , 

A. 

Q. 

Have you seen th1 s document before? 

Actually, I have not . 

So il hasn't been di s t r ibuted to 

11 .. o, 21 administrators et Friendly High School? 

11:00·ot 22 

11:00 12 1 

11:ot 17 2 

11:09 i; 3 

11 : 09· 21 4 

t1:09 31 5 

11•0; :JC 6 

11 ,0\) 31 7 

11 09 40 8 

U:OP 0:2 9 

11:ot ., 10 

11:0f $0 11 

n·OP 56 12. 

A. Nol Lhat I can remember. I can't swear 

that I didn ' t rece1ve it. I can tell you I don't 

remember reading it, 

Q. Okay. To yout 111e111ory , have you been 

66 

encouraged to have any discussions about this within 

the school? Using this document? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q, 

Encouraged by ... 

The Board of Edu ca ti on. 

No . No. 

As vice principal. did you have a rol e 

in identifying gaps in existing policies? 

A. 

Q. 

No . 

So if you saw a need for a pol icy 

11:10.02 13 update, you could not 111ake a recommendation to 

11:10 cs 14 anyone? 

11:10 u 15 

,, 111 ~· 16 

,, 10 0i 17 

A. 

Q . 

A. 

I - - yes. I could. Yes. 

Okay. 

I lhi nk anybody coul d make a 

11.10 u> 18 recommendation . 

11.10 11 j_g 

11:10· 1• 20 to? 

11:10 11 21 

11cl0 111 22 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Who wou'ld tha t recom"1endation be made 

It would probably just go up the chain . 

So who woul d you make the reco11mendat ion 

67 

, , 10 121 1 to? 

11 10:21 2 A. The principal , the principal to hi s 

, , 10:23 3 boss, and his boss to his boss . so on and so forth. 

11 10:M 4 Who i s the boss of the principal ? 

11 10:28 5 

Q. 

A. The 1nstruct1onal d1rector. And at that 

11 IC: .J2 e 

11 10:H 7 

t1· tO•M 8 

11 10 :'° 9 

11 10:U 10 

1 I 10:'l ti 

t i me, it was Hark Fossett. 

Q. 

A. 

Who is Mar k Fossett' s boss? 

At the ti me , I don't know. I don't 

remember. They · ve changed so much . I don't 

remember who his boss was. 

Q. Do you re111e11ber the role of who was 

, , 10:•1 12 above the instructional d1recto1"? 

1110:48 13 

t1 10:511.4 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Okay . During your time as vice 

,1 10:59 15 pri ncipal , did you ever make a recommendation fo r a 

11 11 ,01 16 change in pol i cy? 

11 11:02 17 

, 1.11:01 18 

For thi s pol i cy? 

For any change in pol icy? 

No. "11 :05 19 

11 t,:05 20 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. Did ad111inistrators at Fri endl y have any 

11 ,,,., 21 role 1n i nvestigating the pol icies? 

,, 11:12 22 

11 11 : u 1 

11 11:lt 2 

11 11:2, 3 

A. No. 

Where are the policies maintained? 

Online. 

Online? 

68 

1t n:ll ,4 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. So there's a special place online t hat 

1, 11:2• S you can go and get -- one place , one-stop shop, 

Q. And all of thu policies are mai ntai ned 

11 11 :')t 7 

11 11 :M 8 

11 11:fl 9 

tt. 11 :1111 10 

11 11 : SII 11 

11 11pli:Z 12 

1111 :47 13 

onl i ne? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

Teachers can access them anyti me? 

Yes. 

Students can access them anytime? 

Yes. 

MS . CHEEHA: Okay. Let's take a 

1111:n 14 five-minute break. 

" 11:62 15 THE WITNESS : Thank you. 

11 11:;; 10 (RE.CE55, 11 . 1 1 a.m. 11,24 a.m.) 

"'"" 17 BY MS. CHEEMA : 

11 24,bf 18 Q. From the time you began at Friendly High 

" ,s,o, 19 School to 2016, what training did you receive 

,1 a :o:ri 20 through the PG County school system? 

11 26:09 21. 

11 ~l:n 22 

HR. SHIIRHA : Objection. 

You can answer- , again. 
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11 :2) 14 1 

11:25 Hi 2 

11 ; 25 15 3 

H;2S :0 4 

11:2) 21 5 

11: 2(1; 23 6 

t1 ·2S 25 7 

11:2.S 31 8 

11:25 3t 9 

11:25 ,4(1 10 

11:2S ,i ll 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

specifics. 

Q. 

It is so vast . 

Yeah . 

69 

I mean, I can't •• unless you' r e talki ng 

So what are the basic requ1 rements for 

annual training that you have to do every year? 

A. We have to go • • we go over al I of the 

administ rative procedures. We also have to take the 

onlfne courses . 

Q. 

A. 

What are the onl i ne courses? 

The ones that I menti oned earlier where 

"'" .. 12 you watch a video and you have t o answer questions 

"'" ,, 13 afterwards. You get a pass / fail . And the County 

n ,s so 14 keeps record o f that . 

11.2 !'. s, 15 Q. The admi ni s trat 1 ve procedures, do you 

'"'' Iii 16 have 11 ke a handbook that contains al 1 of the 

11:2• w 17 administ rative procedures? 

11:20 0 1 1B 

\l :26 03 19 

A. 

Q. 

They 're onli ne . 

They 're online. 

Approximatcl y how long does il take 

,, u,. 21. to do the t raining every year i how much ti 11e do you 

n:23 111 22 spend? 

11·2' 10 1 

n,~"11· 27 2 

11:26 28 3 

11:.1:&31 4 

\1:26,.. 5 

11:26 )4 6 

,, ?03C5 7 

11 M 31 8 

n:2G 40 9 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Probabl y - · it"s hours. It' s hours. 

About how many hours? 

Ma ybe a couple of hours. 

Okay . 

Yes . 

Th1s 1s mandatory tra1n1ng? 

Yes , 

Is tnere any el ective training? 

70 

There may be modules that are elective, 

11:n ., 10 but I don't reme11ber what they are. 

'1:28 45 11 Q. Okay . Does the subject matter of the 

11,2& ,, 12. training change from year to year? 

11:21!1 51 13 

11:21 U 14 

A. 

Q . 

Not that I can reraeaiber . 

How much trai n1 ng about di scri m1 nat1 on 

11:21 u; 15 do you receive on an annual basis? 

11 a1 1, 1.6 A. When you say Mhow much ,•· whal type or 

,, :n ,, 17 i ncrement are you ta-lking? 

11. 27 11 18 Q. In terms of how many t imes do you have 

11.11 2, 19 to complete a non•dlscrlm1nat1on training In a year? 

11 ,,r-2,1 20 

ll:2:1 28 21 

A. 

Q. 

,, :zr ,, 22 training? 

Soraet i 11es t wi ce, 

01<a y . And what is the for11at of that 

71 

A , It f s tho modu I es, and someti mes 1 t is 

11 21: • ~ 2 through our pri ncipal meetings. 

Q. 

1121 :, 1 4 meetings? 

11 27!'6 5 

,i 21:&3 6 so ... 

1 1 27: !W 7 

11 27: U 8 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

How frequently is it through princi pal 

I don· t know because the agenoa changes, 

What are the pri ncipal meeti ngs? 

When all of the p ri ncipals i n tho systo11 

11 """ 9 come together to meet on differ ent top1 cs; 

11.211:«u 10 instruc ti onal topics , s t udent topics, content 

11 . 211; 11 11 topf cs 1 administra tive procedures. 

11 •,,:2.2 1.2 

,, ,:,e:,, 13 

1, ,21:.1, 14 

11 21:32 15 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

How often does t hat meeting 

We meet once a 11onth. 

How long is that meet 1 ng? 

All day. 

All day? 

Yes . 

occur? 

It 111 : )) 16 

11 2S: l4 17 

1 1 21: ).4 18 

11. M:•o 19 

11 ·21:• 2 20 

Q. If there i s a trai ning component of 1 t , 

how 

11 25·4' 21 is . 

I I 2110 22 

long 

A. 

Q. 

woul d the training be? 

It's hard to say. Depends on what it 

What's the longest tra1 n1 ng you ' ve ever 

72 

11 ""' 1 had dur1 ng that meet 1 ng? 

t i :a:i'l 2 

I I 21:61 3 

11 :e:u: 4 

"· 
Q. 

"· 

Three hours. 

What was that about? 

I don· t r emember. I really don ' t. They 

11 2a:H 5 all r un together. So are you asking me were there 

".t1·0:1 6 any about s exual or1tmtat1on , or jutSot in g unersl? 

It 21:01 7 Q. Were there any trainings on 

11211,11 8 non-discri mination duri ng t he princ i pal meetings 

11 ,., ,. 9 from 2012 through 20167 

11 2t:H 10 A. Yes, when we went over the 

11211:19 11 administrative procedures. 

11 ' 29:ZO 12 Q. Okay. So does t hat •· how f requently 

11 ,.,,. 13 does that happen? 

1 1 n :21 1-4 A. I know we do it every year , s011etimes 

1 1 :zs:,u 15 more than once per year. 

1 I 29113 1 6 Q . 

11 21::,e. 17 meeti ng? 

1 1 .. 't:311 18 

11 29:31 19 

"· 
Q. 

AncJ t hat· :l du r 1 ng "tne pr1 nc1 pa1:,' 

Yes . 

Okay. Other tha" when you' re tal k1 ng 

11 J O:O!i 20 about all o f the adm1 n1 strati ve p rocedures together, 

11 :,o:1J1 21 has t here e ver been a t rai ni ng for pr incipal s about 

"J0:11 22 gender i dentity? 
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11:)0 13 1 

\1 l )CI I' 2 

11:>0 %4 3 

\ll)O 2 1 4 

11:30 1 1 5 

11:10.n 6 

n·,0•3& 7 

H:)O 3t 8 

11:30 41 9 

11:)0., 10 

!1 :30 ., U 

11:)0 $0 12 

11:)0~ 13 

,, lb 6"~ 1.4 

11;30 57 '15 

A. 

Q. 

No. Not that I know o f. 

Have any of the non-discrimination 

73 

trainings you· ve gotten from PG County prov1 ded you 

w1 th any ski 11 s or techn1 ques t o understand bias? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

No, not t hat I know of. 

Okay. 

Actually , I take that back. Yes , we did 

get training on implicit bias . 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

gondor. 

Q. 

A. 

When was that? 

It's been a couple of years now. 

What kind of i mpl icit bias was that? 

Al1 types , race, sexual orientation , 

Was that •· who provided that trai ning? 

It was • • I don' l know their names . It 

""' 02 16 was·· they weren't f rom the County. 

H:SI 04 17 

11:)1 ot 1B 

11:) 1 11 19 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

How long was that traini ng? 

Two hours. And the last one was Monday. 

There was another implicit bias training 

11:11 ~ 20 on Monday? 

n 31 ,, 21. 

n:31 21 22 

11:;tl 26 1 

11:31.:il7 2 

A. 

Q. 

A, 

Q, 

Yes . 

Is this now a regular t raining thet • · 

74 

I don't know. 

Okay . The training that you took two 

11 :SI 3C 

111.)I 35 

3 

4 

years ago, was that t he fi rst training on b1as, on 

implici t bias? 

11: )1 38 5 

1\·JI JI 6 

11 31., 7 

11 3 t 41 8 

11:31 41 9 

11:31 41 10 

A. 

Q. 

bias? 

A. 

Q, 

A. 

On implicit bias , yes. 

And that covered all types of implicit 

Yes. 

What kind of format was it i n? 

It was discuss1on topics. It was 

11::,1 ss U questions, question/answer. There were t wo 

n :n oo 12 presenters. 

Q. Do you remember what organization the 

11:12 ~, 14 presenters were from? 

11:32 ot 1S 

H.~ot 1.6 

A. 

Q. 

I don't . 

Was t hero any test at tne end of that 

11 ,, ,o 17 training that you took lo eval ua te your 

11.3:?: 2:i 18 comprehension? 

11,32. 2 4 19 A. Yes. As a 11atter of fact, we had to 

11:)2:;ae 20 take a test before the meeting to i nterpret the 

11:.11 :1, 21 b1as. 

11 r3:Z 3& 22 a. Be'fore the meet 1 ng . 

11 H:>1 1 

113): )l' 2 

11 32:)9 3 

1 I 32 :40 4 

,, 3':&0 5 

11 32: N 6 

1 1 33:0l 7 

11 JJ:M 8 

11 ll!OI 9 

11 ·33:09 10 

75 

What about af ter t he meet1 ng? 

A. Well , the results we r e discussed during 

the meeting . 

Q. 

A. 

Okay. Who attended that trai ning? 

All systemic princi pals. All grades. 

elementary , middle, high, all central office staff, 

superint endent, associate superintendents. 

Q. When you say ·central office staff,• who 

does that refer to? 

A. So anybody other t han the principal. So 

11:U:11 11 i n&tructi onal di rectors, associate superintendents , 

11: ;1;1:11 12 directors , managers , central off1ce staff. 

11:3.t:n 13 

11 ll:21 14 

" JJ;'1 1.5 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

" ,,,,. 16 chairs? 

t i n :M17 A. 

So everyone • • folks abovo you? 

Right , 

Any vice principals or department 

Not at that meeting. They get that 

1 1 n :u 18 separately. Their meetings are separate. 

I I 33:k 19 Q, Do they also receive the implicit bias 

11 '.ll:Jr 20 training? 

11 U:H 21 A. They have not received the one that I 

11 :,:,: :11 22 have rece1 ved. They ' ve recei ved t he previous ones . 

1 1 3J:41 1 

1 1 JJ: 41 2 

H 3J ;47 3 

11 3.): 41 4 

11 3;1:61 5 

They normally start with princi pals and then they 

trf ckl e down because everybody's meetings are 

differen t , on d1 ffe r ent days . 

76 

Q. Okay. So vice pri nci pa 1 s and teachers 

have received an implicit bias training? 

11 ,U :5!1 6 A. As far as l know, yes , because what I am 

11 :n:M 7 

H 1':0t 8 

H S4: fM 9 

told, because I don't att end their meetings , that 

they received the same things that we received. 

Q. Okay. So your understanding is t hat the 

11;, .. :ot 10 same presenters and same substance of the t rai n1 ng 

",., ., 11 that you rece1ved was also provided to • · 

11U: 14 12 I don't know. I have never attended 

Hl•:11 13 theirs. 

II 34:11 14 Q, But your understanding is that that's 

11 34:1• 16 how the system is supposed to work? 

11 34 : ) 1 16 A . l don ' t Know 11" ... l ' m not pr ivy t1" i l":, 

1134: 2417 like the same presenters and, you know, all of that . 

, , ~4 :21 18 I don't know. 

Q. Do you know if they have received a 

11 J4:J'l 20 training that ' s si•ilar to the implicit bias 

t 134::H 21 training that you received? 

A, Yes. Yes . 
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77 

l1:l4 3' 1 Q. Okay . Would it have been the sa~e time 

11,,.,, 2 period. t wo hours' length? 

11:)~ u 3 

n:3-' 45 4 

A. 

Q. 

I woul d assume so. 

Did that training equip you with the 

'""·" 5 ski 11 s you need to effectivel y resolve all 

11,,, .,, 6 situat ions of bi as at Friendly High School ? 

A. I don'l thi nk l hal's lhe •• a fa i r 

'"'"'' 8 question for me because I don' l any biases. I thi nk 

11:35 ,,. 9 you wou ld have to ask s011eone who maybe had biases. 

11,,s,. 10 Then if you' re talking about gender biases, I 

11:u H ll thought it was 'llery adequate , in my opinion , for 

11.,.,. 12 anybody that• s struggling , if they are struggling. 

'"" ,. 13 But for mo , it• s information that I have al ready 

11 :1s ,1 14 heard before . 

11.35 37 15 Q, Do you in your role have to resolve 

11,,..,, 16 situations i nvol ving other people's bias? 

11:~ 11:3 17 

11:3, 43 18 

A. 

Q, 

Yes. 

Did this training equip you with t he 

11,.,,, 19 skills to·· 

,, .,, ., 20 

,, 3:, ., 21 

A. 

Q, 

Yes . 

Okay. Is non-discrimination training 

11,,. oo 22 provided lo students'/ 

11 :U 07 :I. 

11 :36.01 2 

11:36 Ga 3 

11:l& 09 4 

11 : 36 H 5 

11· 36 10 6 

11 36 11 7 

11 H 10 8 

n:38 Ill 9 

11::M u 10 

A. 

Q, 

A. 

A. 

A, 

Q. 

Yes . 

MR. SHARMA: Objection. 

What kind of t rai ni ng? 

MR . SHARNA: Objection. 

We •• 

HR . SHARMA : You can answer . 

We answer ed it before , but -­

HR . SHARMA ; Exactly. 

• - the Code of Student Conduct. 

In addition to the quarterly meeting 

"'" ,, 11 about the Code of Conduct , is any other training 

11:,s 22 12 provided to students? 

11:)8 2, 13 A. No. Unless t here's a part icul ar 

11·>621 14 situation that may come up. 

78 

11 :36 )1 15 Q. What kind of situation would tri gger a 

u ~ u 16 training? 

11 ~ 39 17 A. So for i nstance, i n Hs. Eller's case , 

, 1, 311 ~ 18 there was a s tudent who has some emotional issues, 

11 ..... 19 and she -- the studen t called Ns . Eller•· referred 

11:u, w 20 to Ms. Eller as a man, and Hs. Eller brought t he 

11 1.s1 °" 21 s tudent to my attention. Hs . Eller and I had the 

n::t7 t.9 22 type of working relationship where, it didn't matter 

11 31 :13 1 

11 37 :11 2 

,, !11::M 3 

11 31:24 4 

11 31:21 5 

11 t7:a2 6 

11 37::1! 7 

79 

what, she would come t o !Re with whatever she needed. 

And I asked her. I said , well , Ms. Eller , this is 

what the • - you know , the Code says. The Code said 

I call the parent , student goes to in- school . And 

Ns. Eller wanted to speak with the student more just 

to have this conversation. I 'm like, sure. 

I was on a halfway decent 

"""' 8 relationship with this young lady , but because she 

1 1 .11: .. 1 9 had some emotional issues, so,neth10s that would 

" .,,., 10 change . It j ust depends. 

11:31:,11 11 So we sat down , and I spoke wi th the 

" '"'" 12 young l ady , and •· with Ns. Ell er , and tried to talk 

11 "'" :1.3 to her and let her know that Ms. Ell er is a human 

,1 >1:&9 14 bei ng like all of us, and this is what she prefers 

., ,o,o, 15 to be call ed. I gave the young lady an analogy of 

,,,., .. :1.6 her own mother and, you know , how would you feel if. 

11 H:10 17 you know , this was happening to your mother , t hey're 

11 ,,:n 18 cal 11 ng your mother- out of their na11e or how t hey 

11,a:15 19 don't want to be called. 

II 34:11 20 And I called t he young lady 's 

",.,,. 21 parent. The young lady 's parent was on t he 

11 11·21 22 telephone with us, And the young 1 ady' s parent 

BO 

11 J1 :2◄ 1 continued to tell the student how wrong she was . 

., ,.,,. 2 But the student would not let it go. She held on 

",.,., 3 fast that. I don't care what any of you all say . 

"'"" 4 It's a he . That's what I say. It was born a he . 

11-J1;u 5 He will never - - as far as 1 am concerned, never be 

11 »:•, 6 a he. 

11 )t;,ol.) 7 So it -- a:1 l ong as - - as lung as we 

,. .,..,, 8 were in the office and al 1 of us talk 1 ng , and she 

11 J•:• t 9 wasn't disrespectful i n - - wasn' t disrespect fu1 in 

",.,,. 10 her tone , it was • · she was Just talki ng. She's·· 

11 ::,e:w 11 I don't care what you say , religions say this, I --

" ,.,., 12 you know . And the young lady was sent to in-school 

, 1,•M11 13 suspension , because that's the puni shment for the 

, 1 3t t~ 14 harassment, but 1 t never changed her mind. 

, , Jt1~1 2 15 Now that's an anomaly for Friendly , 

11 n:11 1 6 s1nce 1 ·ve oecn ~t FMendly . 1 oon really r emembur 

11 3&:z, 17 that 1 nstance and another 1 ns tance w1 t h a couple of 

11 3':21 1.8 young men that were equall y as defiant. But f o r the 

",.,,., 19 rest of the time, the students at Fri endly loved 

",e:-,1 20 Hs . Eller. Loved Ms . Eller. Hale students , female 

11 :,o:d 21 student s . parents , She was a great teacher . 

11 )11:6' 22 Q . So you ~entioned that you and Ns. Eller 
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11; )t M 1 

11:)9 57 2 

11:Ji 58 3 

11:U·sa 4 

11:~ 02 5 

11:• 0 o, 6 

11•,d n 7 

ll;•CI 111 8 

11 40 24 9 

11 :•o n 10 

11:4o35 U 

11 :•o •2 12 

sat down and called the student's ntom and the mom 

was on th<> phone? 

A, 

Q. 

Mm -hmm. 

Other than that conversation. did you 

81 

try to pr ovide any for11al training to the student? 

A. The student was not receptive. At all. 

And ,s t he lype of sludent thal would beco11e very 

hostile H pushed to a cer tain point . And because 

she was speaking in a nor11al tone, s he heard and 

underst ood everythi ng we were sayi ng. She just 

woul d not change her Mind. 

Q. So you did not pr ovide any training 

'"" .. 13 beyond that conversation? 

n ,•o 41 15 

11;40 4tl 16 

11 t"0 ., 17 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

11 :•o se 18 suspension? 

H : 40 57 19 

11·•0 )t 20 

A. 

Q. 

The trai ni ng was t he conversation, 

Okay. 

The training was the convers ation . 

You mentioned she was provided in-school 

Yes. 

Were there any o t her consequences of 

11 , , 0121 that student ' s ... 

H:,U ~ 22 A. She was asked to - - 1f she coul dn · t 

82 

,, . ., ce 1 address Ms . Ell er as. you know, what Ms. Ell er as ked 

11:-11 11 2 her to address her as. then she needed to keep her 

111 ,11 ,, 3 mouth shut and not say i t out 1 oud. 

11 : ,11 21 4 

11:•1 25 5 

Q. 

A. 

Was that student in Hs. Eller's class? 

No . Hs . Ell er' s student& would never do 

,, ... , n 6 that. wou ld never do that. Ns. Eller was there a 

,, ., ,. 7 1ong - - I got there i n 2012 , she left i n 2016, and 

11 .u ,, 8 Ii ke I sai d , t hat was an anomaly fo r l hat t o happen . 

11:•U U 9 Q. Did that student r efer to Ms . Eller by 

11:,41 4t 1 0 the wrong pronouns after that conversation t hat you 

""' " 11 had with her? 

11: •1 s, 12 

11: • 1 ss 13 

A. 

Q . 

The student stayed away from Ms . Eller . 

Was the student i nstructed to stay away 

,, . ., " 14 f rom Hs . El 1 er? 

A. The s tudent was instructed to stay away 

" .. 2 ,o 1.6 f rom Hs. Eller if she could not be respec tful of-

11 .. 2 ,s: 1 7 what Ns . Eller wanted. 

11, ,12 11 18 Q . I n l he quarterly meeti ngs abou t lhe Code 

,,_.,,, 19 o f Conduct . are students taught any skills to 

,, ,.,,. 20 identify bi as? 

11:o:se 21 

11 :• 2:~ 22 

A. 

a. 

I don ' t understand. 

Are they provided training about how to 

83 

,,.,,., 1 i dentify bi as? 

A. The students? The t raining t hey were 

"..,,,. 3 provided was the t r aining that was provided from the 

11 .,:ss 4 Code. 

I t -'l:Ol 5 

11 •>:07 6 

Q. 

A. 

What is t he forMat of t hat trai ni ng? 

The Code i s reviewed , we give examples, 

""' " 7 and students can ask quest ions. 

ll .AJ: 15 8 a. When you say • the Code is reviewed, • ar e 

"'"" 9 the students reading t he Code while sitti ng in an 

,, &J110 10 assembly? 

11.4J: :n 11 

11 • J u 1.2 

A . 

Q . 

11 .-J : 2• 13 the end? 

, 1 •J: 2s 14 A. 

So , no. the Code is read to them. 

The entire Code from the beginni ng to 

• Ck the different - • so if you 1 ook at 

11 •J:M15 the disciplinary response terms , t hey w~re also•· 

,..,,,., 16 they reviewed the disci pl i nary r esponse l evel s. 

tl :-'3:52 17 a. 

11 •'3 : ~ 18 menti oned? 

11 .a1:se 19 

11 '3!" 20 

A. 

Q . 

And they're given exampl es , you 

Yes . 

So i t's a convor sati on between t ho PPW 

,, ,,, .. 21 and the assembl y? 

A. I t could be t he •• the PPW. Also , the 

84 

11 ,u :02 1 assistant principal could be t here. Also , security 

, , o :M 2 would be there. Because they cover not • · it wasn't 

" .. , .. 3 just about the sexual bias. It was about the Code 

" .. ,., 4 of Conduct , t he Students Rights & Responsibilities . 

1 1 u •n 5 Q. And did t hat quarterly assembly cover 

11 44: , 4 6 bias age1m~t pe ople who a r e gender no"• conf orm1ng7 

11 44:3') 7 A. I wou1 d not use those words , to gender 

11 <M: k 8 non· conform1 ng." because I don 't know whether that 

11 u :,s 9 was even out back then. But I know that it dealt 

11 « :lf 10 with homosexual, transgender , The gender 

"«: .. , 11 non-conforming is new for me . The pronoun is new . 

,. 4£: t, 12 I don· t - • I don't remember the pronoun he , she , 

" " '" 13 they being out i n 2016. So I don· t remember 

,, .,,00 14 covering t ha t specific thi ng . 

Q. You ment ioned it covered people who are 

11 46:l.15 1 6 'transge noer? 

11 416:os 17 

I I U:07 19 

A. 

a. 
A. 

Yes. 

What was discussed about that? 

That t hey are people that •· I can't say 

1 1 • 5:oo 20 verbat 1 m what 1 t was , but as far as - - discussed as 

u .. 611s 21 far as bei ng respectful , and trans - - you know, and 

11 •!l: 1e 22 just talking t o them about what • - what 1 t means t o 
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11023 1 

11:4S 26 2 

llt4S ~ 3 

11:•s 31 4 

n :•s 32 5 

11:,,. 33 6 

11•4:I 30 1 

11:'-S.37 8 

11:•S .-0 9 

11:4$ 40 10 

11 :4S 4l 11. 

11 :45 44 12 

H :~ ,a 1.3 

11 ,s •a 14 

be transgender as far es what you wanted to be 

called and being treated as a human being. 

2016? 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q, 

assemb 1 i es? 

That was discussed between 2012 and 

Yes. 

In quarterly assemblies? 

In quarterly asse11bl ies. 

How frequently i n those quarterly 

Like how many ti mes did we say it? 

Was it a t every quarter ly assembly? 

85 

A. 

Q. 

A. So we cover t he Code in every quarterly 

assembly. 

Q, o, d you cover peop I e who were 

,,., s 50 15 transgender in every quarterly assembl y? 

11;,,s s2 16 A. I don't know whether we covered people 

" " ' ,. 17 that are transgender in every quarterly assembly. 

11 ; 45 51 18 Q. But you did cover people who are 

11., , ,1 19 transgender in some quarterly assembli e s? 

A. Probabl y , yes . I mean, for four years , 

11 , ... 21 I can't tell you exactly. 

11 ; 46 ·06 22 Q. Do you spec1f1cally remember tal king 1n 

86 

n: ,s ,. 1 the assembly referring to people who are 

111 <11 12 2 transgender? 

11!46 13 3 

11: <11 tl 4 

11: <16 l ti 5 

,, •• , 16 6 

11 •s 111 1 

,, .. , " 8 

11: -tlS It 9 

A. 

Q . 

remember .. • 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

How o f ten did you specifically 

1 don' t remember. 

But you think 1t happened once? 

Probably more than once in four years . 

Do you remember specific instances of 

11:• 6 n 10 the assembly discussing peopl e who were t r ansgender? 

II 40 :s 11 

11 : -tll .2!5 12 

U; •8 .26 13 

A. 

MR . SHARMA; You just asked that. 

I don't know. 

MR. SHARMA: How many times are you 

,.,,.,, 14 going to ask the same question? Objection. 

11:"4 3S 15 

I I , 15 )I 1.6 

A. 

Q. 

No . 

Did the quar-ler'l y assemb l y Cl1SCUS6 l h8 

11 "6 ,., 17 importance of pronouns? 

A. 1 would nol say i l discussed pronouns, 

"·" ,. 19 it discussed the right of anyone to be called what 

11: •H o, 20 they wanted to be cal 1 ed. So that· s what it 

11 : .11 " 21 d1 scussed. 

n:-n n 22 We didn ' t • • agai n, t he pronoun 

87 

11 ""' 1 thi ng was • • how do I say that? 

11 " "' 2 Back 1n 2016 and 2012. i t wasn't 

11 . ., , 21 3 about the pronoun 1 i ke 1t is now. Hs . Ell er 

11 ,1:2a 4 represented herself as a female, and that 1
s what she 

"""' 5 wanted to be called. We didn ' t actually identify it 

11 "1:u 6 as a pronoun. It' s who she 1s. I t's who she i s. 

11.41:0 7 She's a she. 

So "she" would be a pronoun? 

11 o :, a 9 

Q. 

A. I t is, but what I'm saying is , as far as 

11 ,r:,t 10 the students were concerned, we didn't say , she 1s a 

11 ,r:sl ii pronoun, so now she's female, so now you ' r-e goi ng to 

"'"" 1.2 call her she. We didn't talk to the students that 

11 ,1161 1.3 way. We sa1d , Ms. El ler 1s a female . She ' s 

11"8:02 14 referred to as a female . 

I I '1:04 15 Q. And you rem~mber that being discussed in 

11 ,.,os 1 6 a quarterly assembly? 

I I ~ ; OT 17 A. I didn't say 1t exactly like I'm just 

,, .,,,o, 18 saying it now. And I di dn't discuss Ms. Eller, we 

11 £e:12 1.9 di scussed transgender. 

II 611:13 20 Q. Okay. So do you r emember • • did you 

",.,,, 21 provide that instruction at a quarter ly assembly? 

11 61:20 22 

, , 41:2~ 1 

11 441: ll 2 

11 -'f:U 3 

u .. :ZS 4 

II 't:21 5 

11 41 :;J.) 6 

11 41: 33 7 

11 4f:4\ 8 

1 1 q : •7 9 

11 •6 :IW 10 

I I "8:&, 11 

11 .. , ~,, 12 

11 61:54 13 

I I 4Cl:&!I 14 

11 '8:M15 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A, 

Q. 

authority 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

No . 

88 

Who did provide that instruction? 

I can· t remember . 

Okay. 

I really can't. 

But you remember it being provided? 

Ye;;. 

MR. SHARMA : Objection . 

As vice principal , did you have the 

t o identify gaps i n trai ning? 

You al ready asked me. 

MR. SHARMA: Objection . 

I may ask questions more than once . 

MR. SHARMA; That's not permi ssi bl e. 

Whatever my last answer was. 

Did you have the authority to r ecommend 

11 41:<:1) 18 udd1t1onal t re111n·1ng'?' 

n •• :~1 17 

1 1 .tt:1>1 18 

I L"t;U 19 

1 1 .. ,:u 20 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

I have answered t hat one. too. 

I asked about gaps in policies earlier . 

No. you asked about • • 

HR . SHI\RHII: You knew you asked the 

11; • 1 : 1;1 21 same question? 

1 1-41 11422 11S . CHEEHA: No. 1•., talking about 
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11:• f l!S 1 

11 :•9 15 2 

11 149 11 3 

11 ;4; 22 4 

11:d 23 5 

11 : •a 21 6 

11 · •• 27 7 

11:0 27 8 

11:0 27 9 

11 :0 20 10 

11:•9 >0 11. 

1, : , 11 ,o 12 

'1 ; <&11 32 13 

89 

training now. 

A, So is ther e a policy tha t says that I 

can 11ake recommendations, no. But anybody can make 

recommendations. 

Q, 

to? 

A. 

A. 

now. 

A. 

And who would those r ecommendations go 

Aga in • . 

MR. SHARMA : Objection. 

- · l ike I said before • • 

MR. SHARMA: Even I can answer t hi s 

You've asked that. 

I t goes to t he princi pa l , the 

11 , ,. 33 14 principal takes it t o his boss , and h is boss takes 

11.,1131 15 1l to his boss, and so on. 

11:n Jll 16 Q. Di d you ever make any recomme ndat ions 

" '" n 17 about t r aining to Princi pal Adams while you wer e 

11:"o -12 18 vice principal? 

11:49 ., 20 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

What ki nd of r ecommenda tions did you 

1L•11 n 2.1 make about t raining? 

11 :•o .cs 22 A. Ms. El 1 er asked me to • • that we needed 

90 

H•4f C(.I 

11 1.tllU 

IL50 t4I 

1 

2 

3 

to have an a sse11bl y specifi cal 1 y about transgender, 

and I talked to Mr. Ada11s about it. And from t here, 

that • s where I 1 eft it. 

11: $0 ~ 4 

11 :$0 •(.fl 5 

11•50 Gi 6 

11 :,,0 I C 7 

11:,,0 1:, 8 

11:!IO " 9 

Q. What did you tal k to Hr. Adams a bout 

spec ifica l 1 y? 

A. 

Q, 

What I just said. 

Di d vou confi r m - - did vou agree wi t h 

Jenny about t he need for an assembly? 

A, I did not give hi M t hat informati on. 

,., .. ., 10 Well , did I talk wi th Jennifer , Ms. Eller. t o ask 

11:!I0 :f.l U her t hat? I -- she and I talk. Are you asking me 

,.,,. ,, 12 did I talk to Nr. Adams of whether I agr eed with 

11 $0 :1 1.3 that? 

11:,0 2e 14 Q. Yes. In your conversation with 

,,,,. ,. 15 Hr . Adams, what was your opinion about the need for 

, , $0 , , :.t.6 the assemo l y? 

11 ) 0 37 17 A. I di dn't have one . I just sub~itte d the 

11 .!IU 3• 18 information . 

11.bl.l 3-4 19 Q. So you passed on Ms. Ell er · s 

u :"' ~ 20 recommendation for a trai ning • · 

11:t.o l'I 21 

11: !>0 39 22 

A. 

Q . 

Yes. 

- - to Hr . Adams? 

91 

11 ·~:• 1 1 

11.50:•I 2 

A. 

Q, 

Yes. 

And you did not affi rmat i vel y provide 

11 50:•5 3 support for Hs. El1er's recommendation? 

11 50:47 4 

11 54:•D 5 

1 I IO: il 6 

11 60: &l 7 

tt 60:54 8 

1 1 80:H 9 

, 1 so:s1 10 

11 50· !1 11 

1 I 50:61 1.2 

A. 

Q. 

What do you mean • support"? 

Did you 1 nform Mr. Adams whether you 

agreed with • • 

A. 

Q, 

He didn't ask me. 

• · with Hs. Eller's •· okay. 

Did you have an opinion about 

Ns. Eller's desire for a training? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

What was your • • but you did not share 

11 11,0, 1 3 your opini on with Mr. Adams? 

n-51:ot 14 

, , 51:09 1 5 

11 51:10 1 6 

A. 

Q. 

MR. SHARMA: Obj ecti on. 

He di dn · t ask me. 

And so you d i d not share your opinion 

11 '" " 17 with Mr, Adams? 

1 1 51:1] 18 

11•51:11 19 

HR. SHARMA: Objection. 

He didn't ask me. 

11 51!14 20 

A. 

Q. Does anyone oval uat e the efficacy of tho 

11•51! 2'1 21 tra ining prov1ded to s t aff? 

11.511')2 22 A. I don ' t know. 

92 

Q. Doe s anyone evaluat e the efficacy of 

11 51: 3t 2 trai ning provided to students? 

11 s1 : • o 3 A. Not in a formal way , no . 

11 51:S6 4 HS. CHEEHA: Should we break for 

11 51 : 57 5 1 unch? 

" 5 , : ~• 6 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Sure . 

II 51:ii 

1 1 U 101 

7 

8 

MS. CHEEl1A: We' 11 break for lunch . 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

1t ~2:0~ 9 

12 40:311 10 

12 •o:•O 11 

11 •o:•1 12 

12. 40:41 13 

(RECESS, 11 :52 a . m. • 12: 40 p . m.) 

MS . CHEE11A: Ready? 

THE WITNESS : Yes . 

BY MS. CHEE MA: 

Q. What is the process for making a 

u •f.l:•• 14 complaint about student behavior , if a teacher 

12 .o:• 7 15 wanted to make a compl a1 nt? 

"· Thon., •~ ;;tcvar o l . 

One 1s completing a PS- 74 . One is 

,2 •o:.sa 18 the teacher can inform the adm1 n1strator. 

12 • 1 :01 19 

12 •1 :0l 20 

Q. 

A. 

Which adm1 ni strator ? 

It doesn't matter. I t reall y doesn't 

12 •111,1 21 matter , As I was saying earlier t his morn1ng , 1t's 

1.:•1: u 22 that because Friendly is so small , someti mes you 
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""' ,. 1 can't get to the administrat or t hat's assi gned t o 

1:i:,11 11 2 your content or grade l evel , so you go to , you know, 

" '" " 3 whet ever admi ni st r at or that ' s avail abl e, de pendi ng 

,2:•1 VJ 4 on t he ser iousness of t he inf racti on. 

,t :'1 2t 5 

\) •4 1 31 6 

12 . , )2 7 

12:•1 · 32 8 

12:•1 $ 9 

12:,, 38 10 

12;41 38 U 

Q. 

pri ncipal? 

A. 

Q. 

By "admini strator ," you mean vice 

Yes . 

If the vice principal a ssigned to your 

grade level or subject matter is not available, you 

can go to a diff erent vice pri nci pa 1? 

A. If they're not available , you can go to 

""' ,o 12 any vice princ i pal. Or t he principal , if you see - ­

""' u 13 you know, i f you - - if he happens to be near and you 

, , ,, •G 14 wanted to report. 

12. 41 .. , 15 Q, Woul d t hat be an oral conversation wHh 

'"" " 16 the v ice principal or pr inci pal? 

A, It depends on the teacher . Sometimes 

12 111 ,-, 1B teachers do 1t orally. Someti mes teachers compl ete 

12i, nu 19 documents . 

Q, Okay. Are there different k inds of 

12 ,, o• 2i compl ai nt s For which t eachers are advi se d to 

,,..,,. 22 documen t it i n a PS- 74? 

94 

A. All complaints should be documented in a 

'""" 2 PS- 74 , but the reelity t hen was t hat t he t eachers 

,,,., 11 3 didn 't always have time to do it. So if someth1ng 

12: 42 22 4 may have happened in t he middle of cl as& , they 

12: ,1:z 2& 5 wouldn't necessarily stop i nstr uc tion t o compl ete 

,. . ., ,, 6 it. And thei r pl ans may be to have comp 1 eted it by 

12 ,., 33 7 t he end of t he day , and sometimes those pl ans didn' t 

12.,,. 8 work out. They didn't complete it. But the s t uden t 

,z:,.z 3a 9 woul d sti 11 recei ve a consequence. 

12 •-12 41 10 So for i nstance , if somathi ng 

'""., 11 happened in the classroom , t he teacher would maybe 

12142 ◄1 12 contact the administr ator , t he administrator would 

" " '" 13 deal with the student , and then t he teacher may or 

12:,2 sJ 14 may not complete a PS-74 . 

Q. Okay, So there could be consequences 

12 .,, 04 j.6 agai nst students that were not documented i n PS-74s? 

12 .I) N 17 

t2 .43 Of, 18 

11.4J 11 19 

12:4) 16 20 

A, 

Q, 

A. 

Q . 

Oh, definitel y . 

I s that pretty common? 

Yes , 

I f a complai nt was seri ous, would that 

11:....,20 21 require a document at i on o f PS- 74? 

A. Yes . When you say "require, • all 

95 

" ·'"" 1 compl a int s should be -- you know , a PS-74 shoul d be 

" .,.,, 2 compl et ed. It doesn ' t always happen. But if the 

12 .12: 31 3 administ rat or knows about it , the consequence is 

,, 4:1: 39 4 st i 11 g i von. 

12 4:1: 4-0 5 

,2 43: ,2 8 

12 4J :4.S 7 

12 'J:•t 8 

, , '-J:~, 9 

,2 '3: ~ 10 

12 43: .,,9 11 

So the administ rator won't stop t he 

consequence because the teacher didn't submit a 

PS- 74. 

Q. Okay. So once - - 1f a PS-7 4 is 

comp 1 eted , who would a teacher provide that to? 

A. So she would give it to the - - so it - . 

the grade level adffl i ni strator . and the grade level 

,. .. ,., 12 admi nist r ator would speak with the student, find out 

12 "-':01 13 what happened. I f there were witnesses necessary to 

""'" 14 talk to, depending on what the complaint was , speak 

,,·u n4 15 with the witnesses . Also speak with the t eacher. 

12 u :11 1 6 After the disc ipli ne was di spersed, the result would 

12 ,..,. 17 be list on the bottom part of t he PS-74. 

124"129 18 The teac her 1 s supposed to get a 

12 " '" 19 copy, the parent , and the guidance office is 

12 "": 39 20 supposed to receive a copy t o be p l aced in the 

" .. ,., 21 s t udent's file, but that doesn ' t happen all t he 

,, u :•9 22 t i me. 

Q. When you say "administrator," aga1 n, 

12 ••:ba 2 t.hat's referring to vice pri nci pal ? 

12 45-!01 3 

12 •5:0t 4 

A. 

Q. 

Vice principal . 

And so the vi ce pri nci pal reviews t he 

12 ,15 •00 5 complaint , evaluates it? 

Investigates 1t , yes. 

96 

1:.1 4b:04 6 

12·45:01 7 

A. 

Q. Okay . Who provides a copy of the PS-74 

12 ◄5:,i, 8 to the PPW? 

11 45:11 9 

12 45: 2t 10 

A. 

Q . 

I don ' t know. I reall y don't know. 

Is i t someone's responsi bil 1 ty t o 

12 ,,, ., 11 provide the PS-74 to the PPW? 

I ' m sure it is , but I don· t know who 

12 '5:H 13 that person 1 s. 

12 41:17 14 Q . When you were vice principal , i n 

" ' " " 15 respondi ng t o complaints and eval uating PS-74s, how 

12 4'10 1 8 often 0 1 d you prov, ae copies to ttle PPW-f 

A. I never provided anyone copies . I gave 

,2 46:•a 18 them to the secretary, 

Q. Did you instruct the secl'"etary t o 

11 • 1:11 20 provi de them to the PPW as wel 1? 

A. To anybody that was on the bottom of the 

,~ 45:~ 22 disbursement. 
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12 ;45 !il 1 

12:411 00 2 

12:•I 0 1 3 

12:41 0 1 4 

12 : •& O'i 5 

12 :'f 12 6 

12 ·46 U 7 

12;41 11 8 

12:•1 20 9 

,2.:0 31 10 

u·o 40 1.1 

17•d 47 12 

12:•1 5G 13 

12 <lfl Sb 1.4 

1i.•G !iCI 15 

12:<II ~It 16 

Q. 

itself? 

A. 

Q. 

97 

Is the di spersement 1 s on the PS-74 

Yes. 

If the PPW was not 11 sted on t he bot tom 

of the disperse,aent. would you instruct tho 

secrotary also to give it to the PPW? 

A. Probabl y not. 

The PPW prally much got involved 

when something was suspendabl e or something ongoi ng. 

So if a student continued t he same i nfraction. 

Q. When you were evaluating a PS-74 as vi c e 

principal and decidi ng what consequence should be 

provided, how would you make that evaluati on ; how 

would you deci de what the consequence should be? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

The Code. The Code. 

Okay. 

And the reason why we went by the Code 

n:•r 02 18 is if we didn't or if a parent wanted t o dispute, we 

""' 0< 19 could always have t he Code t o go back to. 

Q. When deciding how lo respond. what are 

"",. 21 lha types o f responses avai 1 abl a? 

A. 

1:i: -'7.,1 1 depends. 

a. 

,2.: •? 1t 3 provided? 

12:•ll' 38 4 A. 

u:,n «i 5 could be • -

12· .11 .ti 6 Q . 

A. 

It depends on the infraction. It 

98 

Wha t kind of corrective action coul d be 

What do you mean? What kind of r esponse 

Are there correct1ve responses? 

What do you 11ean by *correct ive 

12 • 1 u. 8 responses·? I think al 1 of them are corrective, but 

"'" ,, 9 what are you tal king about specifically? 

Q. Well , so for a.ample , suspension is a 

12.:• 1 s:z 11 putative response. 

12:•U 54 12 A. Mm-hmm . Are you t alking about maybe 

12:•1 sv 13 wr1t1 ng a letter or apol ogizing to the victim; 1s 

"""' 14 that what you' re talking about? 

Q. Or to change the student's behavior, 

12 ... " 16 like training o r some sort. 

U: ,◄tl 11 18 

A . 

Q. 

No. Nol at t he high school level. 

And lhe conseQuence tha t is pr ovi dad to 

.. . ,,u 19 the complainant , that ' s docu,aen t ed in the PS-74 , you 

t21◄fl :ta 20 mentioned? 

A. 

Q . 

!1 a PS-74 is r ecei ved. 

Okay . Where are tho PS- 74• maintained? 

99 

12 ..a:u 1 A. It depends on where it's dispersed to. 

12 .&S:» 2 

12 '-f: )& 3 

So the student's CUM. The parent gets a copy. CUM . 

mea ni ng fo 1 der. 

17 ~ :51 4 

12 41:,1 5 

12 49:01 6 

12 • 9: U 7 

12 49:11 8 

1' •t: ,O 9 

12 49:ta 1 0 

,2 49:13 11 

,, •e:1412 

u •1:2, 13 

12 «11t •:11 14 

Q. 

A. 

Okay. 

Parents get a copy. I can't remember 

everything on t he bottom of the f orm. 

Q. Was there any central filing location 

where copies of PS-74s would be kept? 

A. 

Q . 

No. 

They were al l individually in each 

s t udent' s fil e? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Right. 

Were they tracked anywhere centrally? 

Not that I know of. Like a 1 oca t ion 

12 ♦1:~1 15 where we could go in and say , on January 5th, this 

12 .,,,; 16 student received a PS-74 , that type of thing? 

l2 411:31 17 Q. Or where you had documentation of all of 

12 ,., ,, 18 the PS-74s that had been received? 

1:> 49:~ 19 

12 ,g:,s 20 

A. 

a. 

No . 

So other t han the actual paper document 

,, ,,,., 21 of t he PS- 74 , is any documentation made in a central 

,2 ,,,., 22 file about the PS- 74 ' s exi stance? 

u •e;sa 1 

tZ 50:<r.l 2 

A. 

Q. 

100 

No. 

I s there an evaluation of whether the 

1:::111:u 3 consequences meted for PS· 74s are effective? 

A. 

Q. 

I don't understand what you 11ean. 

Is there any evaluation to see if the 

1:.1 s.0: , 1 6 const,qucnce to the compl aint had its desired 

,~ to;:11 7 outcome? 

12·50:'JS 8 

12 so:u 9 

12. &o:11 10 

12 60:$9 11 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I· m stil 1 not sure what you mean . 

Thet' s okay. 

I f you can give me an example. 

So if a student is 1 ntentionall y 

12£0:~ 12 m1sgender1ng a teacher, and a PS•74 is fi l ed about 

,::e 60; M 13 that , and a consequences is provided in response to 

,,.,,., 14 that PS-74 , would there be any evaluation later in 

,,.,,., 15 time to check in to see 1f the conduct was still 

12 s1 :lMI 16 uaµpen1 ng7 

12 111 :0, 17 A. Not necessarily by t he administrator, 

,2 11:11 18 but the teachers would 1 et us know. 

Q. So the responsibility was on the teacher 

1,-51:11 20 'to provide i nformat ion if it was still an ongoing 

12 s, :n 21 problem? 

A. I wouldn't say it was the responsibility 
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12:51 21 2 

l 2 :51 :!9 3 

12:5 1 ]] 4 

12;51 J1 5 

12;)1 0 6 

11·:11 U 7 

~2 :51 .. , 8 

12:51 ◄I 9 

11:52 o, 10 

12:s2 oe 11. 

12:S2 1• 12 
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of the teacher. That's just how it happened . 

We've never gotten any co11plaints 

about reoccurring once we ' ve dealt with 

misgendering. The exa11ple that I gave you with the 

young l ady , i t didn't happen anymore. 

Q. In that you never got a complaint about 

that particul a r individual ? 

A. 

Q. 

Fro~ Ms. Eller or anyone else . 

Okay. Is any 1nfor,.at1on about PS- 74s 

provided to anyone above you? 

A. Not PS- 74s in general , but I',. t r ying to 

think. do we have to do a report on how 11any PS- 74& 

n:,2 11 13 were written and what they were wri tten for , no . 

Q. 

A. 

No reporti ng on PS-74s? 

Not specifically. It was more like a 

,,,., " 16 self-reporting. l ' m trying to think because the 

ms2 n 17 County has gone through a f ew data i nqui ri es as far 

12:&.2:."6 18 as what we repo rt , and I ' m t ry1 ng to remember 

"''"' 19 whether PS-74s we r e up there . Like the number of 

,, . ., .. 20 PS-74s. whal lhe infract ion was , what was l he race 

".," 21 of t he all egad culprit . 

,. ,.,,. 22 I don't r emember a nything like l hat . 

12:53 00 1 

12: 53 04 2 

\1;5l Ill 3 

12:53 11 4 

12:SJ 11 5 

U • t,:J If 6 

It )l 18 7 

102 

Q. So you provided no i nformat i on about 

complai nts withi n the school environment t o people 

above you? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I do not reca 11 . 

Okay. No data? 

l don · t recal l. 

Would an inci dent be •· lat 1110 restate 

12. ,l :i:a 8 t hat. 

"""' 9 Woul d you ever notify fol ks in your 

.,,., ,. 10 chain •· in your supervfsory cha i n if you t hought an 

" '"" 11 incident was parti cularl y egregi ous? 

11:5) 31 12 

11:Sl 40 13 

12:51 '1 14 

12:SJ .t; 15 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

My pri nci pal . 

Okay . So as •· 

Outsi de of hi m, no . 

Now that you are pri ncipal, if something 

1,:., ol$ 16 happened at your school that you t.hought was 

12 ~1., 17 particul arly egregi ous, would you notify anyone 

1 2 .)) :.o 18 above you? 

U:. 63 11 19 

,a::&l 61 20 

A. 

Q. 

Depend1 ng on what 1 t was, 

For example , if someone graffiti ed a 

U:$,101 21. swastika on a school wall? 

U : 5~ Cl4 22 A, Yes, because se curity services would be 

,i e--:o, 1 

,2 ,..:oe 2 

12 !4:09 3 

12 11.a: 1() 4 

12 s• i 12 5 

12 5'111 6 

,,-u:11 7 

12 5';19 8 

12 114: 23 9 

12 64: 2& 10 

,2u:21 U 

12 54 : 21 1.2 

cal led. 

a. 

cal led? 

A. 

103 

Okay. And when a r e security services 

I t depends. It's no •• I don 't have a 

1 i st to say . okay, now you call security. 

Q, 

security? 

A. 

Do you make a j udgment about call ing 

I go by the Code and the seriousness of 

the i ncident. 

Q. When does the Code instruct to call 

se curity? 

A. I don't know what • • where it is 

,,.,,., 13 exact 1 y, but • • I don't know where it is exactly. 

So for i nstance , 1f somebody 

' " "'' 15 called •· if a white student called another student 

12 ,.,., 16 a ni ggcr , I wouldn' t report that to anybody outside 

'"'"' 17 the buil di ng. I would repor t that to the principal , 

"'"" 18 and you know • · but I would not call security about 

12 '"" 19 that. 

1Z 55: ~ 20 a. So what is it about a swastika being 

,, . .,,o, 21 painted on a wal l that makes you think you should 

,2 .,,., 22 cal 1 s ecurity? 

1) sti:07 1 

1::611:1:I 2 

12 55: IJ 3 

1:1 S!li : ll 4 

12 H:17 5 

1.i !li!l:16 6 

12: iS:2, 7 

12 M:Z2 8 

1.! '5'5:ll 9 

12.6t11 ) ) 10 

12 5-5:U 11 

l1; '55rl1 12 

104 

A. Anything t hat is tagged. that 's when we 

get securi ty called. If students tag a wall t hat 

says, "11S-13, " or any gang s i gn , then t hey ' re 

cal l ed. 

Q. 

A. 

Okay. 

But 1 f a :;tudtinl cal 1 ed another t.tudunt 

a nigge r, no. 

Q. 

A. 

What does security do? 

They investigate it , and then they 

decide on, you know, what ever t he next step is. 

Q. Is the difference in seriousness between 

the student that you mentioned calling a r acial 

12· &&· •1 13 s1 ur • • 

12 !i!li: 4?1 14 

12 H :<t6 15 

12 H •<t7 1 t5 

12 6'51 • 1 1 7 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

She didn't cal l her •· oh. the nigger? 

Right. 

The •· 1s it in seriousness or in t he 

,-1 &6:M 18 fact that 1 t 's sort of documented? 

12 '5:!;7 19 

\2·66:&I 20 

12 . H:O, 21. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

What do you mean? 

Like a graffiti, a tag. 

So if a student tagged the wall and 

",.,., 22 said , "Nigger, .. 1s that what you're asking'/ 

02/12/ 2020 07:37:58 PM Page 101 to 104 of 179 26 of 55 sheets 

Case 8:18-cv-03649-TDC   Document 106-8   Filed 06/09/21   Page 27 of 43



J.R. 239

12:~G ot 1 

12:56 07 2 

12:S& 10 3 

12:55 11 4 

12:5& 11$ 5 
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12 ,SI 32 10 

12:50 31 11, 

12:s. a, 12 

u:~·•1 13 

,, ~· •3 14 
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Q, What 1 s the difference 1n security for 

why you would cell security for a tag, but not the 

verbal s1 ur? 

A, Because a tag a s far as a - - it · s 1 i ke a 

group or a gang. So ... so if somebody was walki ng 

down the hall and said, "Wh1te power, " that would be 

, nvesti gated. 

Q, 

A. 

Q, 

Okay . If il · s associated with a group? 

Right. 

Okay . What' s the process for mak ing a 

complai nt about staff conduct? 

A. 

Q, 

As far as - - what do you mean? 

How would a person document a coA1p 1 ai nt 

about staff conduct? 

A. So 1 f a staff member di d what? Depends 

,,,,. .. 16 on what the staff member did. 

Violation of policy. 

12:se ,z 18 

Q , 

A. The•· it 's progressive discipl i ne, so 

'""" 19 the staff person would get , depending on the 

a -,,:ri, 20 seriousness , a verbal warn ing , a•· t he·- or 

12,, o, 21 wrillen warni ng. 

12:,, 04 22 Q. So for student conduct, a teacher would 

""'" 1 document what happened on a PS-7 4 . How would a 

1~:s, n 2 teacher document the compl aint for a staff 

12:51" 3 complaint? 

For staff , from staff? 

Mm-hmm . 

106 

12:ST 17 6 

U•!I--, U 6 

A. 

a. 

A . They would wr1 t e a statement and gi vc 1 t 

1::t ,, ,s 7 to Lhe pri nci pal. 

u ~, ,o 8 

12::~1 l2 9 

Q. 

A. 

Where would that be maintai ned? 

That woul d be ma1 ntai ned 1 n the · • t he 

12:P n 1 0 alleged· s f ile. 

12:U31 U 

12:57 ,, 12 

Q. 

A, 

Of the per son · • 

I believe . because I don ' t •• yeah . I 

12:s1 u 13 bel ieve. So 1 'm not sure . 

""' .. 14 Q. Of the person who filed the COA1pla1nt or 

"'" " 15 against who~ the complaint was filed? 

A . 1 oeIIeve l l "s ootn, Du l 1 · 1n really no t 

"" " 17 sure, because t hose f11 es are kept -- t hey don't go 

,2 ,s,~ 18 outs·ide the building , unl ess i t 's a l etter of 

12.N o, 19 repr1 mand . 

Q . And you mentioned that it would be 

'"",. 21 provided t o the pr1nc1pal . Would the pr1nc1pal be 

12:St! 10 22 thl'I person who evaluates it? 

107 

A. I t - • depending on what it is. It could 

,. ,.,,, 2 be t he principal, it coul d be security . I think it 

12 58!17 3 

12:51:11 4 

12· !!1:U 5 

12 111122 6 

12 se.2, 7 

12 !1:2& 8 

12 51: 21 9 

12 51:a: 10 

12 !l:3' 11 

,, !t:l~ 12 

depends on what it 1 s. 

Q. 

security? 

A. 

is. 

Q. 

When would t he pri nci pa l evaluate versus 

It just depends on what the infraction 

For what t ypes of infractions would 

security be required t o be involved? 

A. Maybe teachers fighting or •· I don't 

know . 

Q. Okay. For a complaint where the 

,,.,,., 13 principal oval uat es it on their own , how would the 

,2 St:•" 14 response be decided? 

12 M :4& 15 

12 S,,;6& 16 

A. 

Q. 

I don't know . 

Have you ever received a complai nt as 

",.,., 17 pri ncipal about another staff member? 

12 SC:Sl 18 

12 ,..:,a 19 

A. 

Q. 

No , 

Okay . If you were to receive a 

12 st:>1 20 complaint, do you know what - - how you would 

,2 H:51 21 respond? 

12 H:ag 22 

12 H:O, 1 

12 lit:OJ 2 

11 !'il:Ol 3 

12.68:0$ 4 

12 st:08 5 

,, 59:1':I 6 

1Z 59:U 7 

A. I really don't know, and 1 t would depend 

108 

on what the complaint is. 

Q. 

A. 

Yep . 

The nature of the relationship between 

the t wo people , and it's so many variabl e s to take 

into consideration. 

Q. Yeah . 

You menti oned that you don't provi~e 

,, "'" 8 informati on to the Board of Education about PS-74s 

""'" 9 that are filed in the school? 

12.'St:.t2 10 

12: 59;2~ 11 

A, 

Q. 

I don· t remember any system 1t self, yes. 

Okay. As • · while you were vice 

",.,,. 12 principal, do you know if infor11ation about 

""'" 13 complaints about staff were ever provided to t he 

",.,,. 14 Board of Education? 

12 SO:h 15 

,, C¥: ,tj 10 

I don't know. 

frnU a:> pr1no1pal, you havon't provldud 

",.,., 17 anything to the Board of Education about staff? 

12 M:-'-4 18 

b l 00:21 19 

A. 

Q . 

<H oo:z-4 20 off1ce7 

A. 

No. 

What's the high school performance 

Well , 1 t' s not that anymore . They 

01 oo:JC 22 change so oft en . 
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Cl :00 29 1 

o, :00 30 2 

1)1:00 35 3 

e1:oo ,1 4 

01 ;00 42 5 

01:00 '7 6 

01 ·00 61S 7 

01100'.SJ 8 

01 :00 : 51 9 

0 1:0() 61 10 

01:01 OC1 1.1. 

t.1:01 01 12 

Gl:01 o.t 13 

So t he hi gh school performance 

office i s the office where the inst ructional 

109 

di rectors , which are the pr1nci pal superv1 sors, are 

located, it probably would have been t he associate 

superintendent over high schOols at that time, and 

different content level supervisors for hi gh school , 

Q. Who reports to the instructional 

d1 rector? 

A. The princi pal, 

Q. What do you report to them about? 

A. What do .. 
Q. What do you report to them about? 

A. Everyt hing . They're our first-line 

01 ·01 oe 14 supervisor. 

0 1 :01 Dtl 15 Q. When you say ·everything ," so you 

01,01 " 16 mentioned t hat you don't report about PS-74s . So 

,,,., 11 17 1t •• could you just provide a l i ttle bit more 

r,, ,01 ,, 18 detai 1 about what you do provide information to them 

,, :01 1, 19 about, 

01 01 10 20 A. Anything t hey ask for. at any g i ven 

e, o, i t 21. ti me . 

,1;01 20 22 

(.1 :01 21 1 

(,1 :01 27 2 

{,,1:01 )1 3 

c.,,o, 34 4 

Gt:01 .U 6 

t1·0 1 •41 6 

C.1 01 46 7 

C,1 01 &2 8 

~l;QI ~8 9 

01.01 s, 10 

tl : O: to 11 

f,1 : 02 00 12 

Q . How often do you meet wi t h t hem? 

110 

A. There's no set time when -- you know, 

it 's not like ever y Fr i day or every week or anything 

l i ke that . There's no set time. They ki nd of come 

i n and do drive-bys. If it's an observati on, then 

we know they' re coming. 

But we tal k severa l times a week. 

Q. Wi thi n a school year, how of ten woul d 

you meet wi lh them in person? 

A. 

very often. 

Q. 

A. 

In person , too Nany to count. So 1t 's 

Okay . 

But it's just not on a regular basi s. 

111 

A. It changes so often. 

0 1 IJ):38 2 ' PARAGRAPHING there are eight 

0 1 02:.u 3 components to our eval uati on. School c11 mate, 

0 1 02:<lll 4 

0 1 0,;),I 5 

0 1 01:S& 6 

o, (IJ:04 7 

Ot .Ol:09 8 

0 1 03112 9 

01 OJ: \I 10 

01 .0J:M 11 

0 1 OJ:13 12 

curriculum, monitoring i nstruction , com11un1ty 

engagement. 

They track the data as 1t rel ates to 

formal assessment , formal state assessments . 

They look at our discipline nu11ber s. 

They • • which Mean our suspension nu~bors and the 

number of students 1n ISS. They break • - we have t o 

break down the nu111bers as far as whether they're 

special education students, whether they' r e general 

0,,.,,,. 13 educati on students. 

01 ·OJ:3J 14 

01 OJ;~S 15 

Building servi ces . 

We' re eva1 uated on parent 

01 o, :,, 16 comp 1 ai nt s. 

0 1 01:,, 17 School safety . 

01 .0J : 41 18 Q. When you mentioned school cl 1mate , what 

0 1 0,:,11 19 does t hat involve? 

01 113 : )1 20 A. There·s a survey that's done by t he 

"0,,,. 21 teachers and the students. At that ti•e . it was 

o, .. ,.., 22 called·· I thi nk it was called VAL-ED, V-A·L·E·D , 

Ot 04:0t 1 

01 o•· t 'l 2 

0 1 Q,:18 3 

VI 04:23 4 

fl \ 04 :25 5 

01 c• : lf 6 

01 O,.:z& 7 

01 O,l:)1 8 

01 ~ : JO 9 

01 04; 43 10 

0104:45 11 

0 1 Oo4:61 12 

112 

and they took a survey, and the resu1 ts were 

normally distributed t oward the end of the year , say 

around March , April - i sh , I think , 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

How often 1 s that survey prov1 ded? 

Once a year. 

And has 1 t been - - was i t done every 

year between 2012 and 2016? 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Yes , 

Were al 1 students r equired to take that? 

There was - - the students were se1 ected 

by t he organi zat ion that •· 1t came fro• •· I don't 

r emember the name of the company who was in charge 

~,:02 Q3 13 'll 04:S4 13 There's no scheduled • - of the survey, but the survey was done by them 

C.1:02 CJ 14 

(;1:02 U 1.5 

t1 02 G& 1.6 

c,1poe 1.7 

(11.02 HI 18 take. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A . 

Okay . 

• • time . 

How many 

Maybe • -

• .,.,,., 14 Also , I think t here was another 

0,00,01 15 state survey. I 'm not quite sure. And I really 

approxima laly In a monLtl7 01 Cti:w ie can ' t reme11bcr wtlcthcr lt wo::> , you Know , bocK du ri ng 

maybe e i ght or so. gi ve or ",.,,. 17 the 2012-2016 time. But t he stHte also does 

o, ot.:21 18 surveys. climate surveys on the schools . They send 

Q. I s lhe instruct i on a l di rec t or the person 01 os:lh 19 it o ut, and teachers and students have to • ~ are 

c.1 :02 ,, 20 who evaluates t he principal s? 

c.1:02 JJ 22 

A. 

Q. 

02/ 12/2020 07:37:58 PM 

Yes . 

And what are you evaluated on? 

&1 0&;21 20 asked to answer. 

0 1.0St H 21 Q. So how niany s tudents a re requ1 red to 

0 1 o!: M 22 take the c l i mate surveys? 
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A. I don' t know. I don ' t know. but I !<now 

that they did them during -- I think it was t he -­

I'm not sure. I would have to ask our testing 

coordinator, but 1 t was more than a cl a&s or two. 

Q, 

A. 

Would it have been 1 n every grade? 

I think it - · I think so. r ·~ not quite 

.,.,, " 7 sure , but I think 1 t was every grade. 

01 :05 '" 8 Q. But you don· t remember the co~peny thet 

" '" o, 9 distributed the survey? 

c1;G5 oc 10 A, No . I don't know whether the company's 

01 :oe 01 11. name is VAL-ED or not. and how t he students were 

""" 11 12 select ed , but the school nor the County had anything 

'"" ,. 13 to do with how the students or teachers are 

o,1tt1 11, 14 selected . 

01.06 u, 15 Q. There are video cameras at Friendly High 

" ''"·" 16 School, correct? 

Gl :ot 2t 17 

r.,:oe 2t 1B 

CH :08 32 19 

C.1·09 32 20 

01 09 36 2i 

A. 

Q, 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. 

Are they al ways recording? 

Yes. 

Where are the recordings ma i ntained? 

I'm nol quite sure, but if something 

" '"., 22 happens in t he bul 1 ding • • because I know lhal after 

1,1 : M 4! 1 

l",1 : 08 48 2 

(.1:0cl 50 3 

(.l ;ot $4 4 

t.1 :06 sa s 

,1-0, o• 6 

c., or " 7 

G1 or IC 8 

c.1 101 ,. 9 

Cil :C., 111 10 

01 : 01 24 11 

f;t :01 . 2, 12 

1,1 :07 :,1 13 

f,1 :07 :,1 14 

(il :01 3e 15 

GI OP 4' 16 
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a certain number of days, I think it used t o be 20 

or 25 , it · s gone. 

So if something needs to be 

extracted, we have to do so within a certain time 

frame. 

Q. If there was a complai nt that was 

documenled on a PS-74 , would footage generall y b& 

pu 11 ed from the video cameras? 

A. Yes. So - - yeatl. And our cameras 

eren ' t the best, but our security, t hey know our 

kids. They sometimes can tell by the body shape if 

they can't get a real good 1 ook at t he face . 

Q. If footage was pul 1 ed re 1 ated to a 

compl ai nt, would it be saved? 

A, 

a . 

Only 1f it was for an expulsion. 

so 1r t nere was f oot age re1a tea to a 

., o, so 17 complaint t hat led t o a suspension, t hat would not 

1,1.01 s2 18 be saved? 

ti1 . 01 s, 19 

1,1:01 S5 20 

A. 

Q . 

No. 

I s there a pol icy documenting the 

c., :011 o• 21 process for when to save f ootage? 

t.l i OI Ce 22 A. No . We only save it if it is a secur1ty 

115 

01 o,;1:i 1 matter. So 1 f we 1<.no~ that, say , for instance 1 1 f 

01,01,10 2 there was a group fight or so11ething like that , then 

01 oa:n 3 it wou1 d be saved. 

(U :Ol: 3,,1 4 

01 .Cl; ;)l!I 5 

01 01:•o 6 

0 1 08: 41 7 

0 1 Ol:52 8 

01 Ol:H 9 

01 09:01 10 

Q. So when you mentioned if it involved 

expulsion , it would be saved , are all expul sions 

security matters? 

A. All the ones that I have dealt with have 

been security matters , because al 1 of tho ones that 

I have ever dealt with have been crimes of violence. 

Q. Okay , If there a re • • ot her than 

01 09:07 11 expul &ions or security matters, are there any othor 

o, .. ,,. 12 instances in which a complaint is filed and footage 

o, .. ,., 13 would be saved? 

01 a1:1J 14 

01 01:,l 15 

a1 cs:z-. 16 

a, ® :2e 17 

0 1 ot:3~ 18 

01 ot: ')O 19 

when 

A. 

Q, 

A. 

Q. 

you 

A, 

Not saved . 

When did you meet Jenn1 fer Ell er? 

When I came t o Friendly in 2012. 

Did you know that she was transgender 

met her? 

I didn ' t know -- actually, no . I di dn't 

0 1 M : o 20 know that s:he was transgender , no. 

Q. How did you come to know t hat she was 

01 01:11 22 transgender? 

Ot ot:S2 1 

01 Ol:H 2 

01 08:51 3 

Ot Cl:60 4 

01 10:0l 5 

mean? 

A. 

Q. 

/1, , 

116 

I think she told 01e . 

What do you understand t r ansgender to 

What I understand i t to mean is a person 

born one way, r,al e or female , and fee 1 that they are 

01 : 10:1:1 6 mislabsled or ndsycndt:rt,d. and want to l ive at> the 

o, ,0 - 11 7 gender that they feel that they a re , that they feel 

o, "'" 8 1 i ke, that they i dent1fy with. 

01 1C:t1 9 Q. Did Ms . Eller tal k wi th you about why 

., ,.,,, 10 she transferred to Friendly High School? 

01 l ff:•I 11 A, Trying to r emember , did she talk to ma 

0 1.10:, 1 12 or - - we may have had ts conversation about where she 

,1 10 1s. 13 was before Fr1 endl y. 

, , 10: ~ 14 Q, Did you know that she had t r ansferred to 

"oo,» 15 Fri endly High School? 

01 10:, ·, 10 

Ot tO:M 17 

A, 

Q, Did you know why she transferred to 

o, 11, .. 18 Friendly High School ? 

0 1 11:01 19 

(ti 11:<U 20 

A. 

Q. 

Yes , 

What is your understanding of why she 

0 1 11 :0, 21 transferred to Friendly High School ? 

0 1 11:0!o 22 A. I believe, if 1·~ remember1ng correctl y , 
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she was et a middl e school, I think, and she was 

labeled as a mal e, and she actually was going 

through transition, and I guess when she returned - ­

I don't really know t he exact st ory, whether it was 

her dec1s1on or whether 1t was someone el se's 

decision for her to t he come • · or be t r ansferred to 

Friendly. 

So when I got there, s he was already 

there. 

Q, Okay. 01 d you have a ny understand1 ng 

'""., U about her experiences at the prior school? 

c,~ 11 ,e 12 A. We have had a lot of conversa tions. And 

" ""' 13 I'm rryi ng - - I don't think that we have ever 

o, n 5, 14 specifical ly talked abou t t hi ngs at her previous 

0 1;11 ss 15 school. 

01:n 01 16 Q, Ot her t han Ms. Ell er, during your 

""' o, 17 time - · other t han Ms . Eller , were there any other 

e1:12 n 18 transgender teachers who were openly transgender a t 

,,,,. ,, 19 Friendly High School? 

01-12 111 20 

01 u ,, 2.1 

DL1Z 21 22 

<,1;12 23 1 

c.1,1::: 33 2 

C.l•U 2• 3 

1.1112 ~ 4 

G1:12 :t9 5 

li1 '12 JC 6 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q, 

A. 

No, not thal I know of. 

Were there openly transgende r students? 

Yes. 

How many? 

And st11 l are. 

How many between 2012 and 2016? 

2012 and 2016 • • Ooh. That' s hard , 

118 

That's hard, 

Q. 

A. 

11 you could approximate. 

I don ' t really remember, because I don ' t 

1i1.12:;,, 8 remember out of my Cari ng Colors babies who was 

,1;12 4& 9 transgender , who was gay, or t hei r labels, I don't 

o, ,2 14 10 remember everybody. I don ' t remember , 

C.1:12 61 11 Q. But you 1<now for sure t hat t he re was at 

1;1'.1> C<l 12 l east one transgender student? 

A. Probably. I'm saying probably because I 

,,:u"' 14 just don· t r emember. 

t,1 :1 > es 1S Q, so you don't remember any specific 

,1 ,, 01 16 lransgender studen ts dur ing that ti me per i od? 

01 13 10 17 

{11.13 11 18 

A, 

Q. 

No. Hm-hmm . 

Were you aware of any teachers refusi ng 

c.1,1~ 2e 19 lo res pect transgender s t udents' pronouns? 

A. No -- yes . Let me think one minute -- a 

c.1.1:. •2 21 &econd . Between · 12 and ' 16 , ri ght7 

Q. Hm•hm., , 

119 

0 1 "6;00 1 A. My memory 1 s 1<1 nd of vague on that, but 

" ·" '°' 2 I do vaguel y think 1t might have been between t hat 

0 1 1,: 11 3 time . I don't k.now whether it was between that t ime 

o, u ,u -t or after 2016 when there was -· hmm. I r emember a 

01 1•: 2, 5 teacher. Her name was Ms . • - her name is 

o, '"" 6 Ns. Claggett , but I don't remember the 

c;, 1 ••:3!. 7 circumstances, I don't know whether 1 t was between 

o, 1•:31 8 1 12 and ' 16 or not. 

, , ,.,,. 9 But she didn 't •· for religious 

0 1 " : " 10 reasons, d1dn ' t th1 nk t hat she needed to or she 

" " '" 11 should call the student by the student's gender 

., ,.,., 12 identity . 

01 IA: 5-4 13 Q. And how did you come to learn about 

0 1 ••:.ss 1-4 that ? 

0 1 IA:M 15 A. I don't r emembAr. I want to say the 

01 1s:oo 16 s t udent may have come t o me. but I don ' t remember 

" "'"' 17 'Nhether 1 t was t he student or the teacher . I do 

",,,., 18 remember tali<1ng to the teacher and letting her know 

01 u :01 19 that s he had to commun1 cate wi th t he student as what 

01 ,s:u 20 the student identified as. 

0 1 111: 111 21 Q. Do you Know if t hat instruction was 

",,,,. 22 followed? 

ti! 15:20 1 

01 15:ZJ 2 

0 1 H1: U 3 

u, 111:is 4 

111 t 5:2S 5 

A. 

Q. 

fol lowed? 

A. 

Yes . 

So to your understanding, 1 t was 

As far as I knew, yes . Ny 

understandi ng, 1t was . 

120 

0 1 15: .tll 6 Q. Do you know 1 f that s t udent re11ained at 

""'"" 1 Fri endly High School? 

0 1 1$:)') 8 A. I don't remember whether t he student 

01 1s:11 9 rema1 ned or transferred or graduated . 

01 l~:33 10 Q. Okay . Other than that incident or that 

11 15;41 11 teacher, do you r emember any other teachers refusing 

0 1 H:4◄ 12 to respect trans' students· pronouns? 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Were you aware of any students acting 1 n 

, , "'" 15 a t rensphob1c Manner t owards other students . 

01 t l:Ot 16 

0 1 11:11 1 7 

A . 

Q. 

l am not awar e . 

01d you ever overhear staff t alking 

0 1 11::1 18 about Ms. El 1 e r ? 

01 11:22 19 

DI 11:21 20 

A. 

Q. 

No. Not as far as her gender . 

Did you ever hear staff refer to 

0 1 lli • 'l 21 Hs . El 1 er by incorrect pronouns? 

0 1 IC: ♦, 22 A. I did hear one of our previous assistant 
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principals. She referred to Hs. Eller es he when 

she was talking to Ms. Ell er about something, I 

believe . And she profusely apol ogized and tried to 

make it right. but to no avai 1. 

Q. Did you ever hear sta ff intenti onally 

referr1 ng to Hs. El l er by t he wrong pronouns? 

A, (Witness shakes head back and forth.) 

Nope. 

Q. Okay. Did you overhear student s t alki ng 

'"",.. 10 about Hs . Ell er? 

A. In the beginning of the school year when 

,., ,.,. 12 the ninth graders will come in , if t hey woul d walk 

,., ,.., 13 past her c l assroom , they would , like, giggle and, 

0,11,a :14 oh, what 's going on over there , or thi ngs l i ke l hat. 

01 ,1 1 51 15 So what we did when we heard tha t is 

" '"" 16 speak with the students about . you know. transgender 

• .,,. oo 17 and what was going on with Hs. Eller . 

G1;U, o:i 1B Q. 

c:, 111 o.a 19 that? 

Cl 11 ~ 20 A. 

01 11 01 21 1 i ke · · 

Q. 

..,, ; 111 10 1 students? 

t.1: 1111 2 

f.1!18 11 3 

A. 

Q . 

c.1:11 11 4 grade? 

c.1:,a 16 5 A. 

,,,,a 11 6 doing it. 

C.1 11 II 7 

1;1 11 ~o 8 

Q. 

A. 

How did you speak to students about 

I mean • • I don· l unde rs tend how, 

So you menlioned you would speak to 

122 

Yeah. But what do you mean how? 

As the entire classroom, the entire 

No, the s t udent s that were actually 

Specific students? 

Right , because niy office was very c lose 

c.1:,a 21 9 to her c1assroo11. 

c. 1 ·1• :2 10 

Gl :11 22 11 

Q. 

A. 

Okay. 

So when there was transition. I was 

c.1: 11 2e 12 there by her c l assroom . 

f,1;11 2.1 13 Q. Okay . So if you overheard students , 

1,111, ,o 14 would you walk out and have a conversation with 

f.' 111 32 15 them? 

GI 11 32 16 A . Right , or if Hs . El ler brought anyth1ng 

", ,,,.. 17 lo my attention. 

c-.1.1135 18 Q. Okay. In your conversation with the 

111.11 .q 19 students, what would you say? 

A. I don' t remember exactly , but agai n , 

<.1:11 ,e 21 explain1 ng to students that everyone is human and 

,ua 53 22 how to t reat humans , and you know, -,he has a r i ght 

01 ""' 1 to bo i dant1fi ed as what she wanted to be. And 

01 11, 01 2 explain to them for those who did not know what 

123 

01 '''°' 3 transgendor was, because some students did not know 

o, 1v:oa 4 what it actually meant , they had a warped sense of 

o, tt:u 5 what 1t actua'lly is. 

0 1 11: 1• 6 But most students •• like I said , 

01 ,., ,, 7 those wer e anomal 1 es. It didn't happen , that I know 

•• ,.,., 8 of , often . because she was wel 1- 1 i ked by the school, 

•• ,.,,. 9 the students and the teachers. 

Q. In the conversations that you had w1th 

0 1 19 :13 1.1 students , how did the students react? 

0 1 tt:3S 12 A. They reacted positively . Like I said 

• • '"" 13 earlier, 1t was j ust a few very def iant kids that 

01 11:•1 14 just didn't want to 1 et i t go. 

01 l!t:•9 15 

01 It:$\ 16 

Q. 

A. 

How Nany defiant kids? 

I know of one, that I dealt with. Thero 

o, u1:n 1 7 were, I think, maybe a coupl o more guys . I didn ' t 

01 .,,,. 18 deal with them. but I understand t hat •· excuse 

" ,a,o, 19 me • • that they had said so•e things to Ms. Ell er. 

., "'°' 20 They wound up being put out of school because that's 

0 1 20:u 21 how defiant they wero. 

0 1 20;U 22 Q. Were they put out of school • • for what 

124 

0 1 1t1 i111 1 reason were they put out of school? 

(H .'0:21 2 A. I don· t remember. It wasn't because of 

o, ,.,,, 3 what they said to Hs . Eller, just being defi ant. 

01 ~:25 4 Q. Okay. When you say "put out of school ,·· 

o, 20:11 5 does that mean e1<pe11 ed7 

0 1 JO: .lll 6 A. Wel 1 , Pri nc~ Georga · s County doc,sn' t 

0 1.20:n 7 have a real expulsion. You will go to an 

1J1;zo:s!I 8 alternati ve school or you w11l go to an alternative 

01 ,.,,. 9 program. So it coul d be Job Corps. it could be any 

o, 20:~ 10 program, a GEO program. 

Q . But they were shifted to a different 

o, ,.,., 12 school outside of Friendl y? 

')I 20: 52 14 

01 20:&7 15 

0 1 21:02 17 

tt1 11 :04 18 

011 1109 19 

A. Depend • • I don· t remember each student, 

what their decision was as far as what they were 

going to do to finish up . I mean. I knew at that 

t1 me, but I oon · t rememoer exactly wno ·1ert to ge, 

thei r GED , exact l y who went to go to Job Corps or 

Free State Academy. I don· t remember that. 

Q. And you mentioned that you knew of one 

o, 21 :11 20 that was defi ant . ls t hat i n addi t ion to the 

u, :1:1◄ 21 young . ~ 

01 .11114 22 A. No. !'01 talking about the young lady . 
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01:21 16 1 

0 1:21 10 2 

t;1;2 \ U) 3 

(,1:21 s, 4 

01:21 5~ 5 

Q. 

A. 

Q . 

125 

The young 1 ady that we had discussed? 

Yes. 

You mentioned that your office was right 

outside Ms . Ell er' s office, and that at the 

beginning of the year , you mi ght hear ninth graders 

• ,,,. ,. 6 mal<ing comments. Outside of the beginning of the 

01·H 01 7 year and comments by new students, were there other 

" ' " o, 8 t I mes when you heard students m I sgenderi ng 

0,,2210 9 Ms . Eller? 

01:22. 10 1 0 

C1:22 10 11. 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Did you always addr ess t he students if 

c1:22 2:1 12 you overheard them cnaki ng com11ents? 

c, :22 2• 13 

" ' ,, 25 14 

A. 

Q. 

Defini tely. 

Were there s i tuat i ans where you saw any 

" ·" " 15 ot her teachers attempt to address mi sgendering? 

01:ll :u 16 A. I hadn't seen those. and that ' s 

• ,,,, ,. 17 because •• l 'm trying to think. During transition . 

.,,,, ,. 18 Ms. Eller and I usually kind of stood there in t he 

• .,,, "19 area together . I'm trying t o think of the other 

,, .,, •• 20 teachers thal were around. I can' t remember. 

., 22., 21 I can't remember whether they heard 

.,,,..,. 22 I t , o r whether they di d or di dn't do 1t. 

"':Z2. 50 1 

t.1: ::;) Of 2 

C.1:2) 11 3 

,, :2S 11 4 

(,1 :23 14 5 

t1 •23 10 6 

C,I 23 21 7 

(,1 :t3 21 8 

(,1;2) » 9 

,1:n n 10 

l.l!:23 31 11 

tt :23 ., 12 

1;1: 23 •l 13 

126 

Q. You mentioned thi s morning that there 

was a time when Ms . Eller requested traini ng? 

A. 

Q. 

for staff? 

A. 

a. 

Yes. 

How often did Ms. Eller request training 

To me? I d o not • • I don't r0Me11ber. 

Okey. Do you recal 1 an attempt to have 

as Pri nee George ' s County pol i co major named Irene 

Burks do a presentation to staff during a staff 

meeting? 

A. I don·t recall it . I can't say it 

didn't happen . I just don ' t recall 1t. 

Q . Do you remember any staff meeting in 

C,l :23 46 14 which an outside presenter was brought in t o talk 

,.,,. ., 15 about gender identity? 

Cl 2l it 1.6 

C.12319 1 7 

i,1 , Zl St 18 

A. 

Q. 

No. was tnere? 

I don' l remember . 

So you don ' l re11ember hearing about a 

c.1 :~ 01 19 staff mealing i n which an ou t side presenter was 

c.i:,~ 10 20 cal 1 ed in? 

t.1•2~ 10 21. 

«.1,2~ n 22 

A. 

Q. 

I real 1 y don't re11ember . 

Okay . You menti oned t hat you got to 

1 27 

, , '"" 1 Fri endly High School 1 n 2012? 

0 1' 24 :21 2 

01 2• ;21 3 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

From 2012 to 2016, what were t he 

01 ' " " 4 assignments that you had as vi ce principal ? 

A • I cannot tell you all of t he assi gnments 

• • ,.,,, 6 I had . I rea 11 y don ' t remember . 

a. Do you recal l i n whi ch years you were a 

o, , , ,,. 8 supervisor for Ms. Eller . by either grade l evel or 

0 1:2• : • 1 9 subject mat ter? 

Ot 74 : '-2 10 A. So I do r emember. because I came in 

01 ,., ,. 11 2012, and I was a freshman admi nistrator and they 

01 ,., .. 12 graduated 2016. 

She had • • I was the seni or 

01.:14:u i ,4 administrator. So s he had my se niors. She was t he 

01 11.:M 15 t eacher for my seniors. 

0 1 ' 24:SA 16 

01 ~•:59 1 7 

o, 15:00 18 

01 2:S:01 19 

01 Z:S :O& 20 

0 1 2!:0I 21 

01 2:S:HI 22 

(n 21:tl 1 

(W2S~t1 2 

ot U:2!1 3 

(ti 2fi: 24 4 

IJ1 :O!o :24 5 

Q • In 20127 

A. I n 2016 . 

Q . Oh , in 2016 . 

Do you remember i n 2015 •• 

A. No. 

Q. • • whether you supervised Hs . Eller? 

A . I don• t r emember. I remember 2016 

1 2B 

specifically because we worked toget her on those 

students who needed some e xtra t utoring i n orde r t o 

graduate . And that ' s why I remember that 

specificall y. 

Q. Okay. So pr i or to 2016 , you don· t have 

ot ~,:~1 6 any memori es spec i f ical l y o f s uperv1 5ing Ms. El ler? 

01 2~133 7 A. Not speci f ica ll y . as far as dates . I 

., .,.,,, 8 pr obably have. I r eally don · t r eally remember 

o, 2s:1.2 9 spec ifically . 

Q. Okay. We' re ha nding you a one-page 

, , ,.,,. 11 document with the number Eller 000145 at the bottom 

o, ,.,,. 12 and PGCPS at the top 1 eft . whi ch we· re marki ng as 

., ,.,,.. 13 Exhibit 34. 

,,,,,., 14 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 34 , e-mail . 10 .14 . 2013 , El ler, 

., ,,,o, 15 ELLER000145 , was marked for i dentificat ion.) 

u1 u:u1 1.0 

l»I :7:0-4 17 

0 1 27: CM 18 

QI 27: 09 19 

Q. 

A. 

Q . 

1:s t h at your n t1mo , n \.h e T o , 1 m:? 

Yes . 

And 1 s that you r correct e•mai 1 address? 

MR . SHARK/I. : I have a questi on . ls 

o, 11:oe 20 this pr oduced i n redacted f o rmat , or have you 

tu 1111 1 21 redac ted i t f or purpos es of today's deposi t i on? 

0 1 .17: U 22 MR. RODRIGUEZ: I bel ieve it was 
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01:27 ,, 1 

01 :21 I t 2 

01:21 20 3 

C,1:27 :J2 4 

Gl:27 :,, 5 

o• ::u 3' 6 

0 1·21 :JO 7 

01:21 311 8 

01 :21 "'" 9 

01:210 10 

r.,~2, 51 11 

01 ; 21 07 12 

129 

produced i n redacted fon1at , but I can double- check 

that. 

MR. SHARMA : Okay . 

Q. I'm sorry. Did you say that was your 

correct e -mail address? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. That 's 11y e -mail address. 

Okay. When did you receive t his? 

The date on 1 t says , October 14th. I 

can't tell you when I recei ved it. I 'll s ure I 

received it the day t hat she sent it . 

Q, 

A. 

Q, 

Have you had a chance t o read i t? 

Yes. 

In the l ast full paragraph, about 

o, "" 14 halfway i n the middle of t he page , it says , "G. has 

, ,.,, ,. 15 caused trouble for me since last year, beginn1ng 

.,,,, " 16 with r epeated purposeful mi sgende ri ngs. • 

c1·21.n 17 Do you recall the student that 

'"" ,. 1B Ms. Ell er is referri ng to? 

lll:2' 2!J 19 A. I do. I do recall him, He was one of 

" '" ,, 20 tho students that was pul oul of Friendl y , one of 

o, ",. 21 those OED students. 

0 1 21 31 22 Q. So you had • • you had been aware of t he 

130 

'"".., 1 purposeful misgendering t hat Hs. Eller is speaking 

1.1: .. a."41 2 about? 

A. I can 't say that I was aware before 

,,,,,. " 4 then, but I can say I do remember this e-mail , 

(.1:21.5'1 6 

,,-11 ss 6 

Q. 

A. 

Q, 

Okay , 

And I remember the student. 

Okay . Do you reme•ber whether you hed 

c., 21 c;o 8 had eonv-ersati ons with Hs. Eller prior to t hi s 

'1:a o, 9 e•mai l about that student? 

C.1 :29 CM 10 

Cl:29 011 11 

(.l;Z, OS 12 

,,1: 20 r,g 13 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

a. 

I can't remember. 

Okay . 

I can ' t remember. 

Ms , Eller mentions at the bottom of her 

,,,,. 22 14 e-mail t hat s he has filed a PS-74 on each of the 

.,,,.,. 15 boys and discussed the sitllation with Mr . G. 
Do you r e member wha t came aDout as a 

,, ,. " 17 resu lt of those PS-74s? 

(,1,l9 ;J,3 18 A, 

Q. 

I do not remember. 

But t he PS-74s shoul d be i n t he files of 

t.112t 3e 20 the stude nts? 

t.1 : H •J7 21 

c.1 -19 3! 2:Z 

A. 

Q, 

Not necessarily . 

Whe r e else would they be? 

01 zt:•t 1 

01 2'J•,l:J 2 

01 29:,'5 3 

01 29:s, 4 

0129: M 5 

01 29;61 6 

131 

A. If they weren ' t fi 1 ed , I don't know 

where they would be , 

Q. So you mentioned that PS- 74s should be 

provi ded • • a copy shoul d be provided to the 

teacher, to the parent , one kopt i n the student ' s 

file. 

01 30:00 7 Now , when would they not be provided 

o, ,.,., 8 i n the student's file? 

01 >O:Ol 9 

01 . )O:OI 10 

01 ·30:011 :Li 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

If the person did not file them . 

Which per son are you referr ing to? 

So any PS- 74 that I receive, because you 

o, ,.,,, 12 see that myself and Hs. Cowan , who was actuall y the 

o, "'"' 13 administrat or for those students, she gives them to 

01 31J;24 14 the secretary to disperse. 

01 : 3t1: 11 15 a . Is it the secretary's reRponsibility to 

" ,.,,. 16 put the PS· 74 in the student's file? 

Ol 30rJ2 17 A. The secretary ' s responsi ble for making 

01 1Q•n 18 the copies and givi ng t hem to whoever is supposed t o 

o, ,o:'H 19 do• · li ke , so s he would mail the parent copy; 

01 3tl:•220 sometimos , sometimes not . She woul d pass on the 

" ,.,., 21 PS- 74 to the guidance secret ary: soMetimes , 

o, :so:&2: 22 sometimes not. 

132 

fl l 30:6' 1 Q, Whose responsibility 1 s it to put the 

01 J0:55 2 

01 J0:68 3 

o, 31:0, 4 

01 31 :O:t 5 

01.:n:O;i 6 

copy of the PS- 74 i n the student 's file? 

A, 

a. 
A. 

The gu1dance secret ary. 

The guidance secretary? 

Yes. 

And during that ti me, there may not 

rn ,,:°" 7 or may have been o ne . Or if it was. t hat person 

01 ·11 •01 8 was •· that person was in and out , meaning we have 

o, ,,:,!I 9 had some inte rmittent s t aff there in that position. 

01 ) 1:11 10 Q, And if there was not a guidance 

eu ,i:20 11. secretary in place, whose responsibility wa13, it to 

",,,,. 12 put t he PS- 74s i n tha student's file? 

•n-31 :n 13 

0 1 ,, :11 14 

A. 

a . 

•• '"" 15 the PS- 74s? 

A. 

01 ::11 :1s 17 secretary. 

01 31:Jl 18 Q. 

It woul d have just kind of stayed there. 

It was no one's responsibility t o file 

R1ght, unt11 we got a gu1oance 

So any PS-74s that were c reated , if 

o, :1w1,1 1.9 there wa s not a gu1 dance s ecretary . would have been 

(II Jl:U 20 1 ost ? 

0 131 :)0 21 A, They •· not •- well , maybe, maybe not. 

01 ll : 4, 22 But t hey woul d have stayed t here unti l we got a 
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111 :)1 "' 1 

111 :)1 ., 2 

01 :)\ •1 3 

t1 :)1 SI) 4 

Cl :31 S1: 5 

guidance secretary . 

Q. 

A, 

Where would they have stayed? 

Maybe on the desk of the • • that the 

133 

guidance secretary was supposed to, you know , 

inhabit. But there was no clear one·to-one , meaning 

,,,.,., 6 this 1s PS-74·1 , so th1S 1s here, this 1s PS-74-2, 

,. . .,,. 7 this i s here. So 1t wasn 't a straight lineage lo 

111:32 n 8 what happened t o that documer'lt or those docullents. 

Q. You said maybe they would have stayed on 

oi:l: ~ 10 the secretary. Were there any instructions on what 

""' 21 11 should happen to PS-74s? 

Cll : ) 2 21 12 A. Not necessarily . Well , what we did was 

""'" 13 act on the PS-74s. We knew from the bottom of the 

,, ",. 14 PS- 74 wher e it should go. 

c-1 .12 3G 15 Q. In t erms of other people to send a copy 

c-1 :J.t A& 16 to? 

c,1:n ,, 17 Right. 

C-1 :32 4G 18 

A, 

Q , But as far as maintaining the document 

,, ,,.., 19 for the school system? 

c,1 •no 20 A, Basically, t he school system -- I can't 

., .,, " 21 say t he school system. 

o, ,., " 22 Basical 1 y , Friendly concentrated on 

134 

c..1:u 56 1 making s ure that the suspensions were in t here . 

L1:JJ O,I 3 

(.1 '.3,3 07 4 

C.1:ll t;a 5 

C,1•33 Oi 6 

C.1 )l 11 7 

C,1 u 111 8 

C.1 ! 33.17 9 

Q , The suspension - - so you would have made 

an effort to make sure that any suspension was 

documented 

A. 

Q. 

suspension , 

A , 

Q. 

i n the student's f ile? 

Was -- yes. 

But 1f anything was less than a 

it could have been • • 

Yes . If there' s no gui dance secretar y. 

lt woul d not necessarily have been 

" '" " 10 placed 1n the student's file? 

c;1c33 ;ro 11 

C,1:3:J 20 12 

1,1:)3 23 13 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Ri ght . 

Okay . 

Because the s uspensi ans a re reported to 

"''",. 14 the state, not t he PS-74s , 

C,1 :J3 3,! 15 Q, So there's no pr ocess for tracking 

01:n•> 16 d isc1 pl1ne that is less than a sus:pen&1on •-

4,1 33 <IA 17 

l,1 .33 -u 18 

1,1 l3 .a 19 

4,1 : lJ • r 20 

<.1;n41 21 

(.t;ll 6' 22 

A. 

Q , 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q , 

No. 

-- i n place? 

Not then . IL is now. 

Okay. Si nee when? 

Si nee we got a yu1 dance secretary . 

When was that? 

135 

A. We been through a few . 

Probably 20 • · I don't remember. I 

0 1 3-t:t)t 3 do not remember. And don' t want to say and be 

0 1 :i,:111 4 wrong. But since we •· since we 've had a guidanco 

" ,.,,, 5 secretary . a fu ll - ti me guidance secretary dedicated 

",.,,. 6 to take care of al1 of t he guidance business. 

0 1 3': 0 7 Q. You ment ioned it was t he responsibility 

",.,,. 8 of the socretary to provide copies to everyone who 

",.,., 9 was indicated at the bottom of the PS-74 , right? 

0 1 .14 : &5 10 

0 1 3, : $$ 1:1. 

A. 

Q, 

Yes. 

Was t he secretary effective at making 

",.,., 12 sure that everyone got copies of the PS- 74s? 

0 1 U :<M 1 3 

0 1 3&: 0,0 1,4 

0 1 35: U 1.5 

0 1 35, 1A 16 

01 3'; 10 17 

01 3,:10 18 

01 3':M 19 

01 35: H 20 

01 ; :t!:H 21 

01 35:3; 22 

(J1 J5:ll 1 

01 J,:s!li 2 

01 J!i;U 3 

01 35: 44 " 
0 1 3S:47 5 

01 JS:&3 6 

01 :M , M 1 

01 3!!: H 8 

01 311 ='7 9 

01 Jei(H 10 

0 1 36:nt 11 

0 1 ,t:J!) 12 

0 1 'M!:M 13 

01.38:311 14 

A. 

Q, 

Not necessari 1 y , no. 

Okay. How often, if you know, did that 

fall through the cracks? 

A. I woul dn't , 

Q. Okay. 

A. Yeah. I wouldn't know. 

Q. Was that cons 1 dared not important to 

make sure that • • 

A, You mean the PS-74s? 

Q, To provide the copies to everyone who 

136 

was cc' ed7 

A. I wil 1 say t hi s: The parents never 

requested them, and the teachers wanted their copies 

back. So they got their copies back . 

As f ar as guidance , I said that we 

report suspensions to the state I so we made s u re the 

suspensi ons were t her e. 

I wouldn't say it wasn't important . 

I think it's i mpor tant , but when you're dealing with 

a deficit as far as staff, you have to pr ioritize . 

Q. We ' re handi ng you a two-page document 

with t he Bates Number on t he bottom right of Eller 

000115 with the title of Students Who Have Harassed 

lie , which we are marking at Exhibit 35. 

'"'"" 15 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 35, e-mail, 11.21 .2013 , Eller , 

0 1 :m<M 18 ELLER000115· 115, was markeo ror 1oenc1ncac1on.) 

0 1 :17:!.6 17 

01 371&& 18 

0 1 3';01 19 

Q, 

A. 

Q. 

ln the first e-mail in this chai n -­

ls this page -· 

I'm sorry. Actua1ly, in the l ast -· 

01 ,a,o, 20 well. the first e-mail in the t op of the front page , 

tu la:" 21 Hs. Eller writes. NEach .. •· she's discussing four 

o, :.11:u 22 students. and she says, "Each has had a p5.74 
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1)1:311· 3 3 

1,1: S&~ 4 

01: le Y', 5 

C1:H l 1 6 
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wri tten on them , and I know that Ms. Pope - Brown has 

spoken brief l y with t l,e two tenth grade boys. " 

Do you remember which tenth grade 

boys Ms. f l 1 er 1s ref erring to? 

A. No , because tho names a r c the out. and I 

wou ldn't actually know during the yea r of 2013 what 

01:sa n 7 grade they we re in. 

•. ,,..,, 8 (Cl arification requested by the Cour l Reporter .) 

A. I wouldn't know in the year 2013 what 

. ....... 10 grade t hey we re in. 

01:31:S& 11. Q. Do you r emember PS-74s from Ms . Eller 

""•., 12 about students 

t1 ; J,f 0 1 13 

i1 Ui 07 14 Q. 

Ol l!l03 ~ 

A, 

,.,:,. n 17 Ms. Ell er 

Q. 

with Ms, 

her? 

A. 

ltR . SHARMA: Objection. 

who were harassing her? 

MR. SHARMA: You can answer. 

Not s pecifi cally , no. do r emember 

and I having converiat i ons, yes . 

Do you r emember havi ng conversations 

El ler about students who were harassing 

Yes . 

C-1 •)1•2 1 20 

~, :U 12 2:1. 

Gl t U 2• 22 a. Okay . Do you ret1e11be r what came abOut 

138 

C.I ; ), 2t 1 as a r esult of those oonversati ons? 

""~" a 2 A. As far as what was the be havior of the 

c.1 13'9 l2 3 boys afterwards? 

thl!f 3-1 4 Q. What wa s there a consequence t hat 

U:l!l 37 5 came about ? 

t1 •Jil 3' 6 A . 1 don · t remember . becau:sc I don' t 

,1 J!I "' 7 r ememoer what ... at t ha t par ticular tli.e where 

., , ... 8 dea l t w1 t h i L whal axactl y happened. 

Q . So you don't reniember the consequence 

•u• ,, 10 that you provided or 

Right. don · t ru1111:1mbar t he 

Q. Okay . I f I prov i de• · I ' m going to 

.,,,. " :14 provida name& to you to see if It helps to refres h 

Q, 

1nvol v1ng-

A. No . 

Okay. 

Yes, 

Do you remember anylhi ng 

Q, 

A. 

Q, What do you rel!lember About -

139 

t i 4 11CQ 1 -t i 4l;63 2 A. That he was ODO . 

0 1 • l :{Q 3 Q. Okay, 

• • 41;0,~ 4 A. It was vary simi l ar to t he young lady 

•• .. ... 5 that I dealt with , that he was one who actually 

oo ,. ,., 6 •Mound up be1 ng withdr awn fro• Friendly. 

Q • Okay. And did Ms , Ell er i nform you 

"""' 8 about his r efusal to call hor by • • what was his 

o, " ' " 9 behavior with tis . E11or, do you romember? 

01 4~!21 10 A. I really don't really remember his 

01 ., i:,. ti behavior wi t h Ms . E11er. I remember the type of 

01 . , '.s, 12 3 t udont he was . 

01 :41: 17 13 don ' t bel ieve t hat Ms . Ell er woul d 

01 .c;:◄, 1.4 put his name down as SOllleone who harassed h1m •· 

111 . , 1" 16 her, if he d 1 dn' t . 

So can I be 1 iovc t hat Gerri ck did 

0 1 41 : !'&2 1.7 say someth ing to Hs. Eller, yes. But do I remember 

01·,n:n 18 exac tly whc\t ft wtts , no. 

0t .u:01 20 A. 

01 41:0lt 21 

/JI ·0:11 2.2 

0 1 A):lJ 1 

01 A21t1 2 

Ol •d : U 3 

GI -2: 2t 4 

CII ,,1at 5 

{ti .,.~-. G 

!JI 41 17 7 

Ol 42.• l 8 

01 47:41 9 

:u •l::H 10 

01 u :s111 

'H ·O·:M 12 

,, 0 :63 13 

- thank you . Q. 

A. I do remember h i m, but I don't remember 

140 

any issue with he a nd 11s . Eller . But again . because 

I know 11s . Eller, I don' t t hi nk that s he wou l d have 

listed hi m as so01eone if she di dn't think that he 

actuall y di d harass her, 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

And -

don • t r-cmembar th;;l t n.111, t:t. 

want to j us'\ circle back for a moo,ont 

to your ovaluet ion . 

You ment i oned that part of the 

eval uation or part o f your eval uat i on 1s the 

di s c i pl ine numbers? 

A. 

Q, 

Yes. 

What •· of the d l sc1p11ne nun,bers , what 

~• 4.1 •oJ 14 was conveyed t o your superv1 sors t ha t you were 

•• ,,,., 15 eval uated on? 

... 
the nu11ber of susp .. ens, ons. The state 

doe s no t track the number of PS-74s. 

Q. So were you only evaluated on th e number 

0 1 •J 2,. 20 of s us pensions, then? 

"· 
Q. 

Ves . 

Okay . And how would thosu play a part 
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01:• :, 21 1 in your evaluation? 

A. Are you asking wi 11 it affect it 

0 1:-0 Ji 3 greatly. wil 1 we be marked down for it? 

Q. Or if there was a higher number of 

"""' 5 suspensions, how will that reflect in you r 

01:•1 .. , 6 oval uation? 

A. If there was a high number of 

. , ,., •• 8 suspensions. we would J ust have to gi ve our --

• " "" 9 what's the pl an? What's t he plan for, you know , 

.,,,, os 10 assisting the students? 

But the number of suspensions 

. ,,,,.. 12 weren · t frowned on because we went by the Code. But 

o,:,.a oe 13 it was more i mportant to see what you were going to 

o, .... 09 14 do with t hat . 

01.•.a 10 15 Q. Okay. On the four students that we just 

01,« " 16 discussed, if you had spoken with two of the tenth 

o,,.., " 17 grade boys as Jenny indicates in her e-mail, woul d 

01 :•• , ~ 18 that conversation be documented somewhere? 

A. 

Q. 

No . 

Okay . Would the fact thal you had a 

01 ,,. ~ 2.1 conversat;on be documented somewhere? 

C.1 : .. ) 01 1 

t. 1:-'5 04 2 

t.1:45 00 3 

, , :45 13 4 

Gl: 45 Ill, 6 

G1'45 II 6 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

No . 

142 

It wouldn 't have been in the PS- 74s? 

I don't - - again. I don ' t remember her 

giving me a PS-74 on those two students . I don't 

knnw whether it ' s a PS-74 and a conversation that 

she and I had , and then I pul 1 ed the other two boys 

up. I just don ' t remember that. 

Q. 

A. 

Okay. 

It's just like I don't remember a PS-74 

(IIH~ .,, 9 f or the first young lady. and she went to in-school. 

01: o1s ,, 10 but I don't know whether there were any paperwork on 

r.,: 4s ,11 11 that. 

Q. We are going to hand you a two- page 

., . ., ., 13 document Bates Numbered Eller 000174 in the bottom 

,,,., .. 14 right, titled PS-74s on three redact ed names, which 

c;1:.ae c9 1S we 're marki ng as EKh1bit 36. 

01 o1.sn 1.6 (Plaintif f's Exhibit 36, e - ma, 11 11 .21.2013, Eller, 

,,., ,. 1.7 ELLER000174-1 75 , was aarked for i dentification.) 

t,,1;4!120 18 

... , ◄1 33 19 

t,1:4'1 &, 20 

Q, 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

I' 11 give you a momen t to read i I. 

Are these - - okay . 

Have you ever seen th1s before? 

I - - of course I have , but I really 

<.1 :,.100 22 don't remember it specifically. 

01 4 103 1 

o, '8:01 2 

Ot '4:09 3 

0 1 . .ta : t il 4 

01 '8: 12: 5 

01.q: u 6 

(II "8! 19 7 

01 4':21 8 

01 "1: )0 9 

01'8:13 10 

01 "8!37 11 

143 

Q. Okay. Is that your name at the top in 

the To line? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

And that's your correct e·,.ail address? 

Yes. 

Okay. Do you r emember what you did when 

you received this? 

A. Knowing the rel ationshi p I had with 

Hs . Ell er, she and I probably talked about it, and I 

told her. She woul d -- I was like her go-to person, 

even if I wasn't her administrator. You notice even 

. , ... "• 12 on the back page, she's e-mailing me - - I· m 

., .. ,.,13 e-mailing her telling her, "I 'm out of the bui l di ng. 

01 4.a:, a 14 l 11 1 ask Hr. Adams to process the students . 11 

Q, What does that moan, • to prncess the 

01 AJ1 !sa 16 s tudent s"? 

01 &8:M 1 7 A. So they were - - whenever we suspend, 

a1 .as:n 18 that means process. 

0 1 oMl:,t 1 9 Q. Okay , So a suspension is -- process 

0 1 .a:,w 20 means suspension always? 

01 ◄lil :01 21 

Ill 4f;01 22 

01 41 :15 1 

01 •111, 2 

"' "-tl :7e 
3 

01 '8 :31 4 

Iii 41 :.JI 5 

01 411::\1 6 

QI 41;)9 7 

0 1 Al:4 1 8 

Ot:At:.a.a 9 

01 .at:S3 10 

01 5Q; 02 11 

01 5G:Ot 12 

01 f;0:12 13 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. Yes. 

So the -- did you -· would you have 

1 44 

decided that based on this e -mail? 

A. Mr. - - because I wasn't in the bu11 ding , 

I did not decide this. I asked Nr . Ada11s to hand1 e 

it . 

Q. Okay . But you were asking Nr . Adams to 

5U6ptmd the students based un -· 

A. I said -- I said. "Process.· so it's 

sti 11 up to him whether he· s going to suspend or 

not. but l ' m sure they were suspended. And 

they were suspended - - I'm thinking about what they 

did, I would have to go back to the Code and say - -

see what the Code says that is. I probably knew off 

the top of my head then, because now, this would not 

o, eo:u 14 consti tute a suspension. 

Ot 60: U 15 Q. Okay. But at the time, you think it 

0 1 60: Ut 16 d1 d? 

0 1 50: 20 1 7 

0 1 60: 21 1 8 

A. 

Q. 

At the t i 11e , I t hink that it did . 

So I just want to clarify, because I 

01 &0t21 19 heard a little bit of difference in the meaning of 

o, so:J1 20 process . 

0 1.~o:» 21 So were you ask1 ng Nr, Adams to 

0 1 sa:~ 22 evaluate independently what the students had done? 
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01 :'!10 30 1 

01 •so •o 2 

01:SO ti 3 

01 ,SQ , , 4 

01 :&0 II 5 

01:~o n 6 

01· ~ 65 7 

Cl . Ml 51 8 

01;60 H 9 

01;51 112 10 

01 :51 OJ 1.1. 

tt:51 o:t 12 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

145 

So I •• 

Or what does it mean to process? 

I don't • · actually, I can't tell you 

where my thinking was back in 2014. I can speak to 

you as to where I may th1 nk it was, but I. you know, 

don· t have a concrete answer as t o what I was rea 11 y 

asking dur i ng l hal time. 

Q. I 'm j us·t trying to unders land what the 

meaning is of "processing the students.• 

A. So·· 

MR. SHARMA: Objection. 

A. •· I had al ready answered it. 

But anything else right now woul d be 

o, s, u1 14 me specul ating on what I t hought it meant back then . 

01.5112 15 Q. I'm j us l trying lo understand whether 

'"" ,. 1s your e-11a1l is saying that Mr . Adams wlll evaluate 

" "' ,o 17 the co11pl ai nt or whether you think Mr . Adams is 

c1:s123 1B going -- whether you thi nk a suspension -- you're 

01:~1 24 19 recommending a suspension for this? 

A. I really don't remember what it was at 

o,,,2e 2.l. that particular t i me. 

1,1 : :Jl :03 1 

U : lli1 :64 2 

t,1;51 55 3 

(j1 : 111 58 4 

C..1 :52 Cl 6 

(,I ·$2 Cl 6 

" ~2 (,J 7 

~1 ~2 ~ B 

t,\: f,2 1l 9 

01 :~2 II 10 

i:;1 : ~ 1t ll 

~1:52 21 12 

<,t :52" 13 

tl:S,2 21 14 

Q. Your understanding is that the Code has 

146 

changed, though , since 2014? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

And that this would no 1 onger be 

considered eligible for suspension? 

A. 

a. 
A. 

Right . 

could you explain t hat a little bit? 

Yes. So for verbal sexual harassment, 

il would have lo be a continuati on, not them saying 

it more than one time i n the cl ass on that 

particular day . It would have to be s011eth1ng 

repeated. 

From what I'm readi ng, it sounds 

like the young men were very disrupt ive. They were 

disrespectful , using the profanity. And t he fuck, 

""',. 15 shit , Goddamn, I don• t know if I read it more 

~1$2.to0 :l6 careful l y whether they we,..e tal king about , like. 

"'~143 1.7 fuck as in fucking , or f uck as in fuck . 

So you know , is lhat sexual 

t.1 . ~i 10 19 harassment , we would have to act ua 11 y speak wi lh 

<.1 :r,;2 u 20 someone w1 th the students as f ar as what they meant 

c.M,1u 21 by fuck, shit , multiple th1es 1n a conversation to 

,, :si i;g 22 each other , and not to Hs. Ell er. 

Ot a,:01 1 

01 5:1:10 2 

01 Sl:13 3 

0 1 &:1:1, 4 

01 el:1• 5 

!l-1 U:1.1 6 

0 1 U:3& 7 

0 1 6J:3i 8 

0 1 cJ:31 9 

01 5J :60 10 
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So in this e -mai ·1, and again, I 'm 

just sk1Ming it, I don 't see anything about -- I 

don't see anything about sexual harassment. I do 

see the profanity as far as the word ·fuck.• And do 

you? Maybe I Just didn't see it . "She's ugly as 

shit and she's blowi ng me . 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

What do you see that as? 

I'm the one asking the questions. 

I mean.,, 

We' re going t o hand you a document - -

0 1 u :aa 11 one• page document, whi ch in the subject line says , 

",.,., 12 "Continued tli&gendering,• which we're marking as 

" ,., .. 13 Exhibit 37. 

Il l ! 4:08 14 (Plaintiff ' s Exhibit 37 , e -mail , 3 .16.2015, Adams , 

., ,.,,. 15 (No Bates) , was marked for identification. ) 

01 5':~ 16 

0 1 5':, T 17 

0 1 115:01 19 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Okay. 

It looks like you're cc'ed on this 

Mr. Adan,s sent me the e -mail, Hs. Eller 

0 1 115:1'1~ 20 did not. 

0 1 li5:0~ 21 a. So it 1 ooks l i ke you' re cc· ed in at 

o, " ' " 22 1 east the last e-mai 1 in the chain: is that r ight? 

0 1 65:u 1 

01 51:21 2 

01 55:2.l 3 

01 55:ll 4 

u, 55:21 5 

01 !!i l l& 6 

0 1 5':0Z 7 

0 1 58:0l 8 

01 !56:lt 9 

'll !ili2'l 10 

01 !51:Zli 11 

0 1 se:,1 12 

o, ... ,. 13 

0 1 &&: 40 14 

0 1 56:0 15 

01 '8:•1 16 

t'.1 1 68: 411 1 7 

148 

A. No . 

MR. SHARM : I think we ' re looking 

at something else, because the subject l ine is not 

what you said it was . 

Q. Coul d we give you • - now that we have 

marked that as 37, w~ wi 11 • • that' b okay . 

All right. So t his is an e-mail 

whi ch Principal Adams forwarded to you. 

In Hs. Eller ' s e -mail to Principal 

Adams, she mentions that a student poked 111 s head 

into her c l assroom and referred to her as , "He, " and 

then, "That man" and "he.• And she asked for the 

security cameras to be checked. She al so mentions 

that she spoke with Hs. Naldo. 

A, 

Q. 

A. 

Mm-hmm. 

wno 1s n~ . Na1ao? 

She is another t eacher at Friendly Hi gh 

o, ,.,., 18 Schoo 1 , 

0 1 H 16I 19 Q. 

o, se:&S 20 incident? 

01 56:t.! 21 

01 !SG:64 22 

A. 

Q. 

Do you r-emember what was done in this 

No . 

Oka y, Can you talk to us about now. in 
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ca :'1 ot 

Cl .!7 0A 

1 

2 

your position es principal , what you think shoul d 

have been done in response to an incident l 1 ke this? 

C1:Sf 07 3 

t;1:S7 GIi 4 

01:lr ot 5 

c-1::11 ti 6 

,,.~, 20 7 

01:S7 20 8 

Ol:$1 2:, 9 

t 1:S7 2& 10 

C:1:51 ll 11 

01 :57 ll 12 

01:&7 35 13 

A. 

Q. 

you • • 

A. 

MR . SHARMA: Objection. 

You can answer . 

I don't know. I really don't. 

If this happened today, what woul d 

I probably really would have asked 

securi ty to check out who the students were to 

i dentify them. 

Q. And once they were 1dent1f1ed , what 

would you · • what would be the next • • 

A, I would st11 l have to go through the 

01:61 31 14 investigation process . So you know , we have to 

ou1<0 15 give •· we have to do an i nvest i gation, and you have 

01:1;1 o1J 16 due• process. 

01:57 43 17 Q, Absolutely. Absolutely. 

• .,., " 18 And if the cameras showed that the 

"""' 19 students had referred to Ms . Jenny , Ms . El ler as 

01·ot ,, 20 "he" and "that man , · what do you Lhi nk tho 

o, ,, ,, 2.1. consequence shou 1 d be? 

01 :5151 22 MR . SHARMA: Objection. 

1 so 

t.1 :!.7 5l 1 A. I do not know. It depends on was 1t the 

(.1:~ 03 2 

G.1 :58 GI 3 

f i rst t i me. You know, I •· it 's so many different 

things t hat go into i t once you 1 ook at the Code. 

(.1 ;5t U 4 Q. Could we go through 1t step by step. If 

C.1 :58. UI 6 th1 s were the f irst ti me, what - • 

C.1·SI 17 6 

(,1 ~ 20 7 

A. 

Q. 

c.1 ,a 1.& 8 advi se •· 

A. 

I don · l Know, I reall y don't know. 

So as pri nc i pal today , how would you 

I would pull the c ameras end investigate 

,,,,.,, 10 1t, but I can't say what I woul d come up with 

,, =~ ,, 11 because I don't know . 

c.1:,.e n 12 Q. I f the cameras showed a student 

41:sa •1 13 misgender1ng a teacher? 

f,1:SB 4) 14 A. The came ra wouldn' t show that. The 

,,.., u 15 camera woul d s how the student poki ng his head in. 

01 ~.., 16 Q. 

A . 

1s lnere no souna? 

There is no sound, so we wou Id have to 

,,.., ,. 18 go through due-process. 

c., .68 51 19 

1,,1:6' 6J 20 

c.1 :~ '4 21 

(,1:Sfl ss 22 

Q. 

A. 

Q, 

If another teacher had overheard? 

HR. SHARMA : Obj ection . 

I don ' t know. 

You don't have an op1 ni on on how that 

0 1 &9:1)2 1 

01 H :t» 2 

0 1 !19:0l 3 

01.H::U 4 

01 9 :60 5 

0 1 59: 44 6 

0 1 SS:'-5 7 

01 ff: 41 8 

0 1 P:4t 9 

0 1 59: 5,0 10 

Ot.":51 11 

Ot U :&2 1.2 

0 1 U : M 13 

01 :50:&s 14 
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should be handled? 

A. 

Q. 

I don• t know. 

Okay. If the investigation found that 

the student had said those words in that e - mail to 

Ns. Eller . what woul d you recommend? 

MR . SHARHA: Objection. 

A. I would go to the Code to figure out 

what I'm supposed to do . 

Q. Okay. Would you like to take a moment 

and look at the Code? 

A. What t he Code says? 

HR. SHARHA: That's not the Code fo r 

today . 

A. That· s right. That• s not the Code fo r 

0 1 59:,, 1S today . 

0 1 St:S7 16 HR . SHARHA: So obj ection. 

HS. CHEEHA: Could we take a 02 00:M 17 

02 ooaoz 18 five- minute break? 

0,00,01 19 (RECESS, 2 :00 p.m. • 2 : 10 p.m.) 

02 10, 21 20 BY HS. CHEEHA : 

oz 10: 2& 21 Q. So tho exhibit t hat we were j ust looking 

o, , 0,21 22 at , 1t' s dated • • the e-mail , s dat ed March 16 , 

02 ,o,,.. 1 2015 . right? 

o;: ,a:u 2 

f12 10:35 3 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Okay. The Students Rights & 

152 

o, "'" 4 Responsi bi l ities Handbook that we handed you t his 

02 10 :• tt 5 morning, that 's also t he handbook for the 2014 to 

o-..: 10 :<1 t1 6 201 S school yt,ar? 

02; 10;57 7 

')l 10 : "i'I 8 

02 10:)'I 9 

oz 111 ;$4 10 

01 10:&e U 

02 10:&& 12 

'l. 11;fll 13 

02 11:12 14 

how 

the 

A. Mm- hmm. 

Q. So could you evel uate how you woul d - -

A. Sure. 

Q. Assuming this f s a fi rst-t ime incident , 

you would evaluate the consequences for this 1 f 

i nvestigat i on found it to be true? 

A. Whatever the Code s ays. Let· s see. 

MR . SHARMA: I think it 's page 15 is 

02 11 :1, 15 where it starts, the chart. 

A. ~o I WOUlO go W1'tn Ou l l1e:,, out. tn1:, 1:t 

0211:s1 17 the one where the-· so it's a level 3 and 4 , and 

" ,,,,, 18 it ' s first time , I would have done a level 3. which 

02 ,:i:M 19 is one to three days suspension. 

Q. Okay. Thank you. 

02 n:~• 21 If Hs. El 1 e r had asked Hr . Adams t o 

o.t u:00 22 have the security caineras checked , do you know 
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C2: ;U 00 1 

t.2 :1) 10 2 

li2 !1J 10 3 

ll2;1:I 12 4 

02:1) 20 5 

C2 :1) )2 6 

C2• 1) ,, 7 

li2: U 18 8 

t2: , .. 18 9 

02:1 .. 20 10 

t2: U 20 ti 

c2:u :4 12 

,,,u 26 13 

o,un 14 

whether that woul d have happened? 

A, Yes. 

Q, It would have happened. Okay. 

We' re now going to hand you a 

document marked as Exh1bit 38 t1tled Cont1nued 

M1 sgender1 ng. 

153 

(Pl ain t iff's Exn1bit 38, e-mai l , 5 . 2 . 2016, Adams , 

(No Bates], was marked for 1dent1f1cat1on.) 

Q, Do you remember th1 s 1 ncident? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. And you' r e cc' ed in the e-mail , 

correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And Hs. Ell er 11ent1ons t hat a student 

02.u ,, 15 referred to her as ·he· twice , and she correcl t he 

.,,,. ., 16 student, to which the student repl1ed. ·sorry, but 

r;2:1 ◄ •i 17 you know." 

c2:1' ,., 18 How would you evaluate t his under 

•"" ·" 19 the Student Code from the 201 4-2015 handbook? 

c, ,, 51 21 know. 

Cl2:I~ 17 22 

t.t:15 2<l 1 

A. I do not know. r -- I really do not 

MR. SHARMA: Is t here a question? 

154 

115. CHEEHA : I can take my t 1me. 

t..il:·15 20 2 BY MS. CHE EMA: 

,::15 :!7 3 Q. Can we go through the same process that 

(.2;15 30 4 we used for the last e -mail? 

C,2'15 J1 5 

c.2.·,s :)4 6 

C.1 10 341 7 

e2 ,s 31 8 

C.Z:11!1i ,, 9 

OJ::15 ,u 10 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q . 

you, would 

A. 

No. 

Can you taKe a 100K? 

I don ' l think SO, 

So , f someone SUbAli tted e complaint to 

you not address it? 

I would address it, but again, I would 

""' .. 11 still have to speak with everybody involved. 

.,,., .. 12 In this cofflpl ai nt, it al so says, the 

w.:,s s, 13 students tr1 ed t o 1 et her know t hat it ' s a 1 ady and 

" '"., 14 her di sagreeing with that. 

r.l::15 50 15 I mean, it '• a 1 ot of aspects to 1t, 

e: u cc 1a so l oon· l wanl l O go oacK ana mis -- how ao 1 wont 

"1 115 oe 17 to say it? 

"·'"' 18 I don't know what Hr . Adams di d with 

"'·" ,o 19 this young 1 ady , and I don ' l want to 90 back and 

t.~'.,, ,s 20 second• guess h1m. 

C.2 :16 , .. 21 MS. CHEEHA : Do you have any 

c.2:•c 26 22 questions? 

02 111:2, 1 

02 11:20 2 

02 16: 21 3 

02 16:27 4 

02 11:1'& 5 

02 11:3tl 6 

02 11:31 7 

02 16:ll 8 

02. lf:32 9 

01 tt:U 10 

02 16:SA :11. 

02 16:34 12 

O"l ll1U 13 

Q2 16:33 14 

0) l i:U i5 

HR. SHARMA: Are you done? 

HS. CHEEHA: I'm done for now. 

HR. SHARMA: Okay. 

155 

HS. CHEEHA: Depending on whether 

you have questions , and - -

MR. SHARHA: You may follow up after 

my questions. 

HS . CHEEHA: Yes. 

HR . SHARMA: I do have a few 

questions. 

EXAHI NATION 

BY HR. SHARHA : 

Q. 

A. 

Q . 

Hs . Pope- Brown. 

Yes. 

We spent the vast majority of the 

., ,.,,. 16 morning talk1ng about train1ng. So I just wanted to 

02 1s,,1 17 make sure I understood what you said correctly . 

02 11;43 18 

01 U:'-4 19 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

With regard to students, t he students 

02 11:u 20 were g i ven training via the Student Code? 

02 l fl:&l 21 

02 1t:H 22 

A. 

Q. 

Vos , sir . 

And that was done four times a year? 

156 

Yes . 02· 11:~ 1 

OJ 11:~5 2 

A. 

Q. In general assemblies that would last 

o, 111:~ 3 between one to two hours? 

0.! : 11:M 4 

V, 17Ht':I 5 

A. 

Q. 

Yes . 

And within those general assemblies , 

0.1 11:0, 6 top1c:, ::.uch e~ :tex-based di :.ori m1nat1on end 

02 11:00 7 harassment was covered? 

02 " " ' 8 (Cl arification requested by the Court Reporter.) 

02 1'1;1 1 9 

in 11:11 10 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Were topics of gender -based 

~1 11:22 11 discriminati on or harassment covered? 

02 17 :Zl 12 

t:l2 11:2a 13 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

And sexual orientation disc riminat ion or 

02 11:20 14 harassment , were those covered as wel 1? 

02 17::H 15 A. Yes. 

01 11;/s .10 q , OKdy , W1th r ogard to t r a1n1n9 oo to 

o, ""' 17 staff 11e"1bers at Friendly High School, I believe you 

o, 11;>0 18 i ndicated that al 1 staff were required to take 

02 11: 30 19 online training modules; is that correct? 

1.ll11;d 20 

o: 17:"1 21 

A. 

Q , 

o:, 17:•, 22 eac h year? 

Yes . Yes. 

And t hat was done at the beg1 nn1 ng of 
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t:t :17 4, 1 

li2 :17 ... 2 

A, 

Q. 

Yes. 

And in addition to a vast variety of 

157 

G2 :11 48 3 

c;2·,r 50 4 

fl:t :1' l):> 5 

topics. one of the topics that were cover ed was the 

anti -discrimination and har assment po 1 icy of the 

school system? 

li2 :17 $3 6 

U · 17 ~) 7 

02:11 -~ 8 

c2:1, o~ 9 

c 2: 18.0l 10 

t2 :11i04 11 

'2: 11 06 12 

t,:,, 11 13 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Do you recall any complaints made by 

Ms. Eller regarding parents and her transgender 

status? 

A. 

Q. 

None . 

Do you reca 11 any comp 1 a int s made by 

Hs . Eller about other staff and her transgender 

status, other than t he i ncident with regard to 

o, ,, "' 14 Ms. Robi nson? 

No. 02. ,, ,s 15 

02: 111 16 16 

A. 

Q. And the Ms . Robi nson incident is what we 

""' 11 17 discussed earlier today, was it not? 

Yes . u : 11.20 18 

42:lt;20 19 

A. 

Q. Okay. Do you recall any comp 1 ai nts made 

.,. ,..,, 20 by Ms. El I er wi th regard lo bei ng physical 1 y 

"11 n 21 essaul ted as a result of her transgender status? 

li2:l lJcXl 22 A. No. 

158 

"2:11 ·31 1 Q. How about the threat of being physically 

1,:c:111 ,, 2 assaulted? 

c.2:11 l 4 3 A. No . 

01:11,. 4 Q, I wrote thi s down because you sai d it 

<.1:,a:ui 5 earlier . You said, anoMaly -- it would - - student 

u•I1 o 6 issues were an anomaly at Fr1endly Hlgh School wlth 

"11 " 7 regard Lo Ms . Eller? 

'2 11 ~ 8 

W::HJ 4f 9 

t.2 ·11 ... 10 

A. 

Q . 

A, 

Yes. 

What did you mean by that ? 

That the majority of the students . 

"""' 11 outlying the ones that she i dent ifi ed in the 

.,.,. .. 12 correspondence, they 1 oved Hs . Ell er . She was a 

""'" 13 significant part of Friendly . She was an AP 

""' •• 14 teacher. She is a great Engl ish teacher. She was 

"""' 15 friendly -- she's friendly . And s he's gotten 

c.,,ou 16 accoiaoes rrom parents, r,-.o,. ner stucents wno are 

w ,e o 17 very protective of her, because she has 

(.2.1e 21 18 conversal ions . . we 11. she had conversations with 

c,2.1!123 19 her s tuden l s about , you know, her transition in her 

c.2:11 ,o 20 di fferent classes. 

C.:t .1• l, 21 So, yeah, it -- yeah . They were 

u :,, 39 22 anomal 1 es . 

159 

02 11 1• 0 1 Q. And were these anomalies by students, 

en 10:q 2 

02 111:0 3 

02 Ui :n 4 

these incidents - - these anoma 1 i es as you refer to 

them , war e they r egularly addressed when they were 

made known to you and her administrator s? 

02 19:• 0 5 

02 11:&0 6 

02 1s : ti1 7 

Every time. 

Every single time? 

Every single time . 

A. 

Q . 

A. 

Q, So then you would agree that t here was 

o, " ' " 9 no de 1 i berate indi fference as to Ms. El 1 e r· s 

02 2c :01 10 concerns? 

02 20:01 11 

02 20:0) 1.2 

A. 

Q. 

Not at a 11 . Not at a 11 . 

You also mentioned t hat the PS-74 

02 10:03 13 reports were gi van back to the teachers? 

Yes. 0:2 20:01 14 

02 ?0:06 1.5 

A. 

Q. So was t hat a 1 so done by the gu1 dance 

0220:10 16 counselor, or was that done by someone else? 

02 20:12 17 A. 

02 20:11 18 secretary. 

02 20:tl 19 

02 20:14 20 

02 2-0:: U 21 

Q. 

A . 

Q. 

That should have been done by the 

Of the ~a1n offi ce? 

Yes. 

And so if Ns. Eller filed a PS-74 , 

<12 111:.N 22 e i ther in person or by e - 11ai 1, and it was 

02 20:zl 1 investigated and there was some action taken. 

160 

,no,21 2 ideally, she would have gotten that PS-74 back at 

02 :o:3o 3 some point 1 n t 1 me? 

0: 20:l1 4 

02 20:3t 5 

o.: ..:o:'" 6 

O:? !:0: '3 7 

02 21)~)7 8 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

02:2f>:» 9 I'm done . 

02.20:411 10 

02 20:•2 11 

Yes . 

So she should have a copy? 

Yes . 

MS. CHEEMA: Objecti on. 

MR. SHARMA: She al ready answered . 

THE WITNESS : You' re welcome . 

RE-EXAMINATION 

o, ,.,., 12 BY MS. CHEE MA : 

i:t2·20: d 13 

02 :ro:•, 1-4 

Q. I have fol 1 ow- up questions . 

On the gener al assembl ies that 

.,,.,., 15 Nr. Sharma was talking about , you menti oned this 

u:20:•1 1C morn1ng tnat you (J1dn't re"einber ~pec1f'1cally how 

112 ,.,., 1,7 many times gender identity was discussed at all in 

c,2 .zo:H 18 those quarterly assembl ies, correct? 

01 20:67 19 

02 20:61 20 

A. 

Q. 

Right. 

Do you remember how many minutes of a 

02 21:00 21. general assembly gender i dentity would have been 

o:J 41:cu 22 disc ussed? 
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li2:21 02 1 

U:21 03 2 

li2 1JI OS 3 

G2: 1.1 05 4 

'2:11 Of 6 

C2:1t GI 6 

02:21 ® 7 

li2 :21 Oi 8 

t2:tl 11 9 

t-2:11 , ~ 10 

&2:21 12 11 

161 

A. No , no. 

Q , Would it have been a substantial 

portion? 

A. I can • t say . I don ' t know. 

Q . But you don't reoaember how many times at 

al 1 it was discussed? 

A. I ' m sorry. 

Q, You don· t remember how many thes il was 

discussed? 

A. No. 

Q. And you menti oned that the PS- 74s were 

":21 ,.s 12 frequent 1 y not prov1 dod to teachers? 

A. Yes . 

o, 21 20 14 And when t he teachers di d not get 

" ·'"' 15 Lheir PS-74s back , they rai sed t he roof. 

li2: Z1 :!a 16 Q. And once they r ahed the roof, were 

n.r:11 21 17 they - · 

1;2t21 21 18 A. They would receive a copy from the 

c.2:21 29 19 secret ary . 

Cl2'.l1 ) 0 20 

G1 21 )1 2.1 

Q . 

A. 

Did t hat always happen? 

I can ' t say whether it did or d i dn't. I 

°''" " 22 would only know If Lhe teacher repor ted 1t. And 

<.2:21·)6 1 

U::ZI ·~ 2 

f,2:2 1 . .U 3 

t.2:21 41 4 

C.2:21 "ti 6 

C,2:2 1 ,, 6 

U l l Ml 7 

t2 21 e:2 8 

W:2t &2 9 

,2:21 58 10 

Dl.:ll SI 11 

r.2..22" 12 

t.2:Z2 "' 13 

t2:21 r.4 14 

162 

Ms. Ell er has never reported i t to ne. 

a. And you menti oned that those f iles are 

supposed to be maintained by t he school as well , in 

the student s' files? 

A. 

Q, 

Yes. 

And that that f requently d1d not happen 

when t he secretary was not avai labl e? 

A . 

Q. 

Vas . 

And espec1 ally 11 t he consequence was 

less than a suspension, it gener ally did not happen? 

A. Well, even i f it was a suspension , t he 

PS· 74 IIBY not have reached the CUH fil e , but t he 

suspension would have. 

a. You mentioned earli er t hat if Ms. El 1 er 

u,22,. 15 had repor t ed students harassing her, that knowing 

o~ 22 n 16 her, she wou I dn · t have sa1 (1 i t I r It weren · t t rue, 

1,,2 22 ~ 1.7 correct? 

"2,-i2 2$ 18 

c.2 n 2t 1.9 

(,2:U 27 20 

A. 

Q . 

HR. SHARMA: Obj ection . 

Say t hat again. 

You menti oned that Hs. Eller had 

02 22: )J 

02 22:37 

02 22:5) 

02 .21:H 

02 ,,,,, 

02 2,:11 

02 11;51 

1 

2 

3 

4 

6 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

u 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

1 

2 

A, I be Ii eve that Hs . Ell er reported 

everyt hing that she felt happened to her . 

HS . CHEEHA: Okay. Okay . 

HR. SHARHA: Okay. Thank you, 

We' 11 read. 

THE WITNESS: That's it? 

HR. SHARHA: That's it. 

(Signature not waived. ) 

( CONCLUDED, 2 :22 p.m.) 
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2 I, Marjori e Peters . Registered Merit 

3 Reporter , Certified Real time Repor ter, and Notary 
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